
 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and via Zoom webinar. Individual Board members may participate remotely in 
accordance with applicable open meeting law requirements. In-person meetings will be conducted in accordance with local and State Department of Public Health 
orders and guidance and requirements of the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CalOSHA). The Zoom webinar is accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 205-
6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general public 
comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-
raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Written public 
comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. Your comments may or may not be read 
aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 
(2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 
878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is 
a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, 
the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 21, 2023 

  
(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 

 
Start Time  

 

8:30 A.M. 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of 
litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case. 

  
 

  3) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue 
Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 

 
 

 

 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer 
Jeff Thomson. 

  
 

  4) Public Employment – Pursuant to Government Code §54957 – Title: Water 
Director Appointment. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  7) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  8) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 9) Minutes from the February 7, 2023 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve the minutes from the 
February 7, 2023 regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors. 

 

   

  
10) 

 
Addendum to Current Master Agreement between Inyo County and 
Aumentum Technologies 

  County Administrator | Meaghan McCamman 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve an addendum to the current 
Master Agreement between Inyo County and Aumentum Technologies, in the 
form of a Letter of Authorization dated Feb. 1, 2023, and authorize the County 
Administrative Officer or their designee to sign.   

 

   

  
11) 

 
Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Review 

  County Counsel | John Vallejo 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board: A) receive and approve the 2022 
Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Report from the Round Valley Joint 
Elementary School District; and B) receive and approve the 2022 Conflict of 
Interest Code amendment from the Lone Pine Unified School District.  

 

   

  
12) 

 
Data Sharing Agreement with California Health and Wellness (CHW) 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve the Data Sharing Agreement 
between the County of Inyo Health and Human Services and California Health 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

and Wellness (CHW) for the provision of data sharing between the County 
Mental Health Plan (MHP) and CHW, a Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan (MCP), 
and authorize the HHS director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.   

 

   

  
13) 

 
Addendums to the MOU between the County of Inyo Health and Human 
Services and Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. (Anthem)  

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 

 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve Addendums No. 1 and No. 2 
to the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo Health and 
Human Services (HHS) Department and Blue Cross of California Partnership 
Plan, Inc. (Anthem), clarifying the exchange of protected Health 
Information/Data Exchange between the County Mental Health Plan 
(Behavioral Health), Public Health and Anthem, a managed care plan serving 
Inyo County's Medi-Cal eligible population, and authorize the HHS Director to 
sign the addendums.  

 

   

  
14) 

 
California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA) Participation 
Agreement Amendment 

  Health & Human Services | Marilyn Mann 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve amendment to the 
agreement between the County of Inyo and California Mental Health Services 
Authority (CalMHSA), reallocating Project Management and Clinical Services 
funding to a Flexible Spending Account  to cover additional subject matter 
expert topics, and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
15) 

 
Agreement with Department of Health Care Services for MediCal 
Administrative Activities 

  Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention | Marilyn Mann 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board: A) approve the Program Participation 
Agreement between the County of lnyo and California Department of Health 
Care Services; and B) authorize the HHS Fiscal Oversight and Special 
Operations Deputy Director as the Local Governmental Agency Coordinator to 
sign the agreement. 

 

   

  
16) 

 
MedBank Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention | Anna Scott 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve the lease agreement 
between the County of Inyo and CareFusion Solutions, Inc. of San Diego, CA 
for BD Pyxis MedBank equipment, software, and services, in an amount not to 
exceed $58,380.00 plus applicable sales and property taxes, for a period of 60 
months, commencing on the date of equipment installation, contingent upon 
the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS Director to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.  

 

   
  

 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

17) Amendment No. 1 to American Refuse, Inc. Contract  

  Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management | Michael Errante 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the 
contract between the County of Inyo and America Refuse, of Wasco, CA 
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $185,000 for waste tire 
hauling and recycling, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
18) 

 
Waiver of Fees Consideration for Lower Owens River Clean-Up Event 

  Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management | Michael Errante 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board consider approval of waiver of solid 
waste disposal and gate fees up to $100 for trash and litter removed at the 
Lower Owens River Clean event, April 22, 2023. 

 

   

  
19) 

 
Amendment No. 4 to Fountainhead Consulting Agreement 

  Public Works | Greg Waters 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the 
consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead 
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by 
$137,327.86 to an amount not to exceed $808,366.97 and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

 

   

  
20) 

 
Notice of Completion for Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board approve Proposed Resolution No. 
2023- 05 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of 
Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of Completion 
for the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign. 

 

   

  
21) 

 
Appointments to Fill Vacancies on the Water Commission 

  Water Department | Aaron Steinwand 
 
Recommended Action: Request Board consider the Letters of Interest 
received for re-appointment to the Water Commission and appoint two Water 
Commissioners with a term ending December 31, 2026; and appoint one 
Water Commissioner to complete a term ending December 31, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 22) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report 

  County Administrator | Nate Greenberg 
30 minutes (20min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board: 
A) Accept the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report as 

presented; 
B) Approve the specific budget action items and recommendations 

discussed in the report, and represented in Attachments A & B (4/5ths 
vote required); and 

C) Direct staff to continue the emphasis on revenue attainment and expense 
savings in order to maximize year-end Fund Balances. 

 

   

  
23) 

 
Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health Division Overview 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann, Anna Scott, Kimball 
Pier, Chrystina Pope, Gina McKinzey, Catie Grisham 
45 minutes (30 min. Presentation / 15min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Receive a presentation from Health and Human 
Services' Behavioral Health Division  

 

   

  
24) 

 
Agriculture Department Overview and AgPass Workshop 

  Agricultural Commissioner | Nathan Reade 
60 minutes (40 min. Presentation / 20 min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Request Board: A) receive a presentation highlighting 
the functions of the Agriculture Department and associated programs; and B) 
participate in a workshop on the development of an Ag Pass Program and 
provide any follow-up direction to staff as necessary. 
  

 

CORRESPONDENCE - ACTION  
  

 

  25) Request from Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  26) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  27) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3509  

 

Minutes from the February 7, 2023 Board of Supervisors 
Meeting 

Clerk of the Board 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the minutes from the February 7, 2023 regular meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

1. Draft Feb. 7, 2023 Minutes 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/14/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 2/14/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     February 7, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

February 7, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:33 a.m., on 
February 7, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present per California Assembly Bill 361: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Jeff Griffiths, Trina Orrill, 
and Scott Marcellin. Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, and Office 
Technician Hayley Carter. Also present remotely: Supervisor Matt Kingsley.

Public Comment The Chairperson asked for public comment related to Closed Session items, and no one 
requested to speak. 

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 8:34 a.m. to convene in closed session with all 
Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with County's 
Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association 
(EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS 
Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: 
all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant 
County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director 
Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson; and No. 3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Pursuant to 
Government Code §54957 – Title: County Administrator.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session at 
10:13 a.m. with all Board members present.

Pledge of Allegiance Environmental Health Director Jerry Oser led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported and said the Board will need to return to closed session at some point 
to continue discussing closed session items.

Intros The following new employees were introduced to the Board: Jennifer Mills, Office Technician 
II, Environmental Health; and Cathy Rigney, HHS Specialist II, and Melissa Witting, 
Administrative Assistant to the HHS Director, HHS.

County Department 
Reports

HHS Director Marilyn Mann said that Public Health Officer Dr. Richards signed an order 
yesterday, with the intent to terminate the public health emergency surrounding COVID-19, 
which will align with the State’s intent to do the same on February 28, 2023. 

Emergency Services Manager Mikaela Torres shared an update and overview from Wildfire 
Preparedness Coordinator Kristin Pfeiler on the recently held Defensible Space Workshop; 
reminded everyone about the “Ready Inyo” photo contest; reported that representatives from 
CalOES, FEMA, and the Small Business Administration came to assist with preliminary 
damage assessments for January storm damages; and said that hazard mitigation planning is 
still in the works with a meeting scheduled for March 9, 2023.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not calendared 
on the agenda.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     February 7, 2023      

Public comment was heard from Lauralynn Hundley and Ted Carleton. 

Public Works Director Mike Errante updated the Board and public on the progress of the North 
Round Valley bridge.

Supervisor Roeser spoke about dedicating the meeting in honor of community member Dan 
Young who recently passed away, noting that he was a respected military veteran and patriot 
who contributed to many historic projects during his time living in the Owens Valley.

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the minutes of 
the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of January 10 and January 17, and the special 
meeting of January 24, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

CAO – 
2023 Legislative 
Platform

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to adopt the Inyo County 
2023 Federal Legislative Platform. Motion carried unanimously.

CAO- Information 
Services –
Local Agency 
Technical Assistance 
Grant

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to accept the Local Agency 
Technical Assistance (LATA) grant from the State of California and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign the LATA Grant Consent Form. Motion carried unanimously.

Personnel –
CPS Human 
Resources Agreement 
Amendment

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to ratify and approve the 
Amendment to the CPS HR Consulting services agreement with an updated term of January 
5, 2023, through March 31, 2023, and authorize the Assistant County Administrator to sign. 
Motion carried unanimously.

County Counsel –
AB 361 Findings

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to adopt findings pursuant 
to AB 361 that: A) the Board reconsidered the circumstances of the existing State of 
Emergency issued on March 4, 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and B) local 
officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing, and/or the state of 
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

HHS –
Cal HHS Data Sharing 
Agreement

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the Data 
Sharing Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Health and Human Services 
(Cal HHS) for the provision of data sharing policy and procedures issued statewide, and 
authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
Motion carried unanimously.

HHS – Health & 
Prevention –
Children’s Medical 
Services Plan 

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to ratify and approve the 
CMS Plan for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 to ensure the continuation of children's medical services 
in Inyo County and authorize the Chairperson to sign certification statements. Motion carried 
unanimously.

Planning Dept. –
Helix Environmental 
Planning Inc. Contract 
Amendment No. 1

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to ratify and approve 
Amendment No.1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and the Helix Environmental 
Group Inc. to amend Section 2 – Term of the agreement to be April 1, 2022, through 
November 30, 2023; and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works-Parks & 
Rec. –
Portuguese Joe 
Campground 
Reservation

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the request from 
Mr. Allan Johnson to reserve all campsites at Portuguese Campground, October 5 through 
October 8, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works – Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the closure of 
"C" Street, between Begole and East Locust streets in Lone Pine, between the hours of 8:30 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     February 7, 2023      

Frontier CA 
Road Closure

a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on February 21-22, 2023, for the purpose of Frontier California installation 
of +/- 329 linear feet of aerial cable on existing aerial leads. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works –
T&T Truck and Crane 
Service Road Closure

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the closure of 
Highland Drive in Bishop, between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 
February 22, 2023, for the purpose of Southern California Edison's use of a crane to replace 
utility poles. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works –
Cardno, Inc. Contract 
Amendment No. 1

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve Amendment No. 
1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Cardno, Inc of Zephyr Cove, NV, increasing 
the “Do Not Exceed” amount from $402,545.86 to $508,736.67, amending Attachment “A” 
Scope of Work, amending Attachment “B” Schedule of Fees, and amending Section 2 to 
change the end date of the contract from June 30, 2023 to October 31, 2024, for the Lone 
Pine Town Streets Project, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works - Parks 
& Rec. –
Tinnemaha 
Campground 
Reservation

The agenda item was pulled from the Consent Agenda to Departmental for further discussion. 
Chairperson Roeser shared concerns about stress on already limited first response 
resources, including EMS providers, as well as noise levels and potential runoff issues. 
County Counsel explained that loud noise and potential safety closures are already addressed 
through existing County Code and emergency response protocol, respectively. He noted that 
the existing ordinance gives the Parks Director the discretion to decide what additional 
requirements to place on the permit request, and the Parks Director can utilize feedback from 
local first responders to craft any such requirements. Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and 
seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the request from the Moontribe Collective to reserve 
all campsites at Tinnemaha Creek Campground, June 1 through June 5, 2023, consistent with 
regulations the County would require of any other group that would be reserving the 
campground under similar circumstances. Motion carried unanimously. 

Attendance Change Supervisor Griffiths excused himself from the meeting at 11:08 a.m. to travel to an out-of-town 
meeting.

Public Works –
Caltrans Road Charge 
Pilot Study 
Presentation

Lauren Prehoda, Road Charge Program Manager with Caltrans gave a presentation to staff 
regarding the California Road Charge Pilot Study.

Chairperson Roeser asked if there were any public comments. Public comment was heard 
from Bruce Pischel, Joshua Nicholson, and Lynne Greer.

Planning Dept.  –
Tribal Consultation 
Committee 
Representatives 
Annual Appointments

Planning Director Cathreen Richards requested the Board appoint two of its members to each 
of the five Tribal Consultation Committees, in accordance with the County's Tribal 
Consultation Policy. 

Moved by Supervisor Orrill and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve the following 
appointments for Tribal Consultation Committee representatives: Supervisors Marcellin and 
Griffiths, Bishop Paiute Tribe; Supervisors Orrill and Roeser, Big Pine Paiute Tribe; 
Supervisors Kingsley and Roeser, Fort Independence Paiute Tribe; Supervisors Kingsley and 
Roeser, Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe; and Supervisors Kingsley and Griffiths, the 
Timbisha Shoshone Tribe. Motion carried 4-0, with Supervisor Griffiths absent.

County Counsel –
Email Retention Policy 
Presentation/
Reso #2023-04 

County Counsel Chief Deputy Grace Chuchla gave a brief presentation on updates to the 
Email Retention Policy.

Moved by Supervisor Marcellin and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve Resolution No. 
2023-04 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of 
California, Adopting an Email Retention Policy," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. Motion 
carried 4-0, with Supervisor Griffiths absent. 
 

CAO –
Inyo County Housing 
Efforts Presentation

Assistant CAO Meaghan McCamman provided a presentation with updates on Inyo County 
housing efforts and gave feedback to the staff and public.

Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment for this item and comment was 
heard from Bruce Pischel.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     February 7, 2023      

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 12:48 p.m. for lunch and closed session with 
all Board members present except Supervisor Griffiths. The Board continued discussion and 
possible action as appropriate on previously noted closed session items.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser reconvened the meeting in open session at 1:40 p.m. with all Board 
members present except Supervisor Griffiths.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported.

CAO – Information 
Services –
Department 
Presentation

Information Services Director Scott Armstrong provided the Board with a presentation on the 
Information Services Department.

Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment for this item and there were none.

Public 
Administrator/Public 
Guardian –
Department 
Presentation

Public Administrator-Public Guardian Patricia Barton provided the Board with a presentation 
on the PAPG Department.

Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment for this item and comment was 
heard from Cindy Cox.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not calendared 
on the agenda and there were none.

Board Member & 
Staff Reports

Supervisor Kingsley said that he attended a community meeting in Charleston View and had a 
separate visit in Dumont Dunes with the new BLM Area Manager last week and said he will be 
attending meetings for the Rural County Representatives of California and the National 
Association of Counties in Washington, D.C. this week.  

Supervisor Marcellin said he had meetings with the ad hoc committee for Bishop City and 
Rural Fire District, staff at the Bishop Airport, and the Local Transportation Commission last 
week, and will meet again with the LTC this week.

Supervisor Orrill said she attended a FIRST 5 Board Meeting and various meetings with 
department heads and has future meetings planned with the Eastern Sierra Transportation 
Authority and Eastern Sierra Council of Governments.
 
Supervisor Roeser said she attended meetings with staff as well as the Southern Inyo and 
Northern Inyo Airport Committees; listened to the High Road Transition Counsel “Lunch and 
Learn,” visited damaged areas from the storm, attended the Search and Rescue installation 
dinner, the National Association of Counties Ag & Public Lands meeting, and attended the 
groundbreaking ceremony for the Ft. Independence Travel Center.

CAO Greenberg attended the meeting in Charleston View, a meeting at Lone Pine Airport, 
and met with the budget team, and said he will be attending the Eastern Sierra Council of 
Governments meeting Friday. Greenberg thanked the Office of Emergency Services team for 
their work, noting that Manager Mikaela Torres received accolades from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency and the Office of Emergency Services. He said he would be 
working collaboratively around disaster protocol with the Sheriff’s office.  

Supervisor Kingsley also spoke about the passing of Robert “Bob” Gracey on January 16, 
2023, a previous Fourth District Supervisor, whom he said was a “really innovative leader to 
our area.” Supervisor Marcellin also acknowledged the passing of former Supervisor Gracey, 
saying that “he will be missed.”

Adjournment Per Chairperson Roeser’s earlier comments, the meeting was adjourned in honor of Dan 
Young at 2:55 p.m. to 8:30 a.m. Tuesday, February 21, 2023, in the County Administrative 
Center in Independence.



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  5                                                                                                                                     February 7, 2023      

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3484  

 

Addendum to Current Master Agreement between Inyo 
County and Aumentum Technologies 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve an addendum to the current Master Agreement between Inyo County and 
Aumentum Technologies, in the form of a Letter of Authorization dated Feb. 1, 2023, and authorize the 
County Administrative Officer or their designee to sign.   
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo County originally signed a Master Agreement for use of our current property tax management 
system (PTMS) in 2012. After a rocky start and several delays, the system fully went live at the end of 
2019. Because this is a complex system that is almost infinitely configurable, Inyo County staff continues 
to utilize training and professional consulting services from Aumentum in order to correctly configure and 
utilize the system to maximize efficiency. This contract will allow Inyo Staff continued access to 
Aumentum Professional services staff and consultation.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 011804 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5265 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Up to $80,000 which will be billed at $225/hr. which will be billed based on the actual time worked. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The Board could decide not to approve this addendum to the Aumentum Technologies Master 
Agreement. This would not be advised, as this agreement will allow the County Departments who use 
Aumentum access to the professional consulting services they need for successful use of the system.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Assessor, Inyo County Auditor, Inyo County Treasurer/Tax Collector, Inyo County 
Information Services 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Master Agreement Addendum 
  
APPROVALS: 
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 2/1/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/1/2023 
Scott Armstrong Approved - 2/1/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/2/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/2/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Inyo County CA2012.004-LOA204  Page 1 of 4 
Offer Expiration Date:  March 1, 2023 

LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION 
 
February 1, 2023 
 
Scott Armstrong 
Information Services Director 
Inyo County 
PO BOX 477 
Independence, CA 93526 
 
Dear Meaghan: 
 
This Letter of Authorization ("LOA") will confirm Inyo County’s request for professional services consulting 
and travel at the price(s) indicated.  This will be an addendum to the current Master Agreement 
CA2012.004-LOA204 between Inyo County (the “County”) and Manatron, Inc. (“Aumentum Technologies” 
or “Aumentum Tech”).   All the terms and conditions of that agreement will pertain.    

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Quantity Description Hourly Fees 

Not to Exceed 
$80,000.00 

Professional Services Consulting – Billed as Used $225.00 

Not to 
Exceed 

$40,000.00 

Travel Time and Expenses for onsite support 
Billed as Incurred 

Actual costs 

 
Professional services will be billed as used monthly at the rate shown, plus any travel, travel fees, 
meals, and other related expenses.    Professional services fees plus any travel related expenses 
are due and payable after Aumentum Tech performs such services in accordance with 
Aumentum Tech invoice(s) that shall be sent to the County.  All invoices are due upon receipt.   

 
Approval of this LOA will allow Aumentum Tech to perform the services herein.   

 
 
ACCEPTANCE 
 

 
Inyo County 

 
Aumentum Technologies 

 
BY: BY:  

 
PRINTED NAME: PRINTED NAME: 

 
TITLE: TITLE: 

 
DATE: DATE: 

 
  



 

Inyo County CA2012.004-LOA204  Page 2 of 4 
Offer Expiration Date:  March 1, 2023 

Description of Agreement  
 

Inyo County is requesting Professional Services Consulting support to help elevate staff’s Aumentum 
proficiency and converted records processing through the performance of key Business Processes and 
other consulting support.   
 
The County and Aumentum Tech agree to the following:   
 

• Aumentum Tech will provide billable consulting services to the County in support of Key Business 
Processes and other consulting support.    

• Work will be performed as hourly consulting at a rate of $225 per hour.   

• Work can include (but not limited to) refresher training, tools support, process support, process 
re-engineering, production data entry, configuration assistance, system optimization or other 
health checks.  

o As the users become more comfortable with Aumentum, the County can consider 
booking a specific period of time to have a consultant help refine business processes, 
show best practices, or provide other general support. 

• All consulting services are billed as used and the scheduling is dependent on staff availability. 

o This LOA is assumed not to exceed $80,000 in services and $40,000 in travel – any 
estimates provided are for budgetary purposes only and final pricing is depending on 
actual hours or travel expenses used. 

o Once the maximum in this LOA has been used or expired, a new LOA will be needed for 
any additional hours requested, and should the County decide, may occur into future 
years as an ongoing service. 

o Travel expenses and travel time for any onsite support will be invoiced separately.  

• The County will request consulting assistance prior to the work starting.   

o The County will open a Teams Support ticket with the request of consulting support 
and/or travel.  Aumentum Tech will triage and assign the ticket and work will begin.   

o Aumentum Tech will track all requests, office, activity and status. 

o An updated report will be provided monthly or as otherwise requested.   

o Hours are assumed consulting and travel only. No planned deliverables unless otherwise 
agreed in the individual engagement. 

• Aumentum Tech will submit a monthly Deliverable Acceptance Statement (DAS) that documents 
work authorized during the previous month.   

o DAS will have a 5-day approval period.  After the 5-day approval period, this deliverable 
will be considered accepted and ready for billing unless otherwise documented in a 
formal response to Aumentum Technologies with detailed rationale for rejecting this 
milestone.  

o Rejection of a milestone will result in immediate escalation and halt any remaining 
consulting for further review. 

• This LOA will expire 12 months after the last signature date by either party, or any unused, 
unauthorized hours in this agreement will not be billed.  The County may extend the expiration by 
6 months upon agreement of both parties or request future LOAs to continue professional 
services beyond the 12 month period. 

  
  



 

Inyo County CA2012.004-LOA204  Page 3 of 4 
Offer Expiration Date:  March 1, 2023 

 
Assumptions 
 

• Scheduling is dependent on staff availability.   Consulting is provided from 8:00am to 3:00pm PT.    
Consulting services needed for after-hours, weekends and holidays will be billed at 2x the hourly 
rate unless otherwise agreed in advance.    

• Aumentum Tech will provide coordinators for request authorization, scheduling, tracking, status 
updates and DAS submission.   Coordination time will be added to each monthly DAS, not to 
exceed 1.5 hours per month.     

• County is responsible for providing access to the designated County environment for the work to 
be performed. 

• County is responsible for maintaining the deployment of releases, hotfixes or data fix patches, 
unless otherwise requested in an assistance request.     

• Onsite support must be requested at least 3 weeks in advance, and the County will be 
responsible for all travel expenses, including a minimum of 10 hours of travel time (billed at $75 
per hour) per round trip and consulting hours for onsite and remote staff.  Aumentum Tech staff 
travel will be dependent on staff availability. 

• The County understands that the traveling Aumentum Tech employee may discontinue 
participation of any portion of this on-site County activity including travel to/from, customer visits 
at the County office or other locations, social events, or any other aspect of the trip if the traveler 
feels that unsafe practices may be conducted in his/her presence or if it is believed by the traveler 
that his/her health may be at risk.  

• DAS statements will report consulting hours only. Invoices for travel time and expenses will be 
submitted separately as travel occurs.     



 

Inyo County CA2012.004-LOA204  Page 4 of 4 
Offer Expiration Date:  March 1, 2023 

DELIVERABLE ACCEPTANCE STATEMENT (DAS)
  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONSULTING – MONTH/YEAR  (BILLABLE MILESTONE) 

Purpose 
 

The purpose of this form is for the County to provide agreement for the authorized monthly Professional 
Services consulting work.  Travel time and expenses invoiced separately. 
 
Acceptance Criteria 
 

• Aumentum Tech has performed the below billable work at the authorization of the client. 

o Total consulting hours completed this period:  ______  

o Total remaining hours or funds per contract:   ______ 
 

Date 
requested  

Ticket # Office Completed 
Hours for 
Billing 

Brief description of service 

          

          

     

 
 
This DAS was submitted on: _____________ 
 
The County response period is five (5) business days.  After that time, this deliverable will be 
considered accepted and ready for billing unless otherwise documented in a formal response to 
Aumentum Technologies with detailed rationale for rejecting this milestone. Written rejection will result in 
immediate escalation and halt any remaining services for further review. 
 
We, the undersigned, agree that the authorized work has been performed and that under the conditions 
of this Letter of Authorization and any existing agreements(s) between the County and Aumentum 
Technologies the County will be billed for _____ hours at a rate of $225 per hour for a total of $_____ 
upon signing this acceptance form.    
 

Inyo County, CA: 
 

Aumentum Technologies: 

Signature: Signature: 

Printed Name: Printed Name:      

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For Aumentum Technologies Internal Office Use Only:   
Prof Svcs Project Implementation:  5010-10-0-04 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3495  

 

Data Sharing Agreement with California Health and 
Wellness (CHW) 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lori Bengochia, Innovations and Grant Manager Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the Data Sharing Agreement between the County of Inyo Health and Human 
Services and California Health and Wellness (CHW) for the provision of data sharing between the 
County Mental Health Plan (MHP) and CHW, a Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan (MCP), and authorize the 
HHS director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health division, as the Medi-Cal speciality Mental Health Plan 
(MHP), has a current Memorandum of Understanding with California Health and Wellness as well as an 
addendum that covers data sharing. The Data Sharing Agreement for this request is the detailed 
information that will be shared between agencies to meet the Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS) Cal-AIM initiative, Goal 3, Milestone 1a which requires demonstrating bi-directional direct data 
sharing with Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCP) and MHP. To meet the requirement, a detailed 
agreement has been produced to clarify the exchange of protected health information between the MHP 
and CHW. The Department respectfully requests your Board approve the MOU and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

No funding for this item Budget Unit N/A 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code N/A 
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Data Sharing Agreement is necessary to complete milestone 3a for the Behavioral Health Quality 
Improvement Plan (BHQIP) and if not approved, will affect the funding received for the project.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Data Sharing Agreement  
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 2/6/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/8/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/9/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/9/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 23

DATA EXCHANGE/DATA SHARING AGREEMENT 

Exchange of Information, Including PHI, Related to the Beneficiaries Receiving Behavioral 
Health(BH) and Substance Use Disorder or Drug Medi-Cal  (SUD/DMC) Services 

This DATA EXCHANGE/DATA SHARING AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) is made and 
entered into by and between the COUNTY OF__INYO______________, a Political Subdivision of the 
State of California, hereinafter referred to as “COUNTY” and California Health and Wellness Plan, 
(“CHWP”), a health maintenance organization, whose address is 4191 E. Commerce Way, Sacramento, 
California 95834, (collectively the “Parties” and individually “Party”) in order to implement certain 
provisions of Title 9 of the California Code of Regulations (“CCR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY through its Department Health and Human Services Division of 
Behavioral Health is a Mental Health Plan and Drug Medi-Cal  (DMC) hereinafter referred to as “MHP”, 
as defined in Title 9 CCR, section 1810.226 and is required by the State Department of Mental Health 
(“DMH”) and the Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) to enter into a Data Sharing Agreement 
with any Medi-Cal managed care plan providing health care services to MHP Medi-Cal beneficiaries in 
accordance with Title 9 CCR; and

WHEREAS, nothing contained herein shall add to or delete from the services required by 
COUNTY or CHWP under each individual Party’s agreement with the State (“State”) of California or the 
provisions of State or federal law.  COUNTY and CHWP agree to perform required services under said 
agreements with the State, to the extent not inconsistent with laws and regulations; and

WHEREAS, this AGREEMENT cannot conflict with MHP’s obligations in the State/County 
MHP Contract, CCR Title 9, and the State Plan for the rehabilitation and Targeted Case Management 
outpatient; and

WHEREAS, all references in this AGREEMENT to “members” are limited to individuals 
assigned to or enrolled in CHWP health plan.

WHEREAS, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved Medicaid 
authorities for the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal program (CalAIM). 

WHEREAS, future CalAIM initiatives that may be implemented Enhanced Care Management 
(ECM), and Community Supports (CS), build upon California’s previous Medi-Cal initiatives, including 
Whole Person Care (WPC) pilots and the Health Homes Program (HHP) to meet the care needs for complex 
care populations by addressing the physical, behavioral, and social needs of Medi-Cal members; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) issued CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance dated March 2022, setting out specific guidance that supports data sharing 
between Managed Care Plans (MCPs) health care providers, community-based social and human service 
providers, local health jurisdictions, and county and other public agencies that provide services and 
managed care under CalAIM; and 

WHEREAS, the CalAIM Incentive Payment Program is intended to support the implementation 
and expansion of ECM and Community Supports by incentivizing managed care plans (MCPs), in 
accordance with 42 CFR Section 438.6(b), to drive MCP delivery system investment in provider capacity 
and delivery system infrastructure; bridge current silos across physical and behavioral health care service 

Commented [VSI1]:  Remove this language if not 
applicable.  



Page 2 of 23

delivery; reduce health disparities and promote health equity; achieve improvements in quality 
performance; and encourage take-up of Community Supports; and

WHEREAS, the Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) is a voluntary Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Plan (MCP) Incentive Program that aims to improve health outcomes and access to whole 
person care services by addressing housing insecurity and instability as social determinants of health for 
the Medi-Cal population; and 

WHEREAS, the California Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal (CalAIM) Behavioral Health 
Quality Improvement Program (BHQIP) is focused on implementation of payment reform, behavioral 
health policy changes, and bi-directional data exchange between systems of care for the purpose of 
improving quality and behavioral health outcomes and care coordination for Medi-Cal beneficiaries.

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants and conditions, the Parties 
hereto agree as follows:

1. TERM

This AGREEMENT shall become effective retroactively the 31st day of December 2022 
and shall terminate on the 30th day of ______________.

2. TERMINATION

A. Non-Allocation of Funds.  The terms of this AGREEMENT, and the services to 
be provided thereunder, are contingent on the approval of funds by the appropriating government 
agency. Should sufficient funds not be allocated, the services provided may be modified, or this 
AGREEMENT terminated at any time by giving CHWP sixty (60) days advance written notice.

B. Without Cause.  Under circumstances other than those set forth above, this 
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CHWP or COUNTY or Director of COUNTY’s Department of 
Behavioral Health, or designee, upon the giving of sixty (60) days advance written notice of an intention 
to terminate.

3. COMPENSATION

The program responsibilities conducted pursuant to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT 
shall be performed without the payment of any monetary consideration by CHWP or COUNTY, one to 
the other.

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

In performance of the work, duties and obligations assumed by CHWP under this AGREEMENT, 
it is mutually understood and agreed that CHWP, including any and all of CHWP’s officers, agents, and 
employees will at all times be acting and performing as an independent contractor, and shall act in an 
independent capacity and not as an officer, agent, servant, employee, joint venture, partner, or associate 
of COUNTY.  Furthermore, COUNTY shall have no right to control or supervise or direct the manner or 

Commented [NPM2]:  Some counties have adopted the 
following language to fulfill the term: 

This AGREEMENT shall become effective retroactively the 
31st day of December 2022 for a one (1) year term and 
shall thereafter automatically renew for one (1) year periods 
for up to five (5) years.



Page 3 of 23

method by which CHWP shall perform its work and function.  However, COUNTY shall retain the right 
to administer AGREEMENT to verify that CHWP is performing its obligations in accordance with the 
terms and conditions thereof.  CHWP and COUNTY shall comply with all applicable provisions of law 
and the rules and regulations, if any, of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over matters which 
are directly or indirectly the subject of this AGREEMENT.

Because of its status as an independent contractor, CHWP shall have absolutely no right to 
employment rights and benefits available to COUNTY employees.  CHWP shall be solely liable and 
responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, its employees all legally required employee benefits.  In 
addition, CHWP shall be solely responsible and save COUNTY harmless from all matters relating to 
payment of CHWP’s employees, including compliance with Social Security, withholding, and all other 
regulations governing such matters.  It is acknowledged that during the term of this AGREEMENT, 
CHWP may be providing services to others unrelated to the COUNTY or to this AGREEMENT.

5. HOLD-HARMLESS

Each of the Parties hereto shall be solely liable for negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of its 
officers, agents and employees occurring in the performance of this AGREEMENT, and if either Party 
becomes liable for damages caused by its officers, agents, or employees, it shall pay such damages without 
contribution by the other Party.  Each Party hereto agrees to indemnify, defend (if requested by the other 
Party) and save harmless the other Party, its officers, agents, and employees from any and all costs and 
expenses, including attorney fees and court costs, claims, losses, damages, and liabilities proximately 
caused by the Party, including its officers, agents, and employees, solely negligent or wrongful acts or 
omissions.  In addition, either Party agrees to indemnify the other Party for Federal, State and/or local 
audit exceptions resulting from noncompliance herein on the part of the other Party.

6. DISCLOSURE OF SELF-DEALING TRANSACTIONS

Members of CHWP Board of Directors shall disclose any self-dealing transactions that they are 
a party to CHWP while CHWP is providing goods or performing services under this AGREEMENT. A 
self-dealing transaction shall mean a transaction to which CHWP is a party and in which one or more 
of its directors has a material financial interest.  Members of the Board of Directors shall disclose any 
self-dealing transactions to which they are a party.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

All responsibilities performed by the Parties under this AGREEMENT shall be in strict 
conformance with all applicable Federal, State and/or local laws and regulations relating to confidentiality 
(local laws and regulations, still have to abide by state laws).

8. NON-DISCRIMINATION
During the performance of this AGREEMENT, CHWP shall not unlawfully discriminate against 

any employee or applicant for employment, or recipient of services, because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, physical disability, medical condition, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or 
gender, pursuant to all applicable State and Federal statutes and regulations (local laws and regulations, 
still have to abide by state laws).



Page 4 of 23

9. AUDITS AND INSEPCTIONS

Each Party shall, at any time upon reasonable notice during business hours, and as often as may 
be deemed reasonably necessary, make available for examination by the other Party, State, local, or 
federal authorities all of its records and data with respect to the matters covered by this AGREEMENT 
as may be required under State or federal law or regulation or a Party’s contract with a State agency.

10. NOTICES

The persons having authority to give and receive notices under this AGREEMENT and their 
addresses include the following:

          California Health and Wellness:                                   COUNTY:

California Health and Wellness COUNTY OF INYO

4191 E. Commerce Way 1360 N. Main Street

Sacramento, CA 95834 Bishop, CA 93514

or to such other address as such Party may designate in writing.

Any and all notices between COUNTY and CHWP provided for or permitted under this 
AGREEMENT or by law, shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served when personally delivered 
to one of the Parties, or in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed to such Party.

11. GOVERNING LAW

The P arties agree that for the purposes of venue, performance under this AGREEMENT is to be in 
Inyo County, California.

The rights and obligations of the Parties and all interpretation and performance of this 
AGREEMENT shall be governed in all respects by the provisions of California Department of Health 
Care Services’ officially policy letters and the laws and regulations of the State of California.

12. PURPOSE 

This AGREEMENT addresses how COUNTY and CHWP will coordinate care of Beneficiaries 
with behavioral health (BH) and substance use disorder (SUD), as well as member match on 
homelessness and housing status. Individuals with BH and SUDs have substantially higher morbidity and 
mortality associated with physical health problems than the general public. For many of these individuals, 
accessing physical healthcare services independently is a challenge and their BH and SUD service 
provider functions as their primary connection to the overall healthcare system.



Page 5 of 23

In order to coordinate care for such Beneficiaries, the Parties must identify those Beneficiaries 
who are enrollees of CHWP and clients of COUNTY and its contracted Providers (“Common Members”). 
This AGREEMENT documents how the Parties will share information to: (a) identify Common Members 
in compliance with the requirements of all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations; and (b) 
provide coordinated care to the Common Members. 

13. DATA MATCHING

Performing a data match to identify Common Members and transmitting the results to the entities 
providing services to the Common Members helps achieve two important results: 

a. The matched data can help alert healthcare providers to ongoing BH and SUD needs and 
interventions in Common Members. These BH and SUD needs, and interventions may have 
impact on their physical healthcare, and providing the information may facilitate consultation and 
collaboration between health, BH and SUD providers that can improve the health status and 
treatment outcomes of those served. 

b. Results of this match would also provide COUNTY with information that would allow COUNTY 
BH and SUD Providers to more efficiently and effectively facilitate access to much needed 
physical healthcare services for Common Members by identifying available primary care 
resources. 

c. Results of matching may also provide COUNTY with information that would allow CHWP and 
COUNTY to more efficiently and effectively member match on homelessness and housing status 
to better coordinate care and facilitate access to housing for Common Members by identifying 
available housing resources and coordinating linkages to housing supports and services.   

14. PROTOCOLS GOVERNING THE EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION 

CHWP shall provide to COUNTY the data described in Exhibit____, CHWP Beneficiary Data 
Exchange Protocol (“Protocol”). COUNTY shall use this data solely to determine whether Beneficiaries 
are Common Members.

a. For those Beneficiaries who are determined to be Common Members, COUNTY and CHWP 
shall use the data for the purposes of coordinating care.

b. For those Beneficiaries who are determined not to be Common Members, COUNTY and CHWP 
shall not use the data for any other purposes and shall return it to CHWP and remove it from all 
Systems where the data was used or stored. 

CHWP and COUNTY have reviewed the attached Protocol and agree that the data described in 
the Protocol complies with the minimum necessary standard for both HIPAA and 42 C.F.R. Part 2. 

The Parties shall comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 
Security Rule and 42 C.F.R. Part 2 in transmitting, receiving, and maintaining Protected Health 
Information (PHI) exchanged in accordance with the Protocol. 

The Parties shall ensure that client releases of information are in place via a release form which is 
compliant with both HIPAA and 42 C.F.R. Part 2.



Page 6 of 23

The Parties shall establish a 42 C.F.R. Part 2-compliant consent management system to provide a 
sharing platform that meets local, state, and federal rules and regulations for exchanging BH and SUD 
information.

15. HIPAA OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES

CHWP and COUNTY acknowledge that each is a covered entity under HIPAA, and each 
acknowledges their independent obligations to comply with HIPAA. 

Each party represents that it has implemented reasonable safeguards to protect the privacy and 
security of PHI, (including, but not limited to, electronic PHI), received from or transmitted by the other 
party and to prevent unpermitted uses or disclosures of such PHI. 

16. BUSINESS ASSOCIATE OBLIGATIONS 

The Parties acknowledge that for the purposes of conducting the data matching, COUNTY shall 
be acting in the capacity of a Business Associate of CHWP, with respect to the receipt of PHI for 
Beneficiaries who are not Common Members. 

The Parties shall enter into a Business Associate Agreement for the data matching requirements. 

Upon completion of the data matching, COUNTY shall not retain any PHI for CHWP 
Beneficiaries who are not Common Members. Such PHI shall be destroyed or returned in accordance with 
the terms of the Business Associate Agreement.

17. TERMS

The technical implementation outlined in the AGREEMENT will commence upon the adoption 
of a Universal Release Form and associated protocol by CHWP and COUNTY.

If the Universal Release Form and associated protocol are configured through a Health 
Information Exchange (HIE), then the data sharing process may be modified to align with HIE 
functionality.

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT including all Exhibits and Attachments set forth below constitutes the 
entire AGREEMENT between CHWP and COUNTY with respect to the subject matter hereof and 
supersedes all previous agreement negotiations, proposals, commitments, writings, advertisements, 
publications, and understandings of any nature whatsoever unless expressly included in this 
AGREEMENT.

 *****



Page 7 of 23

THIS AGREEMENT CONTAINS A BINDING ARBITRATION PROVISION 
THAT MAY BE ENFORCED BY THE PARTIES.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth 
beneath their respective signatures.

 California Health and Wellness  County of  Inyo
(Legibly Print Name of Provider)

Signature: Signature:

Print Name: Print Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

Tax Identification Number: 

Included in 
Agreement Attachment/Exhibit

X

X

X

X 

Exhibit A: California Data Exchange Framework (DxF) Data Sharing Agreement 
Language
Exhibit B: CHWP Beneficiary Data Exchange Protocol – Behavioral Health
and SUD Services Data  
Exhibit C: CHWP Beneficiary Data Exchange Protocol – Housing Status
and Housing Program/Services Data
Exhibit D: Certificate of Data Destruction 



Page 8 of 23

EXHIBIT A
DATA SHARING AGREEMENT

(CALIFORNIA DATA EXCHANGE FRAMEWORK (DxF) DATA SHARING AGREEMENT)

1. PARTIES

(a) “The “Parties”, in accordance with this single Data Sharing Agreement (DSA) are 
required or can elect to exchange Health and Social Information, as defined by this DSA within the State 
of California.”

2. PURPOSE AND INTENT

(a) California Health and Safety Code § 130290 was enacted in 2021 and establishes the 
creation of the California Health and Human Services Data Exchange Framework and requires certain 
data sharing among entities as set forth in California Health and Safety Code § 130290(f) on or before 
January 31, 2024. California Health and Safety Code § 130290 also provides for the California Health 
and Human Services Agency to encourage the inclusion of county health, public benefit, and social 
services as part of the Data Exchange Framework.

(b) Welfare and Institutions Code §14184.102 and Penal Code §4011.11, were also enacted 
in 2021 to support CalAIM and the sharing of information between County Agencies and the Managed 
Care Plan;

(c) Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) issued CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance dated March 2022, setting out specific guidance that supports data sharing 
between Managed Care Plans (MCPs) health care providers, community-based social and human service 
providers, local health jurisdictions, and county and other public agencies that provide services and 
managed care under CalAIM;

(d) This Agreement addresses how the Parties will share information to coordinate care of 
Medi-Cal Members while supporting CalAIM initiative and remaining in compliance with all applicable 
federal and state laws.” (local laws and regulations, still have to abide by state laws). This Agreement sets forth 
a common set of terms, conditions, and obligations to support secure real-time access to, or exchange               of 
Information (as defined below) between and among the parties. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to 
replace or supersede any existing or future agreement between or among the Party that provides for more 
extensive data exchange than that required under this Agreement.

3. DEFINITIONS

“Agreement” shall mean this Data Sharing Agreement.  

“Applicable Law” shall mean all federal, state, local, or tribal laws and regulations then in effect and 
applicable to the subject matter herein. For the avoidance of doubt, federal government entities are only 
subject to federal law.

“Authorization” shall have the meaning and include the requirements set forth at 45 CFR § 164.508 of 
the  HIPAA Regulations and at Cal. Civ. Code § 56.05. The term shall include all requirements for 



Page 9 of 23

obtaining consent to disclose confidential substance abuse disorder treatment records as set forth in 42 
C.F.R. Part 2, when applicable, and shall include any additional requirements under Applicable Law to 
disclose PHI or PII.

“Behavioral Health Services (or “Behavioral Health”) - Mental Health Services provided    pursuant to 
Section 51341 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Drug Medi-Cal substance abuse 
services provided pursuant to Section 51341.1 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and any 
mental health benefits and substance abuse available under the Medi-Cal Program. “Breach” shall mean 
the unauthorized acquisition, access, disclosure, or use of Health and Social Services Information as set 
forth in the Policies and Procedures.

“Confidentiality of Medical Information Act” (CMIA) - A State law, California Civil Code Section 56 
et.  seq., which governs the confidentiality of medical information, as defined therein; this law specifies 
when medical information is required and permitted to be disclosed by health care providers and others. 

“Confidential Party Information” shall mean proprietary or confidential materials or information of a 
party in any medium or format that a party labels as such upon disclosure or that given the nature of the 
information or the circumstances surrounding its disclosure, reasonably should be considered confidential. 
Notwithstanding any label to the contrary, Confidential Party Information does not include any 
information which is or becomes known publicly through no fault of the party to which such information 
is disclosed (a “Receiving Party”); is learned of by a Receiving Party from a third party entitled to disclose 
it; is already known to a Receiving Party before receipt from the disclosing party as documented by the 
Receiving Party’s written records; or is independently developed by a Receiving Party without reference 
to, reliance on, or use of the disclosing Participant’s Confidential Participant Information.

“Covered Entity” shall have the meaning set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 and shall also include the 
following as these terms are defined in California Civil Code § 56.05: “provider of health care,” “health 
care service plan,” and “licensed health care professional.”

“Effective Date” shall mean December 31, 2022.

“Health and Social Services Information” shall mean any and all information received, stored, 
processed, generated, used, transferred, disclosed, made accessible, or shared pursuant to this Agreement, 
including but not limited to: (a) Data Elements as set forth in the applicable Policy and Procedure; (b) 
information related to the provision of health care services, including but not limited to PHI; and (c) 
information related to the provision of social services. Health and Social Services Information may 
include PHI, PII, de- identified data (as defined in the HIPAA Regulations at 45 C.F.R. § 164.514), 
anonymized data, pseudonymized data, metadata, digital identities, and schema.

“HIPAA Regulations” shall mean the standards for privacy of individually identifiable health 
information, the security standards for the protection of electronic protected health information and the 
breach notification rule (45 C.F.R. §§ 160 and 164) promulgated by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, as in 
effect on the Effective Date and as may be amended, modified, or renumbered.

“Individual User” shall mean the person who is the subject of PHI or PII.

“Minimum Necessary Rule” shall mean Any such use or disclosure must, to the extent practicable, be 
limited to the limited data set, as defined in 45 CFR section 164.514(e)(2), or, if needed, to the minimum 



Page 10 of 23

necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of such use or disclosure, in compliance with the HITECH 
Act and any guidance issued pursuant to such Act, and the HIPAA regulations.

“Personally Identifiable Information” or “PII” shall have the same meaning as “Personal 
Information” set forth in Section 1798.140(o) of the California Civil Code, but shall be limited to PII 
exchanged pursuant to this Agreement.

“Personal Representative” shall refer to a person who, under Applicable Law, has authority to act on 
behalf of an individual as set forth in 45 C.F.R. § 164.502(g).

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” shall refer to “protected health information” as set forth at 45 
C.F.R. § 160.103 of the HIPAA Regulations and “medical information” as set forth at Civil Code § 56.05..

“Recipient” shall mean a Party that receives Health and Social Services Information from a Submitter. For 
purposes of illustration only, Recipients include, but are not limited to, Participants who receive queries, 
responses, subscriptions, publications, or unsolicited messages.

“Social Services” shall mean the delivery of items, resources, and/or services to address social 
determinants of health and social drivers of health, including but not limited to housing, foster care, 
nutrition, access to food, transportation, employment, and other social needs.

“Submitter” shall mean a Party that submits Health and Social Services Information to a Recipient.

“System” shall mean software, portal, platform, or other electronic medium controlled by a Party through 
which the Party conducts Health and Social Services Information exchange-related activities. For purposes 
of this definition, it shall not matter whether the Party controls the software, portal, platform, or medium 
through ownership, lease, license, or otherwise.

“Treatment” shall have the same meaning as set forth at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501 of the HIPAA Regulations.

4. USE OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES INFORMATION

(a) Required, Permitted and Prohibited Purposes. The purposes for which the Parties shall 
or may acquire, access, use, and disclose Health and Social Services Information pursuant to this 
Agreement, and the purposes for which the Participants may not acquire, access, use or disclose Health 
and Social Services Information pursuant to this Agreement, shall be set forth in “Exhibit B” [the Policies 
and Procedures.]

5. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES AND SPECIFICATIONS

(a) Compliance with Terms of this Agreement. Parties shall at all times abide by this 
Agreement, including the Policies and Procedures and Specifications.

(b) Incorporation; Modifications. The Policies and Procedures, the Specifications, and any 
future updates to either of them is hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement. The Policies 
and Procedures and Specifications are intended to be flexible to address changing needs and standards 



Page 11 of 23

and may be modified from time to time through the process outlined in the Policies and Procedures 
without a need to modify or re-execute this AGREEMENT.

(c) Health Equity. In order to reduce healthcare disparities, the Specifications shall set forth 
standards that advance health equity.

6. AUTHORIZATIONS

(a) To the extent required by Applicable Law, Party shall not disclose PHI or PII to another 
Party unless a legally valid “Authorization” (Authorization for Disclosure (AFD) / consent form) has 
been obtained. For the avoidance of doubt, Party shall not be required to obtain an “Authorization” prior 
to disclosing PHI or PII pursuant to this Agreement unless an “Authorization” is required under 
Applicable Law. For the understanding of the Recipient regarding the exchange of data to coordinate 
care for Beneficiaries, including protocols governing the secure and legally permissible exchange of 
information, to ensure coordination of physical health, mental health, and substance abuse services. 
Patient Authorization for Disclosure (AFD) forms for data sharing and re-disclosure will be maintained 
and retained at the Provider level. Any disclosure of Health and Social Services Information by a 
Submitter shall be deemed an express representation that the Submitter has complied with this Section 
and unless the Recipient has actual knowledge to the contrary, the Recipient may reasonably and 
justifiably rely upon such representation. 

7. REQUIREMENT TO EXCHANGE HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES INFORMATION

(a) Each Party shall engage in the exchange of Health and Social Services Information as 
set forth in the Policies and Procedures, through this agreement. Each Party agrees to comply with all the 
minimum requirements for data exchange set forth in the Policies and Procedures or Specifications.

(b) Parties shall engage in the real-time exchange of Health and Social Services Information 
in accordance with the timeframes set forth in the Policies and Procedures.

8. PRIVACY AND SECURITY

(a) General. Each Party shall at all times fully comply with all Applicable Law relating to 
this Agreement and the use of Health and Social Services Information.

(b) Safeguards. Each Party shall be responsible for maintaining a secure environment that 
supports the exchange of PHI or PII as set forth in the Policies and Procedures. And to implement 
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the PHI, including electronic PHI, that it creates, receives, 
maintains, uses, or transmits data, in compliance with 45 CFR sections 164.308, 164.310 and 164.312, 
and to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement.

(c) Individual User Education. Parties shall use tools, resources, and technical assistance 
made available by the California Health and Human Services Agency to help Individual Users and/or 
their Personal Representatives understand the benefits of information sharing and for obtaining informed 
consent.

9. MINIMUM NECESSARY

(a) Any use or disclosure of PHI or PII pursuant to this Agreement will be limited to the 



Page 12 of 23

minimum PHI or PII necessary to achieve the purpose for which the information is shared, except 
where limiting such use or disclosure to the minimum necessary (i) is not feasible, (ii) is not required 
under the HIPAA Regulations, as defined in 45 CFR section 164.514(e)(2) (such as for Treatment or 
Healthcare Operations), or any other Applicable Law, (iii) is a disclosure to an Individual User or 
Individual User’s Personal Representative, (iv) is a disclosure pursuant to an Individual User’s 
Authorization, or (v) is a disclosure required by Applicable Law. The “Parties” shall share Protected 
Health Information (PHI) as needed for the purpose of care coordination in accordance with the DSA 
and to the extent permitted by law, and in accordance with the regulatory requirements pertaining to 42 
C.F.R Part 2 regarding re-disclosure of SUD data.

10. INDIVIDUAL ACCESS SERVICES

(a) Bidirectional Access to Health Information. An Individual User or an Individual User’s 
Personal Representative shall have the right to inspect, obtain a copy of, and have bidirectional electronic 
access to, PHI or PII about the Individual User as set forth in the Policies and Procedures and to the 
extent consistent with Applicable Law.

11. COOPERATION AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

(a) Each Party shall

(i) Cooperate in good faith with the other party to implement the provisions of this 
AGREEMENT;

(ii) Provide such non-privileged information to the other Party as they may 
reasonably request for purposes of performing activities related to this AGREEMENT;

(iii) Actively engage in the bilateral or multilateral exchange of information as needed 
and to the extent permitted or required under this Agreement and Applicable Law;

(iv) Devote such time as may reasonably be requested to review information, meet 
with, respond to, and advise the other Party with respect to activities as they relate to this AGREEMENT;

(v) Provide such reasonable assistance as may be requested when performing activities 
as they relate to this Agreement; and

(vi) Provide any requested information and assistance to the Party in the 
investigation of breaches and disputes, subject to a Party’s right to restrict or condition its cooperation or 
disclosure of information in the interest of (A) preserving privileges in any foreseeable dispute or 
litigation or (B) protecting its Confidential Party Information. In no case shall a Party be required to 
disclose PHI or PII in violation of Applicable Law.

(b) In seeking another Party’s cooperation, each Party shall make all reasonable efforts to 
accommodate the other Party’s schedules and reasonable operational concerns. A Party shall promptly 
report, in writing, to the other Party, any problems or issues that arise in working with the other Party’s 
employees, agents, or subcontractors that threaten to delay or otherwise adversely impact a Party’s ability 
to fulfill its responsibilities under this Agreement. This writing shall set forth in detail and with clarity the 
problems that the Party has identified.



Page 13 of 23

(c) Prohibition on Exclusivity. A Party may not require exclusivity or otherwise prohibit (or 
attempt to prohibit) the other Party, entity, or individual from joining or exchanging Health and Social 
Services Information under this Agreement.

(d) No Discriminatory Limits on Exchange of Health and Social Services Information.  
Parties shall not unfairly or unreasonably limit exchange or interoperability with the other Party or 
Individual User, such as by means of burdensome testing requirements that are applied in a 
discriminatory manner or other means that limit the ability of a Party to send or receive Health and Social 
Services Information with the other Party or Individual User or slows down the rate at which such Health 
and Social Services Information is sent or received if such limitation or slower rate would have  an anti-
competitive effect.

12. INFORMATION BLOCKING

(a) Parties shall comply with any information-blocking provisions set forth in the Policies and 
Procedures.

13. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

(a) Monitoring and Auditing. The Governance Entity, acting through its agents and 
independent contractors, shall have the right, but not the obligation, to monitor and audit Parties’ 
compliance with their obligations under this Agreement. Unless prohibited by Applicable Law, Parties 
shall cooperate with the Governance Entity in these monitoring and auditing activities and shall provide, 
upon the reasonable request of the Governance Entity, complete and accurate information in the 
furtherance of its monitoring and auditing activities. To the extent that any information provided by 
Parties to the Governance Entity in connection with such monitoring and auditing activities constitutes 
Confidential Party Information, the Governance Entity shall hold such information in confidence and 
shall not redisclose such information to any person or entity except as required by Applicable Law.

(b) Individual User Opt Out. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit an Individual User 
or                   an Individual User’s Personal Representative from opting out of having the Individual User’s PHI 
or PII exchanged pursuant to this Agreement.

14. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Each Party hereby represents and warrants the following:

(a) Execution of the Agreement. Each Party has full power and authority to enter into and 
perform this Agreement and has taken whatever measures necessary to obtain all required approvals or 
consents in order for it to execute this Agreement. The representatives signing this Agreement on behalf 
of the Parties affirm that they have been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement 
on behalf of the Party

(b) Compliance with this Agreement. Except to the extent prohibited by Applicable Law, 
each Party shall comply fully with all provisions of this Agreement. To the extent that a Party delegates 
its duties under this Agreement to a third party (by contract or otherwise) and such third party will have 
access to Health and Social Services Information, that delegation shall be in writing and require the third 
party, prior to exchanging Health and Social Services Information with any Party, to agree to the same 
restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to a Party. If either Party determines, after 
reasonable diligence, that any action or inaction relative to an obligation, including conformance to 



Page 14 of 23

changes in the Specifications or Policies and Procedures, will cause it to violate Applicable Law, the Party 
may terminate this Agreement immediately upon sending written notice to the other party.

(c) Accuracy of Health and Social Services Information. When acting as a Submitter, each 
Party represents that at the time of transmission, the Health and Social Services Information it provides 
is an accurate representation of the data contained in, or available through, its System and is (i) sent from 
a System that employs security controls that meet industry standards so that the Health and Social Services 
Information being transmitted is intended to be free from malicious software, and (ii) provided in a timely 
manner and in accordance with the Policies and Procedures. Other than those representations elsewhere 
in this Agreement, the Submitter makes no other representation, express or implied, about the Health and 
Social Services Information.

(d) Express Warranty of Authority to Exchange Health and Social Services Information. To 
the extent each Party discloses Health and Social Services Information to the other Party, the disclosing 
Party represents and warrants that it has sufficient authority to disclose such Health and Social Services 
Information.

(e) Third-Party Technology. Both Parties acknowledge that each Party use technology 
solutions, applications, interfaces, software, platforms, clearinghouses, and other IT resources to support 
exchange of Health and Social Services Information that may be provided by third parties (“Third-Party 
Technology”). Each Party shall have agreements in place that require Third-Party Technology vendors 
(i) to provide reliable, stable, and secure services to the Party and (ii) to adhere to the same or similar 
privacy and security standards applicable to the Party pursuant to this Agreement. However, both Parties 
acknowledge that Third-Party Technology may be interrupted or not available at times and that this could 
prevent a Party from transmitting Health and Social Services Information. Parties do not make any 
representations or warranties as to their Third-Party Technology.

15. TERM, SUSPENSION, AND TERMINATION

(a) Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until 
terminated in accordance with this Section or the Policies and Procedures.

(b) Termination by a Party. Either Party may terminate this Agreement, with or without 
cause, by giving the other party at least ten (300) business days’ prior written notice.

(c) Effect of Termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement for any reason, the 
terminated party shall thereupon and thereafter shall have no rights under this Agreement to exchange 
data with the other Party. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights or obligations which 
by their terms should survive  termination or expiration.

(d) Enforcement Action. The Parties hereby grant to the Governance Entity the power to 
enforce any portion of this Agreement through measures set forth in the Policies and Procedures. Such 
measures may include, but are not limited to, suspension or termination of a Party’s right to exchange  
Health and Social Services Information under this Agreement.

16. PARTICIPANT LIABILITY

(a) County and CHWP shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless each other, their elected 
and appointed officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against any demands, claims, 



Page 15 of 23

damages, liability, loss, actions, fees, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, or 
any property, resulting from the misconduct, negligent acts, errors or omissions by the other party or 
any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, successor or assigns related to this AGREEMENT, 
its terms and conditions, including without limitation a breach or violation of any state or federal 
privacy and/or security laws, regulations and guidance relating to the disclosure of PHI, personally 
identifiable information or other confidential information of a party hereunder. The terms of this 
Section 16 shall survive termination of this AGREEMENT.

17. MISCELLANEOUS/GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) Governing Law. The construction, interpretation and performance of this Agreement 
shall be governed and enforced pursuant to the laws of the State of California, without giving effect to its 
conflicts of laws provisions, except to the extent California law is preempted by any provision of federal 
law.

(b) Jurisdiction and Venue. This agreement has been entered into and is to be performed in 
the County of Inyo. Accordingly, the parties agree that the venue of any action relating to this agreement 
shall be in the County of Inyo.

(c) Assignment. No party shall assign or transfer this Agreement, or any part thereof, without 
the express written consent of the other party, which shall not be unreasonably delayed or denied. Any 
assignment that does not comply with the requirements of this Section 17(c) shall be void and have no 
binding effect.

(d) Survival. All Sections which by their nature are meant to survive this Agreement shall 
survive expiration or termination of this Agreement.

(e) Waiver. No failure or delay by any party in exercising its rights under this Agreement 
shall operate as a waiver of such rights, and no waiver of any right shall constitute a waiver of any prior, 
concurrent, or subsequent right.

(f) Captions. Captions appearing in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not 
be deemed to explain, limit, or amplify the provisions of this Agreement.

(g) Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement among the parties 
relative to the subject matter hereof. Any representation, promise, or condition, whether oral or written, 
not incorporated herein shall not be binding upon any party. This Agreement may only be modified in the 
manner provided in the Policies and Procedures.

(h) Validity of Provisions. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any 
Section or any part or portion of any Section of this Agreement invalid, void, or otherwise unenforceable, 
each and every remaining Section or part or portion thereof shall remain in full force and effect.

(i) Priority. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between a provision in the body of 
this Agreement and the Policies and Procedures or the Specifications, the terms contained in the Policies 
and Procedures, or the Specifications shall prevail, except to the extent they conflict with Applicable 
Law.

(j) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 



Page 16 of 23

which shall be considered an original counterpart, and shall become a binding agreement when each party 
shall have executed one counterpart.

(k) Third-Party Beneficiaries. With the exception of the parties to this Agreement, there 
shall exist no right of any person to claim a beneficial interest in this Agreement or any rights occurring by 
virtue of this Agreement.

(l) Force Majeure. No party shall be responsible for any delays or failures in performance 
caused by the occurrence of events or other circumstances that are beyond its reasonable control after the 
exercise of commercially reasonable efforts to either prevent or mitigate the effect of any such occurrence 
or event.

(m) Time Periods. Any of the time periods specified in this Agreement may be changed 
pursuant to the mutual written consent of the Governance Entity and the affected Participant(s).

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]



Page 17 of 23

EXHIBIT B

 CHWP BENEFICIARY DATA EXCHANHGE PROTOCOL 
(BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SERVICES DATA)

1. Background 

This document describes the data exchange protocol for the purpose of coordinating physical health, 
primary care, and specialty BH and SUD care among Common Members. In the event of an inconsistency 
between this Protocol and Exhibit B, Exhibit B shall govern. 

2. Data Exchange-Data Matching 

Demographic Data.  COUNTY will provide a secured location for CHWP to place a data file of 
individuals identified as Beneficiaries, initially in the form of a flat text file or an X12 834 file, on an 
interval agreed upon by COUNTY and CHWP. The data file, referred to as the ________________ file 
shall contain, but will not be limited to, the following demographic identifying elements as available. 
COUNTY or CHWP may revise the following list of data elements as necessary and agreed upon, without 
amending the entire agreement: 

• Member First Name 
• Member Last Name 
• Member Social Security Number (Last 4 of SSN)
• Member Client Identification Number (CIN)
• Member Date of Birth 
• Member Residence Address 
• Member Residence City 
• Member Residence State 
• Member Residence Zip 
• Member Gender
• Member Ethnicity 
• Member Race 
• Managed Care Health Plan Internal Member Number 
• Primary Care Physician Name 
• Primary Care Physician Contact Phone Number 
• Primary Care Physician Address 

Match Details.  Upon receipt of the ______________ file, COUNTY shall load the data to the Health 
Agency Enterprise Data Warehouse. COUNTY shall maintain a historical table of Beneficiaries and their 
respective eligibility information. COUNTY shall conduct a match of concomitant Beneficiaries between 
CHWP and COUNTY, on an interval agreed upon by both Parties. COUNTY will use the health plan’s 
Medi-Cal enrollment file to identify common Beneficiaries who are enrolled with CHWP and receiving 
BH and SUD services at COUNTY. COUNTY will provide CHWP with a file representing these 
common Beneficiaries. COUNTY will include Beneficiary and BH and SUD Provider contact 
information. 



Page 18 of 23

3. Data Exchange – Care Coordination 

a. CHWP Usage. Upon completion of the match, with Common Member’s consent in compliance to 
42 C.F.R. Part 2 in place, COUNTY shall extract and provide (as described below), Common 
Members who currently have an open and active episode in the Integrated System (IS) or 
successor Managed Care Information System (MCIS) to CHWP in the form of a flat text file or 
an X12 834 file. COUNTY will provide the following elements as available. CHWP or COUNTY 
may revise the following list of data elements as necessary and agreed upon, without amending 
the entire agreement: 

Member demographic data:
• Medicare-Medicaid Plan (MMP) Internal Member Number
• Member CIN
• Member Social Security Number (Last 4 of SSN)
• Member last Name
• Member First Name
• Member Gender
• Member Date of Birth
• Member Residence Address 1
• Member Residence Address 2
• Member City
• Member State
• Member Zip code
• Member Cell Phone
• Member Work Phone
• Member Home Phone
• Member ID

Member service data:
• Member CIN
• Member ID
• Claim Number
• Service Line Sequence Number
• Date of Service or Fill Date
• Distinct Procedures (Current Procedural Terminology [CPT]) or other applicable 

codes
• Medications (National Drug Codes [NDC]) and last date filled for the past six months
• Episode Admit Date
• Last Contact Date
• Provider Number
• Provider Name
• Service Location National Provider Identifier (NPI)
• Servicing Provider NPI
• Place of service
• Provider - Contact Name
• Provider Phone Number 



Page 19 of 23

• Provider Address 1
• Provider City
• Provider State
• Provider Zip code
• Practitioner Name
• Practitioner NPI
• Claim Status

Member diagnostic data:
• Member CIN
• Member ID
• Claim Number
• Diagnosis Sequence Number
• Date of Service
• ICD Type (9 or 10)
• Distinct Diagnosis (ICD Code)

The response data file will be placed on a secure server administered and maintained by 
COUNTY.  CHWP will retrieve the file for the purposes of coordinating Common Members care. 
CHWP will distribute the mental health provider contact information to its Primary Care 
Providers (PCP), Plan Partners and Participating Provider Groups (PPG's) as appropriate using 
one of the following methods: 

• A list will be generated for the PCP's own assigned members and distributed via 
provider portal

• Data will be accessible via a Provider Portal with security controls which limit 
display to the PCP's assigned members based on user credentials

• A list will be generated to the Participating Provider Group (PPG) via provider portal 
for its respective PCPs. The PPG will then forward a list to PCPs of their respective 
assigned members

CHWP shall not use or disclose the information for any other purpose. 



Page 20 of 23

EXHIBIT C

CHWP BENEFICIARY DATA EXCHANGE PROTOCOL 
(HOUSING STATUS AND HOUSING PROGRAM/SERVICES DATA)

1. Background 

This document describes the data exchange protocol for the purpose of performing member matching and 
sharing information on housing status among Common Members. COUNTY or CHWP will conduct 
member matching based upon agreed approach.

2. Data Elements from CHWP to COUNTY   

Demographic Data.  COUNTY will provide a secured location for CHWP to place a data file of 
individuals identified as Beneficiaries, initially in the form of a flat text file or an X12 834 file, on an 
interval agreed upon by COUNTY and CHWP. The data file, referred to as the ________________ file 
shall contain, but will not be limited to, the following demographic and housing status identifying 
elements as available. CHWP or COUNTY may revise the following list of data elements as necessary 
and agreed upon, without amending the entire agreement: 

• Member's First Name
• Member's Middle Name
• Member's Last Name
• Member's DOB
• Member's Social Security Number (Last 4 of SSN) 
• Member's Medi-Cal Client Index Number
• Member's Medi-Cal Redetermination Date
• Plan Partner Name
• Plan Partner Phone Number
• Name of the PPG the member is assigned to
• Phone Number of the PPG the member is assigned to
• Full Name of the PCP the member is assigned to (last name, first name)
• Phone Number of the PCP or Clinic the Member is assigned to 
• Physical address line 1 of the member's PCP
• Physical address line 2 of the member's PCP
• Physical address City of the member's PCP
• Zip code Physical City of the member's PCP
• State Physical of the member's PCP
• Program Name 
• Program eligibility effective date
• Program eligibility term date
• Program Enrollment effective date
• Program Enrollment Term date
• Servicing provider's Name
• Servicing provider's Physical address line 1
• Servicing provider's Physical address line 2
• Servicing provider's Physical City

Commented [VSI3]: Program Names listed here in 
comments section only for reference (see excel):
 o Enhanced Care Management
o Housing Navigation
o Tenancy Services
o Housing Deposits
o Recuperative Care
o Short-Term Post Hospitalization Housing
o Day Habilitation



Page 21 of 23

• Servicing provider's Zip Code
• Servicing provider's State
• Servicing provider's Phone number

Match Details.  Upon receipt of the ______________ file, COUNTY shall load the data to 
the__________________________. COUNTY shall maintain a historical table of Beneficiaries and their 
respective information. COUNTY shall conduct a match of concomitant Beneficiaries between CHWP 
and COUNTY, on an interval agreed upon by both Parties. COUNTY will use the health plan’s Medi-Cal 
enrollment file to identify common Beneficiaries who are enrolled with CHWP to determine housing 
status, program name, eligibility and services at COUNTY. COUNTY will provide CHWP with a file 
representing these common Beneficiaries. COUNTY will include Beneficiary contact information, 
housing and homelessness status. 

3.  Data Elements from COUNTY to CHWP 

a. CHWP Usage. Upon completion of the match, COUNTY shall extract and provide (as described 
below), Common Members who currently open to services, to CHWP in the form of a flat text 
file or an X12 834 file. COUNTY will provide the following elements.  COUNTY or CHWP may 
revise the following list of data elements as necessary and agreed upon, without amending the 
entire agreement: 

Member Demographic File: 

• Member’s ID 
• Member’s First Name
• Member’s Last Name 
• Member’s DOB 
• Member’s Social Security Number (Last 4 of SSN)
• Member’s Unique Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) ID Number
• Member’s Chronic Homeless Status
• Point of Contact Date
• Point of Contact Name 
• Point of Contact Phone Number
• Point of Contact Email 
• Point of Contact Supervisor Name 
• Point of Contact Supervisor Phone Number 
• Point of Contact Supervisor Email 
• Point of Contact Category
• Length of Time Homeless 

Project Enrollment Member File:

• Member ID 
• Member Enrollment ID
• Agency Name 
• Project Name 

Commented [VSI4]:  Options listed here in comments 
section only for reference (see excel): 
o Yes
o No
o Unknown

Commented [VSI5]:  Category Options listed here in 
comments section only for reference (see excel):
o Funded Access Center
o Funded Housing Navigation Program
o Funded Interim Housing (Bridge)
o Funded Interim Housing (Crisis)
o Funded Interim Housing (Host Home)
o Funded Street Outreach Program
o Funded Countywide Benefits Entitlement Services 
Team (CBEST)
o Funded Multi-Disciplinary Outreach Team
o Funded Interim Housing
o Funded Interim Housing Intensive Case 
Management (ICMS) Program
o Funded Full-Service Partnership Program
o Funded Housing Specialist and Housing Liaisons
o Funded Interim Housing
o Funded Recovery Resilience and Reintegration 
Services
o Funded Substance Use Disorder Case Manager
o Other



Page 22 of 23

• Project Type 
• Date Entered Project 
• Date of Last Service in Project 
• Date Exited Project 
• Destination After Program Exit 
• Site/Latest Location Address 
• Site/Latest Location City
• Site/Latest Location State
• Site/Latest Location Zip
• Case Manager (CM) Name 
• CM Phone Number 
• CM Email 

The response data file will be placed on a secure server administered and maintained by 
COUNTY.  CHWP will retrieve the file for the purposes of supporting member matching on 
homelessness and housing status, as well as coordinating Common Members care. CHWP will 
conduct member match and will send HMIS the data for the matched members. CHWP will 
discard/destroy/permanently delete the data received from HMIS for the members who could not 
be matched in CHWP system.

CHWP shall not use or disclose the information for any other purpose. 

Commented [VSI6]:  Project Type Options listed here in 
comments section only for reference (see excel):
o Emergency Shelter
o Transitional Housing
o PH - Permanent Supportive Housing (disability 
required for entry)
o Services Only
o Street Outreach
o Other
o Safe Haven
o PH - Housing Only
o PH - Housing with Services (no disability required 
for entry)
o Day Shelter
o Homelessness Prevention
o Coordinated Entry
o PH - Rapid Re-Housing

Commented [VSI7]:  Program Exit Destination Options 
listed here in comments section only for reference (see 
excel):
o Place not meant for habitation (e.g., a vehicle, an 
abandoned building, bus/train/subway station/airport or 
anywhere outside)
o Emergency shelter, including hotel or motel paid 
for with emergency shelter voucher, or RHY-funded Host 
Home shelter
o Safe Haven
o Foster care home or foster care group home
o Hospital or other residential non-psychiatric 
medical facility
o Jail, prison or juvenile detention facility
o Long-term care facility or nursing home
o Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility
o Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center
o Residential project or halfway house with no 
homeless criteria
o Hotel or motel paid for without emergency shelter 
voucher
o Transitional housing for homeless persons 
(including homeless youth)
o Host Home (non-crisis)
o Staying or living with friends, temporary tenure 
(e.g. room, apartment or house)
o Staying or living with family, temporary tenure 
(e.g. room, apartment or house)
o Staying or living with family, permanent tenure
o Staying or living with friends, permanent tenure
o Moved from one HOPWA funded project to 
HOPWA PH
o Moved from one HOPWA funded project to 
HOPWA TH
o Rental by client, with GPD TIP housing subsidy
o Rental by client, with VASH housing subsidy
o Permanent housing (other than RRH) for formerly 
homeless persons
o Rental by client, with RRH or equivalent subsidy



Page 23 of 23

Exhibit D

Certificate of Data Destruction

MCP Name: _________________________________

MHP Name: __________________________________

At the completion of the Data Match, all copies of the COUNTY Data and any derivative files 
provided to MCP by COUNTY must be destroyed promptly, within one (1) business day, after identifying 
the positive matches. COUNTY Data must be securely destroyed using safeguards that ensure that no 
recovery or reconstruction is possible. No data files, or parts of files, related to non-matched Client’s 
information are to be retained when the files are destroyed, unless expressly authorized in writing by the 
COUNTY.

This completed “Certificate of Data Destruction” shall be provided to a COUNTY Point of 
Contact within one (1) business day of the Data Match.

I, _____________________________, an authorized representative of

(Name of the Data Custodian)

_________________________________________________, hereby certify

(Name of the MCP)

that the following data files, in their entirety, have been destroyed in compliance with the 
requirements of the Data Sharing Agreement between the MCP and COUNTY dated ________, 
so that no non-matched Client’s information is retained by the MCP.

Name of File(s): ______________________________________

Description: __________________________________________  

The execution of this Certificate of Data Destruction closes the Data Match completed on  

__________________________.

(Date of Data Match)



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3490  

 

Addendums to the MOU between the County of Inyo 
Health and Human Services and Blue Cross of California 

Partnership Plan, Inc. (Anthem)  
Health & Human Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lori Bengochia, Innovations and Grant Manager Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Addendums No. 1 and No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
County of Inyo Health and Human Services (HHS) Department and Blue Cross of California Partnership 
Plan, Inc. (Anthem), clarifying the exchange of protected Health Information/Data Exchange between the 
County Mental Health Plan (Behavioral Health), Public Health and Anthem, a managed care plan serving 
Inyo County's Medi-Cal eligible population, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the addendums. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Behavioral Health, as the Medi-Cal Specialty Mental Health Plan (MHP), has a current Memorandum of 
Understanding with Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. (Anthem).  During the implementation 
of the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Cal-AIM initiative, Goal 3, Milestone 1a, Option 1 
requires demonstrating direct sharing of data with Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCP).  In order to 
meet this requirement, an addendum has been produced to ensure that the Data Exchange meets the 
requirements for the initiative and clarifies the exchange of protected Health Information/Data Exchange 
between MHP and Anthem. Public Health also has a Memorandum of Understanding with Anthem that 
requires approval of the addendum for future data exchange that will be required by the Cal-AIM 
initiative.  The Department respectfully requests your Board approve the addendums and authorize the 
HHS Director to sign. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

No funding for this item Budget Unit N/A 

Budgeted? N/A Object Code N/A 
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The addendums to the MOU are necessary to meet the Data Exchange requirements of the Cal-Aim 
initiative and if not approved, will affect the funding received for the project.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Memorandum of Understanding Addendum 2 
2. Memorandum of Understanding Addendum 1 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 2/3/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/8/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/8/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/8/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2

INYO COUNTY ADDENDUM NO 2

ADDENDUM TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO

AND
BLUE CROSS OF CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP PLAN, INC. (ANTHEM)

This Addendum is made and entered into as of this ____ day of __________ 2023, by and between 
the MHP of Inyo County (hereinafter, referred to as “MHP”), a political subdivision of the State of 
California, Division of Behavioral Health Services, and Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. 
(hereinafter, referred to as “Anthem”). 

WHEREAS, Anthem and County of Inyo are parties to a Memorandum of Understating (the 
“MOU”) dated February 5, 2015. 

WHEREAS, the Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) issued CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance dated March 2022, setting out specific guidance that supports data sharing 
between Managed Care Plans (MCPs) health care providers, community-based social and human 
service providers, local health jurisdictions, and county and other public agencies that provide 
services and managed care under CalAIM.  https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-
Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf

 NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of foregoing, the MOU shall be amended as follows:

1. That Section six (6.) EXCHANGE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION shall be updated with the 
following new language to be consistent with the guidance of the CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance.  To the extent the language provided in Section (6), conflicts with the 
specific guidance contained in the CalAIM Data Sharing Authorization Guidance, CalAIM Data 
Sharing Authorization Guidance shall control:  

CATEGORY MHP ANTHEM
Exchange of Protected Health 
Information / Data Exchange

1. Parties acknowledge 
PROVIDER is a HIPAA 
Covered Entity, and that 
with respect to Covered 
Services as outlined in 
Original MOU, PROVIDER 
provides such services as a 
HIPAA Covered Entity, and 
is responsible for any data 
collected in that capacity.  
PROVIDER acknowledges 
it is solely responsible for 
its compliance with 
HIPAA.  

1. Parties acknowledge 
PROVIDER is a HIPAA 
Covered Entity, and that 
with respect to Covered 
Services as outlined in 
Original MOU, PROVIDER 
provides such services as a 
HIPAA Covered Entity, and 
is responsible for any data 
collected in that capacity.  
PROVIDER acknowledges 
it is solely responsible for 
its compliance with 
HIPAA.  

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf


Page 2 of 2

2. Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein shall have the same 
meaning in the MOU. All other terms and conditions of the MOU not inconsistent with this 
Amendment shall remain in effect

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date set forth 
beneath their respective signatures. 

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. County of Inyo:
(Anthem): 

Signature: ___________________________ _________________________         _____________
INSERT NAME         Date

Print Name: ____Les Ybarra_________ Inyo County Behavioral Health

Title: _________President____________ _________________________         _____________
INSERT NAME         Date

Date: ______________________________

Approved for Contract Policy Compliance, Contracts by:

_________________________         _____________ 
        Date

Approved as to Form, County Counsel by:

_________________________         _____________ 
        Date



Page 1 of 2

04520INYO COUNTY ADDENDUM NO 1

ADDENDUM TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO COUNTY

AND
BLUE CROSS OF CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP PLAN, INC. (ANTHEM)

This Addendum is made and entered into as of this ____ day of __________ 2023, by and between 
the Public Health of Inyo County”), a political subdivision of the State of California, and Blue Cross of 
California Partnership Plan, Inc. (hereinafter, referred to as “Anthem”). 

WHEREAS, Anthem and County of Inyo are parties to a Memorandum of Understating (the 
“MOU”) dated April 22, 2015. 

WHEREAS, the Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) issued CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance dated March 2022, setting out specific guidance that supports data sharing 
between Managed Care Plans (MCPs) health care providers, community-based social and human 
service providers, local health jurisdictions, and county and other public agencies that provide 
services and managed care under CalAIM.  https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-
Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf

 NOW, THEREFORE in consideration of foregoing, the MOU shall be amended as follows:

1. That Section six (6.) EXCHANGE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION shall be updated with the 
following new language to be consistent with the guidance of the CalAIM Data Sharing 
Authorization Guidance.  To the extent the language provided in Section (6), conflicts with the 
specific guidance contained in the CalAIM Data Sharing Authorization Guidance, CalAIM Data 
Sharing Authorization Guidance shall control:  

CATEGORY MHP ANTHEM
Exchange of Protected Health 
Information / Data Exchange

1. Parties acknowledge 
PROVIDER is a HIPAA 
Covered Entity, and that 
with respect to Covered 
Services as outlined in 
Original MOU, PROVIDER 
provides such services as a 
HIPAA Covered Entity, and 
is responsible for any data 
collected in that capacity.  
PROVIDER acknowledges 
it is solely responsible for 
its compliance with 
HIPAA.  

1. Parties acknowledge 
PROVIDER is a HIPAA 
Covered Entity, and that 
with respect to Covered 
Services as outlined in 
Original MOU, PROVIDER 
provides such services as a 
HIPAA Covered Entity, and 
is responsible for any data 
collected in that capacity.  
PROVIDER acknowledges 
it is solely responsible for 
its compliance with 
HIPAA.  

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf
https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/Documents/MCQMD/CalAIM-Data-Sharing-Authorization-Guidance.pdf


Page 2 of 2

2. Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein shall have the same 
meaning in the MOU. All other terms and conditions of the MOU not inconsistent with this 
Amendment shall remain in effect

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date set forth 
beneath their respective signatures. 

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. County of Inyo:
(Anthem): 

Signature: ___________________________ _________________________         _____________
INSERT NAME         Date

Print Name: ____Les Ybarra_________ Inyo County Public Health

Title: _________President____________ _________________________         _____________
INSERT NAME         Date

Date: ______________________________

Approved for Contract Policy Compliance, Contracts by:

_________________________         _____________ 
        Date

Approved as to Form, County Counsel by:

_________________________         _____________ 
        Date



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3496  

 

California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA) 
Participation Agreement Amendment 

Health & Human Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lori Bengochia, Innovations and Grant Manager Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve amendment to the agreement between the County of Inyo and California Mental 
Health Services Authority (CalMHSA), reallocating Project Management and Clinical Services funding to 
a Flexible Spending Account  to cover additional subject matter expert topics, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
In the California Mental Health Services Authority (CalMHSA) agreement, project management hours 
and clinical hours were purchased to assist with the Cal-AIM implementation.   For the final phase of 
implementation, the need to add Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) to the project has been identified, thus 
resulting in the amendment that allows the conversion of unused project management hours and clinical 
hours into a flexible spending account which will allow the use of SMEs for Fiscal/payment Reform, 
Interoperability, Data Analystics and Ad Hoc Serivices.  The ability to use SMEs will allow for successful 
completion of the Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Plan (BHQIP) implementation.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant funded Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  in this fiscal year  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These expenses are budgeted and will be reimbursed with grant funds. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

The amendment to the CalMHSA agreement is necessary to meet the requirements of the Cal-AIM 
initiative.  Failure to approve the amendment would result in the lack of support needed to complete the 
implementation, which will affect the funding received.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Participation Agreement Amendment 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lori Bengochia Created/Initiated - 2/6/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/8/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/9/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/9/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/9/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/9/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

CALIFORNIA MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES AUTHORITY
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

COVER SHEET

1. Inyo County (“Participant”) desires to participate in the Program identified below. 

Name of Program: Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

2. This Participation Agreement Amendment modifies the terms of Exhibit A, Exhibit B, Exhibit C, 
Appendix A, and Appendix B as set forth on page on the following pages.

3. All other terms of Participation Agreement No. 1275-BHQIP-2022-INC shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

Authorized Signatures:

CalMHSA

Signed: Name (Printed):  Dr. Amie Miller, Psy.D., MFT

Title:  Executive Director Date: 

 

Participant: INYO COUNTY

Signed: Name (Printed):  

Title:   Date: 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

Revised Exhibit A

ADDED SERVICES

CalMHSA is offering the following Optional Subject Matter Expert (SME) Services as defined below: 

• Fiscal/Payment Reform– Individualized and/or Group County support around modeling fiscal 
impact of Payment Reform, contract support, and other fiscal consultation services as 
requested. 

• Interoperability - Guidance on data systems management, BHQIP deliverables, and consulting 
and/or configuring on coordination and integration of systems operations across county 
agencies. 

• Data Analytics – Not otherwise accounted for in fixed Scopes of Work related to BHQIP 
Deliverables.

• Ad Hoc Services - Other service requested by the county at an hourly rate of $200 may be 
submitted via a Work Order.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES HOURLY

     RATE

Fiscal/Payment Reform Subject Matter Expert 
Services

$200

Interoperability Subject Matter Expert Services $200

Data Analytics Subject Matter Expert Services $200

Ad Hoc Services $200

OPTIONS FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF SERVICES 

Flexible Spending Account - Counties may purchase hours up to a maximum pre-determined amount, 
which can be used for any services as identified above.  For counties who provided funding via the initial 
Participation Agreement, funds will be rolled into a single flexible spending account. Over the course of 
the term of the initial Participation Agreement and this Amendment, if changes to services are required 
or additional funding needed, those changes can be made via a work order by an authorized county 
staff. See Appendix A. 

IMPORTANT - In order to complete this Participation Agreement you will need to input the accurate 
current number of hours remaining for your county. Please contact CalMHSA’s Senior Business Analyst 
Anna Allard at anna.allard@calmhsa.org to obtain your remaining hours. 

mailto:anna.allard@calmhsa.org


1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

Revised Exhibit B

II. Responsibilities

A. Responsibilities of Participant:

1. Services Post-Contract Execution (Amendment) - Submit a Work Order form for 
any additional professional services hourly funding required by the Participant if 
identified post-contract execution.

2. Provide CalMHSA with a County Staff authorized to add services as needed and 
additional hourly funding amount over the term of the initial Agreement and this 
Amendment one via a work order. Please identify your authorized county staff in 
Appendix B, with the following information:

Name
Title
Phone
Email Address
NOTE: Two people maximum. 

3. Provide CalMHSA and any other parties deemed necessary with requested 
information and assistance in order to fulfill the purpose of the Program.

4. Cooperate by providing CalMHSA with requested information and assistance in 
order to fulfill the purpose of the Program.

5. Provide feedback on Program performance.
6. Comply with applicable laws, regulations, guidelines, contractual agreements, 

JPAs, and bylaws.

V. Fiscal Provisions

A. Funding required from Participant will not exceed the amount stated in Appendix A. 

B. Initial Program Funding – Initial payment was issued to CalMHSA in an amount up to 
$200,000 as previously specified in Exhibit C, of initial Participation Agreement.

C. Additional Funds – This Amendment shall reflect current funds with CalMHSA and added 
funding, to be provided by the Participant (County), as specified in Exhibit C.

D. Payments - Payments to CalMHSA shall consist of equal quarterly payments commencing 
thirty days after the execution of this Amendment.

E. Funding – Funding shall be applied to service hours as defined by the Participant via a 
fully executed Work Order, see Appendix A; however, it is understood the Participants 
will assess service needs over the course of time and will have the flexibility to procure 
additional services and add funding via a work order. These changes can only be made by 
the authorized staff per Section II. Responsibilities, A. Responsibilities of the Participant, 
Item 2, of this Amendment. If the Participant does not request an adjustment of hours via 
the submission of Appendix A, the current hourly designations will remain the same as 
previously stated in the original agreement or most recent amendment.



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

F. Administrative Fee: The total flexible service funds, as defined in Exhibit C, are inclusive 
of a 15% administrative fee. 

G. Refunds - Any unused funds from the initial Participation Agreement, will be fully 
reimbursed based at the end of the project period as defined in the Exhibit B of the initial 
Participation Agreement. For service requests via a work order, refunds will be less the 
administrative fee, equal to 15%. 

H. Annual Rate Adjustments – Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA), for to the rates as defined 
in Exhibit A Added Services, and the initial Participation Agreement, shall be made per 
annum.   



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

MODIFIED Exhibit C

PROJECT MANAGEMENT CURRENT HOURS PURCHASED BREAKDOWN*
TOTAL HOURS PURCHASED 40
TOTAL HOURS INCURRED 5.33

TOTAL HOURS REMAINING 34.67

CLINICAL SERVICES CURRENT HOURS PURCHASED BREAKDOWN*
TOTAL HOURS PURCHASED 40
TOTAL HOURS INCURRED 0

TOTAL HOURS REMAINING 40

HOURLY SERVICES FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT
ADDITIONAL SERVICE COSTS COSTS

TOTAL CURRENT HOURLY COSTS 
INCURRED*

$932.75

TOTAL CURRENT HOURLY COSTS 
REMAINING*

$14,067.25

NEW SERVICE HOUR COSTS** 0
NEW TOTAL FOR FLEXIBLE SPENDING 

ACCOUNT
(TOTAL CURRENT HOURLY COSTS 

REMAINING* + NEW SERVICE HOUR 
COSTS)

$14,067.25

*Inclusive of all current agreement hourly offerings (Project Management and Clinical Hours)

**As defined in Exhibit A.



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

THIS IS A TEMPLATE FOR FUTURE USE – DO NOT FILL OUT

*Cannot exceed the amount listed in Exhibit C of Agreement #___________________.

**Per Fiscal Provision, Section C, Counties may choose to adjust their designation of hours via a Work Order Form.

*** TOTAL cost is inclusive of a 15% administrative fee.

                                                                                                     APPENDIX A- REVISED WORK ORDER FORM

Participant (County)
Term Start Date End Date

SECTION 1. NEW SERVICE HOURS TO BE UTILIZED HOU

NEW SERVICES HOURLY RATE NEW QUANTITY OF HOURS DESIGNATED TOTAL COST OF HOURS

Fiscal/Payment Reform $200/HR
Clinical Services $200/HR

Project Management $175/HR

Interoperability $200/HR
Data Analysis $200/HR
Ad Hoc Services $200/HR

TOTAL*



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

Appendix A Authorized Signatory:

Signed: Name (Printed):  

Title:   Date: 

Appendix A Authorized Signatory (Alternate):

Signed: Name (Printed):  

Title:   Date: 



1275-BHQIP-2022-INC-A1
Behavioral Health Quality Improvement Program

February 6, 2023

Inyo County - Participation Agreement Amendment

APPENDIX B – Authorized Signatories 

Please identify the authorized county staff with authority to make service hour requests and add funding as need by Participant. 

Appendix A Authorized Signatory:

Name: _________________________________________

Title: __________________________________________

Phone: _________________________________________

Email Address: ___________________________________

Signature: _______________________________________

Date: ___________________________________________

Appendix A Authorized Signatory (Alternate):

Name: _________________________________________

Title: __________________________________________

Phone: _________________________________________

Email Address: ___________________________________

Signature: _______________________________________

Date: ___________________________________________



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3475  

 

Agreement with Department of Health Care Services for 
MediCal Administrative Activities 
Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Melissa Best-Baker, Deputy Director - Fiscal 
Oversight and Special Operations 

Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) approve the Program Participation Agreement between the County of lnyo and 
California Department of Health Care Services; and B) authorize the HHS Fiscal Oversight and Special 
Operations Deputy Director as the Local Governmental Agency Coordinator to sign the agreement. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This is an agreement between the County of lnyo and the California Department of Health Care Services 
(DHCS). This agreement allows DHCS to reimburse lnyo County for approved Medi-Cal Administrative 
Activities (MAA). The funds reimbursed through the MAA/TCM billing process are used to support the 
services/programs that provide these reimbursable activities. There are currently five active claiming 
units in lnyo County: First Five, Public Health, Probation, ReEntry and the MA/TCM Coordination Unit. To 
continue to obtain reimbursement for MAA activities, the County must authorize execution of the 
agreement with DHCS/MAA division. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Federal Funding Budget Unit 045100 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4552 
Recurrence Ongoing revenue  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Participation Agreement - Inyo County 
  
APPROVALS: 
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 1/29/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/31/2023 
Stephanie Tanksley Approved - 1/31/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/1/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/1/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/1/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/1/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



State of California—Health and Human Services Agency 
  Department of Health Care Services 
  County-based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (CMAA) 

Program Participation Agreement  
        MICHELLE BAASS GAVIN NEWSOM 
         DIRECTOR GOVERNOR 

 [Page 1 of 9]  
 

  
 
 

 
County of: Inyo 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I – STATEMENT OF INTENT 
 

The purpose of this Participation Agreement (PA) between the Department of Health Care 
Services (DHCS) and the County of Inyo is to permit the Local Governmental Agency (LGA) to 
participate in the CMAA program under California’s Medi-Cal program.  

 
ARTICLE II – AUTHORITY 

 
This PA is authorized pursuant to and in accordance with 2 Code of Federal Regulations, part 200 
et seq.; 42 Code of Federal Regulations, part 433; Welfare and Institutions Code section 
14132.47; DHCS issued policy and guidance, including but not limited to the CMAA Operational 
Plan, Policy and Procedure Letters (PPLs) published by the CMAA program; and any other 
applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

 
ARTICLE III – TERM AND TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
1. This PA is effective as of July 1, 2020.  

 
2. Upon the execution of this PA, both the LGA and DHCS agree to abandon and terminate the 

current Contract 20-10008 A01. 
 

3. This PA will remain in effect until terminated by either party pursuant to this article subject to 
the requirements and conditions set forth in this PA.  
 

4. Termination Without Cause: 
 

Either party may terminate this PA without cause by issuing a written notification to the other 
party of the intent to terminate the PA at least 30-days prior to the termination date. 
Termination shall result in the LGA’s immediate withdrawal from the CMAA program on the 
termination date and exclusion from further participation in the CMAA program unless and until 
the LGA is reinstated by DHCS in the CMAA program. DHCS will continue to reimburse 
allowable claims for services provided prior to termination if they are accurate and complete. 
LGAs will remain responsible for any recoupments due to federal/state deferrals or 
disallowances for claims submitted prior to termination. 
 
 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 2 of 9]  
 

5.  Termination With Cause: 
 
DHCS may terminate this PA for cause, effective immediately, if the LGA fails to comply with 
any of the terms of this PA. Furthermore, DHCS may terminate this PA for cause, effective 
immediately, if DHCS determines that the LGA does not meet the requirements for 
participation in the CMAA program, the LGA has not submitted a valid reimbursement claim to 
the CMAA program, or the LGA is unable to certify that the claims are eligible for federal funds. 
Termination will result in the LGA’s immediate withdrawal and exclusion from further 
participation in the CMAA program. 
 
The conviction of an employee, subcontractor, or authorized agent of the LGA, or of an 
employee or authorized agent of a subcontractor, of any felony or of a misdemeanor involving 
fraud, abuse of any Medi-Cal applicant or beneficiary, or abuse of the Medi-Cal Program, shall 
result in the exclusion of that employee, agent, or subcontractor, or employee or agent of a 
subcontractor, from participation in the CMAA program. Failure of the LGA to exclude a 
convicted individual from participation in the CMAA program shall constitute a breach of 
contract and DHCS may terminate this PA with cause. 
 
Finally, DHCS may terminate this PA with cause in the event that DHCS determines that the 
LGA, or any employee or contractor working with the LGA has violated the laws, regulations or 
rules governing the CMAA program. In cases where DHCS determines that the health and 
welfare of Medi-Cal beneficiaries or of the public is jeopardized by continuation of this PA, this 
PA shall be terminated effective the date that DHCS made this determination. After termination 
of the PA, any overpayment must be returned to DHCS pursuant to Welfare and Institutions 
Code sections 14176 and 14177.  

 
ARTICLE IV – PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES 

 
Matthew Jones, Chief 
County-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities Unit 
Local Governmental Financing Division 
Department of Health Care Services 
Telephone: (916) 345-7867 
E-Mail: Matthew.Jones@dhcs.ca.gov 
 
Direct all inquiries and notices to: 
 
County-Based Claiming & Inmate Services Section 
Anissa Saleem, CMAA Analyst 
1501 Capitol Ave., MS 4603 
P.O. Box 997436 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436  
Telephone: (916) 345-8829 
E-Mail: Anissa.Saleem@dhcs.ca.gov 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 3 of 9]  
 

 
County of Inyo 
Attn: Melissa Best-Baker  
Deputy Director Fiscal Oversight and Special Operations 
Inyo County Health & Human Services 
P.O Drawer H 
Independence, CA 93526 
Office: (760) 878-0232 
Cell: (760) 878-8032 
E-Mail: mbestbaker@inyocounty.us 

 
Either party may make changes to the information above by giving written notice to the other 
party. Said changes shall not require an amendment to this Participation Agreement.  

 
ARTICLE V – LGA RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
1. The LGA shall comply with all provisions of the CMAA Operational Plan, the CMAA and 

Targeted Case Management (TCM) Time Survey Methodology, DHCS Policy and Procedure 
Letters (PPLs), state issued policy directives, 42 United States Code Section 1396 et seq., 42 
Code of Federal Regulations part 400 et seq., 45 Code of Federal Regulations part 95 et seq., 
2 Code of Federal Regulations part 200 et. seq., relevant portions of Welfare and Institutions 
Code, Chapter 7 (commencing with section 14000) and Chapter 8 (commencing with section 
14200), and the relevant portions of the California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 50000 
et seq., all as periodically amended.  
 

2. The LGA shall adhere to the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) and its attachments, and 
any subsequent updates, which are incorporated herein as Exhibit A and made part of this PA 
by reference. The BAA may be updated periodically by DHCS, as required by program 
directives or changes in law or policy. Unless otherwise indicated, DHCS shall provide the LGA 
with copies of the BAA at the time or before the PA is presented to the LGA for review, 
acceptance, and signature and will require acknowledgement of receipt by the LGA. Periodic 
updates to the BAA that are not electronically accessible via the Internet, an extranet link, or 
other mechanism will be presented to the LGA under separate cover and acknowledgement of 
receipt will be required. DHCS will maintain a copy of the BAA referenced herein and any 
subsequent updates. Data released to LGAs per the BAA is to be used solely for the purpose 
of verifying the Medi-Cal eligibility, Federal Financial Participation eligibility, Managed Care 
Plan designations, and identifying beneficiaries with alternate format needs, if applicable. The 
data elements used are listed in Attachment A to the BAA. 
 

3. The LGA must ensure all applicable state and federal requirements are met with regard to 
expense allowability and fiscal documentation.  

 
A. The LGA must ensure that all claims submitted to DHCS for reimbursement include only 

allowable reimbursable activities as detailed in the CMAA Operational Plan. 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 4 of 9]  
 

  
B. CMAA invoices from the LGA submitted to and accepted by DHCS for payment, shall 

not be deemed evidence of an agreement of allowable costs. 
 

C. Supporting documentation of all amounts invoiced shall be maintained for review and 
audit, and supplied to DHCS upon request, pursuant to this PA to permit a 
determination of expense allowability. 

 
i. If the allowability or appropriateness of an expense cannot be determined by 

DHCS because invoice detail, fiscal records, or backup documentation is 
nonexistent or inadequate, according to Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles or practices, all questioned costs may be disallowed and payment may 
be withheld or recouped by DHCS. Upon receipt of adequate documentation 
supporting a disallowed or questioned expense, reimbursement may resume for 
the amount substantiated and deemed allowable reimbursement. 
 

D. Federal regulations require that all records in support of allowable CMAA claims 
must be maintained for a minimum of three fiscal years after the end of the quarter in 
which the LGA receives reimbursement from DHCS for the last revised or corrected 
quarterly invoice, or later if required by DHCS directive or until a State or federal audit is 
completed.  

 
4. LGA will ensure that deliverables developed and produced pursuant to this Agreement comply 

with federal and state laws, regulations or requirements regarding accessibility and effective 
communication, including the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12101, et. seq.), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, and section 508 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794 (d)). Specifically, electronic and printed documents 
intended as public communications must be produced to ensure the visual-impaired, hearing-
impaired, and other special needs audiences are provided material information in the formats 
needed to provide the most assistance in making informed choices. These formats include but 
are not limited to braille, large font, and audio. 
 

5. The LGA assures DHCS that it complies with the ADA, which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the 
ADA.  

 
6. As a condition of participation in the CMAA program, and in recognition of costs incurred 

administering the CMAA program, the LGAs shall pay an annual participation fee through a 
mechanism agreed to by DHCS and LGAs, or, if no agreement is reached by August 1 of each 
year, directly to DHCS. 
 

A. The participation fee shall be used to cover the cost of administering the CMAA 
program, including, but not limited to, claims processing, technical assistance, and 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 5 of 9]  
 

monitoring. DHCS shall determine and report staffing requirements upon which 
projected costs will be based. 

B. The amount of the participation fee shall be based upon the anticipated DHCS salaries, 
benefits, operating expenses, and equipment necessary to administer the CMAA 
program and other costs related to that process.  

 
7. At times, the LGA may find it necessary to enter into subcontracts with other organizations, 

such as Community Benefit Organizations (CBOs), to perform CMAA. The LGA agrees that 
any subcontracts created for this purpose will comply with the following requirements. 
Additionally, the LGA agrees to ensure that elected subcontractors adhere to the same federal 
and state rules and regulations as the LGA.  
 

A. Any and all subcontracts entered into to perform allowable CMAA activities must be 
made available for DHCS or federal review. 

 
B. The LGA is responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees or subcontractors. 
 
C. Contracts between the LGA and subcontractors must not include any employees who 

have been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse of any 
Medi-Cal applicant or beneficiary or abuse of the Medi-Cal program, as such employees 
are excluded from participation in the CMAA program. Failure of the LGA to exclude a 
convicted individual from participation in the Medi-Cal Administrative program shall 
constitute a breach and may subject this PA to termination pursuant to Article III, 
Provision 4. 

 
i. An employee shall continue to be excluded from the CMAA program, regardless 

of any subsequent court order pursuant to section 1203.4 of the Penal Code 
allowing the employee to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of 
guilty or not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty or dismissing the 
accusation, information or indictment. 

 
D. Contracts between the LGA and subcontractors must not include any employees of 

either party who have been suspended or excluded from participation in the Medi-Cal, 
Medicaid, or Medicare programs, as such employees are excluded from participation in 
the CMAA program. Failure of the LGA to exclude a suspended or excluded employee 
from participation in the CMAA program shall constitute a breach and may subject this 
PA to termination pursuant to Article III, Provision 4. 

 
E. Any contracts between the LGA and subcontractors must not include any employees of 

either party whose license, certificate, or registration has been revoked, suspended, or 
restricted if the license, certificate, or registration is required for Medi-Cal administrative 
activities, as such employees are excluded from participation in the CMAA program. 
Failure of the LGA to exclude an individual whose license, certificate, or registration has 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 6 of 9]  
 

been revoked, suspended, or restricted from the CMAA program may constitute a 
breach and subject this PA to termination pursuant to Article III, Provision 4. 

 
ARTICLE VI – DHCS RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
1. DHCS will remit payment to the LGA for eligible activities performed in accordance with the 

CMAA program and billed in accordance with applicable claim submission requirements found 
in the CMAA Operational Plan and PPLs issued by the CMAA program. In addition, DHCS will 
provide time survey training and invoice training to the LGA coordinators. 
 

ARTICLE VII – FISCAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. The LGA will be reimbursed for actual quarterly CMAA expenditures incurred in accordance 
with the allowable costs specified herein pursuant to the certified public expenditure provisions 
and the CMAA Invoice provisions of the CMAA Operational Plan, quarterly time survey results 
based on the CMAA/TCM Time Survey Methodology, and PPLs issued by the CMAA program. 

 
2. CMAA invoices shall include this agreement number and shall be submitted quarterly on a 

schedule established by DHCS. Invoices shall be submitted to DHCS electronically through the 
DHCS Secure File Transfer drop site.  

 
3. Payments due to DHCS must be submitted to: 

 
U.S. Mail Overnight Mail_______ 
Anissa Saleem Anissa Saleem 
Department of Health Care Services Department of Health Care Services 
Local Governmental Financing Division Local Governmental Financing Division 
County-Based Claiming and Inmate County-Based Claiming and Inmate 
Services Section Services Section 
MS 2826 MS 2826 
PO Box 997436 1501 Capitol Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7436 Sacramento, CA 95814-5005 

 
4. LGAs and their subcontractors are considered contractors solely for the purposes of U.S. 

Office of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R. § 200, and, specifically, 2 
C.F.R. § 200.330). Consequently, as contractors, and distinguished from subrecipients, a Dun 
and Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number is not required.  

  
5. Submission of a falsified CMAA invoice by an LGA shall constitute a breach and grounds for 

termination of this PA pursuant to Article III, Provision 4. Submission of a CMAA invoice 
without supporting documentation by an LGA may constitute a breach and grounds for 
termination of this PA pursuant to Article III, Provision 4. 

 
ARTICLE VIII – BUDGET CONTINGENCY CLAUSE 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 7 of 9]  
 

 
1. It is mutually agreed that if the State Budget Act of the current State Fiscal Year (SFY) and any 

subsequent SFYs covered under this PA does not provide sufficient funds for the CMAA 
program, this PA shall be of no further force and effect. In such event, DHCS shall 
unequivocally have no liability to pay any funds to the LGA or to furnish any other 
considerations under the PA and the LGA shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of 
this PA.  
 

2. If funding for any SFY is reduced or deleted by the State Budget Act for purposes of the CMAA 
program, DHCS shall have the option to either cancel this PA, with no liability to DHCS; or 
offer the LGA an amendment to the PA that reflects the reduced amount. 

 
ARTICLE IX – LIMITATION OF STATE LIABILITY 

 
1. In the event of a federal audit disallowance, the LGA shall cooperate with DHCS in replying to 

and complying with any federal audit exception related to the CMAA program. The LGA shall 
assume sole financial responsibility for any and all federal audit disallowances related to the 
rendering of services under this PA. The LGA shall assume sole financial responsibility for any 
and all penalties and interest charged as a result of a federal audit disallowance related to the 
rendering of services under this PA. The amount of the federal audit disallowance, plus interest 
and penalties, shall be payable on demand from DHCS. 

 
2. If the LGA fails to remit payment, including any interest and penalties, pursuant to a federal 

audit disallowance following a demand for such payment from DHCS; DHCS has the option to 
terminate this PA, withhold future payments to the LGA for services rendered, or recoup 
payments made to the LGA for services rendered under the CMAA program. 

 
ARTICLE X – AMENDMENT 

 
1. This PA and any exhibits attached hereto shall constitute the entire agreement among the 

parties regarding the CMAA program and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous 
understanding or agreement with respect to the CMAA program and may be amended only by 
a written amendment to this PA. 

 
2. Changes to the project representatives may be made via written communication including 

email by either party and shall not constitute a formal amendment to the PA.  
 

ARTICLE XI – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

1. None of the provisions of this PA are or shall be construed as for the benefit of, or enforceable 
by, any person not a party to this PA. 

 
2. The interpretation and performance of this PA shall be governed by the State of California. The 

venue shall lie only in counties in which the California Attorney General maintains an office. 



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 8 of 9]  
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XII – INDEMNIFICATION 
 

1. It is agreed that the LGA shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify DHCS, its officers, 
employees, and agents from any and all claims liability, loss or expense (including reasonable 
attorney fees) for injuries or damage to any person or property which arise out of the terms and 
conditions of this PA and the negligent and intentional acts or omissions of the LGA, its 
officers, employees, or agents. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE XIII – AVOIDANCE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 
1. The LGA is subject to compliance with the Medi-Cal Conflict of Interest Law, as applicable and 

set forth in Welfare and Institutions Code section 14022, and Article 1.6 (commencing with 
Welfare and Institutions Code section 14047), and implemented pursuant to California Code of 
Regulations, title 22, section 51466.  



LGA CMAA Participation Agreement 
 

 
County of: Inyo   
 
 
  
  

 [Page 9 of 9]  
 

The signatories to this PA warrant that they have full and binding authority to the commitments 
contained herein on behalf of their respective entities. 
 
 
LGA Name: _______________________________________________________ 

_________________________________   
Name of Authorized Representative       
(Person legally authorized to bind contracts for the LGA)  
 
  
_________________________________   
Title of Authorized Representative    

_________________________________   
Signature of Authorized   
Representative  

_________________________________   
Date    

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA – DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Signature of the DHCS Authorized Representative 

Brian Fitzgerald, Chief, Local Governmental Financing Division 
Typed or Printed Name/Title of the DHCS Authorized Representative 
 
_______________________________________ 
Date 



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum 
 

Attachment A  

The following data files will be provided pursuant to this Agreement: 

Local Government Agency (LGA) 

LGAs will receive the following data elements from DHCS through the MOVEit eTransfer 
System for client data uploaded into LGAs’ MOVEit accounts:  

1. Social Security Number 
2. Last Name 
3. First Name 
4. Middle Initials 
5. Date of Birth (CCYYMMDD) 
6. CMAA Match Indicator 
7. CMAA Rec Eligibility Indicator 
8. Current Month CMAA Eligibility Indicator 
9. 23 Prior Months CMAA Eligibility Indicators 
10. MEDS Current Renewal Date 
11. Fee For Service or Managed Care Indicator  
12. Current HCP Plan Code 
13. Federal Financial Participation Qualified Status Indicator 
14. Alternate Format Selection Description  

 

 



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 1 of 10 

Business Associate Addendum 

1. This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate 
relationship under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA) and its implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 Code of 
Federal Regulations, (CFR) Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, and as used in this 
Agreement) 

2. The term “Agreement” as used in this document refers to and includes both this 
Business Associate Addendum and the contract to which this Business Associate 
Agreement is attached as an exhibit, if any. 

3. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Business Associate” shall have the 
same meaning as set forth in 45 CFR section 160.103. 

4. The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) intends that Business 
Associate may create, receive, maintain, transmit or aggregate certain 
information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which information 
may constitute Protected Health Information (PHI) and/or confidential information 
protected by Federal and/or state laws. 

4.1 As used in this Agreement and unless otherwise stated, the term “PHI” 
refers to and includes both “PHI” as defined at 45 CFR section 160.103 
and Personal Information (PI) as defined in the Information Practices Act 
(IPA) at California Civil Code section 1798.3(a). PHI includes information 
in any form, including paper, oral, and electronic. 

4.2 As used in this Agreement, the term “confidential information” refers to 
information not otherwise defined as PHI in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, 
but to which state and/or federal privacy and/or security protections apply. 

5. Contractor (however named elsewhere in this Agreement) is the Business 
Associate of DHCS acting on DHCS's behalf and provides services or arranges, 
performs or assists in the performance of functions or activities on behalf of 
DHCS, and may create, receive, maintain, transmit, aggregate, use or disclose 
PHI (collectively, “use or disclose PHI”) in order to fulfill Business Associate’s 
obligations under this Agreement. DHCS and Business Associate are each a 
party to this Agreement and are collectively referred to as the "parties.” 

6. The terms used in this Agreement, but not otherwise defined, shall have the 
same meanings as those terms in HIPAA and/or the IPA. Any reference to 
statutory or regulatory language shall be to such language as in effect or as 
amended. 

  



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 2 of 10 

7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate 

Except as otherwise indicated in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or 
disclose PHI, inclusive of de-identified data derived from such PHI, only to 
perform functions, activities or services specified in this Agreement on behalf of 
DHCS, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate HIPAA or other 
applicable laws if done by DHCS. 

7.1 Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions 

Except as otherwise indicated in this Agreement, Business Associate may 
use and disclose PHI if necessary for the proper management and 
administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal 
responsibilities of the Business Associate. Business Associate may 
disclose PHI for this purpose if the disclosure is required by law, or the 
Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to 
whom the information is disclosed that it will be held confidentially and 
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for 
which it was disclosed to the person. The person shall notify the Business 
Associate of any instances of which the person is aware that the 
confidentiality of the information has been breached, unless such person 
is a treatment provider not acting as a business associate of Business 
Associate. 

8. Compliance with Other Applicable Law 

8.1 To the extent that other state and/or federal laws provide additional, 
stricter and/or more protective (collectively, more protective) privacy 
and/or security protections to PHI or other confidential information covered 
under this Agreement beyond those provided through HIPAA, Business 
Associate agrees: 

8.1.1 To comply with the more protective of the privacy and security 
standards set forth in applicable state or federal laws to the 
extent such standards provide a greater degree of protection 
and security than HIPAA or are otherwise more favorable to the 
individuals whose information is concerned; and 

8.1.2 To treat any violation of such additional and/or more protective 
standards as a breach or security incident, as appropriate, 
pursuant to Section 18. of this Agreement. 

8.2 Examples of laws that provide additional and/or stricter privacy protections 
to certain types of PHI and/or confidential information, as defined in 
Section 4. of this Agreement, include, but are not limited to the Information 
Practices Act, California Civil Code sections 1798-1798.78, Confidentiality 
of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2, Welfare and 
Institutions Code section 5328, and California Health and Safety Code 
section 11845.5. 



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 3 of 10 

8.3 If Business Associate is a Qualified Service Organization (QSO) as 
defined in 42 CFR section 2.11, Business Associate agrees to be bound 
by and comply with subdivisions (2)(i) and (2)(ii) under the definition of 
QSO in 42 CFR section 2.11. 

9. Additional Responsibilities of Business Associate 

9.1 Nondisclosure 

9.1.1 Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI or other 
confidential information other than as permitted or required by 
this Agreement or as required by law. 

9.2 Safeguards and Security 

9.2.1 Business Associate shall use safeguards that reasonably and 
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability 
of PHI and other confidential data and comply, where 
applicable, with subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to 
electronic protected health information, to prevent use or 
disclosure of the information other than as provided for by this 
Agreement. Such safeguards shall be based on applicable 
Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) Publication 
199 protection levels. 

9.2.2 Business Associate shall, at a minimum, utilize a National 
Institute of Standards and Technology Special Publication (NIST 
SP) 800-53 compliant security framework when selecting and 
implementing its security controls and shall maintain continuous 
compliance with NIST SP 800-53 as it may be updated from 
time to time. The current version of NIST SP 800-53, Revision 
5, is available online at; updates will be available online through 
the Computer Security Resource Center website. 

9.2.3 Business Associate shall employ FIPS 140-2 validated 
encryption of PHI at rest and in motion unless Business 
Associate determines it is not reasonable and appropriate to do 
so based upon a risk assessment, and equivalent alternative 
measures are in place and documented as such. FIPS 140-2 
validation can be determined online through the Cryptographic 
Module Validation Program Search, with information about the 
Cryptographic Module Validation Program under FIPS 140-2. In 
addition, Business Associate shall maintain, at a minimum, the 
most current industry standards for transmission and storage of 
PHI and other confidential information. 

9.2.4 Business Associate shall apply security patches and upgrades, 
and keep virus software up-to-date, on all systems on which PHI 
and other confidential information may be used. 

https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/sp800
https://csrc.nist.gov/projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/validated-modules/search
https://csrc.nist.gov/projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/validated-modules/search
https://csrc.nist.gov/Projects/cryptographic-module-validation-program/fips-140-2


County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 4 of 10 

9.2.5 Business Associate shall ensure that all members of its 
workforce with access to PHI and/or other confidential 
information sign a confidentiality statement prior to access to 
such data. The statement must be renewed annually. 

9.2.6 Business Associate shall identify the security official who is 
responsible for the development and implementation of the 
policies and procedures required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart 
C. 

9.3 Business Associate’s Agent 

Business Associate shall ensure that any agents, subcontractors, 
subawardees, vendors or others (collectively, “agents”) that use or 
disclose PHI and/or confidential information on behalf of Business 
Associate agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to 
Business Associate with respect to such PHI and/or confidential 
information.  

10. Mitigation of Harmful Effects 

Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect 
that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI and other 
confidential information in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  

11. Access to PHI 

Business Associate shall make PHI available in accordance with 45 CFR section 
164.524. 

12. Amendment of PHI 

Business Associate shall make PHI available for amendment and incorporate 
any amendments to protected health information in accordance with 45 CFR 
section 164.526. 

13. Accounting for Disclosures 

Business Associate shall make available the information required to provide an 
accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.528. 

14. Compliance with DHCS Obligations 

To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an obligation of DHCS under 45 
CFR Part 164, Subpart E, comply with the requirements of the subpart that apply 
to DHCS in the performance of such obligation. 

  



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 5 of 10 

15. Access to Practices, Books and Records 

Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books, and records relating 
to the use and disclosure of PHI on behalf of DHCS available to DHCS upon 
reasonable request, and to the federal Secretary of Health and Human Services 
for purposes of determining DHCS’ compliance with 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E. 

16. Return or Destroy PHI on Termination; Survival 

At termination of this Agreement, if feasible, Business Associate shall return or 
destroy all PHI and other confidential information received from, or created or 
received by Business Associate on behalf of, DHCS that Business Associate still 
maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If return or 
destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall notify DHCS of the 
conditions that make the return or destruction infeasible, and DHCS and 
Business Associate shall determine the terms and conditions under which 
Business Associate may retain the PHI. If such return or destruction is not 
feasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to 
the information and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that 
make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

17. Special Provision for SSA Data 

If Business Associate receives data from or on behalf of DHCS that was verified 
by or provided by the Social Security Administration (SSA data) and is subject to 
an agreement between DHCS and SSA, Business Associate shall provide, upon 
request by DHCS, a list of all employees and agents and employees who have 
access to such data, including employees and agents of its agents, to DHCS.  

18. Breaches and Security Incidents 

Business Associate shall implement reasonable systems for the discovery and 
prompt reporting of any breach or security incident, and take the following steps: 

18.1 Notice to DHCS 

18.1.1 Business Associate shall notify DHCS immediately upon the 
discovery of a suspected breach or security incident that 
involves SSA data. This notification will be provided by email 
upon discovery of the breach. If Business Associate is unable to 
provide notification by email, then Business Associate shall 
provide notice by telephone to DHCS. 

  



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 6 of 10 

18.1.2 Business Associate shall notify DHCS within 24 hours by email 
(or by telephone if Business Associate is unable to email DHCS) 
of the discovery of the following, unless attributable to a 
treatment provider that is not acting as a business associate of 
Business Associate: 

18.1.2.1 Unsecured PHI if the PHI is reasonably believed to 
have been accessed or acquired by an unauthorized 
person; 

18.1.2.2 Any suspected security incident which risks 
unauthorized access to PHI and/or other confidential 
information; 

18.1.2.3 Any intrusion or unauthorized access, use or 
disclosure of PHI in violation of this Agreement; or 

18.1.2.4 Potential loss of confidential information affecting this 
Agreement. 

18.1.3 Notice shall be provided to the DHCS Program Contract 
Manager (as applicable), the DHCS Privacy Office, and the 
DHCS Information Security Office (collectively, “DHCS 
Contacts”) using the DHCS Contact Information in Section 18.6. 

Notice shall be made using the current DHCS “Privacy Incident 
Reporting Form” (“PIR Form”; the initial notice of a security 
incident or breach that is submitted is referred to as an “Initial 
PIR Form”) and shall include all information known at the time 
the incident is reported. The form is available online here at the 
DHCS Data Privacy webpage.  

Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, 
intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI, 
Business Associate shall take: 

18.1.3.1 Prompt action to mitigate any risks or damages 
involved with the security incident or breach; and 

18.1.3.2 Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable Federal and State law. 

18.2 Investigation 

Business Associate shall immediately investigate such security incident or 
breach. 

  

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Documents/Privacy-Incident-Report-PIR.pdf


County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 7 of 10 

18.3 Complete Report 

To provide a complete report of the investigation to the DHCS contacts 
within ten (10) working days of the discovery of the security incident or 
breach. This “Final PIR” must include any applicable additional information 
not included in the Initial Form. The Final PIR Form shall include an 
assessment of all known factors relevant to a determination of whether a 
breach occurred under HIPAA and other applicable federal and state laws. 
The report shall also include a full, detailed corrective action plan, 
including its implementation date and information on mitigation measures 
taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or disclosure. If DHCS 
requests information in addition to that requested through the PIR form, 
Business Associate shall make reasonable efforts to provide DHCS with 
such information. A “Supplemental PIR” may be used to submit revised or 
additional information after the Final PIR is submitted. DHCS will review 
and approve or disapprove Business Associate’s determination of whether 
a breach occurred, whether the security incident or breach is reportable to 
the appropriate entities, if individual notifications are required, and 
Business Associate’s corrective action plan. 

18.3.1 If Business Associate does not complete a Final PIR within the 
ten (10) working day timeframe, Business Associate shall 
request approval from DHCS within the ten (10) working day 
timeframe of a new submission timeframe for the Final PIR. 

18.4 Notification of Individuals 

If the cause of a breach is attributable to Business Associate or its agents, 
other than when attributable to a treatment provider that is not acting as a 
business associate of Business Associate, Business Associate shall notify 
individuals accordingly and shall pay all costs of such notifications, as well 
as all costs associated with the breach. The notifications shall comply with 
applicable federal and state law. DHCS shall approve the time, manner 
and content of any such notifications and their review and approval must 
be obtained before the notifications are made. 

18.5 Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches to Entities Other than 
DHCS 

If the cause of a breach of PHI is attributable to Business Associate or its 
agents, other than when attributable to a treatment provider that is not 
acting as a business associate of Business Associate, Business Associate 
is responsible for all required reporting of the breach as required by 
applicable federal and state law. 

  



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 8 of 10 

18.6 DHCS Contact Information 

To direct communications to the above referenced DHCS staff, the 
Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated here. DHCS reserves the right 
to make changes to the contact information below by giving written notice 
to Business Associate. These changes shall not require an amendment to 
this Agreement. 

18.6.1 DHCS Program Contract Manager 

See the Scope of Work exhibit for Program Contract Manager 
information. If this Business Associate Agreement is not 
attached as an exhibit to a contract, contact the DHCS signatory 
to this Agreement. 

18.6.2 DHCS Privacy Office 

Privacy Office 
c/o: Office of HIPAA Compliance 
Department of Health Care Services 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: incidents@dhcs.ca.gov 

Telephone: (916) 445-4646 

18.6.3 DHCS Information Security Office 

Information Security Office 
DHCS Information Security Office 
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413 

Email: incidents@dhcs.ca.gov 

19. Responsibility of DHCS 

DHCS agrees to not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in 
any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA and/or other applicable 
federal and/or state law. 

20. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement 

20.1 From time to time, DHCS may inspect the facilities, systems, books and 
records of Business Associate to monitor compliance with this Agreement. 
Business Associate shall promptly remedy any violation of this Agreement 
and shall certify the same to the DHCS Privacy Officer in writing. Whether 
or how DHCS exercises this provision shall not in any respect relieve 
Business Associate of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement. 

mailto:incidents@dhcs.ca.gov
mailto:incidents@dhcs.ca.gov


County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 9 of 10 

20.2 If Business Associate is the subject of an audit, compliance review, 
investigation or any proceeding that is related to the performance of its 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, or is the subject of any judicial or 
administrative proceeding alleging a violation of HIPAA, Business 
Associate shall promptly notify DHCS unless it is legally prohibited from 
doing so. 

21. Termination 

21.1 Termination for Cause 

Upon DHCS’ knowledge of a violation of this Agreement by Business 
Associate, DHCS may in its discretion: 

21.1.1 Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the 
violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate 
does not do so within the time specified by DHCS; or 

21.1.2 Terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has violated a 
material term of this Agreement. 

21.2 Judicial or Administrative Proceedings 

DHCS may terminate this Agreement if Business Associate is found to 
have violated HIPAA, or stipulates or consents to any such conclusion, in 
any judicial or administrative proceeding. 

22. Miscellaneous Provisions 

22.1 Disclaimer 

DHCS makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business 
Associate with this Agreement will satisfy Business Associate’s business 
needs or compliance obligations. Business Associate is solely responsible 
for all decisions made by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI and other confidential information. 

22.2 Amendment 

22.2.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is in conflict with current 
or future applicable Federal or State laws is hereby amended to 
conform to the provisions of those laws. Such amendment of 
this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the 
laws necessitating it, and shall be binding on the parties even 
though such amendment may not have been reduced to writing 
and formally agreed upon and executed by the parties. 

22.2.2 Failure by Business Associate to take necessary actions 
required by amendments to this Agreement under Section 
22.2.1 shall constitute a material violation of this Agreement. 



County of Inyo 
Program Participation Agreement 

DHCS HIPAA BAA (Revised 09/2021) Page 10 of 10 

22.3 Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings 

Business Associate shall make itself and its employees and agents 
available to DHCS at no cost to DHCS to testify as witnesses, or 
otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being 
commenced against DHCS, its directors, officers and/or employees based 
upon claimed violation of HIPAA, which involve inactions or actions by the 
Business Associate. 

22.4 No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall confer, upon any third 
person any rights or remedies whatsoever. 

22.5 Interpretation 

The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly 
as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA and other applicable 
laws. 

22.6 No Waiver of Obligations 

No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on 
any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of 
any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 
obligation, on any other occasion. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3486  

 

MedBank Agreement 
Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director - Public Health 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve the lease agreement between the County of Inyo and CareFusion Solutions, Inc. 
of San Diego, CA for BD Pyxis MedBank equipment, software, and services, in an amount not to exceed 
$58,380.00 plus applicable sales and property taxes, for a period of 60 months, commencing on the date 
of equipment installation, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Health and Human Services Department is responsible for providing medical services to individuals 
who are incarcerated at the Inyo County Jail. One aspect of medical care within the facility involves 
medication management and administration. Inmate medications are ordered by the Jail Medical 
Director, Dr. Richardson, or the Behavioral Health Psychiatrist, Dr. Winston, and are filled under a 
pharmacy contract with Dwayne's Friendly Pharmacy. Medications are transported at least weekly to the 
jail by county staff and are stored in the clinic office at the jail.  Medication schedules are set up and 
managed by jail nursing staff, and medications are delivered to inmates by Correctional Officers up to 
four times per day. In order to store medications safely and effectively, and to ensure proper custody of 
medications at all times, the Department is requesting authorization to lease a locking medication 
dispenser with an automated medication inventory management system that provides appropriate 
custody and control of medications and ensures compliance with regulatory standards. This product will 
not only secure medication, but will also track who accesses the cabinet for safety, regulatory and quality 
assurance purposes.   
 
Hospitals, Skilled Nursing Facilities, and other medical facilities commonly use a secure, automated 
medication dispenser, even when there is an on-site pharmacy, to ensure access to medications around 
the clock. HHS has an urgent need to improve medication custody and control in the jail and has 
identified two companies that offer a locking medication dispenser. However, only one of the companies, 
CareFusion Solutions, Inc., offers the product to corrections facilities. Therefore, HHS is requesting 
authorization to enter into a sole-source lease with CareFusion Solutions, Inc. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Health Realignment Budget Unit 045100 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
No significant impacts. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
No significant impacts. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could instruct the Department to identify alternate methods to manage on-site medication. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Sheriff's Department 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. MedBank Customer Order Terms and Conditions  
2. Sole Source Justification - MedBank 
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 2/1/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 2/8/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/13/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Ver. 20220622 Page 1 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 
The Quote(s) and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary on the Quote, these terms and 

conditions, govern your purchase of BD Pyxis™ MedBank equipment (the “Equipment”), 

software, and services, and form the entire agreement (“Agreement”) between the customer 

identified in the Quote(s) (“you” or “Customer”) and CareFusion Solutions, LLC, a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Becton, Dickinson and Company, on behalf of itself and its affiliates (“we” 

or “CFN”), and is effective upon your acceptance of the Quote(s), which upon your 

acceptance, shall become your “Customer Order” or “Customer Orders”.  Any reference to a 

“Master Agreement” on the Quote, shall mean these terms and conditions for purpose of this 

Quote.  Additional or conflicting terms (whether included in a purchase order or otherwise) do 

not amend or modify the Agreement.  THE CUSTOMER ORDER IS NON-CANCELLABLE 

AND, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THE AGREEMENT, NON-REFUNDABLE.  

1. Products and Services.  The products (“Products”), software (“Software”) and 

services (“Services”) purchased under this Agreement, are detailed in the Customer 

Order and described in all applicable user guides, technical specifications, product 

security white papers that apply to the Products, Software and Services purchased 

under the Agreement (the ‘Documentation”).    

2. Equipment Terms.  Title to the Equipment will remain with CFN indefinitely in cases 

where the Customer Order calls for a lease or rental and until payment of the purchase 

price in cases where the Customer Order calls for a purchase.  In the case of a lease 

or rental, you agree to maintain the Equipment in accordance with the Documentation 

and bear the risk (and expense) of loss and damage for any cause from delivery until 

the Equipment is returned to CFN at the end of the lease or rental term.     

3. Pricing; Shipping; Payment Terms.    Each Customer Order includes prices, fees and 

other specific terms and conditions for the Equipment and Software (collectively, the 

“Products”) and Services.  Equipment that is shipped directly from CFN will ship to the 

facility designated in each Customer Order, F.O.B. Origin, with freight charges and 

insurance being paid by CFN and added to the invoice.  Payment terms are Net 30 from 

the date of your receipt of the invoice, which invoices shall be sent no later than 30 

days after the applicable Term Begin Date; fee-based credit cards are accepted if 

approved in advance by CFN.  You are responsible for all taxes and assessments levied 

against the Products, including, without limitation, withholding or value added taxes, 

and personal property taxes imposed on CFN as the Equipment lessor; CFN will not 

collect sales tax if you provide CFN with written evidence of exemption. 

4.  Software License Terms and Restrictions.  CFN grants Customer a nonexclusive, 

nontransferable, limited license to use the Software and Documentation licensed solely 

in connection with Products purchased/rented under this Agreement and only in 

conjunction with your internal business purposes, provided that all licensing of third 

party software will be subject to the terms of any third party software terms included in 

the Documentation, and subject in all cases to payment of applicable fees.  During the 

Agreement Term, you may access and use, and may permit Users to access and use, 

the Software in the ordinary course of your business at your “location” or “ship to facility” 

identified in the Customer Order, or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties (each such 

location, a “Facility”).  “Users” shall mean those Customer employees, agents, 

consultants and similar personnel, or Customer’s clients who Customer authorizes to 

use and access Software. Customer shall maintain responsibility for all obligations and 

ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including with 

respect to all Users.  From time to time, CFN may add, modify, discontinue, condition 

the use of, and otherwise change elements of Software, but will not materially lessen 

core features or functions.  You shall not, and shall not permit any User to: (i) circumvent 

or bypass any technological protection measures in or relating to a Product; (ii) 

decompile, disassemble, decrypt, hack, emulate, exploit, or reverse engineer or 

otherwise attempt to obtain or perceive the source code of Software; (iii) modify or 

create any derivative work from Software or Documentation; (iv) copy, publish, display, 

perform, transfer, rent, sublicense, lease, sell, assign, pledge, encumber, export, 

import, distribute, or lend Software or Documentation; (v) enable access to Software by 

a third-party software application, except as expressly authorized by CFN in writing; (vi) 

remove, alter or obscure any proprietary notice or legend from a Product or 

Documentation; (vii) permit use of a Product by any person not qualified or not 

authorized to do so; or (viii) use a Product in violation of any law or regulation. 

 

5. Data Security and Rights.   

a. During the Term, CFN will maintain a written information security program of 

policies, procedures and controls governing the processing, storage, transmission 

and security of Customer Data (the “Security Program”). The Security Program 

includes industry-standard practices designed to protect Customer Data from 

accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorized disclosure, or 

access. CFN updates the Security Program to address new and evolving security 

technologies, changes to industry standard practices, and changing security 

threats, although no such update will materially reduce the commitments, 

protections or overall level of service provided to Customer as described herein. 

b. CFN’s information security policies shall be documented and communicated to 

personnel, contractors, and third parties with access to Customer Data, including 

appropriate ramifications for non-compliance, and are available at 

https://cybersecurity.bd.com/?_ga=2.254414920.1133650491.1634222395-

1074638392.1514910707. 

c. CFN shall perform risk assessments with the objective to regularly test, assess 

and evaluate the effectiveness of the Security Program supporting the Software. 

CFN shall have the risk program audited annually by an independent third-party 

in accordance with Section 5(d) below. 

d. CFN shall use commercially reasonably efforts to establish and maintain sufficient 

controls to meet certification and attestation for the objectives stated in ISO 27001, 

ISO 27018, SSAE 18 / SOC 1 and SOC 2 Type 2 (or equivalent standards) for the 

Security Program supporting the Software. Commencing on January 1, 2023, CFN 

shall, at least once per calendar year, obtain an assessment against such 

standards and audit methodologies by an independent third-party auditor and, 

upon request make the executive reports available to the Customer. 

e. Any data center facilities include (1) physical access restrictions and monitoring; 

and (2) fire detection and fire suppression systems both localized and throughout 

the data center floor.  The systems, machines and devices include (1) physical 

protection mechanisms; and (2) entry controls to limit physical access. 

f. CFN shall use NIST 800-88 industry standard (or substantially equivalent) 

destruction of sensitive materials, including Customer Data, before such media 

leaves CFN’s data centers for disposition. 

g. CFN conducts regular security risk evaluations to identify critical information 

assets, assess threats to such assets, determine potential vulnerabilities, and 

provide for remediation. When software vulnerabilities are revealed and 

addressed by a vendor patch, CFN will obtain the patch from the applicable vendor 

and apply it within an appropriate timeframe in accordance with CFN’s then-

current vulnerability management and security patch management standard 

operating procedure and only after such patch is tested and determined to be safe 

for installation in all production systems. 

h. CFN updates antivirus, anti-malware, and anti-spyware software on regular 

intervals and  

centrally logs events for effectiveness of such software. 

i. CFN uses industry standard encryption to encrypt Customer Data in transit over 

public networks to the Software. 

j. Software patches are regularly made available to Customers to address known 

vulnerabilities. 

k. Software shall not contain viruses, malware, worms, date bombs, time bombs, 

shut-down devices, that may result in, either: (a) any inoperability of the Software; 

or (b) any interruption, interference with the operation of the Software (collectively, 

“Illicit Code”). If the Software is found to contain any Illicit Code that adversely 

affects the performance of the Software or causes a material security risk to 

Customer Data, CFN shall, as Customer’s exclusive remedy, use commercially 

reasonable efforts to remove the Illicit Code or to advise and assist Customer to 

remove such Illicit Code. 

l. CFN maintains a disaster recovery related plan for CFN-hosted Products and 

Services that is consistent with industry standards for the Software. 

m. CFN monitors, analyzes, and responds to security incidents in a timely manner in 

accordance with CFN’s standard operating procedure.  CFN’s security group will 

escalate and engage response teams as may be necessary to address a security 

incident.  CFN will report to Customer any accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, 

alteration, unauthorized disclosure of, or access to, Customer Data (a “Breach”) 

without undue delay following determination by CFN that a Breach has occurred.  

As information is collected or otherwise becomes available, CFN shall provide 

without undue delay any further information regarding the nature and 

consequences of the Breach to allow Customer to notify relevant parties, including 

affected individuals, government agencies, and data protection authorities in 

accordance with data protection laws. Customer will cooperate with CFN by 

providing any information that is reasonably requested by CFN to resolve any 

security incident, including any Breaches, identify its root cause(s), and prevent a 

recurrence. Customer is solely responsible for determining whether to notify the 

relevant supervisory or regulatory authorities and impacted parties and for 

providing such notice. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188

https://cybersecurity.bd.com/?_ga=2.254414920.1133650491.1634222395-1074638392.1514910707
https://cybersecurity.bd.com/?_ga=2.254414920.1133650491.1634222395-1074638392.1514910707


 

Ver. 20220622 Page 2 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 

n. This Section 5 does not apply to: (a) information shared with CFN that is not 

Customer Data; (b) data in Customer’s VPN or a third-party network; and (c) any 

data processed by Customer or its users in violation of the Agreement. 

o. CFN may access and use Customer Data: only to provide Products, Support, and 

Implementation Services; (ii) to improve Products and to develop new Products to 

improve the delivery, quality, or safety of healthcare; (iii) for benchmarking; and (iv) 

for aggregate analysis. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CFN may only use or 

disclose PHI in accordance with Section 15.  If Customer Data contains PHI, then 

CFN will use such Data in conformance with the Privacy Rules.   

6. Service and Support.  Support and Services purchased under Customer Orders are 

provided in accordance with the descriptions and conditions in Schedule A.  CFN 

provides Support during the Term subject to Customer’s payment of the applicable 

fees, and CFN may increase the Monthly Support Fees, if any, stated on the Customer 

Order for the Products, once every twelve (12) months by no more than the Consumer 

Price Index for medical care plus two percent (2%), provided the increase will be 

effective (i) upon at least ninety (90) days’ written notice to Customer and (ii) as of the 

anniversary date of the initial Term (as defined under Section 16, below) stated on 

the Customer Order. Only CFN’s designated service technicians may service, perform 

maintenance that is not expressly required to be performed by Customer, or repair the 

Equipment.  After termination or expiration of any Support plan Customer may 

purchase an extended service plan and, if Customer chooses not to purchase such 

plan, then Customer will be responsible for charges for Services on a time and material 

basis.  Support is not assignable by Customer and shall not pass to the benefit of any 

eventual transferee of the Equipment from Customer.  Customer shall cooperate with 

CFN in providing Support, including by ensuring that the system requirements 

specified in the Documentation are satisfied, with such system requirements a 

condition of Implementation Services.  If Customer at any time fails to pay any fees 

for either Service or Support, as applicable, and does not dispute the fees reasonably 

and in good faith, then, on not less than 30 days’ notice, CFN may cease providing 

such Service or Support for so long as the fees remain unpaid. 

7. Implementation Services.  Products will be implemented pursuant to the option set 
forth in the Customer Order.  The Implementation Service options are described in 
Schedule A.   Each Party shall use reasonable efforts to fulfill its responsibilities, 
conduct its activities, and provide its deliverables as specified in the implementation 
timeline.  Customer shall reasonably cooperate with CFN in its performance of 
Implementation Services, including providing any resources (including technology and 
physical environment) and with all necessary permits and free of obstructions, in each 
case as specified in the Documentation.  Acceptance will be deemed to occur upon 
completion of the Implementation Services, and Customer will provide CFN with 
written acknowledgment of Acceptance. 

8.  Updates and Upgrades.  A charge may apply for Upgrades.  Updates, Upgrades and 

any other revisions to third party software are not provided by CFN.  Customer must 

remain within the last two (2) software versions to continue to receive Support.  In the 

event Equipment is required to be upgraded to support the installation of Updates and 

Upgrades, the Customer shall be responsible for the purchase of such Equipment. 

9. Customer Responsibilities.  You shall (i) maintain virus and malware protection and 

operating system security updates to network connected computing systems which run 

Software and for backing up any information generated by the Equipment; (ii) maintain 

a safe work environment in connection with our provision of Service and/or Support; (iii)  

provide high-speed internet access and firewall modifications to enable connectivity for 

Support, if applicable, and (iv) not move or transfer Products from a Facility without 

providing CFN with reasonable prior written notice of such move or transfer.   Remote 

support service (“RSS”) is required to provide support for security patches and 

assistance with cybersecurity incident response.  If Customer chooses not to allow RSS 

to connect, security patch management and cybersecurity incident response will be the 

sole responsibility of Customer.  RSS for requests received outside of working hours in 

the continental United States may be provided from locations outside of the United 

States, including Malaysia and Canada.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Data 

Security protections set forth in Section 5 shall apply to such support.  

10. Term; Termination; Effect of Termination.  The Agreement will remain in effect until 

terminated and will remain in effect thereafter with respect to any Customer Order 

entered into prior to the effective date of termination.  If a Customer Order does not 

include an expiration date, the Customer Order shall terminate concurrently with and 

on the terms set forth in the Agreement; Customer Orders that include an expiration 

date shall automatically renew for an additional 1 year term, and shall be subject to all 

applicable charges, unless Customer notifies CFN in writing, at least 60 days prior to 

the expiration of the then current term that it does not wish to extend the term.  Either 

party may immediately terminate any Customer Order and the Agreement, as its sole 

remedy, if the other Party’s key personnel is convicted of an offense related to health 

care or listed by a federal agency as being debarred, excluded, or otherwise ineligible 

for federal healthcare program participation.  Either Party may terminate any Customer 

Order if the other Party materially breaches such Customer Order and, except with 

respect to a payment breach, fails to cure such breach within 30 days after notice of 

the breach.  The termination or expiration of the Agreement shall not terminate any 

Customer Order between CFN and Customer, and any such Customer Order shall 

survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement, according to its terms and shall 

be subject to the applicable terms and conditions of the Agreement for the term of such 

Customer Order.  Termination of the Agreement or any Customer Order will not release 

a Party from any liability that exists at the time of termination or that accrues thereafter 

with respect to any act or omission before termination.  If previously-installed PyxisTM 

products are being upgraded or subject to new terms and conditions under this Quote, 

then the previously-applicable terms and conditions, including payment terms, for 

those products shall remain in full force and effect until the Term Begin Date of this 

Quote, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

11. Limited Warranty; Exclusions.  CFN represents and warrants that the Products will 
meet the specifications stated in the Documentation in all respects, shall be free from 
defects in material and workmanship for either the warranty period or expiration date 
stated in the Documentation for such Products, or, for Products without a stated 
warranty period or expiration date, 90 days (the “Warranty Period”).  Services and 
Support will be performed in a professional manner in accordance with generally 
accepted industry standards.  Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any breach 
of this warranty shall be (i) repair or replacement of the non-conforming Products, (ii) 
a refund of the amount paid to CFN for non-conforming Products, or (iii) correct any 
service not performed in accordance with the warranty, with such remedy to be at 
CFN’s option. Customer must provide written notice of any such non-conformance to 
CFN within the Warranty Period.  Any alteration, abuse, misuse, further manufacture, 
packaging, processing, adjustment or repair by any person or entity other than CFN or 
a person or entity authorized in writing by CFN shall void any Products warranty.  THIS 
LIMITED WARRANTY IS THE ONLY WARRANTY PROVIDED BY CFN AND IS IN 
LIEU OF ANY OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING TITLE, NON-INFRINGEMENT, NON-INTERFERENCE, 
INTEROPERABILITY, QUALITY OR CONDITION, ACCURACY, COMPLETENESS, 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR THE 
ABSENCE OF ANY DEFECTS, WHETHER LATENT OR PATENT.  NEITHER CFN 
NOR ANY EMPLOYEE OF CFN IS ENGAGED IN THE PRACTICE OF MEDICINE. 
CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACCURACY, 
COMPLETENESS, AND PERTINENCE OF ANY PHARMACOLOGICAL, MEDICAL, 
PATIENT, LEGAL OR OTHER RESULTS, DATA OR INFORMATION ENTERED IN, 
RECEIVED BY, PROCESSED BY, STORED IN, TRANSMITTED BY, PRODUCED 
BY, DISPLAYED BY, OR USED IN CONNECTION WITH THE PRODUCTS. 
CUSTOMER ASSUMES ALL RISKS AND LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
USE OF SUCH INFORMATION, WHETHER SUCH INFORMATION IS USED ALONE 
OR IN COMBINATION WITH OTHER INFORMATION.  

12. Exclusions.  Any warranties provided hereunder will not apply to failure of any 

Products caused by (i) Customer’s abuse, neglect or misuse of the Product or failure 

to maintain the Product in accordance with its Documentation (ii) implementation, 

repair, modification, alteration, adjustment, or relocation of the Product other than as 

expressly authorized by CFN; (iii) malicious software not introduced by CFN; or (vi) 

Customer’s failure to permit installation of an Update, or otherwise comply with 

Customer Responsibilities set forth in Section 9. 

13. Confidentiality; IP.   

a. General.  Except as provided below, neither Party shall disclose Confidential 

Information to any other person, or entity other than the Federal Government, a 

Party’s advisors for purposes consistent with the Agreement, or as required by 

law.  In the event a Party in receipt of Confidential Information (“Receiving 

Party”) is requested or becomes compelled, by a court of competent jurisdiction, 

administrative agency or other governmental body, to disclose Confidential 

Information of the Party that disclosed the Confidential Information (“Disclosing 

Party”), the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with prompt notice.  

CFN’s obligations in this paragraph and the exceptions in paragraph 13(b) below 

supersede any obligations of CFN or any CFN representative contained in any 

confidentiality agreement or statement executed or acknowledged at the entry of 

any Customer facility, which agreements or statements are void. 

b. Exceptions.  The obligations of this confidentiality section do not apply to 

information that: (i) was in the public domain or was known to the Receiving Party 

before the information was received by the Receiving Party; (ii) is developed by 

the Receiving Party or on its behalf independently of the information disclosed 

by the Disclosing Party as shown by written record; (iii) is acquired by the 

Receiving Party from a third party not under an obligation of confidentiality to the 

Disclosing Party; or (iv) becomes public knowledge without breach by the 

Receiving Party of any obligations of confidence to the Disclosing Party. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



 

Ver. 20220622 Page 3 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 

c. Rights upon Termination.  Upon termination of the Agreement  or termination 

or expiration of a Customer Order, each Party shall (i) immediately discontinue 

all use of the other Party’s Confidential Information; (ii) use reasonable efforts 

to promptly purge the other Party’s Confidential Information from its computer 

storage or other media, including online and off-line libraries (however, to the 

extent it is not feasible for the Party to purge such Confidential Information from 

back-up storage, the Party shall retain it in accordance with Section 13; and (iii) 

upon the request of the other Party, certify in writing that it has complied with 

the terms of this section. 

d. IP Rights. CFN owns or has rights to all Intellectual Property embodied or 

embedded in, or practiced by, the Products, Documentation, or CFN Data, and 

all rights therein.  No services, including design technical support or advisory 

services, will be performed as works made for hire, and CFN retains full rights 

to design or market the same or similar designs for other customers.  If 

Customer provides feedback on Products or ideas for new products, CFN may 

use and commercialize such feedback and ideas in any way and for any 

purpose.   

14. Indemnification; Limit of Liability.   

a. General.  CFN shall defend against and indemnify the other Party for any loss, 

damages, or liability, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, resulting from any 

third party claim (“Claim”) to the extent arising from CFN’s  negligence or willful 

misconduct or breach of its representations, warranties and covenants under 

this Agreement; provided, however, that such obligation shall not apply to 

Claims arising from the negligence or willful misconduct of any healthcare 

professional in performing services in a healthcare facility owned or operated 

by Customer.  Customer shall give prompt notice of the Claim to CFN; however, 

any delay in giving notice will not excuse CFN’s obligations under this section, 

except to the extent Customer has been prejudiced by the delay. Customer shall 

cooperate with CFN in the defense of the Claim and in any settlement of the 

Claim. 

b. Infringement.    CFN shall defend Customer against any Claim that CFN’s 

manufacture or sale of a Product infringes any patent or copyright of such 

person enforceable in the U.S. or misappropriates any trade secret of such 

person (“Infringement Claim”).  On the occurrence of any Infringement Claim, 

or in the event CFN believes an Infringement Claim is likely, CFN may, at its 

option (i) modify the Product to make it non-infringing, or substitute functionally 

equivalent hardware or software; or (ii) obtain a license to the applicable third-

party intellectual property rights; or (iii) refund the purchase price of the Product 

in question. 

CFN will have no obligation or liability to the extent the Infringement Claim arises 

from: (i) the combination or use of the Product with products, services, 

hardware, software, technology, data or other materials not furnished or 

approved by CFN; (ii) modification of the Product, except as expressly 

authorized by CFN in writing; or (iii) use of the Product other than in accordance 

with the Documentation, in violation of the Customer Order or applicable laws, 

or after notice from CFN that Customer should cease use of the Product.  The 

obligations set forth in this section will constitute CFN’s entire liability and 

Customer’s sole remedy for any actual or alleged Infringement Claim. 

c. NO PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR: (I) ANY 

INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE 

DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF THE NATURE OF THE CLAIM (WHETHER IN 

CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE), EVEN IF SUCH 

PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES; 

(II) ANY DAMAGES FOR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION; OR (III) 

REPROCUREMENT COSTS, LOSS OF PROFITS, INCOME, BUSINESS, 

USE, DATA OR GOODWILL.  Other than with respect to payment claims, and 

subject to the exceptions in 14(d) below, the total liability of a Party in 

connection with any matter arising from or relating to a Customer Order 

(whether in contract, tort, negligence or otherwise) will be limited to the amount 

of all fees paid or to be paid by Customer under the Customer Order(s) to which 

the matter relates during the 12 month period immediately preceding the event 

giving rise to such liability. 

d. The exclusions set forth in 14(c) will apply to the fullest extent permitted by 

applicable laws, but will not apply to any liability arising from: (i) indemnification 

obligations hereunder related to death or bodily injury; (ii) a Party’s fraud, gross 

negligence or willful misconduct; and (iii) breaches of confidentiality obligations.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the total aggregate liability of CFN for claims 

arising out of CFN’s failure to comply with its obligations of confidentiality and 

data security under this Agreement (other than with respect to claims arising 

from CFN’s gross negligence or willful misconduct, for which CFN’s liability will 

be uncapped), shall be limited to $200,000. 

15. Business Associate Terms. 

a. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate.  In the 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement, CFN will receive PHI from 

or on behalf of Customer. CFN shall not use or further disclose PHI except:  

(i) Business associate may use or disclose protected health information as 

necessary to perform the services set forth in this Agreement; or  

(ii) Business associate may Use protected health information for the proper 

management and administration of the business associate or to carry out the 

legal responsibilities of the business associate, provided the disclosures are 

required by law, or business associate obtains reasonable assurances from 

the person to whom the information is disclosed that the information will 

remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by law or 

for the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person 

notifies business associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the 

confidentiality of the information has been breached; or 

(iii) Business Associate may use or disclose PHI as otherwise expressly 

permitted in writing by Covered Entity; or 

(iv) Solely to the extent permitted by 45 C.F.R. §164.514, Business Associate 

shall de-identify PHI and use such de-identified PHI only as permitted by law 

and in a manner that would not violate the HIPAA Rules and this Agreement; 

or 

(v)  If CFN provides data aggregation services to Customer, CFN may use 

PHI to provide Data Aggregation services to Customer as permitted by the 

HIPAA Rules.    

b. Minimum Necessary.  In conducting functions and/or activities under this 

Agreement that involve the use and/or disclosure of PHI, CFN shall make 

reasonable efforts to limit the use and/or disclosure of PHI to the minimum 

amount of information necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the 

use or disclosure.  

c. Protection of PHI.  CFN shall use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or 

disclosure of PHI other than as permitted by this Agreement.   

d. Reporting.  CFN shall promptly and without undue delay report to Customer 

any Breach, Security Incident, or improper Use or Disclosure of PHI  as 

required by the HIPAA Rules and applicable State law. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, no report shall be required for unsuccessful attempts at unauthorized 

Access, Use, Disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI or unsuccessful 

attempts at interference with systems operations in an information system, 

which shall include, but not be limited to, pings and other broadcast attacks on 

Business Associate's firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on attempts, 

denials of service and any combination of the above with respect to Business 

Associate’s information systems, unless such incident appears to be an 

attempt to obtain unauthorized access, use or disclosure of Covered Entity’s 

electronic PHI.   

e. Mitigation.  CFN shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect 

that is known to CFN of a use or disclosure of PHI by CFN in violation of this 

Agreement.  

f. Subcontractors and Agents.  CFN agrees to ensure that any subcontractors 

and agents to whom it provides PHI received from, or created, or received by, 

CFN on behalf of Customer agree in writing to the same restrictions and 

conditions set forth in the business associate provisions of the HIPAA Rules 

that apply through this Agreement to CFN with respect to such information in 

accordance with such rules.  

g. Accounting to HHS.  CFN shall make its internal practices, books, and records 

relating to the use and disclosure of PHI available to the Secretary of Health 

and Human Services (the “Secretary”), in a time and manner designated by 

Customer or the Secretary, for the purpose of the Secretary determining 

Customer’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.  

h. Documentation of Disclosures.  CFN shall document and maintain 

documentation of such disclosures of PHI and information related to such 

disclosures as would be required for Customer to respond to a request by an 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



 

Ver. 20220622 Page 4 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 

Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with HIPAA 

Rules.  

i. Accounting of Disclosures.  If CFN receives a request from an individual 

pursuant to the HIPAA Rules for an accounting of Customer’s disclosures of the 

individual’s PHI and, in the course of attempting to satisfy the individual’s 

request, Customer provides a written request to CFN, then Business Associate 

shall promptly provide Customer the information required to be included in an 

accounting pursuant to applicable HIPAA Rules for CFN’s disclosures of PHI 

that are subject to an accounting pursuant to HIPAA Rules.  

j. Access and Designated Record Set.   To the extent CFN maintains PHI in a 

“Designated Record Set,” as that term is defined in the HIPAA Rules, CFN 

agrees to provide access, at the request of Customer, and in a reasonable time 

and manner, to PHI in a Designated Record Set to Customer in order for 

Customer to meet the requirements under the HIPAA Rules.  If applicable, CFN 

agrees to make any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set that 

Customer directs or agrees to pursuant to HIPAA Rules at the request of 

Customer and in a reasonable time and manner.  

k. To the extent the Business Associate is to carry out one or more of Covered 

Entity's obligations(s) under the HIPAA Rules, it will comply with the 

requirements that apply to the Covered Entity in the performance of such 

obligation(s). 

l. Return or Destruction of PHI.  Upon termination of this Agreement for any 

reason, CFN shall either return or destroy, if feasible, all PHI received from 

Customer, or created, maintained or received by CFN on behalf of Customer.  

This provision shall apply to all such PHI in the possession of subcontractors or 

agents of CFN.  CFN shall retain no copies of the PHI.  If CFN determines that 

returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, then CFN shall provide to Customer 

notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. CFN 

shall extend the protections of this Section to such PHI and limit further uses 

and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that makes the return or 

destruction infeasible, for so long as CFN maintains the PHI.  

m. Electronic PHI Safeguards.   To the extent CFN creates, receives, maintains 

or transmits Electronic PHI on behalf of Customer, CFN shall comply with the 

applicable HIPAA Rules and shall implement Administrative, Physical and 

Technical Safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 

confidentiality, integrity and availability of Electronic PHI, in accordance with the 

applicable HIPAA Rules, and ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, 

that creates, receives, maintains or transmits Electronic PHI on CFN’s behalf 

will (i) implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect Electronic 

PHI; and (ii) comply with any applicable requirement of the applicable HIPAA 

Rules.   

n. Conformance with Modification of HIPAA Rules or Regulations.  If an 

amendment to or modification of HIPAA Rules, requires modification of this 

Section to permit Customer or CFN to remain in compliance during the term of 

this Agreement, then CFN and Customer shall enter into good faith negotiations 

to amend this Section to conform to any change required by such amendment 

or modification.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Customer and CFN have not 

amended this Agreement to address a law or final regulation that becomes 

effective after the Effective Date and that is applicable to this Agreement, then 

upon the effective date of such law or regulation (or any portion thereof) this 

Agreement shall be amended automatically and deemed to incorporate such 

new or revised provisions as are necessary for this Agreement to be consistent 

with such law or regulation and for Customer and CFN to be and remain in 

compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.    

o. Survival.  The obligations of CFN pursuant to this Section shall survive the 

termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement.  

16. Certain Defined Terms. 

a. “Acceptance” means the completion of Implementation Services or, if no 

Implementation Services are provided, the delivery of the Products or, as 

applicable, the protocols, keys or access codes needed to access and use the 

Products. 

b. “CFN Data” means data that is part of a Product or Service and data derived 

from that data. and includes event data, operational data, device health data, 

database structure, and machine metrics of or relating to a Product or Service. 

c. “Confidential Information” means any confidential or proprietary information 

of a Party, however disclosed or recorded that is disclosed in connection with 

the Customer Order (including, with respect to Customer, Customer Data, and, 

with respect to CFN, CFN Data). 

d. “Customer Data” means data that is created by Customer, or as between 

Customer and CFN, originates with Customer and is stored, transmitted to, or 

accessed by CFN through a Product, as applicable.  For avoidance of doubt, 

Customer Data includes PHI and personally identifiable information of any 

member of Customer’s workforce and excludes CFN Data. 

e. “Term” means the period of time specified in a Customer Order during which 

Customer is entitled to access and use a Product.   

f. “Implementation Services” means the professional services and training 

provided by CFN to assist Customer in the implementation of a Product. 

a.  “IP” means all (a) processes, methodologies, procedures and trade secrets, 

algorithms, apparatus, circuit designs and assemblies, scripts, databases, data 

collections, data models, designs, diagrams, formulae, ideas and inventions 

(whether or not patentable or reduced to practice), know-how, materials, 

marketing and development plans, methods, models, network configurations 

and architectures, protocols, schematics, specifications, subroutines, 

techniques, tools, uniform resource identifiers, user interfaces, web sites and 

domain names, (b) trademark, service mark, logos, or trade dress, (c) Software, 

tools and machine-readable texts and files, and (d) copyrights, literary work or 

other work of authorship, including documentation, reports, manuals, training 

materials, artwork, drawings, fonts, photographs, charts and graphics. 

b. “PHI” means “protected health information” as defined in 45 CFR §160.103, of 

any patient of Customer. 

c. “HIPAA Rules” means Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and regulations promulgated thereunder, and the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act (Division A, Title XIII and Division B, Title IV, of 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5).   

d. “Update” means software to update, patch, fix, enhance or otherwise modify 

an already existing feature for the purposes of maintaining current functionality 

of the Equipment or Software that is a less substantial change than an 

Upgrade, as designated by CFN in its sole discretion and made generally 

available to its customers. 

e. “Upgrade” means any new functionality to either Software or Equipment that 

does not exist in the current configuration and which requires additional 

payment by the Customer. “Functionality” is defined as a combined set of 

features that each CFN product can perform that is a more substantial change 

than an Update, as designated by CFN in its sole discretion and made generally 

available to its customers. 

f. “Term Begin Date” means the first day of the month following Acceptance, or 

a date otherwise mutually agreed upon by the parties in writing. 

17. Miscellaneous.   

a. Each Party hereby represents that it shall comply with applicable laws. 

b. All claims, controversies or disputes arising out of or relating to the Agreement 

or a Customer Order, the relationship of the parties and/or the interpretation 

and enforcement of their respective rights and obligations herein, shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, except for any choice or conflict 

of law principles. 

c. Either Party may assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Agreement without the 

prior consent of the other Party (a) to an Affiliate or (b) in connection with a sale 

or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of such Party related to the 

subject matter described therein. 

d. Either Party’s failure to insist upon performance of any provision of the 

Agreement is not a waiver of any of its rights under the Agreement.  No waiver 

under the Agreement will be valid or binding unless set forth in a writing signed 

by the Party against which enforcement of the waiver is sought.  The waiver 

will constitute a waiver only with respect to the specific matter described in the 

waiver and will not impair the rights of the Party granting the waiver in any other 

respect or at any other time.  No delay or forbearance by either Party in 

exercising any right under the Agreement will be deemed a waiver of that right. 

e. If any provision of the Agreement should for any reason be held invalid, 

unenforceable or contrary to public policy, the remainder of the Agreement shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

f. The Agreement together with any Customer Orders (i) are the entire agreement 

between the parties and supersedes any other oral or written communications, 

advertisements or understandings with respect to the subject matter hereunder 

g. No amendment of the Agreement will be valid unless such amendment is made 

in writing and is signed by authorized representatives of CFN and the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



 

Ver. 20220622 Page 5 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 

applicable Customer. 

 

 

h. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to place the parties in the 

relationship of partners, joint ventures, principal and agent, or employer and 

employee.  Neither Party may assume, create, or incur any liability or obligation 

in the name of or on behalf of the other Party by virtue of the Agreement.  Each 

Party shall bear the costs of performance of its obligations under the 

Agreement. 

i. The Parties agree that there are no third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement, 

except Customer’s affiliates to the extent they execute a Customer Order. 

 

[End of document]. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Each person signing below represents that he/she intends to, has the authority to, and hereby binds his/her respective party to this Agreement and any Quote/Customer Order 
attached. 

 

 

 
CUSTOMER 
 
Customer By:   

CAREFUSION SOLUTIONS, LLC 
 
CFN By:   

Customer Print:        CFN Print:        

Customer Title:        CFN Title:        

Date:   Effective Date:   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188

I acknowledge that BD’s standard lead time to first site installation is 90 days.

Select which of the following apply:

PO not Required:  If a Purchase Order is not a customer requirement in order to remit payments, customer acknowledges that
invoices are due upon receipt and payments will not be withheld or delayed in the event BD is not provided a PO subsequent to
execution of this Customer Order.

Acknowledgements:

Please check if a purchase order is required for payment of the financial obligation proposed under this Customer Order

Rental/Purchase PO#:

Support PO#:

By signing these Terms and Conditions, I accept the Customer Order(s), Attachment(s) and Terms
and Conditions.

Marilyn Mann

HHS Director



 

Ver. 20220622 Page 6 of 6 

BD PYXIS™ MEDBANK – STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

D TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 
SCHEDULE A – SMS AND IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES DESCRIPTION 

 

1. Support and Maintenance Service Description. 

a. Proper Performance and Updates.  To the extent you have purchased Support and Maintenance Services (“SMS”) in a Customer Order, we will provide, during the purchased support 

term, (i) SMS that is required to keep the Product functioning substantially in accordance with the user, specifications or product guides provided in the Documentation “Proper 

Performance”), and (ii) Updates.  Upon release we will coordinate delivery of the Update (via the Internet) and assist you with installation, using reasonable efforts to minimize disruption to 

your use of MedBank Software.  Updates will be provided with scripts and programs that install complete, working versions of the applicable Updates. 

b. Customer Support.  Customer Support is available by phone at 1.866.930.9251 24/7/365 and may also be requested online at MedbankSupport@BD.com, via the support chat feature on 

its myQlink.net website. 

c. Exclusions.  SMS is not provided if: (i) you are not in compliance with your obligations under the Agreement; (ii) use, operation, repair or maintenance of the Products are not in compliance 

with the manufacturer’s terms and conditions of use in the Documentation; (iii) a Product is being used in combination with any item with which such Product is not intended to be operated 

or used, (iv) a Product has been subject to abnormal physical or electrical stress; (v) the Product has been modified or altered other than by CareFusion or as permitted by CareFusion in 

writing, (vi) the performance issue is caused by your act, omission, negligence, Loss or damage in relation to a Product, (vii) you fail to follow the recommended operating environment for 

the Product, (viii) the problem is with third party software or hardware not licensed through or sold by CFN, (ix) you have not installed and implemented all released Updates; or (x) you 

moved or relocated the Product or assigned any right or interest in the Product without our advance written consent.  Any service not specifically identified herein as a component of SMS 

may be provided by us upon or provision of an estimate and your issuance of a PO.   

d. Subcontractor.  All or a portion of SMS may be provided by subcontractors, provided that we shall remain obligated to the terms herein to ensure quality performance of Support Services 

in accordance with the terms herein. 

2. Implementation Services Description. 

a. Implementation Services. If purchased in a Customer Order, we will provide implementation services in accordance with our standard service offerings and implementation timeline for the 

type of purchased services, “Concierge” or “Guided”, and Acceptance will be deemed to occur upon completion of services.   

b. Self-Install.  Except for initial Customer Orders, you may elect to self-install under a subsequent Customer Order if you designate one or more employees (each, a “Customer 

Implementation Specialist”) who satisfactorily completes “train the trainer” training provided by our personnel during implementation of BD Pyxis MedBank Products under a prior Customer 

Order.  If you elect to self-install in a Customer Order, then your Customer Implementation Specialist(s) shall be responsible for implementing installation of Products under such Customer 

Order.  

c. Per Diem Services. If you request any implementation-related or other services which are not included in the Quote/Customer Order, including: (i) on-site implementation services and 

troubleshooting; (ii) any additional implementation- or training-related services provided after Acceptance; or (iii) other services then CareFusion shall use best commercially reasonable 

efforts to provide the Per Diem Service under a separate agreement based on then-current per diem pricing applicable to all customers. 

 

[End of Schedule A] 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



This Customer Order is not valid  until executed by both Customer and CareFusion Solutions, LLC.

SALES ASSOCIATE:Dustin Gunnells
Email: dustin.gunnells@bd.com

Customer Order
Customer Order Date: 11/08/2022

Customer Order : 1000233903

Customer Information

Sold To: Ship To: Bill To

Legal Name: INYO COUNTY JAIL Same as (Circle) Sold To: Ship To:

DBA: INYO COUNTY JAIL INYO COUNTY JAIL

Street Address: 550 S CLAY ST STE S 550 S CLAY ST STE S

City,St.,Zip: INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

Customer No. 10279955 10279955

1. Customer Orders. Effective as of the date of both signatures below (“Effective Date”), this Customer Order is entered by and between CareFusion and Customer as separate 
and distinct agreements (combined for administrative convenience) for: (i) Rental Equipment and/or Software listed in the Product Schedule attached hereto and incorporated 
by this reference (each, a “Product” and, collectively, the “Products”); and (ii) Services applicable to the Products (collectively, the “Customer Orders”). The Customer Orders 
will be governed by the latest Master Agreement and Schedule(s) in effect between the Parties and applicable to the Products and Services (“Master Agreement”).  Any 
reference to a “Rental Term(s)” or “Rental Fee(s)” in relation to Software will alternately refer to “Subscription Term(s)” or “Subscription Fee(s)”, respectively.   
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if applicable to the Products hereunder, any reference to (a) “Master Agreement” will alternately refer to the Master Rental Terms and 
Conditions or Master Support Terms and Conditions and (ii) “Customer Order” will alternately refer to “Rental Agreement” or “Support Agreement.” 
  
2. Configurations.  Pricing set forth on the product schedules attached to these Customer Orders is based on the specific configuration, including type and quantities of 
drawers in the Products, as applicable. Any changes to the products or configurations may result in a change in pricing, subject to the applicable Group Purchasing 
Organization Agreement or other related pricing agreements between the Parties. Customer’s execution of the Equipment Confirmation form shall be confirmation of the 
Customer’s intended final configuration of the Products as Accepted. 
 

Any one-time shipping, implementation or service fees listed on the Product Schedule attached hereto (“One-Time Fees”) will be invoiced on the first day of the month 
following the date the Agreement is signed by both Parties and shall be due and payable net 30 days from the date of the invoice.

Each person signing this document represents that he/she intends to and has the authority to bind his/her respective Party to the Rental  Customer Order and the separate Support Customer Order. 

Copies of this Customer Order will be sent to Ship To signer listed above.  
When complete, additional copies will be sent to the following address:

Name:

Street Address:

City,St.,Zip:

Will a Purchase Order be required for payment of the financial obligation 
proposed under this Customer Order?(Please Circle) 

Yes No Rental PO#:

Support PO#:

INYO COUNTY JAIL CAREFUSION SOLUTIONS, LLC
ATTN: CONTRACTS, 3750 TORREY VIEW CT, SAN DIEGO, CA 92130         
888.876.4287

    

Sign: Sign:

Print: Print:

Title: Date: Title: Date:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



Jan 05, 2023Date:CareFusion Use Only 2Page: 2/

Customer Initials: 

Sold To: INYO COUNTY JAIL  #10279955
Ship To: INYO COUNTY JAIL  #10279955

GPO: NOT APPLICABLE

Customer Order
Product Schedule

1000233903Customer Order :

Support Level: Basic / Standard 24h

Rental and Support Term: 60 months

The fees stated in this Customer Order are offered by CareFusion for acceptance by the Customer for a period expiring on: 02/06/2023
New Products Purchase Terms Rental Terms Support Terms

      Purchase Fees Monthly Rental Fees Monthly Support Fee

Proposed 
Location

Product 
ID Product Name Tr.

Type QTY List Net Extended List Net Extended List Net Extended

1139-00 MEDFLEX 
2.0,1000,6 NEW 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 755.00 $ 755.00 $ 755.00 $ 41.00 $ 41.00 $ 41.00

139077-01
BD Pyxis MedBank 
Facility Concierge 
Imp

NEW 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 48.00 $ 48.00 $ 48.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

139406-01
BD Pyxis MedBank 
Shipping Fee - X 
Large

NEW 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 27.00 $ 27.00 $ 27.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

139090-01 BD Pyxis MedBank  
Facility Software SWN 1 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 102.00 $ 102.00 $ 102.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Totals: $ 0.00 $ 932.00 $ 41.00

Total Purchase Fees $ 0.00

Total Monthly Rental Fees $ 932.00

Total Monthly Support Fees $ 41.00

All fees mentioned are in USD

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188



1/06 

Sole Source Justification Form 
 
Sole Source: A unique service or item that is only available from a single source or one source is 
the only practical way to respond to overriding circumstances.  The lack of planning is not an 
overriding circumstance. 
 
This is a sole source because:  

 There is only one known source because: 
 This is a sole provider of a licensed, copyrighted, or patented good or service. 
 This is a sole provider of items compatible with existing equipment or systems. 
 This is a sole provider of factory-authorized warranty service. 
 This is a sole provider of goods or services that perform the intended function or 

meet the specialized needs of the Authority (Please detail in an attachment). 
 One source is the only practical way to respond to overriding circumstances that 

make compliance with competitive procedures under the Authority’s policies not in 
the best interest of the Authority (Please detail in an attachment). 

 
Please attach a memorandum to explain why the goods or services are not available 
elsewhere, include names and phone numbers of firms contacted. 

• Other brands/manufacturers considered 

• Other suppliers considered 

• Other (i.e., emergency) 

Describe the item or service, its function and the total cost estimate (if practical, separate 
labor and materials) in the space below or in a separate attached label: Description of 
Item or Service. 
 
See attached Procurement Schedule and BD Pyxis MedBank Solution documents 

DEPARTMENT CONTACT PERSON  & TITLE 
Anna Scott, HHS Assistant Director 

DEPARTMENT NAME 
Health and Human Services 

PHONE 
760-873-3271 

REQUESTED SUPPLIER/CONSULTANT NAME 
CareFusion Solutions, LLC 

SUPPLIER CONTACT PERSON 
Dustin Gunnells 

SUPPLIER ADDRESS 
3750 TORREY VIEW CT, SAN DIEGO, CA 92130 
888.876.4287 
 

SUPPLIER CONTACT’S PHONE NUMBER 
c:225-362-0262 
e:Dustin.gunnells@bd.com 
 

By signing below, Requestor acknowledges that he/she has read and understands the Authority’s 
policy on sole source procurements. 
 

    
 Signature of Requestor Date 
 
    
          President/CEO Approval Date 

1/9/23 



Sole Source Justification Form Attachment

HHS – Public Health& Prevention 

This is a sole provider of goods and services that meet the specialized needs of Inyo County. 
BD Pyxis MedBank is the only vendor offering a product, software, and support services that 

address the medication management need within the Inyo County Correctional Facility – Health 

Services. The Health and Human Services, Public Health & Prevention and Behavioral Health 
Division, in conjunction with the Inyo County Sherriff Department, is interested in leasing 

medication management equipment and utilizing the software and services included in the BD 

Pyxis MedBank – Lease – Standard Terms and Conditions to ensure safe and trackable 

medication storage and handling within the correctional setting in accordance with healthcare 
and in-custody requirements.  

The only other company that offers an automated medication dispensing cabinet, Omnicell, 

does not have a product and software system that is usable in a correctional setting. Therefore, 
they are not able to support our medication management needs and failed to provide a quote.



This Customer Order is not valid  until executed by both Customer and CareFusion Solutions, LLC.

SALES ASSOCIATE:Dustin Gunnells
Email: dustin.gunnells@bd.com

Customer Order
Customer Order Date: 11/08/2022

Customer Order : 1000233903

Customer Information

Sold To: Ship To: Bill To

Legal Name: INYO COUNTY JAIL Same as (Circle) Sold To: Ship To:

DBA: INYO COUNTY JAIL INYO COUNTY JAIL

Street Address: 550 S CLAY ST STE S 550 S CLAY ST STE S

City,St.,Zip: INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526

Customer No. 10279955 10279955

1. Customer Orders. Effective as of the date of both signatures below (“Effective Date”), this Customer Order is entered by and between CareFusion and Customer as separate 
and distinct agreements (combined for administrative convenience) for: (i) Rental Equipment and/or Software listed in the Product Schedule attached hereto and incorporated 
by this reference (each, a “Product” and, collectively, the “Products”); and (ii) Services applicable to the Products (collectively, the “Customer Orders”). The Customer Orders 
will be governed by the latest Master Agreement and Schedule(s) in effect between the Parties and applicable to the Products and Services (“Master Agreement”).  Any 
reference to a “Rental Term(s)” or “Rental Fee(s)” in relation to Software will alternately refer to “Subscription Term(s)” or “Subscription Fee(s)”, respectively.   
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if applicable to the Products hereunder, any reference to (a) “Master Agreement” will alternately refer to the Master Rental Terms and 
Conditions or Master Support Terms and Conditions and (ii) “Customer Order” will alternately refer to “Rental Agreement” or “Support Agreement.” 
  
2. Configurations.  Pricing set forth on the product schedules attached to these Customer Orders is based on the specific configuration, including type and quantities of 
drawers in the Products, as applicable. Any changes to the products or configurations may result in a change in pricing, subject to the applicable Group Purchasing 
Organization Agreement or other related pricing agreements between the Parties. Customer’s execution of the Equipment Confirmation form shall be confirmation of the 
Customer’s intended final configuration of the Products as Accepted. 
 

Any one-time shipping, implementation or service fees listed on the Product Schedule attached hereto (“One-Time Fees”) will be invoiced on the first day of the month 
following the date the Agreement is signed by both Parties and shall be due and payable net 30 days from the date of the invoice.

Each person signing this document represents that he/she intends to and has the authority to bind his/her respective Party to the Rental  Customer Order and the separate Support Customer Order. 

Copies of this Customer Order will be sent to Ship To signer listed above.  
When complete, additional copies will be sent to the following address:

Name:

Street Address:

City,St.,Zip:

Will a Purchase Order be required for payment of the financial obligation 
proposed under this Customer Order?(Please Circle) 

Yes No Rental PO#:

Support PO#:

INYO COUNTY JAIL CAREFUSION SOLUTIONS, LLC
ATTN: CONTRACTS, 3750 TORREY VIEW CT, SAN DIEGO, CA 92130         
888.876.4287

    

Sign: Sign:

Print: Print:

Title: Date: Title: Date:

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2BEBBAAA-1C85-468F-B98C-FD888F9E4188

















 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3414  

 

Amendment No. 1 to American Refuse, Inc. Contract  
Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Cap Aubrey, Public Works Deputy Director, Solid 
Waste 

Michael Errante, Public Works Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and America 
Refuse, of Wasco, CA increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $185,000 for waste tire 
hauling and recycling, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On April 20, 2021, your Board approved a three-year agreement with American Refuse to provide for tire 
hauling and recycling services. Tires cannot be disposed of at the landfill and must be transported to an 
approved recycling facility. Significantly more tires have been removed than originally anticipated from 
the Bishop landfill. A backlog still exists and therefore it is necessary to increase the "not to exceed" 
figure in the contract to allow American Refuse to continue to remove tires. 
 
The attached amendment increases the "not to exceed" amount by $50,000. It is expected that this 
amount will allow for removal of tires through June 30, 2024 when the current contract expires. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Solid Waste Budget Unit 045700 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
2022-2023 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
2023-2024 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

If the amendment is not approved by your Board, tires will not be removed from the landfill.  The County 
will be in violation of CalRecycle regulations regarding the number of tires allowed on landfill grounds. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. American Refuse Contract Amendment 
  
APPROVALS: 
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 1/17/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/18/2023 
Teresa Elliott Approved - 1/19/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/23/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/23/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/23/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/23/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3461  

 

Waiver of Fees Consideration for Lower Owens River 
Clean-Up Event 

Public Works - Recycling & Waste Management 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Cap Aubrey, Public Works Deputy Director, Solid 
Waste 

Michael Errante, Public Works Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board consider approval of waiver of solid waste disposal and gate fees up to $100 for trash 
and litter removed at the Lower Owens River Clean event, April 22, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
As a community service, the California Waterfowl Association is holding a clean-up event at the Lower 
Owens River on Saturday, April 22, 2023. The organization has requested a waiver of solid waste 
disposal and gate fees for waste collected at the event. The California Waterfowl Association will be 
separating items that can be recycled to help Inyo County meet our recycling goals, and bringing only 
trash collected from the Owens River clean-up to the Bishop-Sunland Landfill. Waste attributable to the 
clean-up will be tracked by the Landfill Gate Attendant. This is the ninth year of the event. Your Board 
has waived fees for the past eight years and the lost revenue was minimal. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 045700 

Budgeted?  Object Code  
Recurrence   
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not waive these fees. The cost will then be borne by the event’s organizers. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 1/24/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 1/24/2023 
Teresa Elliott Approved - 1/24/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 1/24/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 1/24/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 1/24/2023 
Michael Errante Final Approval - 1/25/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3499  

 

Amendment No. 4 to Fountainhead Consulting 
Agreement 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the consulting agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by $137,327.86 to an 
amount not to exceed $808,366.97 and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and 
county emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a 
significantly larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works has secured a Construction 
Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site inspections, monitoring, and 
contractor management. 
 
North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can 
perform inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead 
Consultant Corporation is contracted with Inyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances 
beyond the control of the consultant, the project schedule has been extended. Additionally, the California 
Department of Fish & Wildlife is now requiring a biological monitor on-site through the completion of the 
project. The biological monitor is required on-site one day per week, now that the creek diversion has 
been removed. 
 
Contract Summary: 
Original Contract    $339,928.37 
Amendment #1      $121,829.20 
Amendment #2      Time Extension Only 
Amendment #3      $209,281.54 
Amendment #4      $137,327.86 
__________________________ 
Total                       $808,366.97 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 034600 

Budgeted? Yes  (adjustment with Mid-Year) Object Code 5717 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
The FY 22-23 budget was increased by $100,000 in December to cover the projected remaining costs 
for Fountainhead Consulting. Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal dated 1-29-23 from Fountaihead requests 
$137,327.86, a $37,327.86 increase over previous mid-year adjustment.  This adjustment is being 
handled with mid-year. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts - None 
 
Additional Information 
California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair Act (RMRA) (25%). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The board could choose not to approve the contract amendment. However, this would prevent the 
project from being completed. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 4  
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract  
3. Fountainhead Contract Amendment No. 1  
4. Fountainhead Amendment No. 2  
5. Fountainhead Amendment No. 3  
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/8/2023 
Greg Waters Approved - 2/8/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 2/8/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 2/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/8/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/8/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/16/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supetuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, Ihat at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h dayof July 2020an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Gritfiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2020
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

ILITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this /h
Day of JULY, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO:

Other: PublicWork
DATE: July 7, 2020

By:

&A$*



1+- l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIREI)
MEETING: Ju\y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between Inyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 , 2020 through December 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/J USTI FICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state(201 7-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
fonruard.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75Yo

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/o by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
Michael Errante

Createdilnitiated - 612912020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Final Approval - 613012020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF construction Nranasement c ERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
Construction Management Of Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by thg Diroctor of Public Works,

Michael Ermnte Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Aftachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement Shall be fr6m July 7th, 2020 tO December 31th, 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Page 1 ol 12

10102017



Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the
Director of Public Works, Michael Errante Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Aftachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment G, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the Coung
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ ssg,sze.gz (initialterm) $ (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of $ 33e,e2s.37 Dol lars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 2 ol 12

(4)

101020't7



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Aftachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

,IO. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in wtrole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Gounty.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 of 12

10102017



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

{3. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 5 of 12

10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon availabb funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
tvto (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102017



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Public Works Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer Q

Consultant:
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation Name

Address
City and State

2400 E. Katella, Suite 800

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenruise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilt ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

PageT of12

lndependence, CA

Anaheim, CA 92806

10102017



AGREEMENT EETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fdslrinlsrd c8ldllng Colpordlm

FOR THE PROVISION OF Cdnatfldhn ilmrs.mrd SERV|CES

IN WITNESS} THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS ANO SEALS THIS

'h DAY OF mix)

couNTYoqNYo

By;

lvan

Dated: Dared; Aln lUn

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND LEGALITY:

&^ra U^*f
County Counsal

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

( '*' Vtatrth/a&.
County Audltoi

APPROVEDAS

TO

Counly of lnyo Slardard Conlracl - No. 156
(lndepcndent Conrultanl - Profeerlonal)

Pagr I of 12

10102017



ATTAGHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020

SCOPE OF WORK:

December 31,2021

SERVICES

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page I of 12

10102017



Inyo County Public Works
Page 7 of16 N o r th R o u n d n r, 

", 
* 

" "l';ol,itntfil ; ;:::;::t
business relationship with the construction contractor(sJ who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts ofinterest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work, The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interest.

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest. The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract.

Some examples of conflict of interest are the following:
. Certified Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[sJ from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identified.

a

Scone of Work
The scope ofwork defined below is based on the County's current understanding ofthe work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identiSz any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this S0W.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
o Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
o Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
o Pre-Construction/Kick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
o Verify all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
o Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o Identifli inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required (i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule (to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
o Schedule, lead, and attend weekly (or as needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



Inyo County Public Works
Page I of16 N o rth R o u n d u 

" 
u 
", 

* 
" "fTlii:{il ; ;::,:;::,

a

Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspections/testing
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittal/RFI responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
I Track Contractor days
. Track Contractor working hours including employee names
. Subs on site

' Major equipment on site and status
. Description of work completed and task completion status (estimatedo/o of total)
. Weather
I Catalog ofstop-work and causes
r Any QA/QC work performed including any test/inspection results, pass/fail status

of test/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record of all as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Veri$r material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

Provide structural inspection when required
Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
o Project Closeout Tasks (Following substantial completion of workJ

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-offfrom outside agencies confirmingthat restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

o Generate Final Project Reportto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activities [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



lnyo County Public Works
Page 9 of 16 N o r th Ro un d n r, 

", 
*"'x?iiitlil ; ;:::;::;

o Daily Reports
o Catalog ofall as-built changes
o Summary /catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplifu the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

l. IntroductoryLetter

The introductory (or transmittal) letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independenc e, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter.

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) projects within the
past five (5J years which include the following information:

7. Contracting agency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4. Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. Project Description
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FoR THE pRovtstoN gp Construction Management SERVIGES

TERM

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 10 of 12

10102017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exnrsrr 10-Hl Cosr PRoposal page I or3

COST-PLUS-FIXED FEf, OR LUMP SUM 0RFIRM FXED PRICE coNTRAcTs

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SruDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are NotAllowed E Prime Consultant ! Subconsultant ! 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Corooration

Proj ectNo.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612020

DIRECT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: q.0q96_ ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)l
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (0]

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)l

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

124,575.36

$ 119,784.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosrs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TorAL FxED FEE [(c) + (i)] x fixed fee 5.00% l

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE $ 12,217.97

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ITEMIZE additional if

est

l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: 7T Cnner rttina
Subconsultant Farthsnectivce
Subconsultant 3: Jericho
Subconsultant 4: Sierra ical Services

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS TNCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

rorAl COST [(c) + 0) + (k) + (n)]

$nnn

$ 42,863.04
$ 8,436.00

$ 18,500.00

$ 13,552.00

$ 83.35'1.04

!R 8? ?4{ n1

$ 339,928.37
NOTES:
l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with trlr,o asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. lndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with ttre

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognnant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation @age2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2Q20

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourlv Rate Total

Project Manager/Resident Eng.

Structuros Representative

lnspector/Offie Engineer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Descrintion of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost I Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.00
Eouioment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees $oon
Plan Sheets $ 0.00



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHelr 10-H1 Cosr Pnoposnl pase 2 or3

Cosr-Plus-Frxeo Fee oR Lulup Sunr oR Frnu Frxeo PncE CoNrRlcrs
(CALcuLATrorus ro R Ar.rrr cr nATED SRlRnv I rucnrnsrs)

1 . Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250 000.00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+ 2o/o

+ 2o/o

+ 2a/o

+ 2o/o

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal* 5000 =

" 5000 =" 5000 =* 5000 =' 5000 =Total =

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

" ,,1000

* 2000* 750* 700
" 500

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$s0.00

5 Year
Contract
Duration

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTES:

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51 00
$52.02
$53 06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

20.o%
40,0%
15.0%
15.0o/o

10.4o/o

100o/o

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$51.00
$52 02
$53.06
$54 12

$51.00
$52.02
$53 06
$54.12

Cost per
Year

$50 000 00
$102 000 00
$39,015 00
$39,795 30
$27 060.80

$257,871 10
$250,000.00

$7,871.10

2 Avg Hourly Rate
3 Avg Hourly Rate
4 Avg Hourly Rate
5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Transfer to Page 1

ear
ear

Year
Year

3, Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Total Hours per
Year
1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Estimated Hours Year 5

5000

4. Calculate Total Cost including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary
lncrease

1 . This is not the only way to estimate salaty increases. Other methodswill be accepted if they clearlyindicate the %
increase, the # of years ofthe contract, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be pelformed each year,

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not
acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x 2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of 9
January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHIarr 10-H1 Cosr PnOpOSnl pase 3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief thal alldirect costs identified on the
cost proposal(s) in this contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in
accordance wilh the contract terms and the following requirements.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

Terms and conditions of the contract

Title 23 United States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
48 Code of Federal Requlations Pad 31 - Contract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

23 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Managemenl, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service
48 Code of Federal Reoulation s Parl 9904 - Cost Accountino Standards Board (when

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must
be retained in the projectfiles and be in compliance with applicablefederaland state requiremenls.
Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are noi eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvinq:

Nam
lvan Benavidez Jra' Title *: Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signature . lvan Benavidez Jr. 3i1[:l',;3.i:l,y,iT,ff111tf 
.

Date of Certifi caiion (mmlddlyyyy). 0612612020

Email ibenavidez@fountain headcoro.com Phone Number: 909 5122815

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe, Ste 800 Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial officer of ihe consultant's or subconsultani's organization at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has
authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the
contract.

List services the consultant is under

1

2

3

4

5

6
applicable)

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



".SlnS.-
GEOTECHNICAL . GEOLOGY . HYDROGEOLOGY. ENVTRONMENTAL . MINERAIS . MINTNG . MAfiRIALS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Pnofessional
Principd Engineey'Geologist
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Project Engineer/Geologist
Staff Engineer/Geologist
Environmental Geologist
Senior Registered Hydrogeologist
Groundwater Geologist
Expert Mtness/Deposition (4-hr min)

Field Technical
Certiff ed Welding Inspector
Stmcturd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
Sfuctural Steel Inspector
Reinforcing Steel Inspector
EporylGrout Dowel Inspector
Field Englneey'Geologist
Field Groundwater Geologlst
Senior Field Technician
FieldTedrnician
Source Inspector
lJltrasonic Weld Tesdng
Magnetic Particle Testing

Field Technical (Prenailing Wage)
Certifi ed Welding Inspector
Struchrrd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrety'Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
SfucHral Steel Inspector
Relnforring Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel lnspector
Field Engineey'Geologist
Field Groundr,nater Geologist
Senior Field Technician
Field Technician
Source Inspector
Ulfasonic Weld Testing
Magnedc Particle Testing

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRH

SGG

EW

Code
CwI
swl
ccr
SBI

ssI
RSI

EDI

FEG

FGG

SFT

FT

sl
UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

CCIP

SBIP

ssP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

STTP

FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate

$1ss
$13S

$120
$100
$13s
$205
$13s
$2ss

Rate

$125
$1ls
$115
$115
$11s
$10s
$105
$100
$110

$eo
$8s
$90

$1ss
$1ss

Rate

$ros
$1s5
$1s5
$1ss
$1ss
$140
$140
$140
$14s
$rzo
$11s
$120
$205
$2os

Page 1 of3



CEOTECHNICAL . cEoLoGY. HYDROGEOIOGY . BI{VIRONMENTAL . MINBRALS . MINING . MATBRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

.S.(3-!S,

Code
RL

TIWT

MWT
DCR

TWS

WQP

wrs

2019

Rate

$8s
$e0
$6s

LL596
LL'%

Offi ce and l^aboratory Technical
ProJect Coordinadon
Laboratory Technician
Office Supplies/Clerical
OuBide Services

f ob Supplies/Reproduction/Postage

EquinmentRental
Rebar Locator
Ulfasonic Weld Tester
Magnetic Weld tester
Diarnond Coring Rig

Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Water QualityPnobe
Water Level Sounder

Vehide, Travel. and Per Dien
Mileage
Travel Time (200-mile max)
Room and Board
Meds

LABORATORYTESTING

Soils andAgEregates
Pro ctor (Standard Effort-4 ")
Proctor (Modified Effort-4'J
Proctor (Modifi ed Effort-6)
Proctor (Rock Correction)
Proctor (Check Point)
Wet Density fCaltrans Tube)
Durabilitylndex
Hydrometer
Plasticitylndex
Liquid Limit
PlasticLimit
R-Value (CA/NV Untreated)
Sand Equlvalent
SieveAnalysis
Siwe Analysis with 200 Wash
Specific Gravity [Coarse)
Spec{fic Gravity (Flne)

Code
PC

LT
OS

Code Rate

$.70lmi
$8s

L15%
$40

Rate
LLSVI
115%
115%

$80
$80
$s0
$2s

Rate

$225
$230
$2s0
$160
$ss

t22s
$22s
$215
$30s
$165
$16s

LLS%
$11s
$11s
$14s
$135
$13s

MI
TT
RB

M

Code

sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccT
DI
HY

PI

LL
PL

RV

SE

SA

sAtv
sGc

SGF

TestMethod
ASTM D698
ASTM D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTM D4718
ASTM D1557
cr216
ASTM D3744 ICT 229
ASTMD422
cT204
ASIM D4318
ASTMD4318
ASTMD2844/CT301
ASTM D2419 lCT 2t7
ASTM C136ICT 202
ASTM C117

ASTltrcLzT lCT 206
ASTM C128ICT 207

Page 2 of 3



-.S.(f,sR
CEOTECHNICAL. cEO[oGY. HYDRoGBOLOGY r El{VlRotlMBNfAL. MIIfBRAII;. MlNlNG. MATERUUS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
Fracnrred/Crushed Particles
UnitWeight

Shear and Consolidation
Dlrect Shear (Undisturbed 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear (Remolded 3-Point)
Consolidation (8-P oint)
Additional Points

Concrete
Compressive Test Cyltnder
Compressive Test Grout Sample

Compressive Test Grout Prism
Compressfue Test Mortar Cylinder
Compressive Test Shotcrete Core

Oven DryDensity
Equilibrium Density

Asnhaltand Pavement
Asphalt E:rtraction by lgnition
Aggregat€ Gradation of E:rtracted Sample

Moishrre Content of Asphalt
Specific Gravity ofAsphalt Core

Theoretical Max Specific Gravity/Density
SabilometerTest

cv
FP

ct 227
ASTM D5821lCT20S
CTzLZ

TestMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

TestMethod
ASTM C39
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C567
ASTM C557

2019

$10s
$1ss
$10s

Rate

$215
$23s
$355
$ss

IIWA

Code
UST

RST

coN

Code
ccT
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Rate

$43
$43
$os
$43
$+s

$12s
Request

Rate
$250
$115
$10s

$60
$15s

ILSVI

Code
IGN

GES

MC,A

SGAC

RICE

HVEEM

TestMethod
cr 382
cT202
cT370
cT 308
cT 309

cT 365

Page3 of3



47 1st Skeei, Suite 'l

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) 915-5900

Rate Sheet

Personncl Ceteeorr Rrtss : Charges will be made at the Category rates set forth for the time sp€,trt on
project management consultation or meetings related to the projecg field work, re,port preparation and
review, travel time to and from the job site, etc.

Position Title
Asrigned hourly rate for
the duration of the
contract

Principal In Charge s157.00
Seirirr Regulatory Specialist $157.00
ProgramManager $157.00
Senior Ecologist $140.00
CEQANEPA Specialist $140.00
Envircnnental hoject Manager $140.00
Environmental Site Manager $1lm.00
Public Outreach Sp€cidist $140.00
SeniorBiologist $140.00
FAA Licensed UAV Pilot $135.00
Biologist $12E.00
Field Biologist $r r0.00
CADD/GIS Specialist $110.00
ProjectAnalyst $105.00
General Constnrction Monitor $105.00
Adminishative $ 6s.00

Erncnses Billed At Cost: OtherDirectCmt:

Travel (non-automobile)
Lodeing
Auto andTruckRentals
Specialty Equipment and Re,lrtals
Delivery Services
Pdnting @lueprints, Photo Services, Color Copies

Specialty Supplies)

Auto Mileage (atcunentIRS rate)
Agency Permit Fees (At Cos|
Subconsulhts - Cost Plus 3%

Jeric|ro Systems, lnc 2020



Eastcrn Sr"rr. Lt o S.tt "y**
19lanaCtr&

frrrdqL*t,(A%r+6

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2O2A

GateEories Hourlv Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research $100

Draftinq s100



ZJC?IO?:O Hourly Rate

ZT CONSULTING

Zl-C Hourlv Rate 2020

Typeof Servlce Title Qualificatlon Hourly Rate

Prolect Management PM PE Szro

Senior Quality
neer

En$neering Service
Quality

Assistant
neer

PE / COA Sre+.ao

PE S11s.so

EIT 5so.ss

QASoure lnspection
Sewices

Q[ lnspector
cwt, Pcilt/ilt,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT
S109.151,2

CIA Field lnspectaon

SeMces (Prewillngl QA lnspector
cwr, Pcr il./ilr,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT

Per DIR

requirements

1 Minimum four hours charge for inspection services
2 Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

Otier DlrectCostt'+

**r This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through. ZTC does not markup the subs invoices.

TC

654ngde Offie
'-:l'- '- a---.' -r: i - .. :::

9l a::-' :-: ;

1
sdr EeGrdim Offie
:-i; -.--,. :- = i -: -:-

Pl::!-i:-';:-3

lbm Quantity Apprcr UnitGost T@lAmount
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) 5 0.575 / mib TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Gltrans Policy) Approx. 5600 / Trip TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. S1,200/Trip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5350 / Per set TBD

Hoop Testing / Couplers (<S11) TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

High Strength Bolts TBD (ZTC Sub *+*) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Components TBD (ZfC Sub ***) $125 / per sample TBD

Fl 818-359.6857 El info@ztcgrp mwlw.ztcgrp com



ATTAGHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 11 of12

SERVICES

10102017



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVIS toN oF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 12 of '12

SERVICES

10'102017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 I0 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B [hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
Iess than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of Californi4 with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed Ietter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $l-,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyrighg trademarh trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andf or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01,0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verifii that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modif,i these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professiona I Services
Page



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 5'h day of October 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve Amendment
No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands, CA
with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop,
CA with Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation by $121,829.20 to cover a broader scope of
environmental inspections as required by California Department of Fish & Wildlife; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 5th

nay oTOctober, 2021

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk ef the Board of Supenisors

f*t*X U4A+'vr,ta.'-

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Public Works

DATE: October 13, 2021

By:



+rr g

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED

MEET| NG: October 5,2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJECT: Amendment #1 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands,
CA with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop, CA with Eastern
Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
bV $121,829.20 to cover a broader scope of environmental inspections as required by California Department of
Fish & Wildlife; and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, two subconsultants will need to be replaced by two others. Additionally, California Department of Fish
and Wildlife has requested an increase in the environmental monitoring from weekly to daily, resulting in an
increase in the fees required.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation)to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANGING:
Funding will be sourced from California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair
Account (25o/o). The cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (5717).

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 1

2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/lnitiated - 81 17 12021

Approved - Bl1Bl2021
Approved - 811812021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Final Approval - 913012021



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting
Corporation of Anaheim. CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July 7,2020 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
termfrom Julv7.2020 to Decemher 71 2021

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

L Exhibit l0-Hl Cost Proposal to the Contract is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead Consulting Corporation,
removing Sub-Consultants Jericho Systems and Sierra Geotechnical Services and replacing them with Geode
Environmental and Eastern Siena Engineedng, respectively. The total conh'act value is hereby increased by $121,829.20.
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is July 1st, 2021.
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment I

Page I



 

19th October

10-19-2021



I=OUNTAIN ?

September 06,2021

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer

lnyo County Public Works

P.0. Drawer Q

lndependence, CA 93526

RE: TRANSMITTAL LETTER I SUBC0NSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PROPOSAL I CONTRACT N0. 1 56

Dear Mr. Waters,

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation (Fountainhead) is submitting this request to A) substitute two subconsultants originally proposed on

the contract and to B) request an increase to the contract to provide daily biological monitoring due to permit requirements.

A) Fountainhead originally proposed Jericho Systems to perform biological monitoring services per the RFP requirements, unfortunately

Jericho Systems closed (Attachment A) their offices after the contract award. Therefore, Fountainhead is having to replace Jericho

Systems with another biological monitoring service provide. ln addition to substituting Jericho Systems with Geode Environmental we

also have a second subconsultant Siena Geotechnical has developed a conflict of interest due to entering a contraci with Spiess

(Contractor)to perform Quality Control and Assurance Testing. Therefore, we are also requesting to substitute Sierra Geotechnical

with Eastern Sierra Engineering to perform lndependent Assurance testing as the subconsultant owner's representative with

Fountainhead

B) During the RFP process the final permits for the project were not issued therefore Fountainhead negotiated with the County to provide

biological monitoring on a weekly basis for work within the creek. After Fountainheads contract was negotiated ihe final permits were

obtained. The final permits required daily biological monitoring while working in the creek and thereby initiated a cost increase to

provide the level of servlce required in the permit. Fountainhead reviewed several options for a biological monitoring consultant with

reasonable rates and negotiated with Geode Environmental to perform the scope of work (Attachment B). Our proposed contract value

increase of $121 ,829.60 is a Nolto-Exceed value and the hours applied will only be as required by California Department of Fish &

Wildlife. ln doing so we will have the ability to modulate the application of resources to suit the conditions in the field

lf you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact lvan Benavidez at 909.512.2815 or email at

ibenavidez@fountainhead corp.com.

.;'iltc-ft.
Secretary

2400 East Katella Avenue, Suite 800 | Anaheim, California 92806 | 714.627.2518



ATTACHMENT A

@ggggffirunwsrNle'
P0 Box 7061

Redlands, CA S2373

(s09) 915.5900

April12,2021

Dear Valued Client:

Since 2012, Jericho Systems, Inc. (Jericho) has been honored to serve you on your various projects.

However, it is with heavy heart that I am informing you of the closure of Jericho, effective June 30,2021
due to some health issues I have been struggling with for the past few years.

In keeping with my commitment to provide excellent service to our clients, I would like to recommend
the following firms which have been assisting me on many projects behind the scenes for the past few
years. These firms are extremely qualified with biology/ecological assessments for multiple jurisdictions,
jurisdictional waters permitting, endangered species compliance, CEQAA{EPA compliance, and whom I
know will provide excellent service to you:

ELMT Consulting, Inc
Attn: Travis McGill
2201 N. Grand Avenue #10098. Santa Ana, CA 92711-0098
Travismcgill@elmtconsulting.com
(909) 816-1646

Compass Consulting Enterprises, Inc
Attn:Julie Gilbert
PO Box 2627, Avalon, CA 90704
Julie@compass-consultinginc. com
(909) 496-s960
(WBE Cerlified, DBE Certification in process)

In the interim, effective immediately, Jericho's Craig Lawrey will be handling all operational aspects and

will be your primary contact. You may reach Craig at uaig@jericho-systems.com or at (909) 744-0487.
Julie Gilbert, who you may know has worked for Jericho since 2016, will be assisting Craig with contract
management and final billing. For Jericho contract and billing questions, Julie can be reached at
juliegill@outlook.com or at (909) 496-5960.

Again, it has been my honor serving you, and I wish you all the best with your future endeavors

Sincerely,

Shay Lawrey
President, Jericho Systems, Inc.

Craig Lawrey
Secretary/Operations Manager, Jericho Systems, Inc

"Experience the Jericho Difference" jericho-systems.com



Locar Assistance procedures Manuar ilil,nru1:.rlloposed 
changes to

EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHtstt 10-Hl Cosr PnoposAl pagc I or3

Cosr-PLUs-FrxEp FEE oR EUEqU oR F|RM FIXED PRICE coNrRAcrs
(DESICN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed E Prime Consultant ! Subconsultant n 2"d Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consulting Corporation for Geode Environmental

Proj ect No. 48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0910612021

DIRECT LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$'140,329.60

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)] $ 140,329.60

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: qq92!_ ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]

D Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead t(c) x (01

h) General and Adrninistrative (Rate: 8.001!- ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ o.oo

$ 0.00

F'IXED FEE $ o.oo

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE additional if

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS g o no

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant l: 7-7 Consultino $ 0.00

$ 0.00
ffiSubconsultant 2: Earthspectives

Subconsultant 3: Jericho Systems Substitute Geode Environmental

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechnical Substitute Eastern Sierra
rn) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS ($ 18,500.00)

j) TOTAL INDIRECT CoSTs [(e) + (e) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (i)] * fixed fee 0.00% l

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

TOTAL COST [(c) + (l) + (k) + (n)]
NOTES:

1$ 18.500.00)

$ 12'1,829.60

l. Key personnel gq! be marked with an astel'isk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailiug wage requirements must be malked

with two astel'isks (*'r'). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the

consultant's annnal accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page2) must accompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2Q2Q

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Biologist.

lnspector (Credit)

Geode Environmental

S. Valdovinos_20 days Temp. Work

1,240.00

-160.00

$ 130.00

$ 130.44

$ 161,200.00

($ 20,870.40)

$ 0.00

$ o.oo

UDU
Descriotion of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total

Mileaqe Costs $ 0.0c

Fnuinment Rental and Suonlies $ 0.0c

Permit Fees $ 0.0c

Plan Shects $ 0.0c



Local Assistance Procedures Manual Fountainhead Original Agreement EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHlut l0-H1 Cosr PnopoSAL pagc lot3

COST-PLUS-FIXEp FEE, oR .@,ry!! oR FIRM FrxED PRtcE coNrRAcrs

(DESIGN, ENCINEERINC AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed E Prime Consultant fJ Subconsultant n 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Corooration

Project No.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612024

DIRtrCT LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR coSTS l(a) + (b)l $ 1 19,784.00

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0,00% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (DI

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ ITEMIZE

j) TOTAL INDIRECT CosTs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (l)] x fixed f'ee 5'00% I

additional if

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

$ 124,575.36

$ 12,217.97

tnnn

t57Z"J3

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant I : 7T Cnnsrrltinn $ 42.863.04

Subconsultant 2: Earthspectives $ 8,436.00

Subconsultant 3; Jericho Svstems $ 18,500.00

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechn ical Services $ 13,s52.00

m) ToTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS 

-**-l-$35fOLn) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)] $ R3.151 n4

T0TAL COST [(c) t- O + (k) + (n)] $ 339.928_37

NOTES;
L Key personnel 4g! be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marke d

with two asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

Classification/Iitle Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Proisct Manege/R€sident Eng.

Slruclu16s Repres€nialive

lnspsclorloffic€ Engineer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost TotalDcscription ofltem
$ 0.0cMileaqe Costs
$ 0.0cEouioment Rental and Suoolies
$ 0.0cPcrmil Fees
$ 0.0cPlan Sheets

Test



North Round Valley Bridte Proje€t
Resident Engineer Proposed Schedule of Values

Amendment S1

As ot 9l29l2o2l tOt O AM

Remaining

5204,318.34

528,47o.49

Sq,+:s.oo
so.o0

S161,2oo.oo

So.oo

S13,ss2.oo

5415,97G.83

Total To Date

S31,388.s9

S14,392.ss

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

545,78!.t4

lnvoice #2

7-t-21thru 7-31-21

517,327.54

S16,048.90

5t,zts.aq
So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

$o.oo So.oo so.0o
Srl,ssz.oo So.oo So.oo

s451,757.97 : s28,453.60 517,327.54

lnvoice fll
1-l-2L thru 5-30-21

s28,453.60

S15,339.69

S13,113.91
58,436.00

I

s0.00
So.oo 5o.oo

So.oo

Adjusted Total

S235,706.93

Sqz,saz.o+

5161,200.00

Original$, Amendmentfil
t(Subject to Approvall

So.oo

So.oo

i$ra,soo"ooi
S161,2oo.oo

513,ss2.00
S121,829.60

s339,928.37

s256,577.33
s42,853.04
Sa,+ts.oo
18,500.00

So.oo

s13,ss2.oo
So.oo

s339,928.37

S121,829.G0

Consultant

FountainHead Prime

Breakdown:
Fountainhead ln House

ZT Consulting
Eart

Jerigflo Syste,m:. . '

Geode Environmental
Sierra Geotechnical Services

Eastern Sierra Engineering

Total

Delta



In the Rooms of the Board af Supewisars
County of Inyo, State of Calitbrnia

I, I{EREBY CERTIFY, that at a mesting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the ?'h dayofJuly 2A2Aan order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Pubtic Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Gritfiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7,2A2A
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

ILITNESS ny hand and the seal of said Board this lh
Day of JULY, 2A2A

CLINT G. gUII,T'ER
Clerk of the Board af Supervisors

&Ahur

Routing

cc
Purchasing

Parsonnel

Auditor
CAQ:

Other: PublicWorks
DATE: July 7, 2A2A

By,



d+- l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: Ju|y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 202A through December 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTI FICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state(2O17-1 1) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
forward.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75%.

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Gontract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
MarshallRudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
MichaelErrante

Created/lnitiated - 6129 i2A2A

Approved -ABA|202A
Approved -61301202Q
Approved -013012020
Approved -O|3AI2A2A
Final Approval - 61301202Q



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Founlsinhead Consulting Coapof slion

FOR THE PROVISION OF consrructionMsnas€ment SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafier refered to as "County'') has lhe need for the
Conskuclion Of Fountai nhead Consulling Corporalioo

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultrant'), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachmenl A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requesls by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the Dir6clor olPublic Works,

Michael Er€nls Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the Countt's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, aftached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from rurv 7th,2020 to Dccomber 31th. 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B. From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION,

A. GonfEtensation, County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Aftachment A which are perfonned by
Consullant at the County's request.

B. fravel and oer diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultanl incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreemenl.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Pag6 1 of 12

10142017



Consultant shall request approval
by Consultant for approval to
Director cf Pubtlc Wo.ks, Michael Errante

by the Coun$ prior to incuning any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the

Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Aftachment C). Coun$ reserves the right 1o deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No addltional eonslderation. Except as expressly provided in ihis Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disabili$ retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Umit upon amount oavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ 33e,s2s.s7 (initialterm) s (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of $ $s,02s.37 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "conlract limit"). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and nayment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the Coun$'s request. This statement will be submifted to the County not later lhan the fifth
(Sth) day of the monlh. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will ideniify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, Coung will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold Califomia State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that lotal annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred nineg nine dollars
{$1,4ee.oo}.

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibili$ of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultan{s taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

Counly of lnyo Standa.d Cont.act - No. 156
(lndependent Consullant - Professional)

Paga 2 ot 12

(4',)

101A2A17



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a limely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant thal the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with Coun$ to insure that all services and work requested by Coung under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Atlachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required,
Furlher, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits wttich are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where ihere is a dispute
between Consuftant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, Coung reserues the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: !SB;//S S&.Slllllggy.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQU|PMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated lo reimburse or pay Consullant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultanl.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintrain such items wtrile they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Siandard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultsnt - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
Coun$. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authorig to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Gonsultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine lhe method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement,

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected lo County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agenls, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional seruices rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemniff, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate lo the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consuftant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liabilig for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and iis officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance ol the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of {he Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under lhe provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for lhe higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, CounS shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 of 12

1A1A2017



1'. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Recorde. Consullant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreemenl, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years fiom the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fullill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspectlons and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital slatus, age, or sex, Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of lhe Fair Employment and Housing Act
iGovernment Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancelthis Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subconlract this Agreement, or any part of it, without lhe express wriften consent of Qounty.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior wriften consent of County.

15. DEFAULT

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services reguested by
Coun$ in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, Coun$ may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, Coung will pay to Consultanl all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the dale of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default, Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 156

{lndependent Consultanl - Professional)
Page 5 of 12

1A1A2017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and coung laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such infonnation and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, oI protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respecls.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the conlrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Ti0e 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Seclion 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 141A0.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuanl
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the lerm of this Agreemenl, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application lhereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the applicalion
thereol shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of Coun$ to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option lo cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifoing
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
twa (22) (Amendment).

22, AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modifled, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreemenl, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102417



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of eilher parg during the terms of this Agreement, which Consuftant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of Inyo:
Publlc WorlG Department

Address
Ci$ and State

P.O. Orawer O

Consultant:
Founlainhaad Coosulllng Corpon(on Name

Address
City and State

2400 E. K8tella, Sult6 800

lndopendenco, CA

Anahoin, CA 92808

U. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenarise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the Eame be in vwiting executed by the parlies hereto.

ilt ilil

County of lnyo Slandard Coniract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 7 ot 12

1A142A17



AOREETSEIIT EEITI'EEN OOUI{W OF I]iIYO

AI{D Fdrlfdhrd Carrilr Comdbn

FOR THE PROVIEIOiI OF Conanlllllon trlllrtilmrol SERV|CEE

IN WTNES5I THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR FIANDS ANO SEALS IITISn OAYOF ruv . M

ooullwoFtr{Yo

By;

lvan

tlme

Debd: Ilaled: alwlwrt

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND LEGALITY:

&^ad 0^il1,.
county coun8cl

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

&^ertbMla
Courty Andlbr

TO

APPROVEDAS INSURANCE

Counly ot lnyo Slcrdtrd Conlrscl . No. 156
(lndertd.nt Cmrrllant - Probolonal)

Pagc I of 12

101@;01,



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEITIENT BETWEEN COUNTV OF INVO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FORTHE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020 December 31,2421

SCOPEOFWORK:

County of lnyo Slandard Contracl - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - ProGssional)

Page I of t2

SERVICES

10102017



Inyo County Public Warl<s
Page 7 af 16

Request far Proposals
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

business relationship with the construction contractor(sJ who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term oi
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Proiect Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

tn addition tq the disclosures, the Consultanl shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts of interest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work, The submitted documentation will tre used for
determining potential conflicts of interest

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest The Contract Managel' may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract.

Some examples of conflict of interest are the following:
. Certified Materials Tester[sJ or Plant Inspector[sJ from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same proiect,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when snch contractor teams are identified.

Scope of Work
The scope of work defined below is based on the County's current understanding of the work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identiS any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this SOW

Phase I - Pre-Construction
r Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
r Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer olr potential issues
r Pre-ConstructionlKick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
r Verifl, all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
r Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o tdentifu inspectioll and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required {i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitorJ, and schedule [to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
r Schedule, lead, and attend weekly {oras needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
. Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



Inyo CounSt Public Warks
Page I of 16

Requestfor Praposals
Narth Raund Valley Road Bridge Replacement

r Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
. Negotiate and prepare contractchange orders, in coniunction with design engineer ifneeded
r Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, inclirding but not limited to;

o Sfructuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including re$ponses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspectionsftesting
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittal/RFl responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
r Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
r Track Contractor days
r Track Contractor working hours including employee names
r Subs on site
I Major equipment on site and status
r Description of work completed and task completion status (estimated % of totalJ
I Weather
r Catalog ofstop-wor* and causes
r Any QA/QC work performed including any testlinspection results, passffail status

of testfinspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record ofall as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials usedlinstalled
o Ensure and document compliance with all envirollmental permits
o Collect review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

r Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compl iance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o VeriSr material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAPr Provide structural inspection when required

r Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
r Public Outreach

o Provide information to Coungr Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
r Project Closeout Tasks [Following substantial cornpletion of workJ

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-offfrom outside agencies confirmingthat restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

r Generate Final Project Report to include:
o Summary and results of all QAIQC activities [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports



lnya Caunty Public Worl<s

Page 9 of 16
Request for ProPosals

North Raund Valley Road Bridge Replacement

o Daily Reports
o Catalogofall as-builtchanges
o Summarylcatalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of ProposallProposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplift the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content.

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

!, IntroductoryLetter

The introductory {or transmfthll letter shall be addressed to:

lacob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter.

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. ExecutiveSummary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider subrnittals frcm Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
proiect team, Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3] projects within the
past five [5J years which include the following information:

1. Contractingagency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4. Contractamount
5. Funding source
6, Dateofcontract
7. Date of completion
B. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
L0, Project Description
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHiIENT B

AGREEUENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

app Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp Construction Management SERVICES

TERM:

FROM 7th,2024 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes, The Director of Public Works rnay only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County oflnyo Standard Conlrsct - No. 156
(lnd€pendent Coneultant - Profussional)

Page 10 of 12

10102017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Propoeal

ExHmtr 10-H1 Cosr PnopOSAL page I or3

COST-PLUS.FIXED FED OR I-UMP sUM oR FIRM FIXBD PRICE coNTnAcTs
(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRoNMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups arr Not Allowed E Prime Consultant E Subconsultant E 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consulti no Co

Project No. 48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

ProJ€ci MsnEgeriResldent eng.

Slrudu€8 R€pr€s€ntalive

lnspoctor/Off c6 Engln€6r Salvador Valdovinos

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144,00

$ 48,048.00

$ s3,s92.00

$ 0.00

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR coSTS (a) + (b)l
INDIRECTCOSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rater 0.00% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) C) Ovwhead [(c) x (0]

h) General and Administrativc (Rate: 104.q09 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $ 124,575.36

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosTs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

FIXED FEE k) TOTAL FIXED FaE (c) + (i)l x fixsd fse 5.00% l

$ 119,784.00

$ 0.00

$ 119,784.00

$ 124,s75.36

$ 12,217.97

ti o.riu

CONSULTANT'S OTHNR DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE additional if

D TOTAL OTHERDTRECT COSTS (nnn

m) SUBCONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add addittonal pages if necessary)
Subconsultant I i 7T Caner rl{ina $ 42.863.04
Subconsultant 2: Farlhsneclivcs $ 8,436.00
Subconsultant 3: Jericho Svstems $ 18,500.00
Subconsultant 4: Sierra Services $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS $ 83.351.04

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS KI)+(m)] $ s3.351 n4

TOTAL COST l(c) + (i) + (k) + (n)l $ 339.928.37
NOTES
l. Key personnel ggg be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with two asterisks (**), All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals,
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. lndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the 

-

c,onsultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (pagc 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2020

Description of Item Ouantltv Untt Unit Cost Totrl
Mileage Costs $ 0.0c
Eouioment Rental and Sunnlies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees sonc
Plan Sheets $ 0.0c
Test



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Qost Proposal

Exrugtr 10-H1 Cosr PnopoSAL pase I or3

Cosr-Plus.Frxso Fee oRlump SUM oR FlRr[ Frxeo PnrcE CoNTRAcrs

(Cnlcuulor.rs ron ArulctpATEB SAtARy lrucnensrs)

'l . Calculale Average Hourly Rate for I st year of lha conlract (Dlrect Labor Subiotal dlvided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250,000.00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+ 2a/o =
+ 2olo =
+ 2a/o =
+ 2o/o =

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

. 1000- 2000
' 750
" 250. 500

Avg
Hourly
Rale

$50.00

5 Year
Contmct
Duratlon

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculaie hourly rate for all year: (lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by propoced escalalion %)

3. CalEulate estlmated hours per year {Multlply esllmate o/o etoh year by total holrs}

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51,00
$52.02
$53.06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

2Q.Ao/o

40,0%
15.4%
15.44/o

10.4o/o
100%

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$51.00
$52,02
$53.06
$54.12

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal

' 5000 =
' 5000 =
' 5000 =
' 5000 =- 5000 =Total =

Total Hours per
Year

1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Eslimated Hours Year 5

5000

$51.00
$52.02
$53.06
$54 12

Cost per
Year

$50,000.00
$102,000 00
$39,015.00
$39,795.30
$27,060.80

$257,871.10
$250,000 00

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Atg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Eelimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated HoursYear 5

4. CElculate Total CosF lncluding Escalatlon {Multlply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary
lncrease

Transfer to Page 1

$7,871.10

NOTES:
a, Thisisnottheonlywaytoestimatesalatyincreases,Othermethodswill beacceptediftheyclearlyindicatelhe%

increase, the # of years of the contract, and a breakdown oi the labor to be performed eactr year.
2. An egtimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the f of years is not

acceptable
(i,e. $250,000 x 2o/a x 5 yrs = $25,000 ig not an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of I
Januay 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXH|ErT r0-Hl
Cost Proposal

ExHtart 10-H1 COSI PnOnOSAL page 3 or 3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, lhe undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and blief thal all direct costs identified on ihe
cost proposal(s) in this contrac't are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the conlrac't in
accordance wilh the contrast terms and lhe following requirements:

1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2, Terms and condilions of the contract
3. Tille 23 Uniled States Code Sec,tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
4. 48 Code of Federal Requlations Pail 31 - Contract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5. 23 Code of Federal Reoulalions Part 172 - Procurement, Managemenl, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service

6, 48 Code of Federal Reoulalions Part 9904 - Cost Acco.rntino Standards Board (when
applicable)

All costs musl be applied consistently and fairly lo all contracts. All documentation of compliance must
be retained in the projectfiles and be in compliance with applicablefederal and state requiremenis.
Costs that are noncorpliant with the federal and state requirements are not eligible for relmbursement,
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cosl Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultanl Csrtifvino:

Name
lvsn Benavidez Jr

Tille':
Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signalure : lvan Benavidez Jr. 3'"d,f!.1!S1?*11::1#fii' Date of Cerlification (mm/dd/yyyy): 06t261202A

Email: ibenavidez@fountainheadcorp. com Phone Number: 909.512.281s

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe Ste 800 Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial oflicer of the consultant's or subconsultant's organization at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Finanoial Officer, or equivalent, wtro has
aulhority to represent the financial informalion utilized to eslablish lhe cost proposal for lhe
contract,

List underthe conlrac'l:

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services

Page 3 of I
January 2020



.,RrnS-
GSOISCHNICIU.CEOLOGYOHYDROGBOIOGY.ENUNOI'IMETTTALOIIINBRAIS'MNING'MATSRTAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Prufesslonal
Pdncipal Engineer/Geologst
Senior Engineer/Geologst
Prof ect Englneer/Geologist
Stafr Engtneer/Geologist
Envlmnmental Geologlst
Senior Reglstered llydmgeologlst
Gruundnnter Geologist
E rpert Wtness/Deposition (4-hr mlo)

Fiel4Technlcal
Celdff ed Weldtng Inspector
Structural Welding Inspector
Certified ConcretelMasonry Inspector
Sruchral Bolfl ng lnspector
Stmcturd Steel Inspector
Relnforclng Steel Inspector
EporylGrout Dowel lnspector
Fleld Englneer/Geologist
Fleld Groundurater Geologlst
Senior Field Techniclan
FieldTechnictan
Source Inspector
Ultrasonic Weld Tesdng
Magnedc Parllcle Tesdng

trteld 
"echntcel {Prurrallin g Wegel

Certifi ed Welding Inspector
Strucftral Welding Inspector
Cerdfied ConcretelMasonry Inspector
Stmchral Bolting Inspector
Structural Steel lnspecto r
Relnforuing Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel lnspector
Field Bngineey'Geologist
Fleld Groundnnater Geologist
Senlor Fleld Technician
Field Technician
Source Inspector
tlltrasonic Weld Testing
MagneHc Parrtcle Tesfng

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRH

scfi
EW

Code
CwI
swr
ccr
SBI

ssl
RSI

EDI

F}G
FGG

SFT

FT
st
UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP
gcIP

SBIP

ssIP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

STTP

FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate

$15s
f13s
f120
fl00
$135
$205
$135
$255

Rate
$125
$1rs
$115
$11s
$1ls
$105
$105
$100
$110
$e0
$8s
$eo

$1s5
$1ss

Rate
$165
$1ss
$1ss
$1ss
$1ss
$140
$140
$140
$r*s
$120
$11s
s120
$205

$2os

Page 1 of3



.,s.c;.s"
GEoTBGHMCAL. cEoLocY. HYDROCBOLOCY . BilVlRONlfENTlu . UnmAIS . MllllllG . llATlf,IAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

0ffice end I qborctory Technlcsl
Pmlect Coordinadon
LabomtoryTechnician
Offi ce Supplies/Clerical
Outside Services

lob SupplteslReproducton/Postage

Fqutmentf,.entel
Rebar Locator
Ultrasonic Weld Tester
MagnedcWeld tester
Diamond Coring Rig
Torque Wrench/Skidmorre
Watsr Qudlty Prob€
Water Level Sounder

Veblcle. Travel. and Per Diem
Mileage
Tnavel Tlme (200-rnlle max)
Room and Board

Meals

LTqoFATCIRYTESTING

-\olls andAggrs$rtes
Procbr (Statrdard Effort *")
Proctor (Modiff ed Efforr*{ J
Proctor (Modified Effon-6f
Proctor (Roclr Correctlon)
Proclor [Check Point)
Wet Denstty (Calrans Tube)
DurabllityIndex
Hydrometer
Plasticity Index
liquid Limit
PlasflcLimft
R-Value (CA/NV Untreated)
Sud Equlvalent
SiewAnalysis
Siwe Ana{ysis wlth 200 Wash
Speciflc Gravlty fCoarse)
Speclfrc Gravlty (FlneJ

TestMettod
ASTMD698
ASrM D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTM D4718
ASTM D1557
cr2t6
ASTM D3744 ICT 229
ASTM D422
cT204
ATTM D4318
ASI'MD4318
ASTM D2844/CT 301
ASTM D2419/CTZL7
ASTM C136ICT 2AZ
ASTM C117
ltSTVtClzT lC:[206
ASTMCIZS/CT2O7

Code
PC

tT
os

nate
$85
se0
$6s

11596

115%

Code
RL

IIWT
MWT
DCR

TWS

WQP

wLs

Code
MI
TT
R3

M

Code
SDC,I

MDC,*

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccr
DI
HY

PI
tt
Pt
RV

SE

SA

sAw
scc
SGF

Rate

$.701mi
$8s

115%
$lo

Rate

115%
11596

115%
$80

f8o
$50
$2s

nate
$225
$230
$250

$160
$ss

,22s
$22s
$21s

$30s
$165
f16s

115%
$11s
$11s
$145
$135
f135

Page 2 of 3



.S,fGlS,

GS0TBCHNICAL.GEOLOGY.IIYDROGBOIfiiY.BI{VIRONMINfALrlrtllfBRAlSrlt{ll{ll{G.IIIATBRIAIA

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
Fractured/Crushed Pardcles
UnltWelght

Shearrnd Consolldadon
Dtrect Shear fUtrdlshtrbe4 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear fRemolded 3-Poin$
Consoltdadon (8-Polnt)
AddidondPotnts

Concrete
Compressive Test Cyllnder
Compressive Test Grout Sample

Compressive Test Grout Prlsm
Compresslve Test Mortar Cylinder
Conpressive Test Shobete Core

Oven DryDendty
Bqulltbrtum Denslty

ATrhrltend Pavenent
Asphalt Extraction by lgnldon
Aggrcgate Gradadon of Eroacted Sample
Moishrc ConEntofAsphdt
Speclfic Gravlty of Asphalt Core
Theoredcal Max Specific Gravlty/Density
SahlometerTest

$10s
$1ss
s105

cv
FP

tttVA

q|227
ASTM D5821 lgt205
CT2L2

TestMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

Testllethod
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

AS${ C39

ASTM C39

ATTMC39
ASTMC557
ASTMC567

2019

Rete

$21s
$zrs
$3ss
fss

Code
usT
RST

coN

Code
ccr
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Code
IGN

GES

MCA

SGAC

RICE

TflMEM

TestMefhod
cr 382
cTza?
cT 370

cT308
cT 309
cT366

Rate

N43

fes
$os
i*s
S*s

$12s
Request

Rate

$250
$1ls
$10s

$60
$16s

11596

Page 3 of3



47 1st Slreet, Suite 1

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) el$5900

Rete Sheet

Portonnsl Crioson f,rtce : Ctarger will bc made dthe Cdegory rdree set fodh for the timc tpcut on
prcject nanagement consultation or meetings related to ths 1xojesq field work, rqort preparation and
r,cviow, tavcl timc to md from the job sib, etc.

Porition Title
Asigned honrp rato for
the durafron of the
contract

?rinpipal In Charce 3157_00
Smior Regulalory Specialist s157.00
ProgranManagcr $15?.00
Sonior Ecologist $140.00
CEQA/IIEPA Spccirlist $140.00
Environmeutal hoject lvlanager $140.00
Envirunmontal Sir sr40.00
h$lic Outeaoh Specialist sr40.00
ScniorBiologist $140.00
FAAlic€nsod UAV Pilot $135.m
Biologi* $12t.00
FioldBiologist $r 10.00
CADD/GIS Specidist $il0.00
IhojectAnilyst $105.00
efin€sal ConstuEtion Monitor $10s.00
Adminishative $ 6s.00

Fmcnrg Billcd AtCort:

Tlavcl (non-autonobile)
Lodging
Auto andTruckRentals
Sp€oirlty Equipment and Relrtals
Delivery Servics
Prfodng @lueprinfs, Photo Sewices, Color Copies

Spccialty Sqplies)

OtherDlnctCmf

AtSo Miloage (atcunentIRII rab)
Agency Permit Fees (At Cost)
Suboonsulhts - Cost Plus 3%

Jaridro$ms, lnc 2U20



Easrcrn 5r""r" Lr.a Surritr*

19funCv&
ddqL*,u%r1C

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2A2O

Cateqories Hourly Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino WaoE) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundarv Map Research s100

Draftinq $100



ZIC2020 Hourly Rae

ZT CONSULTING

ZIC Hourlv Rate 2020

Tlpeof Sewlce Tlde

l Minimum hourc cha6e inspection services
2 Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the Job on the weekdays and any houns worked on Saturda% Sunday, and Holidays.

Odtcf DlrrctCoct..

tr' This approximate cost All the sub invoices are pas through, ZfC does not markupthe subs invoices

!6r tu€d6 at'tfe
'-',t-i a-aa' l: !-:.-:l

Pl; -:.:.i.;:a

I
san Aemrdirc Of6e
:-t ":..'-:-.: :-:: .-

Pl '.--'):,'::-!

Qudlfrcatlon Hourly RaE

Prolect Menagpment PM PE Szro

Sra+.go

$1ls.soErylneerlngSerukc

Senior Quality

Assistant

quallty

PE I CQA

EIT

PE

se0.gs

ClASourcc Inspccdon
Sendcce

QA lnspector
cwt, Pcilt/il,

ASNT NDT

W/MT
5109.15rr

QA Fleld lllspe(ton
Servlces (Prcvalllngl QA lnspector

cwl, Pcl[./ilt,
ASNT NDT

I.JIIMT

Per DIR

requirements

]Em Clurnw Apprur. UnitCost TotrlArffirnt
Millage TBD {Federal Rate) 5 0.575 / mile TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx, $600/Trip TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. 57,2@ lTrip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (ZfC Sub *+')
51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coatlng Testint TBD (TC Sub r*r) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZTC Sub *'r) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZIC Sub r+')
$350 / Per Set TBD

Hoop Testing/ Couplers (<fl11) TBD (ZTC Sub *rr) 5160 / Per Sample TBD

High Strength Bolts TBD (ZTC Sub *'*) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Componen6 TaD (ZTC Sub *..) 5125 / per sample TgD

Fl 81&3696E57 El htuOztc8ry mwl wzqrp com



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FORTHE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERiII

FROM: JulyTlh,2420

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMEilT:

Oounty of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 11 of 12

December 31,2021

SERVICES

10102A17



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEiIENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON 6p Construction Managernent

TERM:

FROM: July 7th, 2020 December 31,2421

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - ProGssional)

Page 12 al 12

SERVICES

14142017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND TIMIT OF INSUMNCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL]: Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form ofan endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as IS0 Form CG 20 n IL 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 2A26,CGZA 33, or CC 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
autoJ, or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B fhired) and 9 [non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage,

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certi$ring that
contractor has no employees.

Professional tiability [Errors and OmissionsJ: appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receivingfstoringftransmitting personally identifiable information [PIIJ or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademarh trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security, The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No, 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: lnsurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County,

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contracf the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof ofability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
currentA.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance rnust be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verification of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable poliry language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy ofthe Declarations and Endorsement Page ofthe
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
anytime,

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verifu that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reseryes the right to modiff these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
Page



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

             In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
                           County of Inyo, State of California  

              

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, 

held in their rooms at the County Administrative  Center in Independence on the 21
st

 day of December 2021 an order was duly 

made and entered as follows: 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works – 
Fountainhead 
Contract 
Amendment 2 

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No. 
2 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of 
Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31, 2021 to December 
31, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor 
Kingsley absent. 
 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 21st                         

Day of December, 2021  

 

 
 

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

 
               

                             By: _____________________________ 

Routing 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

CC       
Purchasing   
Personnel   
Auditor    
CAO     
Other:  Public Works 
DATE: January 5, 2022 

 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  December 21, 2021
 
FROM:  Greg Waters
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment #2 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Fountainhead 
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31, 2021 to 
December 31, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform 
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant 
Corporation is contracted with Inyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the 
consultant, the project duration has increased, requiring a change in the contract effective dates. This does not 
come with a cost increase.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county 
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly 
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and 
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site 
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the extension to the contract, however this would prevent the consultant 
from being paid after December 31, 2021 and the project from being completed.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
There is no cost increase as a part of this Amendment #2, just a change to the contract end date.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment 2
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)
 
APPROVALS:
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 12/6/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 12/7/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 12/7/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 12/7/2021
John Pinckney Approved - 12/7/2021
John Vallejo Approved - 12/7/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 12/7/2021



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 2 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    2   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   Fountainhead Consulting Corporation   
 

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and  Fountainhead Consulting 
Corporation of Anaheim, CA  (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the 
provision of engineering services dated    July 7, 2020    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the 
term from    July 7, 2020    to    December 31, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

The consultant agreement will be extended from the current end date of December 31st, 2021 to the future date of 
December 31st, 2022 
 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     December 21st, 2021      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 2 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    2   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2021. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL 
     REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
       
Director of Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
       
County Risk Manager 

23rd May

05/23/2022



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supetuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, Ihat at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h dayof July 2020an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Gritfiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2020
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

ILITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this /h
Day of JULY, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO:

Other: PublicWork
DATE: July 7, 2020

By:

&A$*



1+- l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIREI)
MEETING: Ju\y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between Inyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7 , 2020 through December 31, 2021 , and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/J USTI FICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUN D/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS :

North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state(201 7-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
fonruard.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75Yo

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/o by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
Michael Errante

Createdilnitiated - 612912020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Approved - 613012020
Final Approval - 613012020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF construction Nranasement c ERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
Construction Management Of Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by thg Diroctor of Public Works,

Michael Ermnte Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Aftachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement Shall be fr6m July 7th, 2020 tO December 31th, 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Page 1 ol 12

10102017



Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the
Director of Public Works, Michael Errante Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Aftachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment G, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the Coung
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ ssg,sze.gz (initialterm) $ (option 1) and $ (option 2) for a
total of $ 33e,e2s.37 Dol lars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves
the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(Sth) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by Coung to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 2 ol 12

(4)

101020't7



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Aftachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

A. Personal Property of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

,IO. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemnify, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in wtrole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the Gounty.

Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance attachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 of 12

10102017



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

{3. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 5 of 12

10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon availabb funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
tvto (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102017



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
Public Works Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer Q

Consultant:
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation Name

Address
City and State

2400 E. Katella, Suite 800

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenruise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilt ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

PageT of12

lndependence, CA

Anaheim, CA 92806

10102017



AGREEMENT EETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fdslrinlsrd c8ldllng Colpordlm

FOR THE PROVISION OF Cdnatfldhn ilmrs.mrd SERV|CES

IN WITNESS} THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS ANO SEALS THIS

'h DAY OF mix)

couNTYoqNYo

By;

lvan

Dated: Dared; Aln lUn

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND LEGALITY:

&^ra U^*f
County Counsal

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

( '*' Vtatrth/a&.
County Audltoi

APPROVEDAS

TO

Counly of lnyo Slardard Conlracl - No. 156
(lndepcndent Conrultanl - Profeerlonal)

Pagr I of 12

10102017



ATTAGHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020

SCOPE OF WORK:

December 31,2021

SERVICES

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page I of 12

10102017



Inyo County Public Works
Page 7 of16 N o r th R o u n d n r, 

", 
* 

" "l';ol,itntfil ; ;:::;::t
business relationship with the construction contractor(sJ who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local project listed in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts ofinterest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work, The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interest.

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest. The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract.

Some examples of conflict of interest are the following:
. Certified Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[sJ from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identified.

a

Scone of Work
The scope ofwork defined below is based on the County's current understanding ofthe work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identiSz any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this S0W.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
o Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
o Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
o Pre-Construction/Kick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
o Verify all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
o Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o Identifli inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required (i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitor), and schedule (to be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
o Schedule, lead, and attend weekly (or as needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
r Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



Inyo County Public Works
Page I of16 N o rth R o u n d u 

" 
u 
", 

* 
" "fTlii:{il ; ;::,:;::,

a

Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in conjunction with design engineer if needed
Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structuralrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspections/testing
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittal/RFI responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
I Track Contractor days
. Track Contractor working hours including employee names
. Subs on site

' Major equipment on site and status
. Description of work completed and task completion status (estimatedo/o of total)
. Weather
I Catalog ofstop-work and causes
r Any QA/QC work performed including any test/inspection results, pass/fail status

of test/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record of all as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor ofany failingtests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Veri$r material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

Provide structural inspection when required
Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, or other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
o Project Closeout Tasks (Following substantial completion of workJ

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-offfrom outside agencies confirmingthat restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

o Generate Final Project Reportto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activities [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs [provided by design engineerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



lnyo County Public Works
Page 9 of 16 N o r th Ro un d n r, 

", 
*"'x?iiitlil ; ;:::;::;

o Daily Reports
o Catalog ofall as-built changes
o Summary /catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIXA - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants. The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simplifu the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

l. IntroductoryLetter

The introductory (or transmittal) letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
PO Drawer Q
Independenc e, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding of the services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter.

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal.

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) projects within the
past five (5J years which include the following information:

7. Contracting agency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contracting agency contact information
4. Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. Project Description
11, Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FoR THE pRovtstoN gp Construction Management SERVIGES

TERM

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 10 of 12

10102017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

Exnrsrr 10-Hl Cosr PRoposal page I or3

COST-PLUS-FIXED FEf, OR LUMP SUM 0RFIRM FXED PRICE coNTRAcTs

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SruDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are NotAllowed E Prime Consultant ! Subconsultant ! 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Corooration

Proj ectNo.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0612612020

DIRECT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: q.0q96_ ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)l
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (0]

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)l

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

124,575.36

$ 119,784.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosrs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TorAL FxED FEE [(c) + (i)] x fixed fee 5.00% l

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE $ 12,217.97

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ITEMIZE additional if

est

l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: 7T Cnner rttina
Subconsultant Farthsnectivce
Subconsultant 3: Jericho
Subconsultant 4: Sierra ical Services

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS TNCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

rorAl COST [(c) + 0) + (k) + (n)]

$nnn

$ 42,863.04
$ 8,436.00

$ 18,500.00

$ 13,552.00

$ 83.35'1.04

!R 8? ?4{ n1

$ 339,928.37
NOTES:
l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked

with trlr,o asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. lndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with ttre

consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognnant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation @age2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2Q20

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourlv Rate Total

Project Manager/Resident Eng.

Structuros Representative

lnspector/Offie Engineer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Salvador Valdovinos

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0.00

Descrintion of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost I Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.00
Eouioment Rental and Suoolies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees $oon
Plan Sheets $ 0.00



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHelr 10-H1 Cosr Pnoposnl pase 2 or3

Cosr-Plus-Frxeo Fee oR Lulup Sunr oR Frnu Frxeo PncE CoNrRlcrs
(CALcuLATrorus ro R Ar.rrr cr nATED SRlRnv I rucnrnsrs)

1 . Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor
Subtotal per Cost

Proposal

$250 000.00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+ 2o/o

+ 2o/o

+ 2a/o

+ 2o/o

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal* 5000 =

" 5000 =" 5000 =* 5000 =' 5000 =Total =

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

" ,,1000

* 2000* 750* 700
" 500

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$s0.00

5 Year
Contract
Duration

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (lncrease the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTES:

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
$51 00
$52.02
$53 06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

20.o%
40,0%
15.0%
15.0o/o

10.4o/o

100o/o

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$51.00
$52 02
$53.06
$54 12

$51.00
$52.02
$53 06
$54.12

Cost per
Year

$50 000 00
$102 000 00
$39,015 00
$39,795 30
$27 060.80

$257,871 10
$250,000.00

$7,871.10

2 Avg Hourly Rate
3 Avg Hourly Rate
4 Avg Hourly Rate
5 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated Hours Year 5

Transfer to Page 1

ear
ear

Year
Year

3, Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Total Hours per
Year
1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Estimated Hours Year 5

5000

4. Calculate Total Cost including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary
lncrease

1 . This is not the only way to estimate salaty increases. Other methodswill be accepted if they clearlyindicate the %
increase, the # of years ofthe contract, and a breakdown ofthe labor to be pelformed each year,

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not
acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x 2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.
4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

Page 2 of 9
January 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHIarr 10-H1 Cosr PnOpOSnl pase 3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, the undersigned, certify to the best of my knowledge and belief thal alldirect costs identified on the
cost proposal(s) in this contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in
accordance wilh the contract terms and the following requirements.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

Terms and conditions of the contract

Title 23 United States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracts
48 Code of Federal Requlations Pad 31 - Contract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

23 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 172 - Procurement, Managemenl, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service
48 Code of Federal Reoulation s Parl 9904 - Cost Accountino Standards Board (when

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must
be retained in the projectfiles and be in compliance with applicablefederaland state requiremenls.
Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are noi eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted
lndirec{ Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvinq:

Nam
lvan Benavidez Jra' Title *: Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Signature . lvan Benavidez Jr. 3i1[:l',;3.i:l,y,iT,ff111tf 
.

Date of Certifi caiion (mmlddlyyyy). 0612612020

Email ibenavidez@fountain headcoro.com Phone Number: 909 5122815

Address 2400 E. Katella AVe, Ste 800 Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial officer of ihe consultant's or subconsultani's organization at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has
authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for the
contract.

List services the consultant is under

1

2

3

4

5

6
applicable)

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



".SlnS.-
GEOTECHNICAL . GEOLOGY . HYDROGEOLOGY. ENVTRONMENTAL . MINERAIS . MINTNG . MAfiRIALS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Pnofessional
Principd Engineey'Geologist
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Project Engineer/Geologist
Staff Engineer/Geologist
Environmental Geologist
Senior Registered Hydrogeologist
Groundwater Geologist
Expert Mtness/Deposition (4-hr min)

Field Technical
Certiff ed Welding Inspector
Stmcturd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
Sfuctural Steel Inspector
Reinforcing Steel Inspector
EporylGrout Dowel Inspector
Field Englneey'Geologist
Field Groundwater Geologlst
Senior Field Technician
FieldTedrnician
Source Inspector
lJltrasonic Weld Tesdng
Magnetic Particle Testing

Field Technical (Prenailing Wage)
Certifi ed Welding Inspector
Struchrrd Welding Inspector
Certified Concrety'Masonry Inspector
Struchrral Bolting Inspector
SfucHral Steel Inspector
Relnforring Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel lnspector
Field Engineey'Geologist
Field Groundr,nater Geologist
Senior Field Technician
Field Technician
Source Inspector
Ulfasonic Weld Testing
Magnedc Particle Testing

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRH

SGG

EW

Code
CwI
swl
ccr
SBI

ssI
RSI

EDI

FEG

FGG

SFT

FT

sl
UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

CCIP

SBIP

ssP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

STTP

FTP

stP
USTP

MPTP

Rate

$1ss
$13S

$120
$100
$13s
$205
$13s
$2ss

Rate

$125
$1ls
$115
$115
$11s
$10s
$105
$100
$110

$eo
$8s
$90

$1ss
$1ss

Rate

$ros
$1s5
$1s5
$1ss
$1ss
$140
$140
$140
$14s
$rzo
$11s
$120
$205
$2os

Page 1 of3



CEOTECHNICAL . cEoLoGY. HYDROGEOIOGY . BI{VIRONMENTAL . MINBRALS . MINING . MATBRIAIS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

.S.(3-!S,

Code
RL

TIWT

MWT
DCR

TWS

WQP

wrs

2019

Rate

$8s
$e0
$6s

LL596
LL'%

Offi ce and l^aboratory Technical
ProJect Coordinadon
Laboratory Technician
Office Supplies/Clerical
OuBide Services

f ob Supplies/Reproduction/Postage

EquinmentRental
Rebar Locator
Ulfasonic Weld Tester
Magnetic Weld tester
Diarnond Coring Rig

Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Water QualityPnobe
Water Level Sounder

Vehide, Travel. and Per Dien
Mileage
Travel Time (200-mile max)
Room and Board
Meds

LABORATORYTESTING

Soils andAgEregates
Pro ctor (Standard Effort-4 ")
Proctor (Modified Effort-4'J
Proctor (Modifi ed Effort-6)
Proctor (Rock Correction)
Proctor (Check Point)
Wet Density fCaltrans Tube)
Durabilitylndex
Hydrometer
Plasticitylndex
Liquid Limit
PlasticLimit
R-Value (CA/NV Untreated)
Sand Equlvalent
SieveAnalysis
Siwe Analysis with 200 Wash
Specific Gravity [Coarse)
Spec{fic Gravity (Flne)

Code
PC

LT
OS

Code Rate

$.70lmi
$8s

L15%
$40

Rate
LLSVI
115%
115%

$80
$80
$s0
$2s

Rate

$225
$230
$2s0
$160
$ss

t22s
$22s
$215
$30s
$165
$16s

LLS%
$11s
$11s
$14s
$135
$13s

MI
TT
RB

M

Code

sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccT
DI
HY

PI

LL
PL

RV

SE

SA

sAtv
sGc

SGF

TestMethod
ASTM D698
ASTM D1557
ASTM D1557
ASTM D4718
ASTM D1557
cr216
ASTM D3744 ICT 229
ASTMD422
cT204
ASIM D4318
ASTMD4318
ASTMD2844/CT301
ASTM D2419 lCT 2t7
ASTM C136ICT 202
ASTM C117

ASTltrcLzT lCT 206
ASTM C128ICT 207

Page 2 of 3



-.S.(f,sR
CEOTECHNICAL. cEO[oGY. HYDRoGBOLOGY r El{VlRotlMBNfAL. MIIfBRAII;. MlNlNG. MATERUUS

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

CleannessValue
Fracnrred/Crushed Particles
UnitWeight

Shear and Consolidation
Dlrect Shear (Undisturbed 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear (Remolded 3-Point)
Consolidation (8-P oint)
Additional Points

Concrete
Compressive Test Cyltnder
Compressive Test Grout Sample

Compressive Test Grout Prism
Compressfue Test Mortar Cylinder
Compressive Test Shotcrete Core

Oven DryDensity
Equilibrium Density

Asnhaltand Pavement
Asphalt E:rtraction by lgnition
Aggregat€ Gradation of E:rtracted Sample

Moishrre Content of Asphalt
Specific Gravity ofAsphalt Core

Theoretical Max Specific Gravity/Density
SabilometerTest

cv
FP

ct 227
ASTM D5821lCT20S
CTzLZ

TestMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASrM D3080
ASTM D2435

TestMethod
ASTM C39
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C567
ASTM C557

2019

$10s
$1ss
$10s

Rate

$215
$23s
$355
$ss

IIWA

Code
UST

RST

coN

Code
ccT
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

Rate

$43
$43
$os
$43
$+s

$12s
Request

Rate
$250
$115
$10s

$60
$15s

ILSVI

Code
IGN

GES

MC,A

SGAC

RICE

HVEEM

TestMethod
cr 382
cT202
cT370
cT 308
cT 309

cT 365

Page3 of3



47 1st Skeei, Suite 'l

Red ands, CA 923734601
(909) 915-5900

Rate Sheet

Personncl Ceteeorr Rrtss : Charges will be made at the Category rates set forth for the time sp€,trt on
project management consultation or meetings related to the projecg field work, re,port preparation and
review, travel time to and from the job site, etc.

Position Title
Asrigned hourly rate for
the duration of the
contract

Principal In Charge s157.00
Seirirr Regulatory Specialist $157.00
ProgramManager $157.00
Senior Ecologist $140.00
CEQANEPA Specialist $140.00
Envircnnental hoject Manager $140.00
Environmental Site Manager $1lm.00
Public Outreach Sp€cidist $140.00
SeniorBiologist $140.00
FAA Licensed UAV Pilot $135.00
Biologist $12E.00
Field Biologist $r r0.00
CADD/GIS Specialist $110.00
ProjectAnalyst $105.00
General Constnrction Monitor $105.00
Adminishative $ 6s.00

Erncnses Billed At Cost: OtherDirectCmt:

Travel (non-automobile)
Lodeing
Auto andTruckRentals
Specialty Equipment and Re,lrtals
Delivery Services
Pdnting @lueprints, Photo Services, Color Copies

Specialty Supplies)

Auto Mileage (atcunentIRS rate)
Agency Permit Fees (At Cos|
Subconsulhts - Cost Plus 3%

Jeric|ro Systems, lnc 2020



Eastcrn Sr"rr. Lt o S.tt "y**
19lanaCtr&

frrrdqL*t,(A%r+6

Prevailing Wage
Pricelist 2O2A

GateEories Hourlv Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research $100

Draftinq s100



ZJC?IO?:O Hourly Rate

ZT CONSULTING

Zl-C Hourlv Rate 2020

Typeof Servlce Title Qualificatlon Hourly Rate

Prolect Management PM PE Szro

Senior Quality
neer

En$neering Service
Quality

Assistant
neer

PE / COA Sre+.ao

PE S11s.so

EIT 5so.ss

QASoure lnspection
Sewices

Q[ lnspector
cwt, Pcilt/ilt,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT
S109.151,2

CIA Field lnspectaon

SeMces (Prewillngl QA lnspector
cwr, Pcr il./ilr,

ASNT NDT

UTlMT

Per DIR

requirements

1 Minimum four hours charge for inspection services
2 Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

Otier DlrectCostt'+

**r This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through. ZTC does not markup the subs invoices.

TC

654ngde Offie
'-:l'- '- a---.' -r: i - .. :::

9l a::-' :-: ;

1
sdr EeGrdim Offie
:-i; -.--,. :- = i -: -:-

Pl::!-i:-';:-3

lbm Quantity Apprcr UnitGost T@lAmount
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) 5 0.575 / mib TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Gltrans Policy) Approx. 5600 / Trip TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. S1,200/Trip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5180/ Per Test TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZTC Sub ***) 5350 / Per set TBD

Hoop Testing / Couplers (<S11) TBD (ZIC Sub ***) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

High Strength Bolts TBD (ZTC Sub *+*) 5155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Components TBD (ZfC Sub ***) $125 / per sample TBD

Fl 818-359.6857 El info@ztcgrp mwlw.ztcgrp com



ATTAGHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE pROVtStON gp Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 11 of12

SERVICES

10102017



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVIS toN oF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7th,2020 December 31,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 12 of '12

SERVICES

10'102017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 I0 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B [hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
Iess than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of Californi4 with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $L,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed Ietter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability [Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $l-,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyrighg trademarh trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andf or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01,0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verifii that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modif,i these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. L

Professiona I Services
Page



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Saperuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20rh day of September 2022 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Amendment 3

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA,
increasing the contract by $209,281.54 to an amount not to exceed $671,039.51 and extending
the expiration date from December 31 , 2022 to June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's
approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 20th

Day ofSeptember,2022

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerkof the Boardof Supenisors

il-T

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Public Works

DATE: Septenber 28, 2022

By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: September 20, 2022

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJEGT: Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and
Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 3 to the consulting agreement between the County of lnyo and
Fountainhead of Anaheim, CA, increasing the contract by $209,281.54 to an amount not to exceed $671,039.51
and extending the expiration date from December 31,2022 to June 30,2023, contingent upon the Board's
approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, the project schedule has been extended. Additionally, the California Department of Fish & Wldlife is
now requiring a biological monitor on site through the completion of the project, not just until the creek diversion
is removed, as was originally stated.

Contract Summary:

Original Contract $339,928.37
Amendment#1 $121,829.60
Amendment #2 Time Extension Only
Amendment#3 $209,281.54
Total $671,039.51

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works has secured a Construction Management firm
(Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site inspections, monitoring, and contractor management



Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract. However, this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A

FINANGING:
Funding will be sourced from California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair
Account (25Yo). The cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (5717).

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 3 (UNEXECUTED)
2. Fountainhead Amendment No. 2 (EXECUTED)
3. Fountainhead Contract Amendment No. 1 (EXECUTED)
4. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Michael Errante
Breanne Nelums
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/l nitiated - 91612022
Approved - 91612022
Approved - 91812022
Approved - 911212022
Approved - 911212022
Approved - 911212022
Final Approval - 911412022



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 1 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    3   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   Fountainhead Consulting Corporation   
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and  Fountainhead Consulting 

Corporation of Anaheim, CA  (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the 
provision of engineering services dated    July 7, 2020    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the 
term from    July 7, 2020    to    December 31, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

1. Exhibit 10-H1 Cost Proposal to the Contract (attached) is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead 
Consulting Corporation, and for Sub-Consultants Geode Environmental and Sierra Geotechnical Services. 

2. This Amendment also extends the consulting agreement expiration date from December 31, 2022 to June 30, 
2023, to allow for project closeout beyond the end of the construction period. 

 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     June 1st, 2022      . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
Amendment 1 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    3   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation 
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2021. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL 
     REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
       
Director of Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
       
County Risk Manager 

09/21/2022

3rd October 2

10/03/2022



September 06,2022

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer
lnyo County Public Works
P.O. Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

RE: TRANSMITTAL LETTER I SUBCONSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PROPOSAL

Dear Mr. Waters,

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation (Fountainhead) is submitting this request for additional funds due to delays by the conhactor in

completing the proposed improvements shown in the contract plans.

Attached for your consideration is our cost proposal, the contractor's latest schedule to complete the proposed improvements, and our
associated staffing plan.

lf you have any questions, or require additional information, please contact lvan Benavidez at 909.512.2815 or email at

ibenavidez@fountainheadcom.com.

Respectfully submitted,

-'tpilL/t^fu
Rbsali8 Acostd; torporate Secretary

2400 East Katella Avenue, Suite 800 | Anaheim, California 92806 | 714627 2518



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 1O-HI
Cost Proposal

ExHIsIr 10-H1 Cosr PnopoSAL page r or3

Cosr-PLUs-FrxEp FEE oR UISSU oR FrRM FrxED PRrcE coNrRAcrs
(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed E Prime Consultant n Subconsultant n 2'd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

Project No.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 0910612022

DIRECT LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 64,202.40

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS (a) + (b)l $ 64,202.40

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: q_qq?!- ) e) Total Fringe Benefits t(c) x (d)l
0 Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Overhead t(c) x (01

h) General and Administrative (Rate: 104.009 ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]

$ o.oo

$ 0.00

$ 66,770.50

$ 66,770.50

FIXED FEE $6 548.64

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS - ITEMIZE additional if
of Item

Test
l) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS $noo

j) TorAL INDIRECT COSTS [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + 0)] x fixed fee 5.00% l

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: ZT Consultino
Subconsultant 2: Earthspectives
Subconsultant 3: Geode Environmental
Subconsultant 4: Sierra I Services

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) ToTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS (D+(m)l

rorAl cosr [(c) + (i) + (k) + (n)]
NOTES:

$ 0.00
$ 0.00

$ 85.312.00
($ 13.552.00)

$ 71 760 00

s 71 7An nn

$ 209.281.54

l. Key personnel 4g[ be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked
with two asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Prcject Manager/Resident Eng.

Structures Representative

Inspector/Otfice Engineer

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

Brian French

46.00

107.00

856.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 3,726.00

$ 8,346.00

$ 52,130.40

$ 0.00

Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.0c

Eouioment Rental and Srroolies $ 0.0c

Permit Fees $00r
Plan Sheefs $ 0.0(



PROJECT SCHEDULE - 31 AUGUST 2022 / UPDATE

@ Oracle Coporation
TASK filter: All Activities

Data Date = 31-Aug-22

Page 1 of2

SCCI JOB #22101 INYO County - Round Valley Bridge

D J

22101.Prcliminary Phase (NewWBS)
E 41000

41010

Mii@ ofAMd-5Jan2021
fJo1i@ To PD@ed - 24 Jun 2021

122

0

0

389

21lh2l 24'Jun21,221Q1.Pieininary Phbse I 0{eiwBs) ;

Mle ofAmd - 5 Janr202X .O34an21 |

a Not@Topb@;d-?4J(rn2021,24.Jur?1A I

I I lnsbll Tiaffi d Co/itol SysGrel

li lnSllESAF€n@ i

I I lnsbll CieekDvdFio/i Bypass

I emiad eruo i i i

i ll StudrEExcavatonr | | r I

I TIIIIII FillindPbdPilbs l

I F@thg

0 05Jan-21

0 24iun21
60 24-luh-21

0 24-.)un21

0 24-Jun-21

0 25Jun-21

0 28Jun-21

0 29Jun-21

0 0'lJul-21

O 14-Jul21

0 20Jul21

14 10-qugt1

0 10,qug-21

O 24Avg-21

o 144621
0 18OcF21

o 210e21
0 01-Mv-21

o 26.ct-21
o 27€e21
0 28Ac+21

0 15-lbv2l

0 22+bvtl
0 26+lov21

010oect1
5 31+ug-22

4 31Aug22

10 06sep-22

10 06sep-22

I 14&21
O 07+eb-22

0 14+eb22

0 144&21

0180d21
o 21a&21

o 29€&21

0 m{d.21
0 254e21
o 274e21
o 284d-21
0 o1+bvtl
0 05-Nlov-21

0'1g-l,,Jov-2'1

5 31.qugt2

29DP.dn

1+Jul21

24.Jun21

2sJunt1

28Jun2.1

3oJun-21

'13Jul-21

19Jul-21

094u9? 1

1 9-Sep-22

234u9-21

1 4-Sep-21

154e21

204&-21

25ce21
I g-Ilov-zl

26apl
274e21
29cd.21

1g+bvt1
25+lov-21

09oec-2f

10oee21

06.sep22

05-sep-22

19-sep22

19-sep22

12aeq.22

11+eU22

07Nat22
15.e21
20oe21
254cla1

290&21

260&21
294&21

274e21
28cd.21

04+Jov-21

'18+Jov-21

1 9-{.lov-21

06seF22

24i$-2
24-hn-2

25Jun-2

28Jun-2

29Jun2

01Jul-21

14lul21

20-Ju1-21

10+W-2

104u92

24ug-2
04Aptz
1gApta
02.1\4aya

'I 6-{,,ley-i

07.Jun-2

204un2:.

22lun-2:.

28lul22

154u9-2

194u9-2

294u9-2

31,Aug-2

31+ug-2

06-sep-2

06-sep-2

07+e6-2

07.Feb2

14+eh2

11Apt22

D2.IAayi.

1 6-lvlayi

16{Aayi

07Jun2:

1 3.Jun2:

1 5Junt:

20-Jun-2.

'l1.Jul22

'l5Jul-22

26-Jul22

31 -Aug-z

144u121 A

24-Jun21 I
25-JunA1 I
28Jun21 I
30Jun-21/
'13Ju121 A

'19Jul-21 A

o$ugtl,
fgsetr22

23Aug21,

11+ebzl
08.qpF22A

2gAptzA
'l 3-{4ay-22

1o-Jh-221

07-JunZl
2llunzl
2+Jun22l
12Aug-22,

18+ugt2,

26Aug-22,

3o.qug-22,

06-sep22

05€ep-22

1g-sep-22

19€ep?2

12-Sepaz

11€ebzl
31+\4at221

154pr-22A

131l1ayz

27^Aayz

10-Jun22l

07-Jun22l

08Jul22A

17lun-221

21.Jun-221

1+]!l22A
25-Jul22A

.Jul22A

065ep-22

100% 05Jan-21

100o/o 24iun2
0o/' z+.Jun-2 m&a-n

A1000

41010

A1020

A1030

A1040

A1050

A1060

A'1070

A1080

A1090

411 00

A1280

41120

A1130

41180

A1140

A1150

A't 160

At'190

A't200

41210

4.1220

A1170

A't230

A.1240

A1250

A1110

A.1270

A1280

A1290

A1300

A1350

A13 10

A1360

4t320

A1330

A1370

A1380

A1390

A'1340

221 ol.Prcject S'tatup (New WAS)-I
A1020 Mobifiaton

A'1030 lnsblTEffcContolsyshm

41040 lnslalEsAFen@

41050 lnsblFiberRolb

A1060 oemocuadEilandRemove

A1070 Demo Exislng Bddge

41080 lnsblOeekDveFionBypass

A'1090 ClearandGub

2zl0l"P@iect Satup"Abutsrent *2 (Nw WBs)

A1100 Stucture Ex@valon

A'111 0 Ddtrand Place Piles

41120 Finish g€de for Fooling

A'1130 FomFoojing

A'1140 FoolinqRebarlnsbl

A1190

A1150 Footng concreb Placement

Al160 StipFom
41170 Backfill Fooling

A1200 SetonesideofwanForc

A1210 WalRebarlnsbll

41220 ComplebWallFom
A1230 WalConcrebPla@ment

a- A1180 G€deSbpebehindFootng

g A124O StipwallFoms

Et A'1250 Backfifl

(- A1260 lnsbflRjpRap

2210l.Roiec't $artrp.Abutrrent#1 (t{ew WBs)-l
A127O StucfueEx€vaton

A1280 DilandPb@Piles

41290 FinishgEdeforFootng

A1300 FormFooling

A1310 FootngRebarlnsbll

A1360 Psemble WaSGang Fom
A132O Fooling Concreb Placement

A1370 SetonesideofwalFom
A1330 StipFom
41340 Backf[Footng

A1380 l^/alRebarlnsbll

A1390 ComplebWallFom

A1400 WalConcrebPhcement

Et 41350 GEdeslopebehindFoolng

1000/a

100va

100va

100%

100%

1000/a

100%

100%

o%

100va

100%

1000/D

100%

1000/a

1000/o

'100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

o%

0%

0%

o%

a%

1004/0

1004/o

1004h

lOOo/o

1004/0

1004/0

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

1000/o

100%

o%

S$ep.22,22101

srip

I btu;tuftiEx€vaion

wdllcdns lomisI

C<inpldb V1,lal]Fomis

wiran#r ir."i*i't
qEde Slqpe hehi4d FpofrE

Stip WaI ForriE

rBackfilr i i

rlnSlRirRrip I

qEd+ Slqpe qehiid FbolrE

a a Milesbne

F7 summary

- 

Remaining Wo*

I Crili€lRemainingwork

- 

AdallevelofEffofr

I Adalwo*

- Round Valley BridgeE 22101 INYO



PROJECT SCHEDULE - 31 AUGUST 2022 / UPDATE

a
A l-MTg 41410 StipwallFom

E A'1420 Backfil

El A1430 lnsbtRipRap

22l01.PbF{t $atup,Bridge Constuclion (Nil WBSF2

a- Ai,l40 RemoveCreekclveEionBypa$

Ct A1450 PrepforGirderlnsbll

ait 4'1460 Giderlnsial

g A1470 lnbrmediab and End OaphEgro-Fom/Rebarlnst
g 41480 DaphEgGCondebPla@rent
(341490 DeckPanellnshl

5J A'1500 lnsblBddgeDeckOverhangFom

Ci A15i0 BdlgeDeckRebarlnsbll

53 A'1520 PrepforDeckPlacerent

g A1530 8*lgeDeckconrebPlacement

E A1540 EdgestipforcuardEillhsbi

E 41550 Guard€illnslall

t A1560 ACPavingPEp&Baelnshll
g A157O ACPavihg

{3 4'1580 Stiping

al 4'1590 StipBddgeDeckoverhang

22101,PDjet s.tup.closut (llew WBslS

E 41600 PunchLirt

g 41610 Sibqeanup

t A1620 Demobilre

E A1630 OpenRoadandBddgeforsetoi@

941640 Prcjedcomplelion

4 31AugA2

5 06sep-22

5 06sept2
67 06€etr22
5 06sep-22

5 13-Sep-22

5 2OSep22

10 27sep22

1 11€&22

5 
'2{d.2210 194d22

5 02+lov-22

5 09+.lov-22

'1 16.t',Jov-22

1 17+,h!-22

5 18+bv-22

2 25lJpv-22

1 29)'hv-22
'1 30-Nbv?2

5 01oec-22

I 08{Ect2
1 08+.-22
I 08-Dect2

S OEDec-22

1 zO{IjcQ2

0

05.seF22

12.Sep22

12.serz2

078ec-?2.

12sep22
19-sep-22

26-Sep-22

104d22
114e22
18c&22

0'1+lov-22

08+bv-22

1 5-1,'lov-22

1 6-l,lov-22

17.+buz

24 ovz
28+$vz
29+bv-22

30J\Jov-22

07{P-c22

20{p.ea
0E&c-22
19{€c22

19'P-c22

20{P-e22

2DcF-o22

0% 31+ug-2 05sep.22

0% 06sep-2 12-seF22

0% 06sep-2 12sep-22

0% oNetrz 07{eG22
0% 06€ep-2 12-Sep-22

0% 13sep, 19sep-22

0% 20sep-2 26-Setr22

Ook 27sep-2 104cf22
oo/a 11{e22 114&22

oo/o 12cd.22 144&22

io/a 19{d22 Ofi.}ju?2
0% 02+bv-2 08-llov-22

0% 09ibv-2 15-l.,lov-22

0% 16+bvt 16.|.lov-22

0% 17-lbv-2 17+lov'2

0olo 18+bv-2 24-fbv-22

0% 25$bv2 28+bvz
0% 29+bv-2 29+Jov-22

0% 3o-fJov-2 3O-Mv-22

OVo 01&c-2 o7&t 22

Oo/t Aa^&A 2O8P-e2

O% 0A{F.c2 OA{P-ca

O% OA]DP"C-2 19€F-c-n

Oo/o OA4P-}-2 19{P-cz
O% 2l{ec-2 20'ecz
Oo/a 29oecz

A1400

414 t0

A'1420

A1430,A1

41440

A'1450

A1460

41470

A1480

A1490

A1500

41510

A1520

A1530

41540

A1550

A1560

A'1570

A1580

A1590

A1600

A1610

A1620

A'1630

TASK fher: All Activities
@ Oracle CoForation

iT-f M

a
oTNfD

qJ,zu4

r,il A l-s

a
;TMTI

u
JT-fM

u
of ilDrdl-ATs

q

A lMTl

Data Date = 31-Aug-22

Page 2 of 2

Fni$sbilschdub %
Compleb

BL PDJEqFNEh

SCCI JOB #22101 INYO County - Round Valley Bridse

- 

ActualLevelofEffod

- 

Adalwork
I:::::l Remaining WoIk

I cdtGlRemainingwork

a a Milsbne

-7summry

ungrnar
D!EIon

Aery D

lA*ryMre



Fountainhead Staffing Plan

sl6/2022

Staff Unit July August Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
Biologist 8Hr/DaV 158 L84 176 8 8 8 552
I nspector 8 HrlDav L84 176 158 160 158 8s6
Struc. Rep LHr/Day 23 22 2L 20 21. 707

RE 2 HrlWeek 10 8 8 10 10 46



In the Rooms of tlte Boatd of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 21't dayof December202l an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Contract
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.
2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation of
Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31 ,2021 to December
31, 2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor
Kingsley absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2 fl
oayof December.202I

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerkof the Boardof Supemisors

fld*X u'1^+',t'ta-"

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel

Auditor
cAo
Other PublicWorks
DATE: January 5,2022

By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIREI)

MEETING: December 21, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJEGT: Amendment#2lo the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, extending the end date of the contract from December 31 ,2021 to
December 31,2022 and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate
signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, the project duration has increased, requiring a change in the contract effective dates. This does not
come with a cost increase.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the extension to the contract, however this would prevent the consultant
from being paid after December 31,2021 and the project from being completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

FINANCING:
There is no cost increase as a part of this Amendment #2, just a change to the contract end date.



nvgrruq r\gYugsr

Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment 2
2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Michael Errante
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/lnitiated - 121612021
Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Approved - 121712021
Final Approval - 1217 12021



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consulting Cornoration

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting
Corporation of Anaheim" CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July 7. 2020 . on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
term from July 7 . 2020 to December 3 I . 2021 .

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

The consultant agreement will be extended from the current end date of December 31"t,2021to the future date of
December 3ft,2022

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is f)ecember 21st- 2O21

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County oflnyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment 2

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO AND

X'ountainhead Consultine Corporation

TN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIRHANDS AND SEALS THIS
23rd DAY OF Mav 2021

COUNTY OF II{YO CONSULTANT

By: By: lr-'YI*J.L
//

Dated: 0512312022 Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOLINTING
FORM:

&D&.%a'Ldte/z
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

K,vrrt rY-
Director of lersonnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Amendment 2

Page2

Mm4
County Ris@nager



In the Rooms of the Board of Supetuisors
County of [nyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeling of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 5th dayof October202l an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve Amendment
No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands, CA
with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop,
CA with Eastern Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with
Fountainhead Consulting Corporation by $121r829,20 to cover a broader scope of
environmental inspections as required by California Department of Fish & Wildlife; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

IVITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 5't'

ooy of Qc!pbeL2-A2!-

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

{d*X UuA+,t,;a,,"

Routing

cc
Purchasing

Personnel

Auditor
cAo
)ther: PublicWotks
DATE: Octcf,et 13, 2A21

By:



+rr g

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED

MEETING: October 5, 2021

FROM: Greg Waters

SUBJEGT: Amendment #1 to the consultant agreement with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No.1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and Fountainhead
Consulting Corporation of Anaheim, CA, replacing environmental subconsultant Jericho Systems of Redlands,
CA with Geode Environmental of Bishop, CA, replacing Sierra Geotechnical Services of Bishop, CA with Eastern
Sierra Engineering of Bishop, CA, and increasing the contract amount with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
by $121 ,829.20 to cover a broader scope of environmental inspections as required by California Department of
Fish & Wildlife; and authorize the Chairperson to sign the amendment, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can peform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead Consultant
Corporation is contracted with lnyo County to perform this work. Due to circumstances beyond the control of the
consultant, two subconsultants will need to be replaced by two others. Additionally, California Department of Fish
and Wildlife has requested an increase in the environmental monitoring from weekly to daily, resulting in an
increase in the fees required.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff o'f 2017 for which a state (2017-11) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management,

ALTERNATIVES AND GONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from being
completed.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request
Page2

FINANCING:
Funding will be sourced from California Office of Emergency Services (75%) and Road Maintenance and Repair
Account (25o/ol. The cost of the amendment will be paid through the Road budget (034600), North Round Valley
Bridge Project (57171.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead Amendment No. 1

2. Fountainhead Consulting Contract (Fully Executed)

APPROVALS:
Greg Waters
Darcy Ellis
Darcy Ellis
Greg Waters
Breanne Nelums
John Pinckney
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/lnitiated - 8117 12021

Approved - 811812021
Approved - 811812021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Approved - 913012021
Final Approval - 913A12021



AMENDMENT NUMBER I TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Fountainhead Consultins Corporation
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

WHEREAS' the County of Inyo (hereinafter refered to as "County") and Fountainhead Consulting
Corporatjon of Anahcin'r. CA (hcreinaftcr rcfsrrcd to as "Consultant"), havc cntcred into an Agreement for the
provision of engineering services dated July 7. 2020 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the
term from July 7.2020 to 31.2021 ^

WHf,REAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the rnutual conscnt of thc parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
exesuted with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuify,

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desirc and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below

L Exhibit l0-H I Cost Proposal to the Contract is amended for the Consultant, Fountainhead Consulting Corporation,
removing Sub-Consultants Jericho Systems and Sierra Geotechnical Services and replacing lhem with Geode
Environmental and Eastern Sierra Engineering, respectively. The total contruct vaiue is hereby increased by $121,829.20.
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is July lst,2021,
A1l other terms and conditions of the Agreernent are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Srandard Contract - No. 156 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Arnendruent I

l'age I



AMENDMENT NUMBER! TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN TTIE COUNTY OF INYO AND

F ountainhend Consultlns Coruoratlon
F'OR THE PROVISION OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSUI,TANT SERVICES

IN WITNESS TIIEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR TIANDS AND SEALS THIS
19th DAY OF Ontoher 242r,

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTA,I\T

By: By:

Datcd: 10-19-2021 Datcd: 1011412021

APPROVED AS TO
LEGALITY:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

&nV Slzf/url
Cour6 Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL

ofPersonnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK

Risk

County of Inyo Standard Conftact - No. 1 56 with Fountainhead Consulting Corporation
Arnendnrent I

Page 2



I=OUNTAIN i

September 06,2021

Greg Waters

Associate Civil Engineer

lnyo County Public Works

P,0. Drawer Q
lndependence, CA 93526

RE: TRANSMITTAL LETTER I SUBCONSULTANT SUBSTITUTION AND COST PROPOSAL I CONTRACT N0, 1so

Dear Mr, Waters,

Fountainhead Consulting Corporation (Fountainhead) is submitting this request to A) substitute two subconsultants originally proposed on

the contract and to B) request an increase to the conlract to provide daily biological monitoring due to permit requirements.

A) Fountainhead originally proposed Jericho Systems to perform biological monitoring services per the RFP requirements, unfortunately

Jericho Systems closed (Attachment A) their oflices after the contract award. Therefore, Fountainhead is having to replace Jeilcho

Systems with another biological monitoring seruice provide. ln addition to substituting Jericho Systems with Geode Environmental we

also have a second subconsultant Siena Geotechnical has developed a conflict of inleresl due to entering a conhact with Spiess

(Contractor) to perform Quality Control and Assurance Testing. Therefore, we are also requesting to substitute Sierra Geotechnical

wilh Eastern Sierra Engineering to perform lndependent Assurance testing as the subconsultant owner's represenlative with

Fountainhead

B) During the RFP process the final permits for the project were not issued therefore Fountainhead negoliated with the County to provide

biological monitoring on a weekly basis for work within the creek. After Fountainheads contract was negotiated the linal permits were

obtained, The final permits required daily biological monitoring while working in the creek and thereby iniiiated a cost increase to

provide the level of service required in the permit, Fountainhead reviewed several options for a biological monitoring consultant wiih

reasonable rates and negotiated with Geode Environmental to perform the scope of work (Attachment B). Our proposed conkact value

increase of $121,829.60 is a Nolto-Exceed value and the hours applied will only be as required by Caliiornia Depariment of Fish &

Wildlile. ln doing so we will have the ability to modulate the application of resources to suit the conditions in the field

lf you have any questions, or require additionalinformation, please contact lvan Benavidez at 909.5'12,2815 or emailal

ibenavidoz@founlainheadcorp.com.

#;ffi;kfr Secretary

2400 East Katella Averrue, Suite 800 | Anaheirn, California 92806 | 714.627 2511)



ATTACHMENT A

Mffi*msmtrc. P0 Box 706i
Redlancrs, C,Ag2?;i3

(q091 315-5900

Aprll12,2021

Dear Valued Client

Since 2012, Jericho Systems, Inc. (Jericho) has been hcnored to scrve you on your various projects.

However, it is with heavy heart that I am informing you of the closure of Jericho, effective June 30,2021
due to some health issues I have been struggling with for the past few years.

In keeping with my commitmcnt to providc cxcellent service to our clients, I would like to recommend

the following firms which have been assisting me on many projects behind the scenes fol the past few
years. These firms are extremely qualified with biology/ecological assessments for multiple jurisdictions,
jurisdictional waters permitting, endangered species compliance, CEQAA{EPA compliance, and whom I
know will provide excellent service to you:

ELMT Consulting, Inc
Attn:Travis McGill
2201 N. Grand Avenue #10098. Santa Ana, CA 92'111-0098
Travismcgill@elmtconsulting.com
(909) 816-1646

Compass Consulting Enterprises, Inc
Attn:.Iulie Gilbeft
PO Box 2627, Avalon, CA 90744
Julie@compass-consultinginc.com
(e0e) 496-5960
(WBE Certificd, DBE Certification in process)

In the interirn, effective imrnediately, Jericho's CraigLawrey will be handling all operational aspects and

will be your primary contact. Yorr may reach Craig at craig@jericho-systems.com ot at (909) 744-0487.
Julie Gilbert, who you may know has worked for Jericho since 2016, will be assisting Craig with contract

management and final billing. For Jericho contract and billing questions, Julie can be reached at
juliegill(@outlook.com or at (909) 496-5960.

Again, it has been my honor serving you, and I wish you all the best with your future endeavors,

Sincerely,

Shay Lawrey
President, Jericho Systems, Inc.

Craig Lawrey
Secretary/Operations Manager, Jericho Systems, Inc

'fx1:errence Ine Jetictlc Dille,enee j er i cho- sy sle t n s.c o r tt



Local Assistance Procedures Manual

Fountainhead Proposed Changes to
Original Agreement EXHIBIT 10.H1

Cost Proposal

Exgtntr 10-H1 Cosr PnnposAL pagc I or'3

Cosr-PLgs-FIxEp Fgli oR ISUNW! oR FIRM FIXED PRlctl coNrRAcrs
(DESIGN, ENOINEERING AND ENVIRONMEruTNI STUOIIS)

Norc: Mark-ups are Nor Allowed E Plirne Consultant I Subconsultant [ 2"d Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consulting Corporation for Geode Environmental

Project No. 48C0044 Contmct No. 156 Date 0910612021

DIRECT LABOR

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$'140,329.60

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a) + (b)] $ 140,329.60

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0,00% ) e) Total Flinge Benefits f(c) x (d)l $ 0.00

f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) g) Ovcrlrcad [(c) x (f)l $ -q'qO

h) General and Adrninistrative (Rate: gq0:!_ ) i) Gen & Adrnin [(c) x (lt)] $ 0.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosTs [(e) + (s) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (i)] x fixed f'ee 0'00o/o l

$ 0.00

FIXED FEE

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIR.ECT COSTS _ ITEMIZE additional rl

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS $ 0 nn

$ 0'00
$ 0'00re

$ 0.00

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pagos if necessary)
Subconsultant 1: zT Consrrltino
Subconsultant 2: Earthsoectives
Subconsultant 3: Jericho Svstems Subsiitute Geode Environmental
Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geoieehn Sr rhetitt rlo Factcrn Sierre $ 0.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS {$ 18.500.00)

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)] r$ 1R sffiIfn)

TOTAL CoST [(c)'i (i) + (k) + (n)] s 121 R29 60

NOTES:
I . Key personnel gg! be rnalked with an astelisk (*) and employees that are subject to prcvailing wage requirements must be nlal'ked

with two astedsks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost plhrciplcs. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not bc anrcndcd. Indirect cost rates shatl be updated on att antrual basis in accol'dance with the

consultant's annnal accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must acoompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2Q2Q

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

Biologist.

lnspector (Credll)

Geode Environmental

S. Valdovinos_20 days Temp. Work

1,240.AA

-160.00

$ 130.00

$ 130.44

$ 161 ,200.00

($ 20,870.40)

$ 0.00

$ o.oo

TotalOuantitv Unit Unit CostDescriptlon of Item
$ 0.0cMileage Costs
$ 0.0cFnninment Rnntal end Slrnnlies
$ 0.0(Permit Fees
$ 0.0(Plan Shaatc

Test



Local Assislance Procedures Manual Fountainhead Original Agreement EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

EXHIBIT l0-H1 Cosr PR0P0SAL pagc rot3

Cos'r'-Il,g.s-till!:p Fr:r: oR !:!]u.LS.!,U oR FIRM FtxED PRICE coNrR^crs
(DristcN, ENoTNEERTNC aNo EwvutorurraENTAt. STLDIES)

Nore: Mark-ups are Nor Alloweal E] Prime Consultant I Subconsultant n 2ud ]'ier Subconstrltant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultino Corooration

Project No,4QQ0044-

DIRECT LABOR

Contracl No. 1.!6 Date 0612612020

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipatcd Salary lncreascs (see pagc 2 for calculation)

$ 1 19,784.00

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR CoS'rS [(a) + (b)]
INDIRECT COS'I'S
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0,00% ) e) Total Fringe Benefits t(c) x (d)l $ 0'00

f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) e) Overhead [(c) x (0] **--.-*- gq,-qo

h) Gencraland Administrative (Rate: 104.00i ) i) Gen & Admin [tc) x (h)] . -E 
1?1.qlj'q.6

j) TOTAL INDIRECT CosTs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

FIXED FEE k) TOTAL FIXED Ff,E [(c) + O] x *ixed 169 5'00% 
1

$ 119,784.00

$ 124,575,36

8 12,217.9)1

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS _ ITEMIZE additional if

I) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS s0n0

rn) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultan! I: 7Tcnnsultinn _ $ 42,863.04

$ 8,436.00Subconsultant 2; Eadhsoectives
Subconsultant 3: Jericho $ 18,5oo.oo

Subconsultant 4: Sierra Geotechn ical Seruiccs $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS $ B3^3J1,O4_

n) T'OTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m) ... $ R3 36{ nd.

NorES: 
TOTAL COST t(c) F (i) + (k) + (n)l ** ,- *- -, - $ 339'9?8'q?

l. Key personnel 4g! be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that Bre subject ro prcvailing wage requirements musl be markcd

urith rwo astcrisks (**). Atl costs must comply with the Federal cost principles, Subconsultants will provide lheir own cosl proposals.

2. 'Ihe cost proposal furmat shall not be amended. tndirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with lhc

consultant's annual ascounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Callrans.

3. Anticipated salary increascs calculation (pagc 2) must accompany.

r.57233

Page 1 of 9
January 2020

Clsssilication/Iitle Name Hours

P.oJsct Manogsr,/R$ident :ng.

Slruclures Reprgs€olallvs

lnsp6clor,tofiica En0lne€r Salvador Valdovinos

lvan Senavidez

Javid Sharifi 616.00

224.O0

880.00

Actual Hourly Rate

$ 81.00

$ 78,00

$6090

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048,00

$ 53,592.00

$ 0,00

Totnl

(rur-
llnit Cost TotalDcscrlotlon ofltem Ouantitv Unit

$ 0.00Mileaqe Costs
$ 0.0cFnrrinmenl Renlal end Suoolies
$00cPermil Fcas
$ 0.0cPlan Sheals

Tesl



North nound Valley Bridge Project
Resident Engineer Proposed Schedule of Values

Amendment*1
As of 9/29/2021 10:rU, AM

Remaining

S31,388.59

Sr+,ggz.ss 1

S204,3i.8-34

52a,470.49

s8,436.00
s0.00

5161,200.00
So.oo

Srs,ssz.oo
Saii,gis.ee

Total To Date

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

So.oo
SAs,?8r.14

lnvoice #2

7-1-21 thru 7-31-27

iLz,gz7.s4

516,048.90

5t,27s.64
So.oo

So.oo
s161,200.00 So.oo So.oo

So'oo

Srr,ssz.oo
546t,7i7.,97 '

So.oo

So.ob

Szg,csg.eo

5o.oo
5o.oo

517,327.s4

Invoice Sl
1-1-21thru 5-3G21

$28,453.50

S15,339.69

St3,tt3.9t
s8,436.00 I

So.oo

so.oo
So.oo

Original$ Amendment fil ' Adjusted Total
;(Subject to Approvall

S235,706.93

Saz,e6i.o+

s339,928.37

s256,577.33 i

S42,863.04
{s20,870.40)

So.oo

So.oo

{Sra,soo.oo1
s161,200.00
(s13.s52.0o)

S13,ss2.oo
$121,829.60

s8,436.00

$18,s00.00
So.oo

513,ss2.00
So-oo

iaiB,gza.zt

s121,829.50

Consultant

FountainHead Prime

Breakdown:
Fountainhead ln House

ZT Consulting
Earthspectives

Jericha Systems

Geode Environmental
Sierra Geotechnica I Services

Eastern iierra engineering

Totali

Delta



In the Rmms of the Boatd of Supercisors
County of Inyo, Statc ol Califbrnia

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 7'h dayof July2020an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

Public Works-
Fountainhead
Consulting Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve the contract
between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consultlng Services of Anaheim, CA for the
performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge
Construction Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7, 2O2Q
through December 31,2021, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

/ItITNESS ny hand and the seal of said Board this 7th

nay of JULY, 2A20

cLrNT G. gUll.7'ER
Clerk of the Bourd of Supervisors

&Ah,-L

Routing

cc
Purchasing

Personnel

Audilor
CAA:
Othet: PublicWotks
DATE: Julv7,2020

By:



+-l.l

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: Ju|y7,2020

FROM:

SUBJECT: North Round Valley Bridge Construction Management Contract

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between lnyo County and Fountainhead Consulting Services of Anaheim,
CA for the performance of construction management services for the North Round Valley Bridge Construction
Project in an amount not to exceed $339,928.37 for the period of July 7,2020 through December 31,2021, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

North Round Valley Bridge is a complex project that requires an on-site construction manager who can perform
inspections that Public Works does not have the expertise or capacity to fulfill. Fountainhead construction will
perform the work described in the attached 'Scope of Work' including but not limited to: contractor management,
budget and schedule tracking, inspection of work, structural representation, biological monitoring, and source
material inspection.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
North Round Valley Bridge was washed out during the runoff of 20'17 for which a state(2017-1 1) and county
emergency were declared. The washout occurred behind the abutments, resulting in a need for a significantly
larger bridge (span increase of 40 feet). Public Works is preparing to go to bid for the construction contract and
has secured a Construction Management firm (Fountainhead Consulting Corporation) to perform on-site
inspections, monitoring, and contractor management.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the contract, however this would prevent the project from moving
forward,

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The State of California Office of Emergency Services is funding this project at a reimbursement rate of 75o/o.

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5717 (Construction
lnspection). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services (DSR
3602).



Agenda Request
Page2

ATTAGHMENTS:
1. Fountainhead CM Contract - lB Signed

APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Aaron Holmberg
MichaelErrante

Created/l nitiated - 6129 12020
Approved - 613012020
Approved -613012020
Approved -613012020
Approved -613012020
Final Approval - 613012020



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulling Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF construcrionl\,{anas6menr SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafler referred to as "County") has the need for the
Construclion Management Of Fountainhead consulting Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant'), and in consideration the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the Director ot Public Works,

Michael Errcnto Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimurn level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, as applicable, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement Shall be f;.911 July7rh,2020 Dc@mb€r 311h, 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County shall have two options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

A. From through

B. From through

County shall exercise such options by giving written notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specify the period of lhe options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Cory,gensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and oer diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56

(lndependent Consultant - Professional)
Page I of 12

10102017



Consultant shall request approval by the Coung prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses, Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the
Director of Public Works, Michaol Etrante Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Attachment C). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or which are incurred by the Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit unon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

339,92S.37 (initialterm)
total

(option 1) and $ (option 2) lor a
to as "contract limif'). County expressly reserves(hereinafter referred

the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
wttich is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pawnent. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the Coun$'s request. This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth
(5th) day of the month, The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month. This statement will idenlify the
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day.
Consultant's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules, Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under this

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
the sole responsibility of Consultant. Counly has no responsibility or liabilig
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependont Consultant - Professional)

Page 2 ol 12

(4)

10102017



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the Coun$
an lnternal Revenue Servioe (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A, which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by Coun$.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide
Gounty, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: h!!pi4MSg&!L.9.

6. OFFTCE SPACE, SUPPL|ES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, eguipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incurred by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive properg of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially responslble for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind wtrich are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Consultant has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Consultant and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct thernselves as independent Consultant's, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemniff, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from the sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including attorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or
anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consultanfs obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than the minimum required on the lnsurance aftachment to this Agreement, the County requires
and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.

To the extent permifted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 ot 12

10102017



11, RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLAT|oN.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant thirty (30) days vwitten notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancelthis Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior wriften consent of County.

'5. 
DEFAULT

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed io be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

(lndependent Consultanl - Professional)
Page 5 of 12

10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under lhis Agreement, shall be privibged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Consultant without the Coun$'s written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respecls.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to lhe contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Tite 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portabilig and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLICTS

Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT,

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Fu(her, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application lhereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION,

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of avaihble funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant lo this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twen$-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in wriften form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity,

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page6of12
10102417



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consuftant or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo:
PublicWorks Department

Address
Ci$ and State

P.O" DEWBTQ

Consultant:
Founlalnhoad Consultlng Corporatlon Name

Address
Ci$ and State

2400 E, Katelli, Sulte 800

lndop€nd€ncg, CA

Anahoim, CA 92806

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements othenaise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in vwiting executed by the parties hereto.

ilt ilil

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consullant - Professional)

Page 7 ot 12

10102017



AOREEiIENT EEIWEEN GOUN'Y OF IITIYO

AND Far{*rhd corf ll! C€oordbn

FOR THE PROVISION OF Ca.rSua0ool&ililnrl 9ERV|CES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR tlANDS AND SEALS fiIStl' DAY OF &rt E&

COUilTY OF INYO

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND LEGALITY:

&^ra O^Al-
Gouniy Counrcl

Drtcd:

APPROI/ED AS TO ACCOI'INTING FORM:

TO

APPROVEOAS

( '*' uan*/"/o
County Ardltor

By:

lvan

Dated;

Counly ol lnyo Sltdld Cmhrct . No. ts€
{lnd+.nder* CorEdlanl - Prolbt.lonrl)

Prgr 0 of 12

|fim017



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: JulY 7th, 2020 December 31,2021

SCOPE OF WORK

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependenl Consultant - Protessional)

Page I of 12

SERVIGES

10102017



lnyo County Public Works
Page 7 of 16

Request for Proposals
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

business relationship with the construction contractor(s) who are working on the projects that are assigned
for material Quality Assurance services through task orders on the contract.

Similar to the disclosures regarding contractors, all firms are also required to disclose throughout the term of
the awarded contract, any Design Engineering services including claim services, Lead Project Management
services and Construction Engineering Services provided to all other clients on any local proiect listed in this
Scope of Work.

In addition to the disclosures, the Consultant shall also provide possible mitigation efforts, if any, to eliminate
or avoid any actual or perceived conflicts ofinterest.

The Consultant shall ensure that there is no conflict before providing services to any construction contractor
on any of the agency's projects' listed in this Scope of Work, The submitted documentation will be used for
determining potential conflicts of interest.

If a Consultant discovers a conflict during the execution of an assigned task order, the Consultant must
immediately notify the Contract Manager regarding the conflicts of interest, The Contract Manager may
terminate the Task Order involving the conflict of interest and may obtain the conflicted services in any way
allowed by law. Failure by the Consultant to notify the Contract Manager may be grounds for termination of
the contract

Some examples of conflict of interest are the following:
. Certlfied Materials Tester(sJ or Plant Inspector[sJ from the same company that performs Quality

Control for the Contractor and Quality Assurance for the County on the same project,

Providing services to construction contractor's subcontractors, fabricators, equipment installer,
material suppliers and other firms associated with the projects listed in the Contract can be a
potential conflict of interest when such contractor teams are identified.

Scope oflffork
The scope of work defined below is based on the County's current understanding of the work to be
performed. The consultant shall review the design documents and environmental permits to identify any
components not explicitly or implicitly included in this SOW.

Phase I - Pre-Construction
. Review RE Files provided by MGE Engineering, make or request any changes necessary
o Review plans for constructability, advise the County and design engineer
r Review contractors proposed schedule, advise the County and design engineer on potential issues
r Pre-Construction/Kick-off meeting - Attend and Participate in a Pre-construction meeting
r Veriff all permits are acquired and present at site

o Review all permit requirements
r Produce Construction oversite Plan

o Include construction oversite schedule, to be updated weekly in coordination with
contractor

o ldenti$r inspection and material testing requirements, frequencies, personnel required (i.e.
material tester, structural inspector, bio monitorJ, and schedule fto be included in the
construction oversite schedule)

Phase II - Construction
r Schedule, lead, and attend weekly (or as needed) construction progress meetings

o Provide minutes and action items, to be sent to stake-holders
. Review contractor supplied critical path management schedule, update on weekly or as-needed

basis



lnyo County Public Works
Page I of 16

Request for Proposals
North RoundValley Road Bridge Replacement

r Process Progress Payments
o Prepare monthly quantity estimates, check against contractor invoice statements, make

recommendations to the County regarding payment
. Negotiate and prepare contract change orders, in coniunction with design engineer ifneeded
r Provide and coordinate with additional required personnel, including but not limited to:

o Structulalrepresentative
o Material Tester
o Biological monitor

r Submittals & RFIs
o Review submittals and RFIs, including responses from design engineer, and incorporate any

changes that effect required inspections/testing
o Coordinate with design engineer regarding submittal/RFI responses, and potential changes

to inspections/testing based on responses
r Provide full-time inspection services

o Produce daily RE diaries, including but not limited to:
r Track Contractor days
. Track Contractor working hours including employee names
r Subs on site
r Major equipment on site and status
. Description of work completed and task completion status (estimated %o of total)
r Weather
. Catalogofstop-workandcauses
r Any QA/QC work performed including any test/inspection results, pass/fail status

of test/inspection, and any comments that are important for explaining observed
results

o Keep record ofall as-built changes for inclusion into the final project as-built drawings
o Track quantities of materials used,/installed
o Ensure and document compliance with all environmental permits
o Collect, review, and compile contractor labor compliance documents
o Inspect construction staking to assure compliance to relevant standards

r Provide sub-contractor to perform quality control material testing services, review results for
compliance with construction contract specifications.

o Notify contractor of any failing tests
o Provide material tester with weekly schedule up-dates and projections of coming testing

requirements for following week
o Verify material tests are performed in compliance with the County QAP

o Provide structural inspection when required
r Provide a on-site biological monitor to fulfill requirements of all environmental permits
r Public Outreach

o Provide information to County Project manager to be distributed to public via mailings,
website, 0r other media

Phase III - Post-Construction
. Proiect Closeout Tasks (Following substantial completion of workJ

o Perform site walk and create a punchlist of items to be completed by contractor (or
deducted from final payment)

o Ensure sign-offfrom outside agencies confirmingthat restoration has been completed as far
as practicable

o Generate a final quantity estimate, review final contractor payment and provide
recommendations regarding payment to the County

r Generate Final Project Reporlto include:
o Summary and results of all QA/QC activities [inspections, material test results, etcJ
o Incorporate submittal and RFI logs (provided by design engineerJ
o Summary of monthly progress reports



lnyo County Public Works
Page 9 of 16

Request for ProPosals

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement

o Daily Reports
o Catalogofall as-builtchanges
o Summary/catalog of environmental monitoring compliance

APPENDIX A - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

These guidelines are provided for standardizing the preparation and submission of Proposal/Proposals by all
responding Consultants, The intent of these guidelines is to assist Consultants in preparation of their
proposals, to simpliff the review process, and to help assure consistency in format and content,

Proposals shall contain the following information in the order listed:

t, IntroductoryLetter

The introductory (or transmittal) letter shall be addressed to:

facob Trauscht
Inyo County Public Works
P0 Drawer Q
Independence, CA93526

The letter shall be on Consultant letterhead and include the Consultant's contact name, mailing address,
telephone number, facsimile number, and email address. The letter will address the Consultant's
understanding ofthe services being requested and any other pertinent information the Consultant believes
should be included. All addendums received must be acknowledged in the transmittal letter,

The letter shall be wet-signed in blue ink by the individual authorized to bind the Consultant to the proposal

2. Executive Summary

3. Consultant Information, Qualifications & Experience

The County will only consider submittals from Consultants that demonstrate they have successfully
completed comparable projects. These projects must illustrate the quality, type, and past performance of the
project team. Submittals shall include a detailed description of a minimum of three (3) proiects within the
past five (5J years which include the following information:

1. Contractingagency
2. Contracting agency Project Manager
3. Contractingagencycontactinformation
4, Contract amount
5. Funding source
6. Date ofcontract
7. Date of completion
8. Consultant Project Manager and contact information
9. Project Objective
10. Project Description
11. Project Outcome

4. OrganizationandApproach



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTYOF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FORTHE PROVISION OF Construction Management SERVTCES

TERM:

FROM: July 7th,2020 December 31,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

This contract shall allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modify the approved job classification list as
necessary to account for personnel changes. The Director of Public Works may only approve changes to the
Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contracl Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lnd6pendent Consultant - Professional)

Page l0 of 12

10102017



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10.H1
Cost Proposal

ExHrntt f0-H1 Cost PnopoSAL page I or3

COST.PLUS.FIXED F.ED oR I,UMP sUM oR FIRM FIXED PRICE CoNTRACTS

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRoNMENTnI Srunms)
Note: Mark'ups are NotAllowed E Prime Consultant E Subconsultant E 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant Fountainhead Consultinq Corporation

Project No.48C0044 Contract No. 156 Date 06t2512420

LABORCOSTS
a) Subtotal Dircct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

$ 119,784.00

c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR cosTs [(a) + (b)] $ 119,784.00

TNDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate: 0-99?6_ ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
f) Overhead (Rate: 0.00% ) e) Overhead [(c) x ({)]

h) General and Administrativc (Rate: 104.0W ) i) Gen & Admin Kc) x (h)l

$ 0.00

$ 0.00

$ 124,575.36

$ 124,575.36

FIXED FEE $ 12,217.97

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZE additional if

l) ToTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS tnnn

m) SUBCONSULTANTS'COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)
Subconsultant I i 7T (1nncr rtrinn $ 42,E63.04rc

-Tm3d630

Subconsultant 2: Farlhsnnctivcc

Subconsultant 4: Sierre Services $ 13,552.00

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS $ 83.351.04

j) TorAL INDIRECT cosTs [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE (c) + (i)l x fixed fee 5'00% l

Subconsultant ?: Jerioh o

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS TNCLUDTNG SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)]

rorAl cosT [(c) + (i) + (k) + (n)]
NO'TES:

Q A? ?R1 N/i

$ 339,928.37

l. Key personnel ggg be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prwailing wage requirements must be marked
with two asterisks (**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2, The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with lhe
consultant's annual accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans,

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Page 1 of9
January 2020

Classification/Title Name Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total

ProJBct Mansgor/Rssld€nl Eng.

Struclures RepGs€ntative

ln3psclor/Off @ Engln€€r Salvador Valdovinos

lvan Benavidez

Javid Sharifi

224.00

616.00

880.00

$ 81.00

$ 78.00

$ 60.90

$ 18,144.00

$ 48,048.00

$ s3,592.00

$ 0.00

Description of Item Ouantitv Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs $ 0.0c
Eouioment Rental ancl Srrnnlies $ 0.0c
Permit Fees soot
Plan Sheets $ 0,0c
Test



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 1O-Ht
Cost Proposal

Exngn 1O-Hl Cosr PnopoSAL ease z otl
qosr.PLus-FrxEp FEE oR Lutup SUM oR FIRM Frxeo PnnE CoNTRAcrs

(Car-culmorus Fo R ANT| ctpATED SALARY I rucnrnsrs)

1. CalculateAverageHourlyRateforlstyearoflheconlract{DlrectLaborSubtotal dividedbytotal houlsf

Direct Labor
$sllshlper Cost

Proposal

$250 000 00

Total Hours per
Cost Proposal

500

Proposed Escalation

+2Vo=
+ 2o/o -
+2%=
+2Yo=

Total Hours per Cost
Proposal

- 5000 =

' 5000 =
" 5000 =
' 5000 =
' 5000 =Total =

Estimated hours
(calculated above)

" 1000
' 2000
' 750
" 750
' 500

Avg
Hourly
Rate

$50.00

5 Year
Contract
Duration

Year 1 Avg
Hourly Rate

2. Calculatehourlyrateforall years(lncreasetheAverageHourlyRaleforayearbypropoaedacalalion%)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4

Avg Hourly Rate

$50.00
s51 00
$52.02
$53 06

Estimated % Completed
Each Year

20 0%
40,0%
15.0%
15.Oo/"

10,0o/o
100%

Avg Hourly Rate
(calculated above)

$50.00
$5',l.00
$52.02
$53 06
$54 12

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate
Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Hours per
Year

1000 Estimated Hours Year 1

2000 Estimated Hours Year 2
750 Estimated Hours Year 3
750 Estimated Hours Year 4
500 Esiimated Hours Year 5

5000

$51 00
$52.02
$53 06
$54 12

3. Calculate esllmatsd hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

Total

4. Calculate Total Coqt lncluding Escalatlon (Multply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Year 1

Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5

NOTES

Total Direct Labor Cost wilh Escalation
Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Dkect Labor Salay
lncrease

Cost per
Year

$50,000,00
$102,000 00

$39,015 00
$39,795.30
$27,060.80

$257,871.10
$250,000 00

$7,871.1 0

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2
Estimated Hours Year 3
Estimated Hours Year 4
Estimated HoursYear 5

Transfer to Page 1

1. Thisisnottheonlywaytoestimatesalatyincreases.Othermethodswill beacceptediftheyclearlyindicatethe%
increase, the # of years of the contlact, and a breakdown of the labor to be pelformed each year.

2. An estimation ihat is based on direct labol multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not
acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x2o/o x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3 This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted,
4. Calculations for anticipated salaly escalalion must be provided"

Page 2 of I
Januay 2020



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT IO-HI
Cost Proposal

Exxrarr 10-Hl Cosr PnOpoSAL page 3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

l, the undersigned, certify to the besi of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the
cost proposal(s) in this contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in
accordance with the conlract lerms and the following requiremenls:

1. Generally Accepted Accounling Principles (GAAP)

2. Terms and conditions of the contracl
3. Title 23 Uniled States Code Sec'tion 112 - Letting of Contracls
4. 48 Code of Federal Reoulations Part 31 - Coniract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5. 23 Code of Federal Requlalions Part 172 - Procurement, Managemeni, and
Administration of Engineering and Design Related Service

6. 48 Code of Federal Requlalions Part 9904 - Cost Acqountilo Standards Board (when
applicable)

Allcosts must be applied consislently and fairly to all contracls. Alldocumentation of compliance must
be retained in lhe projeclfiles and be in compliance wilh applioablefederaland state requiremenls.
Costs lhat are noncorpliant with the federal and state requiremenls are nol eligible for reimbursement.
Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caftrans accepted
lndireci Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consulta nt o r Subconsu ltanl Certifvinq :

Name
lvan Benavidez Jr *. Project Manager / Resident Engineer

Tille

Signalure : I va n B e n avid ez J r. Sltf ',v,$fr13'i1i1il".11fii "' Date of Certification (mm/dd/yyyy): 0612612020

Email: i benavidez@fountain headcorp. com Phone Number: 909.512.2815

Address :2400 E. Katella AVe, Ste 800, Anaheim Ca 92806

*An individual executive or financial officer of the consullant's or subconsullant's organizalion at
a level no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has
authority to represent the financial informalion utilized to establish the cost proposal for the
contracl.

List services ihe consu

Project Management, Construction Management and Material Quality Assurance Testing Services.

Page 3 of 9
January 2020



..S.(nS"
GEOTECHNICAI . GB0L0GY T IIIDR0GE0LOGY . BNVIRONMENTAL T I,IINBRAII| . It{llllNc . MAITRI JJ

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

2019

SERVICES

Profecglonal
Prlncipd Engineer/Geologst
Senior Engineer/Geologist
Project Englneer/Geologist
Staff Engtneer/Geologist
Enrdronmental Geologlst
Senior Reglstered Hydrogeologlst
Groundwater Geologist
Ereert l,Vltness/Deposition ('Fhr min)

FleldTechnlcil
Cerdfl ed Weldlng lrupector
Stncturd Weldlng Inspector
Certifi ed Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Sfuctural Boldng lnspector
Shrcilrd Steel Inspector
Relnforcln g Steel Inspector
Epory/Grout Dowel Inspector
Fleld Bnglneer/Geologist
Field Groundwater Geologlst
Senior Field Technician
FieldTedmician
Source Inspector
tlltrasonic Weld Tesdng
Magnetic Partcle Tesdng

Fteld Technlcel {Prerralfi ng Wage}
Certifi ed Welding Inspector
Structural Welding Inspector
Cerdfied Concrete/Masonry Inspector
Structural B olting Inspector
Struchrrd Steel Inspector
Relnfordng Steel Inspector
Epoly/Grout Dowel lnspector
Field Englneer/Geotogist
Fleld Groundwater Geologst
Senlor Fleld Technlclan
Fteld Technician
Source Inspector
lrltrasonicWeld Tesdng
Magnedc Panicle Tesdng

Code
PEG

SEG

PG

STEG

EG

SRI{

SGG

EW

Code
CwI
sWI
ccr
SBI

ssI
RSI

EDI

FEG

FGG

SFT

m
SI

UST

MPT

Code
CWIP

SWIP

cctP
SBIP

ssIP
RSIP

EDIP

FEGP

FGGP

SF|IP

FTP

SIP

USTP

MPTP

Rate

$15s
$13s
$120
$100
$13s
$20s
$13s
$2s5

Rate

$125
$11s
$115
$115
$115
$105
$1os
$100
$110

$e0

$8s
$eo

$1ss
$155

Rate

$155
$1ss
$1s5
$155

$1ss
$140
$140
$140
$14s
$120
s1ls
$120
s20s
$20s

Page 1 of 3



Ofr cs and l,eboretory Technlqfl I
PruJect Coordlnadon
laboratory Technician
Office Supplies/Clerical
Outside SeMces

lob Supplies/Reproduction/Postage

F{utFnent f,.entel

Rebar Locator
Ulfasonic Weld Tester
MagneHc Weld tester
Diarnond Coring Rig

Torque Wrench/Skidmore
Water QudttyProb€
Water Level Sounder

Vehlde. Trayel. and Per Diem
Mlleage
Travel Tlme (200-mlle max)
Rooru and Board
Meals

I.ARONATORYTE.qTITG

-Sotle nld /tt['regates
Pro ctor [Standard Effort-[")
Prcctor (Modified Effort-{)
Proctor (Modifr ed Efiort-61
Proctor fRock Conection]
Prccbr [Check Point)
Wet Denstty (Caltrans Tube)
Durability lndex
Hydrometer
Plasdcitylndex
Liquid Limtt
Plastic Lirnit
R-Value (CAINV Untreated)
Sand Equtvalent
Slevefuialysis
Siwe Analysls wtth 200 Wash
Speciflc Gravity (Coarse)

Speclflc Gravlty (Flne)

.S,(:-uq"

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

Code
RL

twT
Mw'r
DCR

TWS

WQP

wLs

Code
MI
TT
RB

M

Code
sDc4
MDC4

MDC6

RC

CKPT

ccr
DI
HY

PI

LL
Pt
RV

SE

SA

sAw
sGc

SGF

Test Met[od
ASTM D698
AIITM D1557
ASTM D1557
A,STM D4718
ASTM D1557
cT2t6
ASTM D3744 ICT 229
ASTIID+22
cT204
ASTM D4318
ASTM D4318
i$TMD2844|CT 301
ASTMD2419/CT2t7
ASIM C136ICT 202
ASTMCll7
NtTMCtz7lCT206
ASTM C128ICT207

GBOTECHNICAL. GBOltrGY. HYDROCE0LOGY . BI'IVIRONMBNTAI . I'lINBf,Alli . MIlllNG . MATBRIAIS
2019

Code
PC

LT
os

Rate

s8s
s90
$6s

11596

lts%

Rete

115%
115%
115%

$80

$so
$s0
$2s

Rate

$.70lmi
$8s

115%
$eo

Rate

|225
f23o
$250

f160
$ss

f,22S
]225
f215
$30s
$165
$16s

115%

$us
$11s
$145
$135
$135

Page 2 of3



.S.{f,'}q

CBOTECHNIOALTGEOLoGY.HIDROGEoLoGY.BNVIRONMBI\ITALrHlllRAIlloMINIIfG.MAfiHAG

SGS SCHEDULE OF FEES

Cleanness Value
Practured/Crushed Parfr cles

UnltWetght

Shesrand Con3olldedon
Dlrect Shear (Undlsturbe4 3-Point)
Dlrect Shear (Remolde4 3-Point)
Cousolidadon (8-P otnt)
Addldond Polnts

Gonsele
Compressive Test Cyllnder
Compressive Test Grout Sample

Compressive Test Grout Prism
Compressfue Test Monar Cyltnder
Comprcssive Test Shomte Core
OvenDryDenslty
Equilibrium Density

Aepheltend Pnvernent
Afphalt Extracdon by lgnldon
Aggrcgate Gradation of E:rtr:aced Sample
Moisture Content of Asphalt
Speclfic Gravlty of Asphalt Core
fireorcdcal Mor Specific Gravlty/Density
Stabllometer Test

cv
FP

IIWA

e[227
ASTM D5821 ICT 205
cr212

TestMethod
ASTM D3O8O

ASTM D3O8O

ASTM D2435

2019

$10s
$1s5
$105

Rate

$2ls
$z3s
$3ss

$ss

Code
UST

RST

coN

Code
ccr
CTGS

CTGP

CTMC

cTsc
ODD

EDD

TestMethod
ASTM C39
ASTM C39

ASru c39
ASTM C39

ASTM C39

ASTM C567
ASTM C567

TestMethod
cr 382
cT202
er370
cT 308
cT 309

cT 366

Rate

$*r
f*s
$6s
$+s
$+s

$12s
Request

Code
IGN

GES

MCA

SGAC

RICE

IIVEEM

Rate

s250
$115
$10s

$60
$165

115%

Page 3 of 3



47 1sl Street, Suite 1

Red ands, CA S23734601
(909) 91Sssoo

Rete Sheet

Perronncl Crtcsorr RrB : Charges will bc made at thc Cdcgory rdtes sct fodh for thc tino spcnt on
project nanagcment oonsultation or meetingp rclated to fte ploject, field work, nryort geparetion and
leview, travcl timc to and fiom thc job sitc, *c.

Porition Titlc
Alsigucd hourp retofor
tho duradou of the
contrect

Priacipal In Charce $157.00
Smior Regulatory Specialist $15?.00
hogramManagcr $157.00
Scnirr Ecologist $l/t0.00
CEQAfIEPA Spocialist $140.00
Environnental Project Manager $140.00
Environmental $l,m.00

$140.00
Scnior Biologist $140.00
FAA Licensod UAV Pilot $135.00
Biologist $12t.00
FioldBiologist $r 10.00

$110.00

$105.00
General Conslmction Monitor $105.00
Adminishative $ 65.00

EmcnrclBlllcd At$ort:

Travel (non-automobile)
Lodging
Auto andTruckRentals
Specialty Equipme,nt and Reirtals
Delivery Scrvices
Ptfufng @luepriuts, Photo Sewices, Color Copies

Sp€oislty Supplies)

OOcr Illrect Cmt:

Auto Mileage (atcurrcnt IRS rab)
Agensy PetmitFees (At Cost)
Subconsultmb - Cost Phu 3%

JaddroSms, lnc 2020



Eartcrr, 5r"rt" lrr,c S*r',ifi *
19 X-nctdc

(rattqLlg.,C qfr$

Prevailing Wage
Pricslist 2O2O

Gategories Hourly Rate

Survev crew (Prevailino Waoe) $260

Calculation time $100

Proiect Coordination $100

Boundary Map Research s100

Drafting $100



TC ZTC 2020 Hourly RaE

ZT CONSULTING

lar irUr{s offie

PJ :-: : r'; ,j

Tt/pc of Servlcr

Erglneedng Serulce

clA Fleld lrcpectlon
SeMces(Pmlllngf

rfc Hourlv Rate 2020

Tide Quallficatlon

Senior Quality

Assistant

cwt, Pcilt,/ilt,
ASNT NDTQ\ lnspector

r Minimum four hours inspegtion servrces
? Overtime rate applies after 8 hours on the Job on the weekdays and any hours worked on Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays.

Otlur Dlrlct Cost ..

trr This approximate cost. All the sub invoices are pass through, nC does not markup the subs invoices.

Per DIR

requirements

1
5.n 8erurdlrc Ome
:'i- ,- :-

:.."t- :'. ": . -.t a: ?:-:.:
Pl'.''.-- .'^-^

Hourv Rate

Proj€ct Manegement PM PE Szro

PE / CQA Sre+.ao

Quallty
Enclneer

PE $rrs.so

EIT Sso.as

ClASource lnspcedon
Senttses

0A lnspector
cwt, Pcilt/il,

ASNT NDT

tIr/MT
5109.15r,2

lbm Qurntty Apprcr. UnilCst TotrlAmunt
Millage TBD (Federal Rate) 5 0.575 / mile TBD

Travel in-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx.5600/Tdp TBD

Travel Out-of-State TBD (Caltrans Policy) Approx. 51,200/Trip TBD

Bearing Pad / Elastomer Testing TBD (Zl'C Sub **t) 51,500 / Unit TBD

Epoxy Coating Testing TBD (ZC Sub rrr) 5150 / Per Sample TBD

Strand Testing TBD (ZTC Sub **r) s1"80/ PerTest TBD

Anchor BoltTesting TBD (ZIC Sub *'r) 5350 / Per Set TBD

Hoop Testing / Couplers (<s11) TBD (ZIC Sub i'r) $160 / Per Sample TBD

High Strength Bolts TBD (ZfC Sub i'*) $155 / per bolt set TBD

Prestressing Cornponents TBD (ZIC Sub .**) 5125 / per sample TBD

Fl 818-369.6667 El lntoeztcgrp ffi Wl w ztqrp cm



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF II{YO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM

FROM: July 7th,2020

SCHEDULE OF TRAVELAND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Prolessional)

Page 1 'l of 12

December 31,2021

SERVICES

10102017



ATTACHi'ENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Fountainhead Consulting Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Construction Management

TERM:

FROM: July7lh,202} December 31,2021

SEE ATTAGHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 12 of 12

SERVIGES

10102017



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND LIMIT OF INSUMNCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Liability [CGL]: Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL
on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISo Form cG 20 l0 11 85 or both cc 20 10, cG 20 26, cc 20 33, or cG 20 38; and cG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certi$ring that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability [Errors and 0missions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no Iess than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not Iess than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademark trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andf or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services
Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor, Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 0t 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A;VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County,

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
L' The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5J years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



Attachment D: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements [or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy ofthe Declarations and Endorsement Page ofthe
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
anytime.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veri$r that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modiff these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature of the risk prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professiona I Services

Page



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3523  

 

Notice of Completion for Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock 
Project 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board approve Proposed Resolution No. 2023- 05 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California Authorizing the Recording of a Notice of 
Completion for the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project," and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
At the September 27th, 2022 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board awarded the construction 
contract for the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project to Clair Concrete, Inc. of Bishop, California in the 
amount of $113,260.00. The final construction contract amount is $113,260.00. 
 
Clair Concrete, Inc., recently completed work on the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project. On January 6th, 
2023, the final inspection was performed and the work was determined to be complete to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Director. 
 
Accordingly, the Director is requesting that the Board adopt the attached Resolution, which accepts the 
completed work and authorizes the Public Works Director to record a Notice of Completion for the 
project. 
 
In addition to formally accepting the work, the Notice of Completion begins the period during which stop 
notices may be placed against the work. In the event that no stop notices are filed, the retention must be 
returned to the Contractor. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non General Fund (State Grant - Diaz Lake Boat 
Dock) 

Budget Unit 670300 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5640 
Recurrence One Time - Project Completed  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
N/A 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
N/A 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the proposed Resolution authorizing the Public Works Director 
to file a Notice of Completion and the Contractor would not be paid his retention. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project Resolution and Notice of Completion 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/16/2023 
Greg Waters Approved - 2/16/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/16/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 2/16/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 2/16/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/16/2023 
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 2/16/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION #2023 - 
 

“A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AUTHORIZING THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE 
DIAZ LAKE ADA BOAT DOCK PROJECT” 

 
 

WHEREAS, Michael Errante, Director of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo, has 
determined that the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project has been completed by Clair Concrete, Inc. in 
accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Public Works is hereby authorized 
and directed to sign and file with the County Recorder a separate Notice of Completion pertaining to the  
Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project. 
 
Passed, approved, and adopted this             day of                           2023 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
     
             
      Jen Roeser, Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
by       

Nate Greenberg, Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
P. O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93515 
 

 
 

                                                                                               The area above this line is for Recorder’s Use 

 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
 
1. A work of improvement known as the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project on the property hereinafter 
described was completed on January 26, 2023 and was accepted by the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo on    
February 21, 2023 
 
2. The property on which the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project has been completed and is located on is at 
5007 South Main Street, Lone Pine, CA 93545 
 
3. Los Angeles Department of Water & Power, the address of which is 111 N Hope Street, Los Angeles, CA 
90012 owns and maintains the property located at 5007 South Main Street, Lone Pine, CA 93545 
 
4. The undersigned, Michael Errante, is the Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo and has been duly 
authorized pursuant to Resolution adopted February 21, 2023 by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo 
to execute and file this Notice of Completion. 
 
5. The name of the original contractor that constructed the Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project, pursuant to 
contract with the County, is Clair Concrete, Inc. 
 
Pursuant to the contract, the contractor was required to furnish all labor, materials, methods or processes, 
implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation services, and all other items and related functions 
which are necessary or appurtenant to construct the project designated in the contract. 
 
       COUNTY OF INYO 
 
 
 
Dated:        By:         
       Michael Errante, Director of Public Works 



 

VERIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
     )  SS. 
COUNTY OF INYO  ) 
 
 
I, Michael Errante, hereby declare: That I am the Director of Public Works for the County of 
Inyo, a political subdivision of the State of California, the public entity on behalf of which I 
executed the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION for the  Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock 
Project, and which entity is the owner of the aforesaid interest or estate in the property therein 
described; that I am authorized by the public entity to execute this NOTICE on the entity’s 
behalf; that I am authorized to and hereby make this verification on behalf of the public entity; 
and that I have read said NOTICE and know the contents thereof.  I declare under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California that the NOTICE and the information set forth 
therein are true and correct. 
 
 
 
Dated:      ____________________________________ 
      Michael Errante 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3489  

 

Appointments to Fill Vacancies on the Water 
Commission 

Water Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Aaron Steinwand, Water Director Aaron Steinwand, Water Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board consider the Letters of Interest received for re-appointment to the Water Commission and 
appoint two Water Commissioners with a term ending December 31, 2026; and appoint one Water 
Commissioner to complete a term ending December 31, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Water Commission currently has three vacancies, two with a term ending December 31, 2022 and 
one with a term ending December 31, 2023.  The Assistant Clerk of the Board has advertised this 
vacancy in accordance with County policy.  Prior to the application deadline, two Letters of Interest were 
received from Teri Red Owl and Paul Huette seeking re-appointment to the Commission to complete a 
four (4) year term of office ending December 31, 2026 and one was received from Robert Dan Berry to 
complete the term ending December 31, 2023.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
    
 
 
Additional Information 
Water Commission stipends and travel expenses are budgeted and paid from the Water Department 
budget (024102). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Not appoint a Commissioner at this time and re-advertise to fill the vacancy. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

1. Paul Huette - Request for Reappointment  
2. Teri Red Owl - Request for Reappointment  
3. Dan Berry - Request for Appointment 
  
APPROVALS: 
Laura Piper Created/Initiated - 2/2/2023 
Holly Alpert Approved - 2/2/2023 
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 2/3/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Laura Piper Approved - 2/8/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 





     

 
 

December 6, 2022 

 

 

Honorable Dan Totheroh, Board Chairperson 

Honorable Jennifer Roeser, Vice Chairperson 

and Honorable Board of Supervisors 

County of Inyo 

P.O. Drawer N 

Independence, CA 93526 

 
 Re: Inyo County Water Commission – Request for Reappointment 
 

Dear Honorable Totheroh, Roeser, and Honorable Supervisors: 

 

I am writing to respectfully request you reappoint me to the Inyo County Water Commission.  My term 

expires on December 31, 2022.  I hope to continue to serve the residents of Inyo County in my capacity as a 

Water Commissioner.    

 

I believe the Water Commission is an important forum that assists with getting information to the public and 

receiving the public’s input on a variety of water-related topics in Inyo County.  It is also a body that helps to 

ensure the agreements between Inyo County and Los Angeles are implemented and followed. 

 

I have always done my best to ensure that the Inyo County Water Commission fosters an atmosphere of 

public participation and open dialog.  I have also worked hard to advocate for the health of our environment 

while balancing the City of Los Angeles’s right to export water from Inyo County. 

 

I have dedicated the necessary time and I am fully committed to serve another term on the Inyo County 

Water Commission to help protect the beautiful place Inyo residents call home.  I have enjoyed serving on 

the Water Commission and hope to be re-appointed. 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Teri Red Owl 



-----Original Message-----
From: Dan Berry <rdanberry@me.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 2:30 PM
To: Darcy Ellis <dellis@inyocounty.us>
Cc: Matt Kingsley <mkingsley@inyocounty.us>
Subject: Inyo County Water Commision

 

Hi Darcy,

I am requesting consideration for appointment to fill the vacancy on the Inyo County Water 
Commission. I am a Lone Pine resident, and have a strong understanding of the current and historical 
water issues in Inyo County and the Owens Valley in particular. I served on the Inyo County Planning 
Commission in the late 1990’s including serving as the chair for one year.

Please let me know if you need additional background or other information to be considered for this 
position.

Thank you and best regards,

Robert D. “Dan" Berry
rdanberry@me.com
(530)228-3297

mailto:rdanberry@me.com
mailto:dellis@inyocounty.us
mailto:mkingsley@inyocounty.us
mailto:rdanberry@me.com


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3497  

 

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report 
County Administrator 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Denelle Carrington, Senior Budget Analyst Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: 

A. Accept the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report as presented; 
B. Approve the specific budget action items and recommendations discussed in the report, and 

represented in Attachments A & B (4/5ths vote required); and 
C. Direct staff to continue the emphasis on revenue attainment and expense savings in order to 

maximize year-end Fund Balances. 
 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Introduction 
 
The County Budget Control and Responsibility & Extraordinary Budget Controls Policy (Attachment C) 
requires department heads to submit Mid-Year and Third Quarter Financial Reports to the County 
Administrator. These reports are to provide projections of expenditures, revenues, and Net County Cost 
for the fiscal year and provide explanations and corrective action plans in the case of over-expenditures 
or under-realizations of revenues. 
 
The County Budget Team, consisting of the County Administrative Officer (CA), Auditor-Controller, and 
Senior Budget Analyst, use these reports from departments to prepare and submit the Mid-Year financial 
Report and the Third Quarter Financial Report to the Board of Supervisors. In order to submit a useful 
report to the Board, it is incumbent upon and expected of, each department to supply thoughtful and 
accurate information. 
 
The Mid-Year reports are particularly important to ensure that the County maintains course with regard to 
Budget. Failure to identify and address changed budget conditions during the Mid-Year process leaves 
precious little time for your Board to make course corrections later in the year. At Third Quarter there are 
fewer options available and those that are available are often more drastic than would otherwise be 
necessary to ensure that the County's budgets remain balanced through the end of the fiscal year. 
 
Overview 
 
Based on their Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year submittals, County departments are, generally, 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

managing their current budgets consistent with their projected revenues and the Board-approved 
appropriations contained in the Fiscal Year 2022-202 County Budget. With the exceptions noted herein, 
departments are reporting that their revenue projections remain on target, and that their expenditures will 
stay within appropriations. 
 
As recommended, the Mid-Year Budget presented for your Board's approval remains balanced by a 
combination of: 

A. Contributing $183,533 to General Fund Contingencies, which is a direct result of taking 
salary savings from General Fund Budgets that have current or unfilled vacancies for the 
first part of the fiscal year. This allowed revenue losses or increased expenditures to be 
covered without depleting contingencies. 

B. Utilizing $9,294 move in Fund Balances from various non-General Fund budgets. Overall, 
with the recommended increases, the County Budget relies on a total of $8,601,514 in 
non-General Fund Balances instead of the $8,592,220 in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
Working Budget. 

 
The overall effect of the departments' Mid-Year projections is that the recommended Mid-Year Budget 
changes the County's Working Budget as follows: 
 
 

Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 

Board Approved 
Budget 

Working Budget Mid-Year Budget 

    

County Budget    

Revenues $121,467,746 $122,275,965 $123,616,155 

Expenditures $131,981,852 $138,686,337 $140,035,821 

Net County Cost $10,514,106 $16,410,372 $16,419,666 

    

General Fund    

Revenues $73,803,176 $74,181,176 $74,021,785 

Expenditures $79,585,818 $81,999,328 $81,839,937 

Net County Cost $5,782,642 $7,818,152 $7,818,152 
 
The increase in revenues between the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Board Approved Budget and Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Working (or, "Current") Budget reflects budget amendments approved by your Board of 
Supervisors since the County Budget was approved last September. Based on department requests, this 
Mid-Year Financial Report recommends further increasing certain revenue projections from those in the 
Working Budget. This is due, primarily, to increases in the Bishop Airport Budget, Road Budgets, CAO-
ACO Budget, and the Recycling and Waste Management Budget, which allows the department to 
recognize additional funds to provide services. The even greater increase in expenditures between the 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Board Approved Budget and Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Working budget reflects the 
mechanics of rolling prior years' encumbrances into the current year's Board Approved Budget after 
adoption of the Budget. 
 
The apparent increase in Net County Cost from the Board Approved Budget to the Working and Mid-
Year Budgets is not necessarily a cause for concern. This is because prior years' encumbrances are not 
calculated as part of the prior year's year-ending Fund Balance. So, when the gap between revenues 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

and expenditures increases in the Working Budget, or in the Mid-Year Budget, the difference between 
the shortfall and Fund Balance can usually be attributed to the amount of the prior years' encumbrances. 
This year, prior years' encumbrances amounted to a total of $6,704,485, of which $2,413,510 was in the 
General Fund. (When a General Fund department unencumbers funds from a previous fiscal year, the 
monies are not left in that department's budget, but are transferred into the General Fund Contingencies 
Budget.) 
 
Background 
 
The instructions for the Mid-Year Financial Review submittal process continue to stress the importance 
of department heads accurately projecting revenues since, as already mentioned, meaningful corrective 
action needs to be taken as part of the Mid-Year financial Report (not later) if revenues are likely to be 
unrealized. Similar to recent years, department heads with budgets that, as of December 31, 2022, failed 
to realize at least 40% of the revenue in any revenue category (e.g., Charges For Current Services, 
Other Revenue, etc.) were required to provide a written explanation as to why, and indicate whether the 
revenue estimates will still be met. Similarly, if more than 60% of appropriations in any object category 
(e.g., Services and Supplies, Internal Charges, Salaries and Benefits, etc.) were expended in a specific 
budget as of December 31, 2022, the department head was asked to explain the reason. 
 
Also similar to previous years, departments were: (1) asked to refrain from requesting the use of General 
Fund Contingencies money without first developing a corrective action plan and submitting it with their 
Mid-Year Budget request to address all revenue shortfalls and/or over-expenditures; and (2) in most 
cases, prevented from moving Salaries and Benefits cost savings (associated with vacant positions) to 
other appropriation object codes representing ongoing costs. 
 
This Fiscal Year, the Budget Team reviewed all of the General Fund Budgets and utilized salary savings 
from vacant positions to cover known revenue shortages or expenditure increases within the General 
Fund. 
 
Process 
 
In an effort to facilitate the Mid-Year review process, departments are asked to enter their Mid-Year 
Budget projections directly into the County's Financial System (ONESolution). The Mid-Year budget 
changes being requested by the departments, and recommended by the CAO, are reflected in the Mid-
Year column in the attached ONESolution reports (Attachments A and B). If approved by your 
Board (4/5's vote required), the Mid-Year projections will become the new Working Budget. 
 
Most of the Mid-Year projections entered into ONESolution represent appropriation change requests 
that, under the County's County Budget Control and Responsibility & Extraordinary Budget Controls 
Policy (Attachment C), can be approved by the County Administrative Officer and/or the Auditor-
Controller (e.g., appropriation changes between object codes). These perfunctory appropriation changes 
are included as part of the Mid-Year Financial Review because, since these policies also allow 
departments to continue spending within budget appropriations at the object category (as opposed to 
object code) levels, departments have been encouraged to save these routine appropriation change 
requests until the Mid-Year and Third Quarter Financial Review processes in order to cut down on 
unnecessary appropriation change paperwork. 
 
By policy, some changes - such as appropriating new revenue, transferring money between funds or 
budget units, and appropriations in Contingencies - require approval by the Board of Supervisors (4/5's 
vote). Budgets with appropriation changes requiring Board approval (4/5's vote) are discussed below in 
addition to being quantified in Attachments A and B. 
 
Other Significant Issues 
 
The following are trends and issues, not necessarily discussed elsewhere, that are worth examining in 
this Mid-Year Financial Report because they directly and/or materially affect the Mid-Year process, or 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

otherwise have the ability to influence the County's fiscal position through the end of the Fiscal Year as 
well as affect next year's County Budget. Some of these issues have a revenue or expense component 
that could necessitate budget amendments later this fiscal year. 
 
Sales Tax. As of December 31, 2022 the County sales tax is reported at $827,995, or 50% of projected 
revenue totaling $1,650,000, while only having received 5 months of sales receipts from the State, which 
indicates the County is on track to meet the budgeted revenues for this fiscal year. 
 
Hotel Transient Occupancy Tax Revenue. TOT revenue at this point is still recovering from COVID 
shutdowns and COVID restricted travel from European countries. The County has not yet reached Pre-
COVID levels of travelers from Europe. The extreme weather resulting in the closure of Highway 190 had 
a negative impact in the Death Valley and Lone Pine area, resulting in lower than normal TOT 
collections. Finally, several operations took advantage of the mandated shutdowns and began facility 
improvements. Most are almost fully back online and the County is beginning to see the upward 
movement to TOT collections.  As of 02/13/2023, the County has received $1,918,187, which is a 
20.14% increase over the previous year. As long as no travel restrictions return, the County should make 
the revenue projection of $3,800,000. The Budget Team will keep a close eye on this revenue stream 
and reevaluate during the Third Quarter Budget Review if any changes need to be implemented. 
 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Status 
 
Personnel Changes: 
 
The following changes are requested to correct items that should have been included in the Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 Budget, or are new requests that can not wait until the next fiscal year due to new funding or 
grant opportunities: 

1. Delete one (1) Public Works Deputy Director 
2. Change one (1) job title from Public Administrator Guardian Assistant Director to Public 

Administrator Guardian Deputy 
3. Increase the Authorized Staffing in Administration by adding the following two positions: 

a. One (1) Eastern Sierra Council Of Governments (ESCOG) Executive Director 
b. One (1) Regional Broadband Coordinator 

4. When the Information Services Director position is officially vacated, change the Information 
Service Director title to Chief Information Officer and the salary to a Range 160 ($11,109-
$13,503), which aligns with the Board of Supervisors approved Salary Banding that was done 
in the previous fiscal year.  

5. Change one (1) job title from Assistant Director Information Services to Assistant Chief 
Information Officer.  

 
GENERAL FUND: 
 
General Fund budgets with significant Mid-Year changes, requiring your Board's approval (4/5's vote 
required) are discussed below in addition to being identified in Attachment A. 
 
Animal Shelter (023900). Revenues and expenditures have been increased by $4,000 to facilitate the 
increase in the purchase of a horse trailer that was included in the Board Approved Budget. There is no 
change to the Net County Cost. 
 
Assessor (010600). Revenues in this budget have been reduced by $40,000 in Operating Transfers In. 
The expenditures in Professional Services have also been reduced by $40,000. In the Board Approved 
Budget there was a total of $70,000 approved for the Coso Geothermal assessment.This contract has 
not yet been executed or discussed, so the revenues and expenditures have been reduced accordingly. 
Additionally, Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $181,159 to recognize the savings from 
current vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget has been adjusted accordingly. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
CAO - General (010200). Salaries and Benefits have been decreased by a total of $46,243 to recognize 
salary savings for current vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget has been adjusted. 
 
Contingencies (087100). As discussed above and below, in total, General Fund Contingencies have 
been increased by a total of $183,533. The total Salary and Benefit savings from all General Fund 
Budgets total $721,635. These savings were used to cover additional transfers, shortfalls in revenue and 
increases in expenditures in various General Fund Budgets. All of the changes are listed within each 
individual budget explanation. 
 
County Clerk - General (010300). The department decreased revenues by $47,681 due to lower 
Property Transfers and Recording Fees, and decreased expenditures by $9,053. This results in an 
increased Net County Cost of $368,178. However, the department made additional changes in the 
Elections Budget which resulted in the overage being covered, and also contributed additional funding to 
the General Fund Contingencies Budget. Department heads do have the ability to move funding from 
other budgets or cover overages within their department as a whole. All of these changes are discussed 
further below in the Elections paragraph. 
 
County Library (066700). The department increased revenues by $8,084 to recognized additional grant 
funding available. Expenditures were increased by $6,613 in order to spend the additional funds. The 
total net change results in a contribution to the General Fund Contingencies Budget. 
 
Economic Development (010202). The department requested an increase of $75,000 in expenditures 
in order to fund a consultant for future emergency services. The increase in Net County Cost results in a 
contribution from the General Fund Contingencies Budget. 
 
Elections (011000). The department made an overall increase in revenues of $9,556 to recognize actual 
funds received in Election revenues. Expenditures were reduced overall by $71,614 in Salaries and 
Benefits and Services and Supplies. The total decrease to Net County Cost is $81,170. Of that increase 
$38,178 is utilized to cover the increase in the County Clerk Budget (as discussed above) and the 
remaining $42,992 is placed in the General Fund Contingencies Budget. 
 
Environmental Health (045400). The Salaries and Benefits in this budget have been reduced by 
$41,605 to recognize savings from current vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies budget 
has been adjusted. 
 
ESCOG - Operating (011403). This budget is being established during the Mid-Year process. Revenue 
and expenditures are increased by $59,225 to cover the salary and benefit costs along with items 
needed for the new staff person. There is no cost to the General Fund for this position as all costs are 
100% reimbursable. 
 
General Relief (056500). The department increased revenue in SSI/SSP by $17,505 to recognize actual 
revenues received to date. The General Fund Contingencies Budget has been adjusted. 
 
General Revenues & Expenditures (011900). Revenues have been increased in Operating Transfers 
Out by $313,000. There is an additional transfer of $35,000 into Deferred Maintenance and a transfer of 
$278,000 to Recycling & Waste Management. The General Fund Contingies has been reduced to cover 
the increase in the Net County Cost. 
 
Information Services (011801). The Salaries and Benefits in this budget have been reduced by 
$61,789 to recognize savings from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget has been 
adjusted. 
 
Inyo County GOLD (056100). The department reduced expenditures by $1,777, which resulted in the 
deletion of this budget. All revenues and expenditures for this budget were absorbed into the ESAAA 
Budget during the budget process, and this action just cleans up the budget. The General Fund 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Contingencies have been adjusted. 
 
Jail - General (022900). The Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $41,199 to recognize savings 
from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies have been adjusted. 
 
Maintenance - Building & Grounds (011000). Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $23,267 to 
recognize savings from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies have been adjusted. 
 
Parks & Recreation (076999). The department increased expenditures by $43,927 due to an oversight 
during the budget process. Additionally, Salaries and Benefits were reduced by $71,654 to recognize 
savings from vacant positions. The overall net reduction of $27,727 is put in the General Fund 
Contingencies Budget. 
 
Probation - General (023000). The Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $126,981 to recognize 
savings from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget have been adjusted. 
 
Public Guardian (023600). The Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $12.695 to recognize 
savings from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget have been adjusted. 
 
Public Works (011500). The Salaries and Benefits have been reduced by $110,126 to recognize 
savings from vacant positions. The General Fund Contingencies Budget have been adjusted. 
 
Sheriff - General (022700). Revenues and expenditures have been increased to $78,669 in order to 
recognize additional COPS funding that is set to expire at the end of the fiscal year. This will facilitate the 
expenditure of the funds in the current fiscal year. There is no change to the Net County Cost. 
 
Treasurer-Tax Collector (010500). The department decreased revenues in the Delinquent Tax Sale 
Fee by $299,950 in order to transmit that the department will not be able to have the sale in the current 
fiscal year due to staffing shortages. Revenues were increased in Unclaimed Funds by $47,726 and a 
further increase of $3,925 was put into the Miscellaneous Revenues to recognize actual revenue 
received to date. The result is a total decrease of $248,749. The department reduced expenditures by 
$34,902 in Services and Supplies. Salaries and Benefits were reduced by $48,844, which results in a 
total reduction of $83,746 in expenditures. The increase of $165,003 in Net County Cost has been 
covered by an adjustment to the General Fund Contingencies. 
 
NON-GENERAL FUND: 
 
Non-General Fund budgets with significant Mid-Year changes, requiring your Board's approval (4/5's 
vote required), are discussed below in addition to being justified in Attachment B. 
 
Bishop Airport (150100). The department increased revenue by $385,635 due to an increase in the 
sales of fuel. Expenditures were increased by $316,571 to facilitate the purchase of additional fuel, 
higher Motor Pool expenses and higher utility expenditures. The total results in a contribution to the Net 
Cost to Fund. 
 
CAO - Accumulated Capital Outlay (010201). The department increased expenditures by $18,000 in 
External Charges to recognize the administrative expenses for the Clean Air Project Program II (CAPP 
II). This action allows the department to reimburse the Water Department for any administrative time 
spent on the CAPP II program, as the administrative revenue for this program currently sits in fund 
balance. Revenues were increased by $431,701 from the CAO-COVID19 budget to recognize the fund 
balance available from that budget. The Net Cost to Fund has been adjusted. 
 
CAO – General Relief Fund (010205). The department decreased expenditures by $19,567 in order to 
more accurately account for the actual expenditures needed in this fiscal year. The Net Cost to Fund has 
been adjusted accordingly. 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

CAO – COVID19 (010208). Expenditures in Professional Services have been reduced from $12,550 to 
zero. Expenditures in Operating Transfer Out have been increased by $431,701 to transfer the fund 
balance into the CAO-ACO Budget. The Net Cost to Fund is adjusted accordingly. 
 
Deferred Maintenance (011501). Revenues have been increased in Operating Transfers In by $35,000 
from the General Revenues and Expenditures Budget. Expenditures have also been increased in 
Structures & Improvements by $35,000. This increase will facilitate the paint and carpet for the old 
Environmental Health space and the pending move of Public Works staff into that space. There is no 
change to the Net Cost to Fund. 
 
ES Weed Management Grant (621300). The department increased revenue in Sales of Fixed Assets by 
$20,500. The Net Cost to Fund has been adjusted. 
 
First Five Commission (643000). Expenditures are increased by $17,708 in Professional Services to 
facilitate additional contracts. There are sufficient funds in fund balance to facilitate this increase and the 
Net Cost to Fund has been adjusted. 
 
Geothermal (010406). Expenditures have been reduced by $40,000 to recognize the decrease in the 
Assessors Budget. The Net Cost to Fund results in less fund balance being utilized. 
 
Homeland Security Grant 22-23 (623722). The department increased revenues and expenditures by 
$93,103 to recognize the revenue and expenditures for this budget. 
 
Independence Lighting (800101). The department increased expenditures in External Charges by 
$12,500. There is sufficient fund balance to cover this increase and the Net Cost to Fund has been 
adjusted. 
 
IMBC - Inyo Mono Broadband Consortium (612300). This budget is being established during this Mid-
Year process. Revenue and expenditures are increased by $78,946 in order to fund the new position and 
any items needed to perform their duties during the beginning of this new grant. There is no Net Cost to 
Fund as all expenses are eligible for reimbursement. 
 
LATA - Local Agency Technical Assistance (612200).This budget is being established during this 
Mid-Year process. Revenue and expenditures are increased by $15,000 in order to fund any items that 
are purchased or are done in the current fiscal year. There is no Net Cost to Fund as all expenses are 
eligible for reimbursement. 
 
Motor Pool – Operating (200100). The department increased revenues in Insurance Payments by 
$4,393; and Sales of Fixed Assets by $14,000 for a total increase of $18,393. Expenditures were also 
increased by $18,393 to account for higher Motor Pool expenses. There is no change to the Net Cost to 
Fund. 
 
Motor Pool – Replacement (200200). The department increased Sales of Fixed Assets by $14,000. 
The Net Cost to Fund is adjusted accordingly. 
 
Recorders Micrographic/System (023401). Revenues have been decreased in Recorder Micrographic 
Fees by $4,368; and Recorders System Updates Fees by $5,921 to represent more accurately what will 
be received by the end of the fiscal year. Revenues have been increased in Interest From Treasury by 
$100; and NSF Charges by $10 to reflect the actual revenues received. The total change in revenue is a 
reduction of $10,179. Expenditures have also been reduced by $10,179. There is no change to the Net 
Cost to Fund. 
 
Recycling & Waste Management (045700). Revenues in this budget have been increased in Operating 
Transfers In by $278,000 and expenditures have also been increased by $278,000. There is no change 
to the Net Cost to Fund. 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Road (034600). The department increased revenue in State Other by $40,000 and increased 
expenditures in North Round Valley Road by $40,000 to cover an increase in the project. Additionally, 
expenditures have been increased in Operating Transfers Out by $116,921 into the State Funded Road 
Budget due to an increase in the Lone Pine Streets Rehab project. There is sufficient fund balance 
available to cover the increase in the Net Cost to Fund. 
 
Salt Cedar Project (024502). The department decreased expenditures in Motor Pool by $2,000. The Net 
Cost to Fund has been adjusted accordingly. 
 
State Funded Road (034601). The department increased revenue in Operating Transfers In by 
$116,921 from the Road Budget and increased expenditures in Lone Pine Streets Rehab by $116,921 to 
cover increased costs to the project. The Net Cost to Fund remains the same. 
 
Tobacco Tax Grant 22-25 (640322). The department increased revenue in Operating Transfers In by 
$13,571 to recognize the actual allocation for this Fiscal Year. Expenditures were increased by $10,697 
in Advertising, Cell Phones, and Office, Space & Site Rental. The Net Cost to Fund has been adjusted. 
 
Water Department (024102). The department decreased revenue in Other Agencies by $25,895 to 
accurately reflect the amount to be received by the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures were decreased 
by a total of $1,175. There is sufficient fund balance available to facilitate this request. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund / Non-General Fund / Grant Funded  Budget Unit All County 
Budgets 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code  
Recurrence Annual Mid-Year Financial Review  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This is the standard annual Mid-Year Financial Review. Fiscal details can be found in the attached 
accompanying documents.  
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
The immediate financial impacts to the County from this Mid-Year Financial Review are reflected in the 
discussion and recommendations above and included in Attachments A and B (Attachment A 
represents the General Fund Budget, and Attachment B represents the non-General fund Budget). 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board has the option not to approve any of the specific recommendations and/or provide other 
direction to staff.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
All County departments provided the information necessary to compile this report, which has been 
prepared in close collaboration with the County Auditor-Controller.  
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 22-23 Mid-Year Financial Report Presentation 
2. Attachment A - General Fund Income Statement and Mid-Year Budget Review 
3. Attachment B - Non-General Fund Income Statement and Mid-Year Budget Review 
4. Attachment C - Budget Control and Responsibility & Extraordinary Budget Controls (Revised 

02.08.22) 
  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

APPROVALS: 
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 2/8/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 2/9/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/9/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fiscal Year 2022-2023



“These reports will provide a projection of the
department’s expenditures, revenues and Net
County Cost for the fiscal year and include
reasons for over-expenditures and/or under-
realization of revenues, along with a corrective
action plan by the Department.”

County Budget Control and Responsibility Policy



Fiscal Year 
2022-2023

Board-Approved
Budget

Working Budget Mid-Year 
Budget

County Budget
Revenues $121,467,746 $122,275,965 $123,616,155

Expenditures $131,981,852 $138,686,337 $140,035,821
Net County Cost $10,514,106 $16,410,372 $16,419,666

General Fund
Revenues $73,803,176 $74,181,176 $74,021,785

Expenditures $79,585,818 $81,999,328 $81,839,937
Net County Cost $5,782,642 $7,818,152 $7,818,152



This year Salary Savings were utilized to cover the known
shortages in revenues. Salary Savings were taken from
current vacant positions or positions that were vacant earlier
in the fiscal year. The following are the departments and
amounts utilized:

1. Assessor $181,159
2. CAO $46,243
3. Environmental Health $41,605
4. Information Services $61,789
5. Public Guardian $12,695
6. Probation $126,981
7. Public Works $161,120
8. Sheriff $41,199
9. Treasurer-Tax Collector $48,844

TOTAL $721,635



The following changes are requested to correct items that should
have been included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, or are
new requests that can not wait until the next fiscal year due to new
funding or grant opportunities:
1. Delete one (1) Public Works Deputy Director
2. Change one (1) job title from Public Administrator Guardian 

Assistant Director to Public Administrator Guardian Deputy
3. Increase the Authorized Staffing in Administration by adding 

the following two positions:
a. One (1) Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) Executive Director
b. One (1) Regional Broadband Coordinator

4. When the Information Services Director position is officially 
vacated, change the title to Chief Information Officer and 
change to range to Range 160 ($11,109-$13,503), which 
aligns with the Board of Supervisors approved Salary Banding 
that was completed in the previous fiscal year. 

5. Change one (1) title from Assistant Director Information 
Services to Assistant Chief Information Officer



 Sales Tax – on track to meet 
budgeted revenue

HTOT – On track to meet the 
revenue goals, as long as no 
travel restrictions return



Recommendations:

Adopt Mid-Year Budget As 
Recommended

 Stress revenue attainment and 
expense savings



BUD023 - Income Statement - General Fund
Mid-Year FY 2022-23

Run Date:

Page

02/10/2023

1

YTD as ofActual as of

12/31/2112/31/22

Mid-Year

Budget% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

County of Inyo

REVENUES BY TYPE

22.0% 1,536,189 9.4% 1,222,47016,314,743TAXES - PROPERTY

5.2% 999,112 25.5% 723,4063,908,081TAXES - OTHER

2.2% 827,994 50.1% 983,8941,650,000TAXES - SALES

1.0% 331,803 42.6% 215,534777,087LICENSES & PERMITS

1.3% 434,146 42.2% 552,6901,026,692FINES & FORFEITURES

0.0% 3,750 15.0% 5,00025,000RENTS & LEASES

0.3% 100,374 41.9% 56,078239,098REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY

44.8% 13,272,133 39.9% 11,645,07133,234,098AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

14.6% 3,019,204 27.7% 4,209,97610,870,824CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES

7.9% 2,747,612 46.8% 2,672,6485,867,409OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

0.1% 77,982 71.7% 40,761108,753OTHER REVENUE

100.0%Total Revenues by Type 74,021,785 23,350,304 31.5% 22,327,532

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT CATEGORY

60.1% 23,884,931 48.4% 22,293,42849,248,396SALARIES & BENEFITS

19.4% 6,533,634 41.0% 3,734,93715,906,310SERVICES & SUPPLIES

7.4% 2,504,714 41.2% 2,753,8876,077,154INTERNAL CHARGES

6.7% 2,190,990 39.8% 1,675,7895,496,839OTHER CHARGES

0.0% 34,717 49.8% 34,37269,622DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

0.0% 2,332 52.0% 2,6774,479DEBT SERVICE INTEREST

1.3% 325,955 28.7% 4,2881,134,354FIXED ASSETS

3.4% 216,002 7.7% 191,9962,790,382OTHER FINANCING USES

1.3% 1,112,401RESERVES

100.0%Total Expenditures 81,839,937 35,693,279 43.6% 30,691,378

(7,818,152) (12,342,974) 157.8% (8,363,845)Change in Fund Balance



BUD023 - Income Statement - General Fund

County of Inyo

Mid-Year FY 2022-23

02/10/2023

2Page

Run Date: Mid-Year Actual as of

Budget

YTD as of

12/31/22 12/31/21% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER

AGRICULTURAL COMM / SEALER 325,32647.8%358,810750,5920.9%
ASSESSOR

ASSESSOR 485,96045.7%539,7831,179,0421.4%
AUDITOR - CONTROLLER

AUDITOR CONTROLLER - GENERAL 550,10153.6%783,3671,460,3051.7%

GENERAL REVENUE & EXPENDITURES 761,36520.5%792,2203,858,5264.7%
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 368,75038.8%423,6601,089,1621.3%
CAO CULTURAL SERVICES

ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES 52,08555.2%172,718312,6530.3%

COUNTY LIBRARY 321,90848.9%574,1231,173,8091.4%

LAW LIBRARY 2,80214.1%3,88627,3970.0%

MUSEUM - GENERAL 128,02647.4%174,295367,4010.4%
CORONER

CORONER 95,11057.5%158,584275,3250.3%
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

CAO - GENERAL 435,31652.8%545,4371,032,9691.2%

CAO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 126,69658.4%623,2671,066,6181.3%

CONTINGENCIES - GENERAL 827,4011.0%

ESCOG-OPERATING 59,2250.0%

GRANTS IN SUPPORT 40,42660.2%82,466136,8640.1%

INFORMATION SERVICES 1,236,63650.0%1,446,4372,892,4693.5%

OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES 64,98419.1%91,818478,9830.5%

PERSONNEL 352,78545.8%819,9801,788,2202.1%

PUBLIC DEFENDER 340,55290.7%704,402776,0500.9%

RISK MANAGEMENT 132,13139.9%152,778382,3490.4%

VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER 83,71348.8%95,808195,9520.2%
COUNTY CLERK

COUNTY CLERK - GENERAL 193,82950.6%255,373504,0830.6%

ELECTIONS 245,78556.2%280,822499,6630.6%
COUNTY COUNSEL

COUNTY COUNSEL 440,51755.3%635,1531,147,4371.4%
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 633,70850.6%694,2281,369,3001.6%

DISTRICT ATTORNEY - SAFETY 438,96852.0%482,473926,8131.1%
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - GENERAL 485,42448.0%634,0651,320,8151.6%
FARM ADVISOR

FARM ADVISOR 76,85746.1%69,799151,2810.1%
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

CALIFORNIA CHILD SERVICE-ADMIN 53,36346.0%50,905110,6200.1%

CALIFORNIA CHILDREN SERVICE 6,53531.3%7,15822,8580.0%

CHILD HLTH AND DISABILITY PREV 18,13019.9%11,57458,0120.0%

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH 3,097,80435.8%3,141,5598,760,33010.7%

FOSTER CARE - GENERAL 404,21049.8%386,699775,0000.9%

GENERAL RELIEF 47,98220.4%35,855175,0000.2%



BUD023 - Income Statement - General Fund

County of Inyo

Mid-Year FY 2022-23

02/10/2023

3Page

Run Date: Mid-Year Actual as of

Budget

YTD as of

12/31/22 12/31/21% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

HEALTH - GENERAL 1,077,72228.1%1,021,8273,635,1884.4%

INYO COUNTY GOLD 169,903

SOCIAL SERVICES - GENERAL 3,526,41639.4%3,762,1209,527,37911.6%

TANF (AFDC) 321,56947.6%345,159725,0000.8%
PERSONNEL

INSURANCE, RETIREMENT, OASDI 1,571,83548.0%1,748,2163,638,7554.4%
PLANNING

PLANNING & ZONING 380,13047.8%488,0321,019,6081.2%
PROBATION

JUVENILE INSTITUTIONS 705,02147.1%732,3601,553,7261.8%

OUT OF COUNTY-JUVENILE HALL 79,53716.4%52,147317,9250.3%

PROBATION - GENERAL 724,35545.4%874,6201,925,9352.3%
PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR 154,30147.8%142,494297,9560.3%
PUBLIC WORKS

BUILDING & SAFETY 199,97945.9%205,036445,8370.5%

MAINTENANCE-BUILDING & GROUNDS 801,33246.3%1,098,0272,367,8042.8%

PARKS & RECREATION 492,65340.1%650,8241,621,2201.9%

PUBLIC WORKS 316,49959.8%520,238868,9281.0%
SHERIFF

ANIMAL CONTROL - GENERAL 366,69748.2%385,060798,3190.9%

DNA 1,00010,0000.0%

JAIL - CAD RMS PROJECT 25,93670.0%58,52183,5210.1%

JAIL - GENERAL 1,485,44047.7%1,583,6683,315,8044.0%

JAIL - SAFETY PERSONNEL 1,047,06958.2%1,044,0001,792,6772.1%

JAIL - STC 15,6052.6%70526,9700.0%

JAIL SECURITY PROJECT 1,0844.4%4,653105,5000.1%

KITCHEN SERVICES 368,89346.6%397,357851,0711.0%

RAN 10,0820.5%49296,8150.1%

SHERIFF - GENERAL 1,317,70444.7%1,526,5363,407,9054.1%

SHERIFF - SAFETY PERSONNEL 3,091,30452.1%3,408,3106,537,8967.9%
TREASURER

TTC GENERAL 384,34545.6%406,853891,3141.0%
TRIAL COURT

GRAND JURY 7,15526.6%6,49124,3600.0%

30,691,37843.6%35,693,27981,839,937100.0%



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER

AG COMM/SEALER

023300 AGRICULTURAL COMM / SEALER

REVENUES

74,870 74,87078,332 51,573LICENSES & PERMITS4100

355,112 355,112342,701AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

92,880 92,88092,072 1,425CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

522,862 522,862513,105 52,998TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

517,118 517,118457,809 271,363SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

39,947 39,94736,988 24,974SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

162,527 162,527157,143 62,475INTERNAL CHARGES5200

31,000 31,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

750,592 750,592651,940 358,812TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(227,730) (227,730)(138,835) (305,814)023300 NET COST

AG COMM/SEALER NET COST (138,835) (305,814) (227,730) (227,730)

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER NET COST (138,835) (305,814) (227,730) (227,730)

ASSESSOR

ASSESSOR

010600 ASSESSOR

REVENUES

70,000 30,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

5,000 5,0006,454 1,483OTHER REVENUE4900

75,000 35,0006,454 1,483TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,119,413 938,254851,137 449,401SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

98,000 57,96829,384 56,090SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

182,788 182,82064,855 34,293INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,400,201 1,179,042945,376 539,784TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,325,201) (1,144,042)(938,922) (538,301)010600 NET COST

ASSESSOR NET COST (938,922) (538,301) (1,325,201) (1,144,042)

ASSESSOR NET COST (938,922) (538,301) (1,325,201) (1,144,042)

AUDITOR - CONTROLLER

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

1Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

010400 AUDITOR CONTROLLER - GENERAL

REVENUES

261,000 261,00082,160 3,248TAXES - PROPERTY4000

1,650,000 1,650,0002,189,484 827,995TAXES - SALES4060

2,114,125 2,114,1253,260,007 1,003,592CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

483 4,810OTHER REVENUE4900

4,025,125 4,025,1255,532,134 1,839,645TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,093,015 1,093,015944,298 566,518SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

303,824 303,689163,105 190,934SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

63,466 63,60152,177 25,916INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,460,305 1,460,3051,159,580 783,368TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2,564,820 2,564,8204,372,554 1,056,277010400 NET COST

011900 GENERAL REVENUE & EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

16,053,743 16,053,74315,559,670 1,532,942TAXES - PROPERTY4000

3,800,000 3,800,0004,413,834 946,240TAXES - OTHER4050

235,400 235,400238,723 24,273LICENSES & PERMITS4100

895,000 895,000918,792 409,143FINES & FORFEITURES4200

185,500 185,500215,527 79,906REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

7,907,529 7,907,5297,640,026 5,190,776AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

141,300 141,300146,339 3,976CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

2,039,849 2,039,8492,625,503 2,038,598OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

26,334 13,657OTHER REVENUE4900

31,258,321 31,258,32131,784,748 10,239,511TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

133,066 133,066127,719 16,387SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,587,743 1,587,7431,354,936 676,667OTHER CHARGES5500

1,824,717 2,137,7173,855,492 99,166OTHER FINANCING USES5800

3,545,526 3,858,5265,338,147 792,220TOTAL EXPENDITURES

27,712,795 27,399,79526,446,601 9,447,291011900 NET COST

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER NET COST 30,819,155 10,503,568 30,277,615 29,964,615

AUDITOR - CONTROLLER NET COST 30,819,155 10,503,568 30,277,615 29,964,615

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

010100 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

2Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

760 479CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

150,000 150,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

150,000 150,000760 479TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

724,983 724,983572,210 350,767SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

149,309 149,30969,704 32,739SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

33,520 33,52026,519 15,156INTERNAL CHARGES5200

31,350 31,35025,000 25,000OTHER CHARGES5500

150,000 150,000FIXED ASSETS5600

1,089,162 1,089,162693,433 423,662TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(939,162) (939,162)(692,673) (423,183)010100 NET COST

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS NET COST (692,673) (423,183) (939,162) (939,162)

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS NET COST (692,673) (423,183) (939,162) (939,162)

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES

011402 GRANTS IN SUPPORT

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

3,000 3,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

133,864 133,86493,227 82,466OTHER CHARGES5500

136,864 136,86493,227 82,466TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(136,864) (136,864)(93,227) (82,466)011402 NET COST

ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES NET COST (93,227) (82,466) (136,864) (136,864)

CONTINGENCIES

087100 CONTINGENCIES - GENERAL

EXPENDITURES

643,868 827,401RESERVES5900

643,868 827,401TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(643,868) (827,401)087100 NET COST

3Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

CONTINGENCIES NET COST (643,868) (827,401)

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

010200 CAO - GENERAL

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

847,617 801,374798,123 429,304SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

174,370 171,72834,703 91,087SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

57,225 59,86739,098 25,047INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,079,212 1,032,969871,924 545,438TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,079,212) (1,032,969)(871,924) (545,438)010200 NET COST

011403 ESCOG-OPERATING

REVENUES

59,225AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

59,225TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

44,500SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

7,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

7,725INTERNAL CHARGES5200

59,225TOTAL EXPENDITURES

011403 NET COST

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER NET COST (871,924) (545,438) (1,079,212) (1,032,969)

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

010202 CAO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

224,633 224,633144,891 111,733SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

589,003 664,004155,725 506,366SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

17,982 17,981643 5,170INTERNAL CHARGES5200

160,000 160,000FIXED ASSETS5600

991,618 1,066,618301,259 623,269TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(991,618) (1,066,618)(301,259) (623,269)010202 NET COST

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT NET COST (301,259) (623,269) (991,618) (1,066,618)

INFORMATION SERVICES

011801 INFORMATION SERVICES

REVENUES

540,732 540,732435,578 131,598CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

300,000 300,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

948OTHER REVENUE4900

840,732 840,732436,526 131,598TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,804,048 1,737,2571,624,269 872,834SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

798,519 803,489642,243 536,618SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

76,691 76,72364,162 36,986INTERNAL CHARGES5200

275,000 275,000FIXED ASSETS5600

2,954,258 2,892,4692,330,674 1,446,438TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,113,526) (2,051,737)(1,894,148) (1,314,840)011801 NET COST

INFORMATION SERVICES NET COST (1,894,148) (1,314,840) (2,113,526) (2,051,737)

OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES

023700 OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES

REVENUES

175,000 175,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

100,000 100,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

275,000 275,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

214,801 214,80166,193 50,694SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

220,984 220,98426,460 34,354SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

26,198 26,19811,144 4,324INTERNAL CHARGES5200

17,000 17,0002,448FIXED ASSETS5600

478,983 478,983103,797 91,820TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(203,983) (203,983)(103,797) (91,820)023700 NET COST

OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES NET COST (103,797) (91,820) (203,983) (203,983)

PERSONNEL

010800 PERSONNEL

5Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

18,000 18,00018,000CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

4,810OTHER REVENUE4900

18,000 18,00018,000 4,810TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

622,348 622,348428,439 298,378SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

740,727 734,736232,509 453,582SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

140,145 146,13695,351 68,021INTERNAL CHARGES5200

285,000 285,000RESERVES5900

1,788,220 1,788,220756,299 819,981TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,770,220) (1,770,220)(738,299) (815,171)010800 NET COST

PERSONNEL NET COST (738,299) (815,171) (1,770,220) (1,770,220)

PUBLIC DEFENDER

022600 PUBLIC DEFENDER

REVENUES

190,000 190,000198,037 54,716AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

44,800 44,800106,362CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

234,800 234,800304,399 54,716TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

775,550 775,550645,719 704,401SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

500 50056 2INTERNAL CHARGES5200

776,050 776,050645,775 704,403TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(541,250) (541,250)(341,376) (649,687)022600 NET COST

PUBLIC DEFENDER NET COST (341,376) (649,687) (541,250) (541,250)

RISK MANAGEMENT

010900 RISK MANAGEMENT

REVENUES

345,593 345,593275,907 172,797CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

10,000 10,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

1,209 560OTHER REVENUE4900

355,593 355,593277,116 173,357TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

304,406 299,406228,838 124,177SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

60,931 65,51715,959 20,248SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

17,012 17,42613,314 8,354INTERNAL CHARGES5200

6Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

382,349 382,349258,111 152,779TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(26,756) (26,756)19,005 20,578010900 NET COST

RISK MANAGEMENT NET COST 19,005 20,578 (26,756) (26,756)

VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER

056600 VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER

REVENUES

93,864 93,86449,148 67,891AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

93,864 93,86449,148 67,891TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

140,498 140,498130,759 73,403SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

24,984 21,23410,173 7,460SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

28,470 33,22019,133 14,948INTERNAL CHARGES5200

2,000 1,000147OTHER CHARGES5500

195,952 195,952160,212 95,811TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(102,088) (102,088)(111,064) (27,920)056600 NET COST

VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER NET COST (111,064) (27,920) (102,088) (102,088)

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER NET COST (4,436,089) (4,130,033) (7,609,385) (7,759,886)

CAO CULTURAL SERVICES

ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES

011400 ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

69,400 69,40034,854 38,700SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,900 1,900INTERNAL CHARGES5200

241,353 241,353179,998 134,019OTHER CHARGES5500

312,653 312,653214,852 172,719TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(312,653) (312,653)(214,852) (172,719)011400 NET COST

ADVERTISING COUNTY RESOURCES NET COST (214,852) (172,719) (312,653) (312,653)

COUNTY LIBRARY

066700 COUNTY LIBRARY

7Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

181,809 189,89356,625 183,280AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

300 300399 163CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

55,000 55,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

3,550 3,5501,736 821OTHER REVENUE4900

240,659 248,74358,760 184,264TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

801,823 801,823562,169 316,470SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

94,667 101,280112,514 23,459SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

46,917 46,91736,420 21,235INTERNAL CHARGES5200

17,119OTHER CHARGES5500

223,789 223,789212,960FIXED ASSETS5600

1,167,196 1,173,809728,222 574,124TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(926,537) (925,066)(669,462) (389,860)066700 NET COST

COUNTY LIBRARY NET COST (669,462) (389,860) (926,537) (925,066)

LAW LIBRARY

022300 LAW LIBRARY

REVENUES

7,000 7,0007,035FINES & FORFEITURES4200

10,000 10,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

17,000 17,0007,035TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

27,397 27,39715,247 3,886SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

27,397 27,39715,247 3,886TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(10,397) (10,397)(8,212) (3,886)022300 NET COST

LAW LIBRARY NET COST (8,212) (3,886) (10,397) (10,397)

MUSEUM

077000 MUSEUM - GENERAL

REVENUES

32,500 32,5007,500AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

200 200161 14CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

25,000 25,0005,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

45,500 45,50013,396OTHER REVENUE4900

103,200 103,20026,057 14TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

8Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

245,656 245,656211,539 124,286SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

108,300 108,30033,844 43,550SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

13,445 13,44510,268 6,459INTERNAL CHARGES5200

367,401 367,401255,651 174,295TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(264,201) (264,201)(229,594) (174,281)077000 NET COST

MUSEUM NET COST (229,594) (174,281) (264,201) (264,201)

CAO CULTURAL SERVICES NET COST (1,122,120) (740,746) (1,513,788) (1,512,317)

CORONER

CORONER

023500 CORONER

REVENUES

150 150284CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

150 150284TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

95,904 95,90480,472 34,289SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

175,863 175,863116,347 122,564SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

3,558 3,5582,900 1,733INTERNAL CHARGES5200

275,325 275,325199,719 158,586TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(275,175) (275,175)(199,435) (158,586)023500 NET COST

CORONER NET COST (199,435) (158,586) (275,175) (275,175)

CORONER NET COST (199,435) (158,586) (275,175) (275,175)

COUNTY CLERK

COUNTY CLERK

010300 COUNTY CLERK - GENERAL

REVENUES

125,000 108,081152,519 52,873TAXES - OTHER4050

8,000 7,8627,912 3,931LICENSES & PERMITS4100

85,000 54,36482,537 27,719CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1214 12OTHER REVENUE4900

218,000 170,319242,982 84,535TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

429,524 421,196337,522 215,528SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

8,200 7,0147,772 5,446SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

75,862 75,87355,435 34,399INTERNAL CHARGES5200

9Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

513,586 504,083400,729 255,373TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(295,586) (333,764)(157,747) (170,838)010300 NET COST

COUNTY CLERK NET COST (157,747) (170,838) (295,586) (333,764)

ELECTIONS

011000 ELECTIONS

REVENUES

106,625AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

12,800 22,28725,720 14,952CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

69209 69OTHER REVENUE4900

12,800 22,356132,554 15,021TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

344,523 287,842219,058 140,929SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

150,780 135,581202,147 101,562SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

75,974 76,24070,926 38,332INTERNAL CHARGES5200

571,277 499,663492,131 280,823TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(558,477) (477,307)(359,577) (265,802)011000 NET COST

ELECTIONS NET COST (359,577) (265,802) (558,477) (477,307)

COUNTY CLERK NET COST (517,324) (436,640) (854,063) (811,071)

COUNTY COUNSEL

COUNTY COUNSEL

010700 COUNTY COUNSEL

REVENUES

374,431 374,431261,318 55,596CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

374,431 374,431261,318 55,596TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

769,583 769,583728,081 388,686SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

319,858 319,816158,606 222,711SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

57,996 58,03857,537 23,758INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,147,437 1,147,437944,224 635,155TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(773,006) (773,006)(682,906) (579,559)010700 NET COST

COUNTY COUNSEL NET COST (682,906) (579,559) (773,006) (773,006)

10Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

COUNTY COUNSEL NET COST (682,906) (579,559) (773,006) (773,006)

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

022400 DISTRICT ATTORNEY

REVENUES

10,000 10,0002,415 1,545FINES & FORFEITURES4200

237,144 237,144237,515 64,740AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

51,975 51,97545,703 29,324CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

5,000 5,0006,956 5,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

135OTHER REVENUE4900

304,119 304,119292,589 100,744TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,180,962 1,180,9621,086,597 610,388SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

100,542 100,44182,312 47,069SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

87,796 87,89777,722 36,773INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,369,300 1,369,3001,246,631 694,230TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,065,181) (1,065,181)(954,042) (593,486)022400 NET COST

022410 DISTRICT ATTORNEY - SAFETY

REVENUES

47,053 47,05330,950 9,805CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

47,053 47,05330,950 9,805TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

758,770 758,770676,129 398,452SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

168,043 168,043142,307 84,022INTERNAL CHARGES5200

926,813 926,813818,436 482,474TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(879,760) (879,760)(787,486) (472,669)022410 NET COST

DISTRICT ATTORNEY NET COST (1,741,528) (1,066,155) (1,944,941) (1,944,941)

DISTRICT ATTORNEY NET COST (1,741,528) (1,066,155) (1,944,941) (1,944,941)

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

045400 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - GENERAL

REVENUES

72,340 72,34081,723 41,691LICENSES & PERMITS4100

598,749 598,749689,994 242,928AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

244,378 244,378243,004 64,201CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

11Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

915,467 915,4671,014,721 348,820TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,073,312 1,017,207789,127 495,856SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

102,387 101,84998,724 50,862SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

186,721 201,759153,636 87,347INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,362,420 1,320,8151,041,487 634,065TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(446,953) (405,348)(26,766) (285,245)045400 NET COST

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH NET COST (26,766) (285,245) (446,953) (405,348)

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH NET COST (26,766) (285,245) (446,953) (405,348)

FARM ADVISOR

FARM ADVISOR

066800 FARM ADVISOR

REVENUES

49,062 49,06247,777AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

49,062 49,06247,777TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

80,134 80,13476,580 42,025SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

17,350 17,33916,088 8,040SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

53,797 53,80854,927 19,735INTERNAL CHARGES5200

151,281 151,281147,595 69,800TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(102,219) (102,219)(99,818) (69,800)066800 NET COST

FARM ADVISOR NET COST (99,818) (69,800) (102,219) (102,219)

FARM ADVISOR NET COST (99,818) (69,800) (102,219) (102,219)

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

AID TO FAMILIES-DEPENDENT CHLD

056300 TANF (AFDC)

REVENUES

725,000 724,382511,326 183,222AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

6181,688 618OTHER REVENUE4900

725,000 725,000513,014 183,840TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

725,000 725,000573,207 345,160OTHER CHARGES5500

12Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

725,000 725,000573,207 345,160TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(60,193) (161,320)056300 NET COST

AID TO FAMILIES-DEPENDENT CHLD NET COST (60,193) (161,320)

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH

045200 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH

REVENUES

60,000 51,50054,012 18,999REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

5,213,163 5,213,1633,389,276 1,152,444AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,643,212 1,651,7121,314,273 149,655CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,798,642 1,798,6421,451,729 688,280OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

8,715,017 8,715,0176,209,290 2,009,378TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,881,037 4,881,0373,979,855 2,306,578SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

2,813,699 2,813,584903,121 538,267SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

481,594 481,7091,099,926 178,692INTERNAL CHARGES5200

446,000 446,000222,165 118,021OTHER CHARGES5500

8,782FIXED ASSETS5600

138,000 138,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

8,760,330 8,760,3306,213,849 3,141,558TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(45,313) (45,313)(4,559) (1,132,180)045200 NET COST

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH NET COST (4,559) (1,132,180) (45,313) (45,313)

CRIPPLED CHILDREN SERVICE

045500 CALIFORNIA CHILDREN SERVICE

REVENUES

22,858 22,85811,717 2,549AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

22,858 22,85811,717 2,549TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

12,603 12,60311,575 6,975SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

9,886 9,886SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

369 369104 185INTERNAL CHARGES5200

22,858 22,85811,679 7,160TOTAL EXPENDITURES

38 (4,611)045500 NET COST

045501 CALIFORNIA CHILD SERVICE-ADMIN

13Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

110,620 110,620170,584 25,268AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

110,620 110,620170,584 25,268TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

95,371 95,37184,314 49,354SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

2,371 2,37171,316 45SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

5,378 5,37814,995 1,226INTERNAL CHARGES5200

7,500 7,5001,130 279OTHER CHARGES5500

110,620 110,620171,755 50,904TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,171) (25,636)045501 NET COST

CRIPPLED CHILDREN SERVICE NET COST (1,133) (30,247)

ESAAA

056100 INYO COUNTY GOLD

REVENUES

726REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

20,921 1,149CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

21,647 1,149TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

187,441SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,77780,271SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

70,359INTERNAL CHARGES5200

81,858OTHER FINANCING USES5800

1,777419,929TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,777)(398,282) 1,149056100 NET COST

ESAAA NET COST (398,282) 1,149 (1,777)

FOSTER CARE

056400 FOSTER CARE - GENERAL

REVENUES

775,000 774,494708,885 256,719AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

50611,767 506OTHER REVENUE4900

775,000 775,000720,652 257,225TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

775,000 775,000720,652 386,699OTHER CHARGES5500

775,000 775,000720,652 386,699TOTAL EXPENDITURES

14Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(129,474)056400 NET COST

FOSTER CARE NET COST (129,474)

GENERAL RELIEF

056500 GENERAL RELIEF

REVENUES

17,5032,219 17,503AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

534 536586 536OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

534 18,0392,805 18,039TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

30,000 30,00024,034 4,873SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

145,000 145,00063,980 30,982OTHER CHARGES5500

175,000 175,00088,014 35,855TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(174,466) (156,961)(85,209) (17,816)056500 NET COST

GENERAL RELIEF NET COST (85,209) (17,816) (174,466) (156,961)

HEALTH

045100 HEALTH - GENERAL

REVENUES

605 605648 234LICENSES & PERMITS4100

10,000 10,000FINES & FORFEITURES4200

1,946,352 1,982,1861,526,318 768,550AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

399,960 363,354213,790 13,421CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

912,789 912,78958,950 2,268OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

772772OTHER REVENUE4900

3,269,706 3,269,7061,799,706 785,245TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

2,005,581 2,005,5811,267,547 656,938SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,060,527 1,060,527391,816 198,267SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

372,080 372,080414,698 161,698INTERNAL CHARGES5200

97,000 97,0006,536 4,926OTHER CHARGES5500

100,000 100,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

3,635,188 3,635,1882,080,597 1,021,829TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(365,482) (365,482)(280,891) (236,584)045100 NET COST

045102 CHILD HLTH AND DISABILITY PREV

REVENUES

15Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

58,012 58,01235,772 2,729AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

58,012 58,01235,772 2,729TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

49,962 49,96222,392 11,298SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

6,660 6,660724 7SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,390 1,3902,447 270INTERNAL CHARGES5200

58,012 58,01225,563 11,575TOTAL EXPENDITURES

10,209 (8,846)045102 NET COST

HEALTH NET COST (270,682) (245,430) (365,482) (365,482)

SOCIAL SERVICE

055800 SOCIAL SERVICES - GENERAL

REVENUES

9,350,262 9,350,2627,231,879 3,579,336AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,000 10,0003,086CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

53OTHER REVENUE4900

9,360,262 9,360,2627,235,018 3,579,336TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

5,505,799 5,505,7994,459,276 2,624,667SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,625,909 1,625,808814,628 292,742SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

792,977 793,0781,128,581 341,131INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,219,029 1,219,029811,986 386,743OTHER CHARGES5500

8,782FIXED ASSETS5600

383,665 383,665317,075 116,836OTHER FINANCING USES5800

9,527,379 9,527,3797,540,328 3,762,119TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(167,117) (167,117)(305,310) (182,783)055800 NET COST

SOCIAL SERVICE NET COST (305,310) (182,783) (167,117) (167,117)

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES NET COST (1,125,368) (1,898,101) (754,155) (734,873)

PERSONNEL

PERSONNEL

011600 INSURANCE, RETIREMENT, OASDI

REVENUES

1,493,573 1,493,5731,322,191 728,989CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,493,573 1,493,5731,322,191 728,989TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

16Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

3,396,755 3,396,7552,967,532 1,531,251SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

242,000 242,000219,577 216,965SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

3,638,755 3,638,7553,187,109 1,748,216TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,145,182) (2,145,182)(1,864,918) (1,019,227)011600 NET COST

PERSONNEL NET COST (1,864,918) (1,019,227) (2,145,182) (2,145,182)

PERSONNEL NET COST (1,864,918) (1,019,227) (2,145,182) (2,145,182)

PLANNING

PLANNING AND ZONING

023800 PLANNING & ZONING

REVENUES

18,000 18,00032,400 19,350LICENSES & PERMITS4100

174,761 174,76139,509AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

234,213 234,21353,595 3,280CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

426,974 426,974125,504 22,630TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

667,858 667,858542,012 347,480SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

308,732 308,732132,965 124,690SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

43,018 43,01837,037 15,865INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,019,608 1,019,608712,014 488,035TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(592,634) (592,634)(586,510) (465,405)023800 NET COST

PLANNING AND ZONING NET COST (586,510) (465,405) (592,634) (592,634)

PLANNING NET COST (586,510) (465,405) (592,634) (592,634)

PROBATION

JUVENILE INSTITUIONS

023100 JUVENILE INSTITUTIONS

REVENUES

1,113,784 1,113,784717,641 397,149AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,113,784 1,113,784717,641 397,149TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,209,856 1,209,8561,096,188 609,946SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

194,968 194,92380,699 79,214SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

103,902 103,94791,380 43,200INTERNAL CHARGES5200

27,000 27,000OTHER CHARGES5500

18,000 18,000FIXED ASSETS5600

17Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

1,553,726 1,553,7261,268,267 732,360TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(439,942) (439,942)(550,626) (335,211)023100 NET COST

023101 OUT OF COUNTY-JUVENILE HALL

EXPENDITURES

111,000 111,00095,279 36,375SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

197,925 197,925104,299 14,553SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

9,000 9,0003,973 1,220INTERNAL CHARGES5200

317,925 317,925203,551 52,148TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(317,925) (317,925)(203,551) (52,148)023101 NET COST

JUVENILE INSTITUIONS NET COST (754,177) (387,359) (757,867) (757,867)

PROBATION

023000 PROBATION - GENERAL

REVENUES

596,231 596,231519,463 185,810AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

562,017 562,017268,186 58,826CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,158,248 1,158,248787,649 244,636TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,466,827 1,339,8461,078,022 649,290SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

356,276 356,184156,443 118,363SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

229,813 229,905210,562 106,967INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,000FIXED ASSETS5600

2,052,916 1,925,9351,446,027 874,620TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(894,668) (767,687)(658,378) (629,984)023000 NET COST

PROBATION NET COST (658,378) (629,984) (894,668) (767,687)

PROBATION NET COST (1,412,555) (1,017,343) (1,652,535) (1,525,554)

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

023600 PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR

REVENUES

17,300 17,30011,013 2,191CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

17,300 17,30011,013 2,191TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

18Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

274,375 264,070265,385 127,676SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

14,350 12,25413,974 6,366SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

21,926 21,63217,869 8,454INTERNAL CHARGES5200

310,651 297,956297,228 142,496TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(293,351) (280,656)(286,215) (140,305)023600 NET COST

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR NET COST (286,215) (140,305) (293,351) (280,656)

PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR NET COST (286,215) (140,305) (293,351) (280,656)

PUBLIC WORKS

BUILDING & SAFETY

023200 BUILDING & SAFETY

REVENUES

343,500 343,500356,451 182,425LICENSES & PERMITS4100

60,000 60,00060,000 15,000CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

150 150148OTHER REVENUE4900

403,650 403,650416,599 197,425TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

366,736 366,736336,237 183,082SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

28,636 28,6368,343 5,961SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

50,465 50,46544,914 15,994INTERNAL CHARGES5200

445,837 445,837389,494 205,037TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(42,187) (42,187)27,105 (7,612)023200 NET COST

BUILDING & SAFETY NET COST 27,105 (7,612) (42,187) (42,187)

MAINTENANCE-BUILDINGS & GROUND

011100 MAINTENANCE-BUILDING & GROUNDS

REVENUES

130 130195 510REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

604,059 604,059495,820 586CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

17,000 17,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

621,189 621,189496,015 1,096TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,097,106 1,063,839802,909 500,847SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,063,681 1,077,640749,144 497,489SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

147,683 152,224108,638 62,641INTERNAL CHARGES5200

69,622 69,62268,930 34,718DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL5550

4,479 4,4795,170 2,332DEBT SERVICE INTEREST5560

19Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

8,500FIXED ASSETS5600

2,391,071 2,367,8041,734,791 1,098,027TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,769,882) (1,746,615)(1,238,776) (1,096,931)011100 NET COST

MAINTENANCE-BUILDINGS & GROUND NET COST (1,238,776) (1,096,931) (1,769,882) (1,746,615)

PARKS AND RECREATION

076999 PARKS & RECREATION

REVENUES

25,000 25,00028,950 3,750RENTS & LEASES4300

1,968 1,9682,110 830REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

203,836 203,836197,917 193,254AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

412,000 412,000439,202 175,898CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

133,500 133,50085,624OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

300 300184 124OTHER REVENUE4900

776,604 776,604753,987 373,856TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

734,048 662,394484,676 276,831SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

514,840 558,715365,709 174,595SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

225,686 225,738224,901 88,851INTERNAL CHARGES5200

60,000 60,00054,770OTHER CHARGES5500

114,373 114,37385,624 110,547FIXED ASSETS5600

1,648,947 1,621,2201,215,680 650,824TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(872,343) (844,616)(461,693) (276,968)076999 NET COST

PARKS AND RECREATION NET COST (461,693) (276,968) (872,343) (844,616)

PUBLIC WORKS

011500 PUBLIC WORKS

REVENUES

325 130REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

517,300 517,300272,090 204,456CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

5,680 400OTHER REVENUE4900

517,300 517,300278,095 204,986TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

818,519 708,393475,672 387,813SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

122,018 125,01812,996 116,768SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

38,517 35,51729,805 15,659INTERNAL CHARGES5200

979,054 868,928518,473 520,240TOTAL EXPENDITURES

20Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(461,754) (351,628)(240,378) (315,254)011500 NET COST

PUBLIC WORKS NET COST (240,378) (315,254) (461,754) (351,628)

PUBLIC WORKS NET COST (1,913,742) (1,696,765) (3,146,166) (2,985,046)

SHERIFF

ANIMAL CONTROL

023900 ANIMAL CONTROL - GENERAL

REVENUES

10,000 10,00011,591 3,880LICENSES & PERMITS4100

12,000 23,5004,893 23,114FINES & FORFEITURES4200

359,553 352,053304,865 162,140AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

381,553 385,553321,349 189,134TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

602,347 602,347557,886 307,198SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

77,695 77,69566,674 39,220SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

102,277 102,277101,799 38,644INTERNAL CHARGES5200

12,000 16,000FIXED ASSETS5600

794,319 798,319726,359 385,062TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(412,766) (412,766)(405,010) (195,928)023900 NET COST

ANIMAL CONTROL NET COST (405,010) (195,928) (412,766) (412,766)

JAIL

022701 KITCHEN SERVICES

REVENUES

315OTHER REVENUE4900

315TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

462,603 462,603407,619 222,116SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

376,720 376,720450,918 169,367SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

11,748 11,7489,639 5,875INTERNAL CHARGES5200

851,071 851,071868,176 397,358TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(851,071) (851,071)(867,861) (397,358)022701 NET COST

022900 JAIL - GENERAL

REVENUES

992,487 992,487935,147 181,032AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

21Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

63,500 63,500212,684 1,174CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

18,208OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

1,055,987 1,055,9871,166,039 182,206TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

2,817,101 2,775,9022,331,921 1,347,842SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

206,536 205,672192,003 70,749SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

333,366 334,230235,809 165,080INTERNAL CHARGES5200

5,813FIXED ASSETS5600

3,357,003 3,315,8042,765,546 1,583,671TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,301,016) (2,259,817)(1,599,507) (1,401,465)022900 NET COST

022910 JAIL - SAFETY PERSONNEL

REVENUES

364,756 364,756322,278 88,693AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,000 1,000368CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

365,756 365,756322,646 88,693TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,739,136 1,738,5361,654,773 1,016,896SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,000 1,600534 834SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

52,541 52,54138,551 26,271INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,792,677 1,792,6771,693,858 1,044,001TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,426,921) (1,426,921)(1,371,212) (955,308)022910 NET COST

022920 JAIL - STC

REVENUES

18,408 18,4086,396 11,024AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,000 10,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

28,408 28,4086,396 11,024TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

26,970 26,97015,605 705SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

26,970 26,97015,605 705TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,438 1,438(9,209) 10,319022920 NET COST

022950 JAIL - CAD RMS PROJECT

REVENUES

58,521 58,52125,936OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

22Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

58,521 58,52125,936TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

83,521 83,52125,936 58,521SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

83,521 83,52125,936 58,521TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(25,000) (25,000)(58,521)022950 NET COST

JAIL NET COST (3,847,789) (2,802,333) (4,602,570) (4,561,371)

SHERIFF

022700 SHERIFF - GENERAL

REVENUES

14,510 14,51020,922 4,447LICENSES & PERMITS4100

500 500372 344FINES & FORFEITURES4200

1,197,555 1,276,224960,408 260,381AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

204,078 204,07828,037 23,844CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

75,072 75,07255,129 12,930OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

7,721 30OTHER REVENUE4900

1,491,715 1,570,3841,072,589 301,976TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,530,882 1,434,3421,323,832 742,867SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

764,257 839,332652,395 406,219SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

944,019 1,044,153975,741 377,424INTERNAL CHARGES5200

28OTHER CHARGES5500

90,078 90,078173,338FIXED ASSETS5600

3,329,236 3,407,9053,125,306 1,526,538TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,837,521) (1,837,521)(2,052,717) (1,224,562)022700 NET COST

022706 JAIL SECURITY PROJECT

REVENUES

105,500 105,5009,258OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

105,500 105,5009,258TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

45,500 45,50014,426 4,654SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

60,000 60,000FIXED ASSETS5600

105,500 105,50014,426 4,654TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(5,168) (4,654)022706 NET COST

23Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

022710 SHERIFF - SAFETY PERSONNEL

REVENUES

84,000 84,00045,000CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

84,000 84,00045,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

6,186,691 6,184,8915,317,487 3,231,336SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,200 3,0001,159 1,973SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

350,005 350,005243,946 175,002INTERNAL CHARGES5200

6,537,896 6,537,8965,562,592 3,408,311TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(6,453,896) (6,453,896)(5,517,592) (3,408,311)022710 NET COST

056605 DNA

REVENUES

10,000 10,000FINES & FORFEITURES4200

10,000 10,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

10,000 10,0001,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

10,000 10,0001,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,000)056605 NET COST

056610 RAN

REVENUES

70,692 70,69241,726FINES & FORFEITURES4200

70,692 70,69241,726TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

86,701 86,70116,538 492SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

10,114 10,11427,686FIXED ASSETS5600

96,815 96,81544,224 492TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(26,123) (26,123)(2,498) (492)056610 NET COST

SHERIFF NET COST (7,578,975) (4,638,019) (8,317,540) (8,317,540)

SHERIFF NET COST (11,831,774) (7,636,280) (13,332,876) (13,291,677)

TREASURER

TREASURER/TAX COLLECTOR

010500 TTC GENERAL

24Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/10/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

800,100 500,150466,253 125,095CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

31,000 31,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

1,075 52,2761,940 49,176OTHER REVENUE4900

832,175 583,426468,193 174,271TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

740,255 691,411564,130 344,797SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

184,400 159,47596,660 42,328SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

50,405 40,42842,791 19,728INTERNAL CHARGES5200

975,060 891,314703,581 406,853TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(142,885) (307,888)(235,388) (232,582)010500 NET COST

TREASURER/TAX COLLECTOR NET COST (235,388) (232,582) (142,885) (307,888)

TREASURER NET COST (235,388) (232,582) (142,885) (307,888)

TRIAL COURT

GRAND JURY

022000 GRAND JURY

EXPENDITURES

23,760 23,76016,585 6,322SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

600 600113 168INTERNAL CHARGES5200

24,360 24,36016,698 6,490TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(24,360) (24,360)(16,698) (6,490)022000 NET COST

GRAND JURY NET COST (16,698) (6,490) (24,360) (24,360)

TRIAL COURT NET COST (16,698) (6,490) (24,360) (24,360)

949,571 (12,342,992) (7,818,152) (7,818,152)TOTAL NET COST

25Page



BUD023 - Income Statement - Non-General Fund
Mid-Year FY 2022-23

Run Date:

Page

02/09/2023

1

YTD as ofActual as of

12/31/2112/31/22

Mid-Year

Budget% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

County of Inyo

REVENUES BY TYPE

0.1% 8,621 10.7% 6,94280,510TAXES - PROPERTY

3.5% 712,200 41.0% 995,1391,736,012TAXES - SALES

1.0% 144,556 27.7% 132,945520,000LICENSES & PERMITS

0.0% 3,480 58.0% 1,7506,000FINES & FORFEITURES

0.7% 182,033 49.4% 171,768368,228RENTS & LEASES

0.4% 98,283 45.6% 60,423215,106REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY

52.5% 13,403,757 51.4% 10,233,97126,043,354AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES

24.4% 5,054,415 41.7% 3,872,72412,109,673CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES

16.8% 370,593 4.4% 1,506,3868,351,554OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

0.3% 16,928 10.3% 159,475163,933OTHER REVENUE

100.0%Total Revenues by Type 49,594,370 19,994,871 40.3% 17,141,526

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT CATEGORY

26.6% 7,168,411 46.2% 6,170,96715,512,900SALARIES & BENEFITS

34.7% 8,488,038 41.9% 5,024,47220,215,394SERVICES & SUPPLIES

8.2% 1,233,991 25.8% 1,125,2394,782,688INTERNAL CHARGES

1.5% 283,110 31.9% 202,040885,298OTHER CHARGES

0.6% 180,846 49.7% 276,356363,682DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL

0.2% 81,389 51.3% 92,272158,423DEBT SERVICE INTEREST

16.3% 6,007,980 63.3% 10,506,7039,489,696FIXED ASSETS

11.6% 2,038,601 30.0% 3,985,2056,787,803OTHER FINANCING USES

100.0%Total Expenditures 58,195,884 25,482,370 43.7% 27,383,258

(8,601,514) (5,487,498) 63.7% (10,241,731)Change in Fund Balance

ATTACHMENT B



BUD023 - Income Statement - Non-General Fund

County of Inyo

Mid-Year FY 2022-23

02/09/2023

2Page

Run Date: Mid-Year Actual as of

Budget

YTD as of

12/31/22 12/31/21% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER

CANNABIS REGULATION-GENERAL OP 109,74767.5%135,322200,4520.3%

ES WEED MANAGEMENT GRANT 166,39845.7%57,272125,0660.2%

INYO MOSQUITO ABATEMENT 228,67635.2%228,572648,1351.1%
AUDITOR - CONTROLLER

AC-CALPERS REFUNDING SF 194,40750.2%200,220398,0720.6%

AUDITOR CONTROLLER - GEN RESV

AUDITOR CONTROLLER GEOTHERMAL 235,5000.4%

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER - ECON STAB

IFAS UPGRADE 37.6%57,516152,8590.2%

PILT TRUST 1,992,678100.0%2,038,5982,038,5983.5%
CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES

CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES 583,03651.2%679,9871,326,9262.2%
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

2020 EMPG COVID SUPPLEMENTAL 37,318

ABATEMENT 30,0000.0%

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT-2021 0.7%6,400900,0001.5%

CAO - ACO 307,8795.8%7,689132,2160.2%

CAO-COVID19 632,830431,7010.7%

CAO-GENERAL RELIEF FUND 22,72812.3%34,698281,8780.4%

COMPUTER SYSTEMS FUND 200,0000.3%

COMPUTER UPGRADE 157,80822.8%126,942554,8110.9%

CONSOLIDATED OFFICE BUILDING 8,220,24334.1%325,050952,3231.6%

COUNTY LIABILITY TRUST 835,52661.6%1,244,0272,019,4903.4%

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 20-21 (0.0%)( )38,7410.0%

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 21-22 52,4171.6%81048,7530.0%

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 22-23 28.9%37,265128,7530.2%

FISH & GAME 1,28913.1%1,2759,7000.0%

GENRAL FUND BALANCE STAB TRUST 825,9361.4%

GREAT BASIN APC GRANT 768,0301.3%

HOMELAND SECURITY 20-21 14,90474,4080.1%

HOMELAND SECURITY 21-22 17.0%15,90793,2780.1%

HOMELAND SECURITY 22-23 93,1030.1%

IMBC-INYO MONO BROADBAND 78,9460.1%

LATA-LOCAL AGENCY TECH ASST 15,0000.0%

LATCF

MEDICAL MALPRACTICE TRUST 60,67951.8%80,464155,2830.2%

MOTOR POOL OPERATING 1,063,91250.3%1,323,4262,630,8644.5%

MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT 367,6531,019,5001.7%

NATURAL RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 25.3%39,139154,6390.2%

PROPERTY TAX UPGRADE 33.8%57,410169,4100.2%

PURCHASING REVOLVING 29,57525.1%44,097175,0000.3%

WORKERS COMPENSATION TRUST 1,045,97786.9%1,322,9341,521,3252.6%
COUNTY CLERK

RECORDERS MICROGRAPHIC/SYSTEM 39,26559.8%42,42270,8760.1%
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

OES-VWAC 21-22 66,40684.1%65,90878,3300.1%



BUD023 - Income Statement - Non-General Fund

County of Inyo

Mid-Year FY 2022-23

02/09/2023

3Page

Run Date: Mid-Year Actual as of

Budget

YTD as of

12/31/22 12/31/21% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

OES-VWAC 22-23 32.1%67,029208,5960.3%
FARM ADVISOR

LEASE RENTAL 6,0000.0%

RANGE IMPROVEMENT 6,0000.0%
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

CBCAP 12,21312.9%9,15470,9540.1%

COC - CONTINUUM OF CARE 29.4%59,520201,9870.3%

DRINKING DRIVER PROGRAM 38,55845.6%72,434158,7670.2%

ELC-2 ENHANCED LAB CAPICITY 271,34841.6%471,4921,132,8331.9%

ESAAA 630,17538.1%921,4942,412,4704.1%

FIRST FIVE COMMISSION 220,33940.1%261,216650,7001.1%

FIRST PROGRAM 236,39135.9%207,715578,1640.9%

MATERNAL CHILD HEALTH 22-23 28.8%116,098402,9190.6%

SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS 318,23929.6%341,5501,150,6761.9%

TOBACCO TAX GRANT 22-25 6,52349.3%182,643370,0490.6%

WOMEN INFANTS & CHILDREN 21-22 129,60451.2%78,951154,1580.2%

WOMEN INFANTS & CHILDREN 22-23 33.1%89,946271,7020.4%

WORK INVESTMENT ACT 22-23 24.2%30,677126,5980.2%
PLANNING

YUCCA MOUNTAIN OVERSIGHT 23,10164.5%194,036300,5490.5%
PROBATION

CRIMINAL JUSTICE-REALIGNMENT 75,5256.3%81,4991,291,6642.2%

PROP 64 PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFEY 0.5%1,940327,7660.5%
PUBLIC WORKS

BIG PINE LIGHTING 9,16520.7%6,45531,1510.0%

BISHOP AIR ENVIR ASSESSMENT 12,90496.4%228,131236,5150.4%

BISHOP AIRPORT 1,486,53850.4%1,292,9392,560,4454.3%

BISHOP AIRPORT - SPECIAL 4,18443.1%4,31010,0000.0%

CAPITAL IMPV-WATER SYSTEM

COUNTY SERVICE AREA #2 17,8014.2%5,452129,4710.2%

DIAZ LAKE DOCK GRANT 99.0%247,294249,6810.4%

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT 9,03316.0%26,814167,0000.2%

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT - SPECIAL 1,55316.4%1,68110,2500.0%

INDEPENDENCE LIGHTING 7,46832.6%12,39937,9500.0%

LONE PINE LIGHTING 9,99417.3%8,37848,2500.0%

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIR-SP 2,51863.6%6,70210,5240.0%

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 64,99221.6%32,664150,6960.2%

PARKS REHAB & DEVELOPMENT TRST

PER CAPITA GRANT-PROP 68 74.2%401,000540,0000.9%

PUBLIC WORKS - DEFERRED MAINT 19,04626.9%561,7792,081,7763.5%

RECYCLING & WASTE CAPITAL IMPR 272,270327,0000.5%

RECYCLING & WASTE MGMT 2,415,82637.0%1,937,0035,227,1098.9%

ROAD 3,312,88857.9%7,048,13912,162,43220.8%

ROAD PROJECTS - STATE FUNDED 253,11388.2%840,768952,3661.6%

SHOSHONE AIRPORT - SPECIAL 9155.6%57510,1000.0%

TECOPA LAGOON PHASE 2 258,1260.4%

TRANSPORTATION & PLANNING TRST 287,07450.6%375,697741,1981.2%

WATER SYSTEMS 199,57035.1%179,393509,6740.8%
SHERIFF



BUD023 - Income Statement - Non-General Fund

County of Inyo

Mid-Year FY 2022-23

02/09/2023

4Page

Run Date: Mid-Year Actual as of

Budget

YTD as of

12/31/22 12/31/21% of Budget

% of Actual

to Budget

CAL ANIMAL SPRING GRANT 63,7410.1%

CALMET TASK FORCE 50,92833.5%57,066169,9470.2%

ILLEGAL CANNABIS SUPRESSION 76420,0000.0%

OFF HWY VEHICLE GRANT 20-21

OFF HWY VEHICLE GRANT 22-23 42,0000.0%
WATER

OWENS RIVER WATER TRAIL GRANT 500,0320.8%

SALT CEDAR PROJECT 46,96031.4%33,919107,9010.1%

WATER DEPARTMENT 704,36336.2%813,0422,240,0953.8%

27,383,25843.7%25,482,37058,195,884100.0%



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER

AG COMM/SEALER

023301 CANNABIS REGULATION-GENERAL OP

REVENUES

201,334 201,334248,341 135,322CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

201,334 201,334248,341 135,322TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

133,406 133,406219,284 112,239SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

17,659 17,6596,874 1,919SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

49,387 49,38722,184 21,167INTERNAL CHARGES5200

200,452 200,452248,342 135,325TOTAL EXPENDITURES

882 882(1) (3)023301 NET COST

621300 ES WEED MANAGEMENT GRANT

REVENUES

(301) (102)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

144,521 144,521214,795 34,107AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

27,500 27,50020,590 4,089CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

31,000 31,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

20,500OTHER REVENUE4900

203,021 223,521235,084 38,094TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

83,651 83,651128,320 42,987SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

13,724 13,72417,746 2,205SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

27,691 27,69155,771 12,079INTERNAL CHARGES5200

28,920FIXED ASSETS5600

125,066 125,066230,757 57,271TOTAL EXPENDITURES

77,955 98,4554,327 (19,177)621300 NET COST

AG COMM/SEALER NET COST 4,326 (19,180) 78,837 99,337

MOSQUITO CONTROL

154101 INYO MOSQUITO ABATEMENT

REVENUES

100 100357 268REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

70,000 70,00033,444 3,639AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

497,088 497,088485,657 4,274CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

6,000 6,000OTHER REVENUE4900

573,188 573,188519,458 8,181TOTAL REVENUES

1Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

EXPENDITURES

456,114 456,614281,204 164,480SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

76,338 85,03559,890 27,384SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

83,683 82,66092,743 36,709INTERNAL CHARGES5200

32,000 23,82619,440FIXED ASSETS5600

648,135 648,135453,277 228,573TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(74,947) (74,947)66,181 (220,392)154101 NET COST

MOSQUITO CONTROL NET COST 66,181 (220,392) (74,947) (74,947)

AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER NET COST 70,507 (239,572) 3,890 24,390

AUDITOR - CONTROLLER

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

010404 AC-CALPERS REFUNDING SF

REVENUES

398,071 398,071385,778 199,036CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

398,071 398,071385,778 199,036TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

247,000 247,000222,000 123,000DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL5550

151,072 151,072163,776 77,220DEBT SERVICE INTEREST5560

398,072 398,072385,776 200,220TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1) (1)2 (1,184)010404 NET COST

010405 AUDITOR CONTROLLER - GEN RESV

REVENUES

12,000 12,00012,490 6,844REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

912,968 912,9681,082,624OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

924,968 924,9681,095,114 6,844TOTAL REVENUES

924,968 924,9681,095,114 6,844010405 NET COST

010406 AUDITOR CONTROLLER GEOTHERMAL

REVENUES

176,725 50,176RENTS & LEASES4300

176,725 50,176TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

275,500 235,500OTHER FINANCING USES5800

2Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

275,500 235,500TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(275,500) (235,500)176,725 50,176010406 NET COST

010407 AUDITOR-CONTROLLER - ECON STAB

REVENUES

12,500 12,50012,997 5,572REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

12,500 12,50012,997 5,572TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

12,500 12,50012,997 5,572010407 NET COST

500458 PILT TRUST

REVENUES

2,038,598AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

2,038,598TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

2,038,598 2,038,5981,992,678 2,038,598OTHER FINANCING USES5800

2,038,598 2,038,5981,992,678 2,038,598TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,038,598) (2,038,598)45,920 (2,038,598)500458 NET COST

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER NET COST 1,330,758 (1,977,190) (1,376,631) (1,336,631)

INFORMATION SERVICES

011806 IFAS UPGRADE

EXPENDITURES

10,000 10,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

142,859 142,85916,170 57,516FIXED ASSETS5600

152,859 152,85916,170 57,516TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(152,859) (152,859)(16,170) (57,516)011806 NET COST

INFORMATION SERVICES NET COST (16,170) (57,516) (152,859) (152,859)

AUDITOR - CONTROLLER NET COST 1,314,588 (2,034,706) (1,529,490) (1,489,490)

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER

011804 PROPERTY TAX UPGRADE

3Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

169,410 169,41057,410SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

26,527DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL5550

169,410 169,41026,527 57,410TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(169,410) (169,410)(26,527) (57,410)011804 NET COST

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER NET COST (26,527) (57,410) (169,410) (169,410)

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

010201 CAO - ACO

REVENUES

169,667AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

51,351 51,35151,351CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

912,968 1,344,6691,494,917OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

964,319 1,396,0201,715,935TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

68,825 68,82580,094SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

18,00011,652 3,850INTERNAL CHARGES5200

3,839 3,839261,256 3,839FIXED ASSETS5600

41,552 41,5521,152,648OTHER FINANCING USES5800

114,216 132,2161,505,650 7,689TOTAL EXPENDITURES

850,103 1,263,804210,285 (7,689)010201 NET COST

010204 NATURAL RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

REVENUES

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

154,639 154,63939,139SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

154,639 154,63939,139TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(154,639) (154,639)(39,139)010204 NET COST

010403 ABATEMENT

REVENUES

30,000 30,00030,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

4Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

30,000 30,00030,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

30,000 30,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

30,000 30,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

30,000010403 NET COST

011809 CONSOLIDATED OFFICE BUILDING

REVENUES

336,742 336,742314,483 159,622CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

316,011 316,011438,491 99,166OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

652,753 652,753752,974 258,788TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

73,616 73,61649,926 35,224SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

876,898 876,898582,244 288,921SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,809 1,809905INTERNAL CHARGES5200

7,823,086FIXED ASSETS5600

952,323 952,3238,455,256 325,050TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(299,570) (299,570)(7,702,282) (66,262)011809 NET COST

024200 FISH & GAME

REVENUES

6,000 6,0004,986 3,481FINES & FORFEITURES4200

6,000 6,0004,986 3,481TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

9,700 9,7003,605 1,275SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

9,700 9,7003,605 1,275TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(3,700) (3,700)1,381 2,206024200 NET COST

501501 GENRAL FUND BALANCE STAB TRUST

REVENUES

2,649 1,136REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

2,649 1,136TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

825,936 825,936OTHER FINANCING USES5800

825,936 825,936TOTAL EXPENDITURES

5Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(825,936) (825,936)2,649 1,136501501 NET COST

610189 GREAT BASIN APC GRANT

REVENUES

1,911 1,065REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

820,063AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

821,974 1,065TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

54,600SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

768,030 768,030OTHER FINANCING USES5800

768,030 768,03054,600TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(768,030) (768,030)767,374 1,065610189 NET COST

612200 LATA-LOCAL AGENCY TECH ASST

REVENUES

15,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

15,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

15,000INTERNAL CHARGES5200

15,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

612200 NET COST

612300 IMBC-INYO MONO BROADBAND

REVENUES

78,946AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

78,946TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

77,146SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,800SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

78,946TOTAL EXPENDITURES

612300 NET COST

640299 LATCF

REVENUES

5,691,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

6Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

5,691,000TOTAL REVENUES

5,691,000640299 NET COST

650200 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT-2021

REVENUES

5,642 4,540REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,751,932AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,757,574 4,540TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

750,000 750,0006,400SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

150,000 150,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

900,000 900,0006,400TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(900,000) (900,000)1,757,574 (1,860)650200 NET COST

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER NET COST (4,933,019) 5,580,457 (2,101,772) (1,688,071)

INFORMATION SERVICES

011808 COMPUTER UPGRADE

REVENUES

522,603 522,603503,484 261,519CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

522,603 522,603503,484 261,519TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

488,746 488,746417,346 86,513SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

51,065 51,065299,841 40,429FIXED ASSETS5600

15,000 15,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

554,811 554,811717,187 126,942TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(32,208) (32,208)(213,703) 134,577011808 NET COST

699900 COMPUTER SYSTEMS FUND

REVENUES

300,000 300,000200,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

300,000 300,000200,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

200,000 200,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

200,000 200,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

7Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

100,000 100,000200,000699900 NET COST

INFORMATION SERVICES NET COST (13,703) 134,577 67,792 67,792

MOTOR POOL

200100 MOTOR POOL OPERATING

REVENUES

3,000 3,000616 535REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,498,000 1,502,3931,543,022 691,156CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,019,500 1,019,500667,653OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

20,000 34,00034,284OTHER REVENUE4900

2,540,500 2,558,8932,245,575 691,691TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

283,378 289,265203,060 149,677SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,552,345 1,550,6401,354,270 1,124,084SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

82,248 96,459120,005 40,762INTERNAL CHARGES5200

694,500 694,500277,361 8,901FIXED ASSETS5600

2,612,471 2,630,8641,954,696 1,323,424TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(71,971) (71,971)290,879 (631,733)200100 NET COST

200200 MOTOR POOL REPLACEMENT

REVENUES

2,400 2,4004,488 1,787REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

198,000 198,000307,260 1,485CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

20,000 34,000128,695OTHER REVENUE4900

220,400 234,400440,443 3,272TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,019,500 1,019,500667,653OTHER FINANCING USES5800

1,019,500 1,019,500667,653TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(799,100) (785,100)(227,210) 3,272200200 NET COST

MOTOR POOL NET COST 63,669 (628,461) (871,071) (857,071)

OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES

010205 CAO-GENERAL RELIEF FUND

REVENUES

55,433 55,433AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

55,433 55,433TOTAL REVENUES

8Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

EXPENDITURES

136,694 117,12711,501 34,695SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

64,751 64,75117,407FIXED ASSETS5600

100,000 100,000162 3OTHER FINANCING USES5800

301,445 281,87829,070 34,698TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(246,012) (226,445)(29,070) (34,698)010205 NET COST

010208 CAO-COVID19

REVENUES

2,038 606REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

2,038 606TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

12,5501,740SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

431,701631,604OTHER FINANCING USES5800

12,550 431,701633,344TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(12,550) (431,701)(631,306) 606010208 NET COST

610191 2020 EMPG COVID SUPPLEMENTAL

REVENUES

37,317AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

37,317 1TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

37,318FIXED ASSETS5600

37,318TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1) 1610191 NET COST

623720 HOMELAND SECURITY 20-21

REVENUES

74,408 74,40812,500AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

74,408 74,40812,500TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

74,408 74,40864,910SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

4,809INTERNAL CHARGES5200

74,408 74,40869,719TOTAL EXPENDITURES

9Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(57,219)623720 NET COST

623721 HOMELAND SECURITY 21-22

REVENUES

93,278 93,278AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

93,278 93,278TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

88,614 88,61413,575SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

4,664 4,6642,332INTERNAL CHARGES5200

93,278 93,27815,907TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(15,907)623721 NET COST

623722 HOMELAND SECURITY 22-23

REVENUES

93,103AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

93,103TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

9,300SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

4,655INTERNAL CHARGES5200

79,148FIXED ASSETS5600

93,103TOTAL EXPENDITURES

623722 NET COST

623820 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 20-21

REVENUES

38,741 38,7413,674AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

54,371OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

38,741 38,7413,674 54,371TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

38,741 38,7411,962SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

38,741 38,7411,962TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,712 54,371623820 NET COST

623821 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 21-22

REVENUES

48,753 48,753AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

73,832OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

48,753 48,75373,832TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

66,388SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

28,753 38,7531,453 810SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

10,0006,705INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,000 10,000FIXED ASSETS5600

48,753 48,75374,546 810TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(74,546) 73,022623821 NET COST

623822 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 22-23

REVENUES

128,753 128,753AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

128,753 128,753TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

65,800 65,80033,239SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

48,352 48,352SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

14,601 14,6014,025INTERNAL CHARGES5200

128,753 128,75337,264TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(37,264)623822 NET COST

OFFICE OF DISASTER SERVICES NET COST (790,430) 40,131 (258,562) (658,146)

PURCHASING

200300 PURCHASING REVOLVING

REVENUES

175,000 175,000109,061 43,295CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

175,000 175,000109,061 43,295TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

175,000 175,000116,375 44,097SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

175,000 175,000116,375 44,097TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(7,314) (802)200300 NET COST

PURCHASING NET COST (7,314) (802)

RISK MANAGEMENT

500902 WORKERS COMPENSATION TRUST

11Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

(419) (556)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,487,325 1,487,3251,192,935 743,647CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

250OTHER REVENUE4900

1,487,325 1,487,3251,192,766 743,091TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,507,203 1,507,2031,106,188 1,318,124SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

14,122 14,12210,734 4,811INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,521,325 1,521,3251,116,922 1,322,935TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(34,000) (34,000)75,844 (579,844)500902 NET COST

500903 COUNTY LIABILITY TRUST

REVENUES

2,684 865REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,358,467 1,358,4671,062,604 681,330CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

323 310OTHER REVENUE4900

1,358,467 1,358,4671,065,611 682,505TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,990,412 1,990,4121,030,420 1,236,488SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

19,078 19,0786,269 7,539INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,000 10,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

2,019,490 2,019,4901,036,689 1,244,027TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(661,023) (661,023)28,922 (561,522)500903 NET COST

500904 MEDICAL MALPRACTICE TRUST

REVENUES

221 98REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

155,283 155,283108,817 77,642CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

155,283 155,283109,038 77,740TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

154,025 154,02586,603 79,836SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,258 1,2581,129 629INTERNAL CHARGES5200

155,283 155,28387,732 80,465TOTAL EXPENDITURES

21,306 (2,725)500904 NET COST

RISK MANAGEMENT NET COST 126,072 (1,144,091) (695,023) (695,023)

12Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER NET COST (5,581,252) 3,924,401 (4,028,046) (3,999,929)

CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES

CHILD SUPPORT

022501 CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES

REVENUES

800 800499 176REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,325,837 1,325,8371,024,670 644,896AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

530OTHER REVENUE4900

1,326,637 1,326,6371,025,699 645,072TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

988,707 988,707758,131 526,695SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

243,047 233,489220,874 122,526SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

95,172 104,730101,929 30,768INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,326,926 1,326,9261,080,934 679,989TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(289) (289)(55,235) (34,917)022501 NET COST

CHILD SUPPORT NET COST (55,235) (34,917) (289) (289)

CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES NET COST (55,235) (34,917) (289) (289)

COUNTY CLERK

RECORDER

023401 RECORDERS MICROGRAPHIC/SYSTEM

REVENUES

200 300385 154REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

30,000 19,72135,819 10,347CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,800 1,8001,713OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

32,000 21,82137,917 10,501TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,789 4,7894,555 4,789SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

75,800 65,62149,359 37,400SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

466 4661,704 233INTERNAL CHARGES5200

81,055 70,87655,618 42,422TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(49,055) (49,055)(17,701) (31,921)023401 NET COST

RECORDER NET COST (17,701) (31,921) (49,055) (49,055)

COUNTY CLERK NET COST (17,701) (31,921) (49,055) (49,055)

13Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

620421 OES-VWAC 21-22

REVENUES

78,330 78,330192,520AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

78,330 78,330192,520TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

57,372 57,372169,715 55,485SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

11,260 11,2595,334 1,102SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

9,698 9,69919,844 9,321INTERNAL CHARGES5200

78,330 78,330194,893 65,908TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,373) (65,908)620421 NET COST

620422 OES-VWAC 22-23

REVENUES

208,596 208,596AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

208,596 208,596TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

172,080 173,50858,043SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

10,058 8,6301,050SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

26,458 26,4587,937INTERNAL CHARGES5200

208,596 208,59667,030TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(67,030)620422 NET COST

DISTRICT ATTORNEY NET COST (2,373) (132,938)

DISTRICT ATTORNEY NET COST (2,373) (132,938)

FARM ADVISOR

FARM ADVISOR

024300 RANGE IMPROVEMENT

REVENUES

116AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

116TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

6,000 6,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

6,000 6,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

14Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(6,000) (6,000)116024300 NET COST

024400 LEASE RENTAL

REVENUES

1,165AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,165TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

6,000 6,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

6,000 6,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(6,000) (6,000)1,165024400 NET COST

FARM ADVISOR NET COST 1,281 (12,000) (12,000)

FARM ADVISOR NET COST 1,281 (12,000) (12,000)

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

ESAAA

683000 ESAAA

REVENUES

54,838TAXES - SALES4060

100 10087RENTS & LEASES4300

300 300(1,392) (1,081)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

2,113,178 2,113,1781,331,688 41,752AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

55,000 55,00075,217 16,935CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

745,272 745,27291,973OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

45,385OTHER REVENUE4900

2,913,850 2,913,8501,597,796 57,606TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,116,292 1,116,292730,451 520,661SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

560,450 560,284263,993 182,011SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

305,230 305,396361,773 98,824INTERNAL CHARGES5200

350,498 350,498178,234 120,000OTHER CHARGES5500

80,000 80,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

2,412,470 2,412,4701,534,451 921,496TOTAL EXPENDITURES

501,380 501,38063,345 (863,890)683000 NET COST

ESAAA NET COST 63,345 (863,890) 501,380 501,380

HEALTH

15Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

641622 MATERNAL CHILD HEALTH 22-23

REVENUES

402,919 402,919AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

402,919 402,919TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

306,717 306,717110,442SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

80,923 80,91630 2,057SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

15,279 15,2863,599INTERNAL CHARGES5200

402,919 402,91930 116,098TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(30) (116,098)641622 NET COST

641921 WOMEN INFANTS & CHILDREN 21-22

REVENUES

154,158 154,158125,938AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

154,158 154,158125,938TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

132,153 132,153184,214 64,094SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

7,412 7,41226,534 2,306SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

14,593 14,59363,122 12,550INTERNAL CHARGES5200

154,158 154,158273,870 78,950TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(147,932) (78,950)641921 NET COST

641922 WOMEN INFANTS & CHILDREN 22-23

REVENUES

271,702 271,702AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

271,702 271,702TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

216,845 216,84578,994SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

18,811 18,811779SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

36,046 36,04610,174INTERNAL CHARGES5200

271,702 271,70289,947TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(89,947)641922 NET COST

HEALTH NET COST (147,962) (284,995)

HEALTH GRANTS

610390 ELC-2 ENHANCED LAB CAPICITY

16Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

1,148 (349)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,130,135 1,130,135356,487AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,130,135 1,130,1351,148 356,138TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

749,023 749,023601,594 395,938SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

333,888 333,888194,313 57,083SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

49,922 49,9225,765 18,473INTERNAL CHARGES5200

1,132,833 1,132,833801,672 471,494TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,698) (2,698)(800,524) (115,356)610390 NET COST

640322 TOBACCO TAX GRANT 22-25

REVENUES

356,478 370,04988,388 56,478OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

356,478 370,04988,388 56,478TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

201,267 201,26752,052 85,870SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

122,738 132,23519,098 79,860SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

35,347 36,54717,238 16,915INTERNAL CHARGES5200

359,352 370,04988,388 182,645TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,874)(126,167)640322 NET COST

642515 CBCAP

REVENUES

10(13) 10REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

80,954 80,94427,382AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

80,954 80,95427,369 10TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

14,388 14,38817,866 8,875SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

50,000 50,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

6,566 6,5665,161 280INTERNAL CHARGES5200

70,954 70,95423,027 9,155TOTAL EXPENDITURES

10,000 10,0004,342 (9,145)642515 NET COST

643000 FIRST FIVE COMMISSION

REVENUES

1,500 1,5002,208 856REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

17Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

494,429 494,429405,807 72,502AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

495,929 495,929408,015 73,358TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

286,730 286,730296,949 152,820SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

253,338 270,933141,876 63,974SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

24,924 25,03732,958 9,043INTERNAL CHARGES5200

68,000 68,00025,284 35,382OTHER CHARGES5500

632,992 650,700497,067 261,219TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(137,063) (154,771)(89,052) (187,861)643000 NET COST

HEALTH GRANTS NET COST (885,234) (438,529) (132,635) (147,469)

SOCIAL SERVICE

055801 FIRST PROGRAM

REVENUES

240,552 240,552198,234 107,211AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

120,000 120,00088,814CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

217,612 217,612176,339 83,106OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

578,164 578,164463,387 190,317TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

486,817 486,817362,675 177,700SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

22,032 22,01512,057 1,569SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

66,815 66,83288,004 28,230INTERNAL CHARGES5200

2,500 2,500579 216OTHER CHARGES5500

578,164 578,164463,315 207,715TOTAL EXPENDITURES

72 (17,398)055801 NET COST

055900 COC - CONTINUUM OF CARE

REVENUES

(1)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

658,231 658,231AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

20,000 20,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

678,231 678,231(1)TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

75,600 75,60059,520SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

10,000 10,000INTERNAL CHARGES5200

116,387 116,387OTHER CHARGES5500

201,987 201,98759,520TOTAL EXPENDITURES

18Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

476,244 476,244(59,521)055900 NET COST

SOCIAL SERVICE NET COST 72 (76,919) 476,244 476,244

SUBSTANCE ABUSE

045312 DRINKING DRIVER PROGRAM

REVENUES

103,767 103,76745,393 40,911AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

55,000 55,00046,381 19,069CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

158,767 158,76791,774 59,980TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

139,430 139,43061,136 65,195SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

11,756 11,7568,667 4,746SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

7,581 7,58121,973 2,497INTERNAL CHARGES5200

158,767 158,76791,776 72,438TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2) (12,458)045312 NET COST

045315 SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

REVENUES

(198)109 (198)REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

993,511 993,709403,204 234,421AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

153,500 153,50013,727 12,069CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

612OTHER REVENUE4900

1,147,011 1,147,011417,652 246,292TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

655,519 655,519517,402 291,843SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

342,699 342,69963,763 30,274SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

52,458 52,45867,431 19,432INTERNAL CHARGES5200

100,000 100,000OTHER CHARGES5500

1,150,676 1,150,676648,596 341,549TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(3,665) (3,665)(230,944) (95,257)045315 NET COST

SUBSTANCE ABUSE NET COST (230,946) (107,715) (3,665) (3,665)

WORK INVESTMENT ACT

613722 WORK INVESTMENT ACT 22-23

REVENUES

126,598 126,598AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

19Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

126,598 126,598TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

76,477 76,47727,883SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

4,282 4,28252SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

6,799 6,79918 2,744INTERNAL CHARGES5200

39,040 39,040OTHER CHARGES5500

126,598 126,59818 30,679TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(18) (30,679)613722 NET COST

WORK INVESTMENT ACT NET COST (18) (30,679)

HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES NET COST (1,200,743) (1,802,727) 841,324 826,490

PLANNING

PLANNING AND ZONING

620605 YUCCA MOUNTAIN OVERSIGHT

REVENUES

8,000 8,0002,417 987REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

8,000 8,0002,417 987TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,798 4,7984,391 2,399SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

270,265 270,26541,422 190,896SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

25,486 25,4867,680 742INTERNAL CHARGES5200

300,549 300,54953,493 194,037TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(292,549) (292,549)(51,076) (193,050)620605 NET COST

PLANNING AND ZONING NET COST (51,076) (193,050) (292,549) (292,549)

PLANNING NET COST (51,076) (193,050) (292,549) (292,549)

PROBATION

PROBATION

023002 CRIMINAL JUSTICE-REALIGNMENT

REVENUES

1,291,664 1,291,664734,236 81,500AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,291,664 1,291,664734,236 81,500TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,291,664 1,291,664645,915 81,500INTERNAL CHARGES5200

88,321OTHER CHARGES5500

20Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

1,291,664 1,291,664734,236 81,500TOTAL EXPENDITURES

023002 NET COST

620210 PROP 64 PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFEY

REVENUES

327,766 327,7661,813AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

327,766 327,7661,813TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

86,780 86,7801,940SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

170,986 170,986INTERNAL CHARGES5200

70,000 70,000FIXED ASSETS5600

327,766 327,7661,940TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(127)620210 NET COST

PROBATION NET COST (127)

PROBATION NET COST (127)

PUBLIC WORKS

BISHOP AIRPORT

150100 BISHOP AIRPORT

REVENUES

330,506 329,978289,370 116,735RENTS & LEASES4300

100,653 102,80493,830 49,335REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

889,011AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,543,009 1,944,7721,434,378 987,429CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

150,000 150,000250,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

37,084 19,3332,924 15,685OTHER REVENUE4900

2,161,252 2,546,8872,959,513 1,169,184TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

664,693 664,693612,753 278,671SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,424,264 1,740,3351,420,056 954,555SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

154,917 155,417181,615 59,716INTERNAL CHARGES5200

848,226FIXED ASSETS5600

2,243,874 2,560,4453,062,650 1,292,942TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(82,622) (13,558)(103,137) (123,758)150100 NET COST

150200 BISHOP AIRPORT - SPECIAL

21Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

REVENUES

42 24REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

10,000 10,00010,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,000 10,00010,042 24TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

8,053 8,0534,118 4,310SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,947 1,9471,744INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,000 10,0005,862 4,310TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4,180 (4,286)150200 NET COST

630306 BISHOP AIR ENVIR ASSESSMENT

REVENUES

195,795 195,7958,122AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

41,552 41,5526,448OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

237,347 237,34714,570TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

228,131 228,13113,294 228,131SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

8,384 8,3841,275INTERNAL CHARGES5200

236,515 236,51514,569 228,131TOTAL EXPENDITURES

832 8321 (228,131)630306 NET COST

BISHOP AIRPORT NET COST (98,956) (356,175) (81,790) (12,726)

COUNTY SERVICE AREA #2

810001 COUNTY SERVICE AREA #2

REVENUES

500 500617 256REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

53,000 53,00055,440 557CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

53,500 53,50056,057 813TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

5,112 5,1122,335 1,511SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

49,600 49,60023,145 29SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

14,759 14,75912,382 3,913INTERNAL CHARGES5200

60,000 60,00026,614FIXED ASSETS5600

129,471 129,47164,476 5,453TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(75,971) (75,971)(8,419) (4,640)810001 NET COST

22Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

COUNTY SERVICE AREA #2 NET COST (8,419) (4,640) (75,971) (75,971)

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT

150300 INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT

REVENUES

2,250 2,2501,964RENTS & LEASES4300

14,750 14,75014,435 18REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

150,000 150,000100,000CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

167,000 167,00016,399 100,018TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

3,879 3,8793,439 3,879SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

5,485 5,4851,323 877SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

7,636 7,6369,997 559INTERNAL CHARGES5200

150,000 150,00021,500FIXED ASSETS5600

167,000 167,00014,759 26,815TOTAL EXPENDITURES

1,640 73,203150300 NET COST

150400 INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT - SPECIAL

REVENUES

100 10087 45REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

10,000 10,00010,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,100 10,10010,087 45TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

8,886 8,8866,772 1,682SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,364 1,364INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,250 10,2506,772 1,682TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(150) (150)3,315 (1,637)150400 NET COST

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT NET COST 4,955 71,566 (150) (150)

LONE PINE AIRPORT

150500 LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT

REVENUES

35,900 35,90030,644 15,122RENTS & LEASES4300

7,560 7,5606,431 76REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

12,000 12,00013,555AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

75,120 75,12067,676 22,076CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

20,000 20,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

150,580 150,580118,306 37,274TOTAL REVENUES

23Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

EXPENDITURES

120,992 120,99276,173 28,660SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

29,704 29,70435,468 4,005INTERNAL CHARGES5200

150,696 150,696111,641 32,665TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(116) (116)6,665 4,609150500 NET COST

150600 LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIR-SP

REVENUES

100 10081 41REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

10,000 10,00010,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,100 10,10010,081 41TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

267 267237 267SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

7,678 7,6786,053 6,436SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

2,579 2,579776INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,524 10,5247,066 6,703TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(424) (424)3,015 (6,662)150600 NET COST

LONE PINE AIRPORT NET COST 9,680 (2,053) (540) (540)

LTC

504605 TRANSPORTATION & PLANNING TRST

REVENUES

136,012 136,012131,905 84,164TAXES - SALES4060

1,300 1,3002,161 1,111REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

601,842 601,842863,823 69,405AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

739,154 739,154997,889 154,680TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

306,443 306,443242,817 151,516SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

222,414 222,41472,732 71,784SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

80,968 80,96894,890 28,527INTERNAL CHARGES5200

123,873 123,873122,525 123,873OTHER CHARGES5500

7,500 7,5003,720FIXED ASSETS5600

741,198 741,198536,684 375,700TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(2,044) (2,044)461,205 (221,020)504605 NET COST

LTC NET COST 461,205 (221,020) (2,044) (2,044)

24Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

N/A

506907 PARKS REHAB & DEVELOPMENT TRST

REVENUES

489 210REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

489 210TOTAL REVENUES

489 210506907 NET COST

N/A NET COST 489 210

PARKS AND RECREATION

670200 PER CAPITA GRANT-PROP 68

REVENUES

400,000 400,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

400,000 400,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

90,000 90,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

450,000 450,000401,000FIXED ASSETS5600

540,000 540,000401,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(140,000) (140,000)(401,000)670200 NET COST

670300 DIAZ LAKE DOCK GRANT

REVENUES

197,681 193,576AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

52,000 56,105OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

249,681 249,681TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

249,681 249,681247,295FIXED ASSETS5600

249,681 249,681247,295TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(247,295)670300 NET COST

PARKS AND RECREATION NET COST (648,295) (140,000) (140,000)

PUBLIC WORKS

011501 PUBLIC WORKS - DEFERRED MAINT

REVENUES

150,000 150,000CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

1,525,030 1,560,030241,500OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

25Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

1,675,030 1,710,030241,500TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

735,746 735,74638,244 338,633SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,311,030 1,346,0308,073 223,146FIXED ASSETS5600

2,046,776 2,081,77646,317 561,779TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(371,746) (371,746)195,183 (561,779)011501 NET COST

152106 CAPITAL IMPV-WATER SYSTEM

REVENUES

898REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

898TOTAL REVENUES

898152106 NET COST

152199 WATER SYSTEMS

REVENUES

500 50074 898REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

736,015 736,015756,440 287,717CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

736,515 736,515756,514 288,615TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

276,497 276,497261,966 132,639SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

107,271 107,27135,778 17,039SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

78,876 78,876118,591 21,203INTERNAL CHARGES5200

16,256 16,25615,715 8,059DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL5550

774 7741,315 456DEBT SERVICE INTEREST5560

30,000 30,000FIXED ASSETS5600

509,674 509,674433,365 179,396TOTAL EXPENDITURES

226,841 226,841323,149 109,219152199 NET COST

800001 BIG PINE LIGHTING

REVENUES

27,000 27,00029,754 2,992TAXES - PROPERTY4000

600 6001,284 547REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

75 75132 20AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

27,675 27,67531,170 3,559TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

7,064 7,0645,417 2,673SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

23,410 23,4107,663 3,528SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

26Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

677 6775,246 255INTERNAL CHARGES5200

31,151 31,15118,326 6,456TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(3,476) (3,476)12,844 (2,897)800001 NET COST

800101 INDEPENDENCE LIGHTING

REVENUES

28,510 28,51030,868 3,050TAXES - PROPERTY4000

1,200 1,2001,455 624REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

75 75136 20AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

29,785 29,78532,459 3,694TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,498 4,4984,231 2,008SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

19,310 19,3104,059 3,196SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,642 14,1426,853 7,197INTERNAL CHARGES5200

25,450 37,95015,143 12,401TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4,335 (8,165)17,316 (8,707)800101 NET COST

800201 LONE PINE LIGHTING

REVENUES

25,000 25,00026,782 2,581TAXES - PROPERTY4000

500 500801 335REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

60 60117 17AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

25,560 25,56027,700 2,933TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,498 4,4984,231 2,008SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

41,110 41,11012,608 5,383SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

2,642 2,6424,983 988INTERNAL CHARGES5200

48,250 48,25021,822 8,379TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(22,690) (22,690)5,878 (5,446)800201 NET COST

PUBLIC WORKS NET COST 554,370 (468,712) (166,736) (179,236)

ROAD

034600 ROAD

REVENUES

20,000 20,00018,482 16,023LICENSES & PERMITS4100

25,000 25,00024,514 10,601REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

10,147,789 10,187,7899,379,683 4,033,357AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

27Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

85,196 85,196131,493CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

30,000 30,00061,848 934OTHER REVENUE4900

10,307,985 10,347,9859,616,020 4,060,915TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

4,401,248 4,401,2483,563,642 1,995,680SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

2,136,653 2,137,6531,570,281 648,021SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

948,302 948,302638,616 387,138INTERNAL CHARGES5200

4,391,243 4,430,2432,427,951 4,017,302FIXED ASSETS5600

128,065 244,98620,000OTHER FINANCING USES5800

12,005,511 12,162,4328,220,490 7,048,141TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(1,697,526) (1,814,447)1,395,530 (2,987,226)034600 NET COST

034601 ROAD PROJECTS - STATE FUNDED

REVENUES

729,047 723,9321,018,185 18,406AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

128,065 244,98620,000OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

857,112 968,9181,038,185 18,406TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

840,560 952,366472,062 840,769FIXED ASSETS5600

840,560 952,366472,062 840,769TOTAL EXPENDITURES

16,552 16,552566,123 (822,363)034601 NET COST

ROAD NET COST 1,961,653 (3,809,589) (1,680,974) (1,797,895)

SHOSHONE AIRPORT

150800 SHOSHONE AIRPORT - SPECIAL

REVENUES

100 100155 78REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

10,000 10,00010,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

10,100 10,10010,155 78TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

134 134119 134SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

8,113 8,113501 441SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,853 1,8531,487INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,100 10,1002,107 575TOTAL EXPENDITURES

8,048 (497)150800 NET COST

28Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

SHOSHONE AIRPORT NET COST 8,048 (497)

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

045700 RECYCLING & WASTE MGMT

REVENUES

1,600,000 1,600,0001,954,397 628,036TAXES - SALES4060

500,000 500,000532,754 128,533LICENSES & PERMITS4100

14,380 14,38015,230 6,412REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

75,000 75,00021,249 10,980AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

1,594,992 1,594,9921,596,548 591,551CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

327,000 605,000784,730OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

20,000 20,00040,190OTHER REVENUE4900

4,131,372 4,409,3724,945,098 1,365,512TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,625,905 1,521,1541,320,499 795,192SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

1,619,338 2,515,0232,030,224 865,257SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

368,863 368,924320,062 79,814INTERNAL CHARGES5200

100,426 100,426206,681 49,788DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL5550

6,577 6,57712,745 3,713DEBT SERVICE INTEREST5560

928,000 415,005276,728 143,240FIXED ASSETS5600

300,000 300,000761,125OTHER FINANCING USES5800

4,949,109 5,227,1094,928,064 1,937,004TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(817,737) (817,737)17,034 (571,492)045700 NET COST

045701 RECYCLING & WASTE CAPITAL IMPR

REVENUES

960 674REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

300,000 300,000761,125OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

300,000 300,000762,085 674TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

327,000 327,000272,270OTHER FINANCING USES5800

327,000 327,000272,270TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(27,000) (27,000)489,815 674045701 NET COST

643111 TECOPA LAGOON PHASE 2

EXPENDITURES

23,243 23,243SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

1,000 1,000INTERNAL CHARGES5200

233,883 233,883FIXED ASSETS5600

29Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

258,126 258,126TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(258,126) (258,126)643111 NET COST

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL NET COST 506,849 (570,818) (1,102,863) (1,102,863)

PUBLIC WORKS NET COST 3,399,874 (6,010,023) (3,251,068) (3,311,425)

SHERIFF

ANIMAL CONTROL

621400 CAL ANIMAL SPRING GRANT

REVENUES

63,741 63,74163,741AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

63,741 63,74163,741TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

63,741 63,741SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

63,741 63,741TOTAL EXPENDITURES

63,741621400 NET COST

ANIMAL CONTROL NET COST 63,741

SHERIFF GRANTS

671413 CALMET TASK FORCE

REVENUES

122,558 122,558123,060 63,563AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

122,558 122,558123,060 63,563TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

73,946 78,52067,088 48,251SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

86,001 81,42772,977 8,816INTERNAL CHARGES5200

10,000 10,00010,000OTHER CHARGES5500

169,947 169,947150,065 57,067TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(47,389) (47,389)(27,005) 6,496671413 NET COST

671507 ILLEGAL CANNABIS SUPRESSION

REVENUES

20,000 20,00021,507AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

20,000 20,00021,507TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

30Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

15,000 15,000SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

5,000 5,0001,926SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

20,000 20,0001,926TOTAL EXPENDITURES

19,581671507 NET COST

SHERIFF GRANTS NET COST (7,424) 6,496 (47,389) (47,389)

SHERIFF OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE

623520 OFF HWY VEHICLE GRANT 20-21

REVENUES

65,543AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

65,543TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

65,543623520 NET COST

623522 OFF HWY VEHICLE GRANT 22-23

REVENUES

42,000 42,000AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

42,000 42,000TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

2,000 2,000SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

20,000 20,000INTERNAL CHARGES5200

20,000 20,000FIXED ASSETS5600

42,000 42,000TOTAL EXPENDITURES

623522 NET COST

SHERIFF OFF HIGHWAY VEHICLE NET COST 65,543

SHERIFF NET COST 58,119 70,237 (47,389) (47,389)

WATER

WATER

024102 WATER DEPARTMENT

REVENUES

5,000 5,0005,028 2,888REV USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY4350

1,956,818 1,930,9231,731,247 1,800,923AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

6,200 6,20012,852 4,251CHARGES FOR CURRENT SERVICES4600

31Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

65,000 65,00053,664 3,639OTHER FINANCING SOURCES4800

100 100113OTHER REVENUE4900

2,033,118 2,007,2231,802,904 1,811,701TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

1,430,687 1,430,6871,160,110 611,990SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

400,062 400,062122,063 59,809SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

329,174 329,346165,565 134,564INTERNAL CHARGES5200

75,000 75,00058,664 3,639OTHER CHARGES5500

6,347 5,0003,043FIXED ASSETS5600

2,241,270 2,240,0951,506,402 813,045TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(208,152) (232,872)296,502 998,656024102 NET COST

024502 SALT CEDAR PROJECT

REVENUES

90,505 90,50592,484 33,085AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

90,505 90,50592,484 33,085TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

81,396 81,39668,652 24,682SALARIES & BENEFITS5000

5,700 5,7004,075SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

22,805 20,80519,758 9,238INTERNAL CHARGES5200

109,901 107,90192,485 33,920TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(19,396) (17,396)(1) (835)024502 NET COST

621902 OWENS RIVER WATER TRAIL GRANT

REVENUES

500,032 500,032AID FROM OTHER GOVT AGENCIES4400

500,032 500,032TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

500,032 500,032SERVICES & SUPPLIES5100

500,032 500,032TOTAL EXPENDITURES

621902 NET COST

WATER NET COST 296,501 997,821 (227,548) (250,268)

WATER NET COST 296,501 997,821 (227,548) (250,268)

32Page



BUD020 - MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

COUNTY OF INYO

FY 2021-22

Prior Actuals YTD Actuals

FY 2022-23

Working

Budget

FY 2022-23

Mid-Year

Budget

FY 2022-23

02/09/2023RUN DATE:12/31/2022AS OF DATE:

(1,767,510) (5,487,522) (8,592,220) (8,601,514)TOTAL NET COST

33Page



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 1 of 6 

 

 

COUNTY OF INYO 
BUDGET CONTROL AND RESPONSIBILITY & 

EXTRAORDINARY BUDGET POLICIES 

I. PURPOSE  
 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that department heads are responsible and accountable to 

maintain their department expenditure levels within the adopted budget and to collect, in a 

timely manner, the full amount of revenues budgeted.  

II. GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR THE REQUESTED ,  RECOMMENDED AND 

ADOPTED BUDGETS  
 

With the exception of traditional General Fund Discretionary Revenues (i.e., sales tax, property tax 

and other general purpose revenues) all versions of the budget(s) should reflect an appropriation 

for all expenditures to be incurred and revenues expected to be received during the Fiscal Year. 

For example: 

 General Fund Discretionary Revenues will be budgeted in a separate budget to be known 

as “General Revenues” and will be the joint responsibility of the County Administrator and 

the Auditor-Controller; 

 Grant expenditures and revenues need to be appropriated on an annual basis; 

 Revenues directed to a specific program and/or department will be reflected in the 

receiving program and/or department (i.e., Trial Court Funds in the court budgets, Prop 

172 in the Public Safety departments, Health Realignment in Health, etc.); 

 All Capital Project Budgets will reflect anticipated expenditures as well as clearly delineate 

the source(s) and amount(s) of all offsetting revenues; 

 The General Fund obligation/contribution to a program and/or department will be 

reflected as the “Net County Cost” of said program and/or department; 

 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 

III. SUBMISSION OF AMENDMENTS TO THE ADOPTED BUDGET PLAN  
 

If a department determines it cannot operate within the parameters of the Adopted Budget, the 

department shall submit a plan to the County Administrator as soon as the department 

determines a problem exists, outlining corrective actions necessary to bring their budget under 

control for the balance of the fiscal year. 

IV. APPROPRIATION OF UNANTICIPATED REVENUE  
 

Unanticipated revenue is generally a new source of revenue for a specific purpose not originally 

included in the budget.  

A. The appropriation of UNANTICIPATED REVENUE during the year will NOT be permitted 

unless the department has realized its pro rata percentage of estimated revenue, e.g., 

a department with an estimated revenue of $100,000 must have received at least 

$25,000 by September 30th before the Board will consider approval of the request to 

appropriate unanticipated revenue. 

Department Heads in processing FUND TRANSFERS must specify the date(s) by which 

the unanticipated revenue will be received and whether it will be in advance of in 

arrears (after costs have been incurred). If the full amount of unanticipated revenue 

will lag behind the expenditure of program funds, this must be specified on the fund 

transfer with a recommendation as to how to deal with the negative cash flow. 

B. Exceptions to IV.A. will be considered on a case-by-case basis. For example, 

unanticipated revenue for a new program, restricted program, etc. would probably 

constitute an exception. 

V. BUDGET CONTROL  
 

A. During the Fiscal Year, the following expenditure accounts will be subject to object 

code controlled at the object level. This means that changes/transfers from these 

accounts will require prior approval of the County Administrator. 

 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

1. Workers Compensation 

2. Liability Insurance 

3. Public Liability Insurance 

4. Motor Poll 

5. Telephone – Internal 

6. Postage – Internal  

7. Computer Charge – Internal 

8. Any other charges categories (5500) 

 

B. All other expenditure object codes will be controlled and monitored at the object 

category level (i.e., 5000 - Salaries & Benefits; 5100 – Services and Supplies; 5600 – 

Fixed Assets) by the Auditor-Controller. 

 

All appropriation changes/transfers between object categories will require prior 

approval of the County Administrator. 

C. Department’s expenditures for grant-funded programs shall not exceed projected 

grant revenues. Authorization to “increase” appropriations without offsetting revenues 

must be obtained from the Board of Supervisors. 

 

Note 1: This policy applies even if a department is within its overall departmental 

expenditure and revenue budget. 

 

Note 2: Should expenditures exceed the projected grant revenues, the Auditor-

Controller will inform the department of this occurrence so the department can work 

with the County Administrator to get the appropriate authorization to “increase” 

appropriations from the Board of Supervisors. 

D. The County Administrator is authorized to approve a new fixed asset or augment an 

existing fixed asset in an amount not to exceed $10,000, provided that the total 

appropriation of the budget unit is not increased. 

E. If an OVER-EXPENDITURE is projected to occur, the department head shall perform 

one of more of the following steps. 

1. Lower the expenditure level to maintain overall expenditures within the 

budgeted amount at the object level or overall departmental budget. 

2. Request an Appropriation Change from another object category within the 

same budget. 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 

3. Request an Appropriation Change from another budget unit within the same 

department and under the Department Head’s control. 

4. Prepare a memo to the County Administrator, providing adequate justification. 

Additionally, prepare an Appropriation Change Request Form for an 

appropriation from Contingencies and an agenda item for the Board of 

Supervisors approval.  

F. If estimated revenue is projected to be UNDER-ACHIEVED, the Department Head shall 

perform one or more of the following steps. 

 

1. Lower expenditure levels so Net County Costs are not exceeded. 

2. Same as Section V.E. 

VI. PROCESSING OF OVER-EXPENDED ACCOUNTS  
 

A. It shall be the responsibility of the Auditor-Controller to not process any payment 

request when an over-expenditure of object categories of accounts will occur and 

there has been no increase in appropriations approved either by the County 

Administrator or the Board of Supervisors as defined under Section IV.B. 

B. It shall be the Department’s responsibility to initiate appropriation changes between 

non-controlled objects to keep them from being over-expended. In the even that an 

appropriation change is not processed in a timely manner and the object code is over-

expended, as long as the total object category is not over-expended, the Auditor-

Controller will continue to process any payments and inform the Department of the 

over-expenditure and request an immediate correction. However, should the 

Department consistently over-expend object line items, the Auditor-Controller will 

inform the County Administrator who will take appropriate corrective actions, which 

may include requesting Board of Supervisors approval to implement budget controls 

over the department’s entire budget. 

C. It shall be the responsibility of the Purchasing Agent to withhold the processing of any 

purchase order which would result in over-expenditure of the Fixed Assets Object. 

D. Even if expenditure savings are available, the transfer of funds between major object 

categories (i.e., Salaries and Services and Supplies) will NOT be authorized if a 

department’s Net County Cost is projected to exceed that originally budgeted and 

approved by the Board of Supervisors. The department should take corrective action(s) 

as outlined in Section V.E and/or F.  



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

VII. APPROPRIATION FROM CONTINGENCIES  
 

It will be the Department Head’s responsibility to fully justify a request for an appropriation from 

contingencies and demonstrate an inability to reduce corresponding expenditures and/or increase 

revenues in other areas of the budget. In addition, the County Administrator, in working with the 

affected departments, reserves the right to use savings in other areas of the County budget to 

offset shortfalls before using contingencies. 

VIII. REPORTS  
 

Department Heads shall submit MID-YEAR and THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS to the 

County Administrator. These reports will provide a projection of the department’s expenditures, 

revenues and Net County Cost for the fiscal year and include the reasons for over-expenditures 

and/or under-realization of revenues, along with a corrective action plan by the Department. 

It shall be the responsibility of the County Administrator to submit the Mid-Year and Third-

Quarter Financial Report to the Board of Supervisors. The Mid-Year Financial Report will usually 

occur in January and Third-Quarter Financial Report will usually occur in April. Subsequent 

financial reports may be required based on the overall financial condition of the County and/or as 

directed by the Board of Supervisors. 

IX. ACCOUNTABILITY  
 

As provided for in State law, it is the intent of the Board of Supervisors to hold Department Heads 

PERSONALLY LIABLE for over-spending their budgets and not adhering to the foregoing policy. 

Department Heads may be required to address the Board of Supervisors and/or the County 

Administrator on the financial performance of their departments.  

 

 

 



Inyo County Board of Supervisors Approved June 3, 1997 

Extraordinary Budget Policies Revised & Amended February 8, 2022 

County of Inyo 
Policy Name: Budget Control and Responsibility  

& Extraordinary Budget Policies 
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

EXTRAORDINARY BUDGET CONTROL POLICIES  
 

1. Department heads are responsible and accountable to maintain their department budgets. 
2. Departments must promptly prepare and submit billings for reimbursable revenue; doing 

so as soon as permissible under the terms of the applicable funding agreement or program 
guidelines.  

3. Upon being notified, or otherwise learning of a reduction in funding, or a possible 
reduction in funding that could impact a department’s ability to collect the full amount of 
budgeted revenues, the department head shall immediately notify, in writing, the Board of 
Supervisors and County Budget Officer. 

4. Upon being notified of the suspension or elimination of payments, or upon learning of any 
other known reduction in budgeted revenues, the department head shall immediately 
prepare appropriate amendments to the affected budget(s) for consideration by the Board 
of Supervisors within two-weeks of the notice. 

5. Minimize purchases to maximize end-of-the-year Fund Balance. 
6. Minimize travel expense to maximize end-of-the-year Fund Balance. 
7. To enrich cultural and recreational opportunities for residents and visitors alike, and to 

provide assistance to the local tourism industry in attracting visitors to the county, the 
County will strive to maintain Advertising County Resources programs and contracts to the 
extent practical when considering other Budget needs and revenue projections, but no 
recipient of a County grant or contract should assume or count on continued funding 
beyond the year in which the grant or contract is awarded. 

8. Department heads responsible for programs that might be proposed for realignment or 

restructuring by the State, need to evaluate all realignment/restructuring proposals and 

alert the Board of Supervisors and County Administrator of the proposals, their potential 

impacts (positive and negative), and any issues specific to Inyo County or small rural 

counties in general. 

9. Departments are encouraged to remain cognizant and utilize the principles of Service 

Redesign to achieve ongoing reductions in expense of increases in revenues.    

 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3492  

 

Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health Division 
Overview 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director, Anna Scott, HHS 

Deputy Director - Public Health, Kimball Pier, 
Deputy Director - Behavioral Health - HHS, 
Chrystina Pope, Gina McKinzey, Catie Grisham 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive a presentation from Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health Division 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health division is the County Mental Health Managed Care Plan 
and houses Community Mental Health services for the specialty mental health population, which includes 
persons with serious mental illness, as well as Substance Use Disorder treatment programming. This 
workshop will provide your Board with an overview of the division's programs, including key 
accomplishments in 2022, as well as future projects/initiatives.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. BOS Presentation - Behavioral Health 
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 2/3/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/8/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/10/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/13/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 



HEALTH A N D

H U M A N  SERVICES
STRENGTHENING RESILIENCE AND  WELL- BEING  
IN OUR C O M M U N I TY

Behavioral Health



M I S S I O N

To Honor and Respect Each Client’s Lived 
Experience, and to Offer Services that are 

Client-Centered and Culturally Relevant

B e h a v i o r a l  H e a l t h



O U R  T E A M
Deputy Director Behavioral Health

Social Worker IV housed with 
Social Services (1)Clinical Administrator

  (1)

BH Nurses (2)

Administrative Secretary

Social Worker 
IV/Psychotherapists (6) 

Addictions Supervisor (1)

Progress House Supervisor (1)

Social Worker IV (1)
HHS Specialist (3)
Parent Partner (1)

Wellness Center Supervisor (1)
Families Intensive Strengthening 

and Response Team (FIRST) 
Supervisor (1)

HHS Specialists (4)
HHS Specialist – PT (3)

Peer Support Specialist (1)

Residential Caregivers (6)
PT Residential Caregiver (1)

Addictions Counselor (2)
PT Addictions Counselor(3)

PT HHS Specialist (1)

MHSA & Compliance Manager 
(1)



PROGRAMS & SERVICES
 

 
 

Community Mental Health Plan
Ø Medi-Cal managed care plan for specialty mental health
Ø Provide mental health services for adults and children with 

serious mental illness (Specialty Mental Health)
Ø Provide outreach, assessment, and integrated services to 

adults with severe mental illness and/or co-occurring 
diagnoses including medication, psychotherapy, out-patient 
rehabilitation, groups, case management and residential 
treatment

Ø Crisis Intervention and 24/7 Crisis Response
Ø LPS Conservatorship services for adults who are gravely 

disabled as a result of mental illness

Progress House
Ø Adult residential facility that provides a home-like setting for 

individuals aged 18-58 with mental health conditions that 
require 24-hour care and support

Ø Available as a 24-hour crisis respite resource 
Ø Access to case management, nursing, and behavioral health 

services 

Wellness Centers
Ø  Locations in Bishop and Lone Pine
Ø Provide outreach, case management, recovery 

and wellness services
Ø Access to showers, laundry facilities, support 

with accessing services like Social Security, 
Medi-Cal, and other supportive 
services/programs

Ø Group activities 

Substance Use Disorders Program
Ø Prevention and education services
Ø Assessment and recovery services, including 

individual and group recovery programming 
(perinatal, outpatient, and intensive outpatient)

Ø Drinking Driver Program
Ø Justice involved services, including Drug Court 

groups and services in jail   
 



PROGRAMS & SERVICES
 

  
Families Intensive Response and 

Strengthening Team (FIRST)
Ø Using a wraparound approach, 

provides intensive, family-centered 
and strength-based services to 
children and their families

Ø Children identif ied as at risk of a 
high-level placement through 
Probation or Child Welfare, or at risk 
of involvement with those two 
systems, are the target population

Ø FIRST follows the guiding principles 
of wraparound, using a planning 
process that values the voice of the 
child and family and builds on their 
strengths

 

 



FUNDING STREAMS
Ø ‘91 and 2011 Realignment

Ø Medi-Cal, Drug Medi-Cal and 
Medicare Billing

Ø Fees (DDP)

Ø  Mental Health Block Grant 
(MHBG)

Ø Substance Abuse Block Grant 
(SABG)

Ø Mental Health Services Act 
(MHSA)

Ø Private Insurance

  

 

 



2022 
Year in Review

Major initiatives in the past year



Our year in review….
We adjusted to our new space, making it 
our own. We feathered our nests (or 
cubicles) with pictures and mementos that 
helped us feel grounded and helped our 
clients to feel welcome 

We gradually returned from working in 
isolation to working together; learning to 
appreciate the voices and laughter of 
others 

We did our best to right ourselves and find 
balance as we helped our clients to do the 
same

We learned more about trauma, we 
provided services to our clients that 
recognized and honored their trauma, and 
we took care of each other to ensure our 
own well being

We risked connection and found healing

Hired a new Deputy Director 
In January of 2022, Kimball C. Pier, 
Ph.D., LMFT was hired as the new 
Deputy Director. 

Focus on Compliance 
Completing state reviews and Corrective 
Action Plans and committing to completing 
State required reviews on time. 
Being proactive in MHSA planning and 
implementation of the three-year plan. 

Focus on Service delivery and Staff well-
Being
Reducing stress associated with 24/7 on-call
Better utilization management, Trauma 
awareness and training for staff and 
community partners



O U R  I M P A C T
A N D  C H A L L E N G E S

WHAT IMPACT ARE  OUR SERVICES MAKING?
541 adults and children improved their health and wellness through the wide-range of 
services provided. Individuals stabilized on medication, learned new coping skills, became 
sober, regained their driver’s licenses and were able to access supportive services

WHAT FEEDBACK DID OUR CLIENTS SHARE IN A RECENT SURVEY?
Ø Clients feel safe and welcomed
Ø The services meet their needs
Ø Sometimes there are long wait times
Ø Therapists are not always available – too many cancellations/reschedules
 
WHAT BARRIERS TO SERVICES DID THEY IDENTIFY?
Ø “I’m afraid therapy and recovery services won’t work”
Ø “I don’t know who to call for help”
Ø “I live too far away”
Ø “It won’t be confidential”
Ø “I’m embarrassed to ask for help”



R e d u c i n g  S t i g m a

WAYS WE CAN CHANGE COMMUNITY 
PERCEPTION
Ø Train community members to be “the helpers” by 

learning basic crisis de-escalation skills
Ø Increase public awareness and understanding of both 

mental health and substance use disorders
Ø Continue in our work to be trauma-informed and 

innovative in our approach
Ø Coordinate care with our community partners and 

stakeholders
Ø Work with our Medi-Cal managed care plans to better 

ensure a continuum of behavioral health services are 
available to all community members



LOOKING FORWARD
2023  

A N D  B E Y O N D



  

Initiatives and 
Projects Expected  

 

CalAIM (Advancing and Innovating Medi-Cal)
Ø Transforming Medi-Cal to ensure better coordination and person-centered 

care 

Ø Requires managed care plans to implement a whole-person care approach 
and address social determinants  of health

Ø Improve quality outcomes, reduce health disparities and transform delivery 
system

Ø Create a consistent, efficient, and seamless Medi-Cal system

Ø Focus on identifying needs, prevention, wellness, community support and 
enhanced care management; focusing on people with serious mental 
illness/substance use disorders, medically complex, people who are justice 
involved, people experiencing homelessness or housing instability, foster 
youth and people at risk of institutionalization

Ø Requires interoperability of electronic health systems

Ø Changes how counties are reimbursed for Medi-Cal services; transitioning 
from cost-reporting reimbursement to fee for service reimbursement

Ø Improving health care access for people who are transitioning from 
incarceration to the community; requires counties to have a formal plan for 
determining Medi-Cal eligibility 90 days prior to release to community

What Will We Need?
Ø BOS supported a position in Social 

Services to provide services in the jail and 
community to meet requirements

Ø BOS supported an HHS Innovations and 
Grant Manager who is helping us keep on 
track with CalAIM requirements 



   
 (

  

Initiatives and 
Projects Expected, 
cont.  

 

Crisis Care Mobilization Unit
Ø Counties are required to have implemented by 

12/31/2023
Ø Provides rapid response, individual assessment and 

community-based stabilization to Medi-Cal beneficiaries 
experiencing a behavioral health crisis

Ø Designed to de-escalate and stabilize a crisis situation, 
meeting people where they are and avoiding 
emergency department care, hospitalizations and law 
enforcement involvement

Ø Mobile Crisis system has to include:
Ø Hotline for beneficiaries to call to request mobile 

crisis services
Ø Standardized dispatch tool and procedures to 

determine when to dispatch the mobile crisis team
Ø Procedures identifying how teams will respond 

Ø Staffing requirements, response times, and response 
components are defined 

Ø Small counties that were granted planning allocations 
may not have access to adequate implementation 
funding
 

What Will We Need?
Ø Anticipate need to increase number of 

staff to meet the response requirements
Ø Contracted training for staff and 

community members throughout Inyo 
County

Ø Field-based technology tools
Ø Requirements are added to an already 

strained on-call response system
Ø Advocacy through CSAC, RCRC, CBHDA, 

and other associations



   
 

Initiatives and 
Projects Expected, 
cont.  

 

Community Assistance, Recovery and Empowerment 
(CARE) Court

Ø Framework to get people with mental illness and substance use disorders 
(SUD) the support they need

Ø Aimed at helping individuals who suffer from untreated mental health and 
SUD disorders leading to homelessness, incarceration or worse

Ø Patterned after Drug Court

Ø Can be initiated by family, county and community-based social services, 
behavioral health providers, or first responders.  

Ø Connects a person with untreated mental illness – and often also 
struggling with SUD-with a court-ordered care plan for up to 24 months

Ø Can be ordered for up to 12 months with periodic reviews and extended 
an additional 12 months

Ø Participants who do not successfully complete care plans may be 
hospitalized or referred to conservatorship with a new presumption that no 
suitable alternatives to conservatorship are available

Ø Cohort 1 (7 counties) required to implement by 10/1/23 and the 
remaining counties (Cohort II) by 12/1/2024
 

What Will We Need?
Ø Full extent of impact is not known
Ø Possible need for dedicated staff to 

provide both SUD and Mental Health 
services

Ø Currently challenged in staffing core 
services

Ø May need to increase contract for 
telepsychiatry and other telehealth 
support

Ø Advocacy through CSAC, RCRC, CBHDA, 
and other associations 



What We Need
Ø Flexibility in what we offer our workforce (e.g. 

hybrid remote work options)
Ø Consideration of offsetting moving costs for new 

hires in difficult to fill positions
Ø Workgroup to focus on hiring and retention 

strategies across all County positions

 

 

  

Bridging the 
ChallengesON-GOING CHALLENGES

Ø Recruiting and Retaining Licensed Staff
Ø Currently have 3 vacant clinical positions in 

core program and 1 in jail
Ø Case manager and Residential Caregiver 

vacancies
Ø On-call cited as contributing to turnover

Ø Residential Treatment Access, especially when 
trying to locate an acute facility for someone 
placed on a hold pursuant to WIC 5150

Ø Facility to Facility transports, especially when 
the individual is aggressive or other safety 
factors are in place

With Our Strengths
v Partnership with Probation, Law 

Enforcement, and hospitals 
v Non-clinical and clinical staff are committed 

to high quality care



T H A N K  Y O U

 

B e h a v i o r a l  H e a l t h



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3460  

 

Agriculture Department Overview and AgPass Workshop 
Agricultural Commissioner 

 NO ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board: A) receive a presentation highlighting the functions of the Agriculture Department and 
associated programs; and B) participate in a workshop on the development of an Ag Pass Program and 
provide any follow-up direction to staff as necessary. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The County Agriculture Office provides service to Inyo County residents through many programs. These 
cover not only agricultural programs but also pesticide regulatory enforcement, weights and measures 
regulatory enforcement, mosquito control, invasive plant management, and commercial cannabis 
permitting. This presentation will outline the various programs that operate under the umbrella of the 
Agriculture Department.  
 
California Assembly Bill 1103 authorizes a County Board of Supervisors, a County Agricultural 
Commissioner, or other designated agency to establish a program for agricultural producers to access 
their property and/or livestock following a natural disaster. This workshop seeks to outline what this 
program is (and isn't), examines examples from other areas in California, and seeks input from your 
board on the development and establishment of such a program in Inyo County. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

If pursued, AgPass would be included in the 
department budget. 

Budget Unit 023300 

Budgeted? Not at this time Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing expenditure if pursued  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
None 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Unknown 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your board could decline to receive a presentation on that Agriculture Department and/or participate in 
the Ag Pass Introduction Workshop 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
USFS, BLM, CalFire, Sheriff, CHP, other fire agencies, potentially Mono County and fire agencies in 
Mono County. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. AgPass Workshop 
  
APPROVALS: 
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 1/25/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/1/2023 
Nathan Reade Approved - 2/1/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/1/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

AgPass Program Workshop
Inyo County Board of Supervisors – February 21, 2023



Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

• Ventura County Farmworker ID Program (2010)
• Blank cards distributed to agricultural producers
• Formal records begin 2012
• By 2017 there are more than 400 cardholders when the Thomas Fire occurs
• Effectiveness of the program is mixed during and after the fire

• Industry associations begin looking at the issue statewide

• A few counties begin looking at implementing programs similar to Ventura

The Background



Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

• Assembly Bill 1103 (2021)
• Authorizes a County Board of Supervisors, County Agricultural Commissioner, or other 

designated agency to establish a livestock pass program to allow access to their property 
or other livestock producer’s property if permission has been granted following a natural 
disaster. 

• Requires training for those holding passes, requires the state to develop this training on or 
before January 1, 2023

• Requires that participants prove they are commercial agricultural producers
• Requires that participants provide a description or maps of the lands managed by the 

participant.
• Allows access for care or evacuation of animals
• Provides for local expertise to be furnished to emergency personnel if requested

The Background



• 2017 Thomas Fire (Ventura)
• Largest wildfire in CA history at the time
• Access pass program hade been in place for a few years with over 400 

cardholders
• Conclusion: mixed results:

• A lack of regular briefings on the program led to a lack of awareness
• Some cardholders could not access property, leading to orchard losses and livestock 

death
• Some producers were able to access property and minimize losses while also assisting 

emergency personnel with access points and water sources
• Additionally, information was given to emergency personnel regarding infrastructure 

locations and safe areas for emergency personnel

Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

Case Study



• Emergency personnel needs to be aware of the program and be briefed on 
protocol regularly

• Law enforcement and fire need to be a part of creating the passes
• Plans should be in place regarding educating local emergency personnel 

before a fire occurs, but also personnel from out of the area during an active 
fire event

Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

Lessons Learned



Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

Where are we now?

• Several California counties are establishing AgPass Programs
• There is local interest in creating such a program here
• Initial outreach to stakeholders has occurred:

• CalFire
• Mono Sheriff
• Inyo Sheriff
• Inyo/Mono Farm Bureau
• Inyo/Mono Cattlemen’s Association
• Inyo/Mono UC Cooperative Extension
• Mono County Animal Control
• Local Volunteer Fire Departments
• California Highway Patrol
• USFS
• BLM



Where are we now?

Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 

• Passes can be issued by the Agricultural Commissioner’s Office
• It may be advantageous to work with stakeholders in Inyo and Mono to build 

a streamlined and consistent AgPass for the region
• Many of our agencies exist in both counties
• Many of our agriculture operations cross counties

• Absent any real county-specific issues identified, the recommendation would 
be to build one consistent program for the region



Counties of Inyo and Mono
Agriculture • Weights & Measures • Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program • Eastern Sierra Weed Management Area
Mammoth Lakes Mosquito Abatement District • Inyo County Commercial Cannabis Permit Office 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

February 21, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3501  

 

Request from Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control 
Outside Agency 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board/Public 
Relations Liaison 

Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Request Board designate authority for making future determination of Public Convenience or Necessity 
for persons/premises applying for an ABC license. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control may deny licenses if issuance would result in or add to 
undue concentration of licenses. Undue concentration has occurred before in Inyo County in 
communities with very small populations. Section 23958.4 of Business and Professionals Code allows 
ABC to issue certain license types -- off-sale, public premises, and club-type, for example -- if the local 
governing body or its designated subordinate determinates that issuance of the license would serve a 
public convenience or necessity (PCN). 
 
ABC is requesting your Board designate either itself or a subordinate to make PCN determinations in the 
future. Traditionally, the Board has been responsible for making such determinations. The Board can 
also decline to make PCN determinations, in which case the authority to make the determinations reverts 
to ABC. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to make a selection.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Planning. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. ABC - Public Convenience Finding 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 2/8/2023 
Cathreen Richards Approved - 2/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 2/8/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 2/16/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

DEPARTMENT OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL
4800 Stockdale Hwy., Ste.213
Bakersfield, CA 93301
(661) 395-2731

January 20,2023
BFCEIVED

Inyo County Board of Supervisors
P.O. Box Drawer N
Independence, CA 93526

JAN bl eOZl

tnvo County Admtntstralot
Clerk of the Board

RE Public Convenience or Necessity
23958.4 CA Business & Professions Code
Designation of Subordinate Officer or Body

To Whom It May Concern:

Pursuant to Section 23958 of the California Business and Professions Code (BPC), the
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) shall deny an application for a license if
issuance would result in or add to an undue concentration of licenses. Section 23958.4 BPC
defines what constitutes an "undue concentration" of ABC licenses.

Section 23958.4 further states, with respect to certain license types, e.g., off-sale (types 20,21),
public premises (types 42,48), and certain club-type licenses (types 50,51,57), the Department
ma! issue said licenses i.f the local governing bod:t, or its designated subordinate o-fficer or bodlt,

suance o the I

In accordance with the above, the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) is
requesting that the local governing body for each jurisdiction complete the applicable section
below. With this information the Department will be able to assist our customers with the Public
Convenience or Necessity (PCN) process, including but not limited to, which entity to contact
for a PCN determination. Please complete one of the below sections and retum to the
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) so our records may be updated with current
information.

n The City Council or Board of Supervisors of the City/County of
will make determinations of Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) for
persons/premises applying for an ABC license.

n The City Council or Board of Supervisors of the City/County of _
has designated the following subordinate offrcer or body to make determinations of
Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) for persons/premises applying for an ABC
license.



! The City/County of _ has declined to make determinations of Public
Convenience or Necessity (PCN) for persons/premises applying for an ABC license.

Under this circumstance, determinations for Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) will
revert to the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC).

Pursuant to Section 23958.4 BPC, if the local governing body, or its designated subordinate officer or
body, does not make a determination of Public Convenience or Necessity (PCN) within a period of 90

days, then the authority to make the determination will revert to the Depaitment of Alcoholic Beverage

Control (ABC).

Please contact us ifyou have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Patricia Halpin
Licensing Manager

Enclosure: 239 58 & 23958.4 B.P


	 Call to Order (Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litiga
	3) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu
	4) Public Employment – Pursuant to Government Code §5

	 Open Session
	5) Pledge of Allegiance
	6) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	7) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	8) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	9) Minutes from the February 7, 2023 Board of Supervi
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft Feb. 7, 2023 Minutes

	10) Addendum to Current Master Agreement between Inyo 
	Agenda Request Form
	Master Agreement Addendum

	11) Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Review
	Staff Report
	Round Valley Joint Elementary School District
	Lone Pine Unified School District

	12) Data Sharing Agreement with California Health and 
	Agenda Request Form
	Data Sharing Agreement 

	13) Addendums to the MOU between the County of Inyo He
	Agenda Request Form
	Memorandum of Understanding Addendum 2
	Memorandum of Understanding Addendum 1

	14) CalMHSA Participation Agreement Amendment
	Agenda Request Form
	Participation Agreement Amendment

	15) Agreement with Department of Health Care Services 
	Agenda Request Form
	Participation Agreement - Inyo County

	16) MedBank Agreement
	Agenda Request Form
	MedBank Customer Order Terms and Conditions 
	Sole Source Justification - MedBank

	17) Amendment No. 1 to American Refuse, Inc. Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	American Refuse Contract Amendment

	18) Waiver of Fees Consideration for Lower Owens River
	Agenda Request Form

	19) Amendment No. 4 to Fountainhead Consulting Agreeme
	Agenda Request Form
	Fountainhead Amendment No. 4  
	Fountainhead Consulting Contract 
	Fountainhead  Contract Amendment No. 1 
	Fountainhead Amendment No. 2 
	Fountainhead Amendment No. 3 

	20) Notice of Completion for Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock P
	Agenda Request Form
	Diaz Lake ADA Boat Dock Project Resolution and Notice of Completion

	21) Appointments to Fill Vacancies on the Water Commis
	Agenda Request Form
	Paul Huette - Request for Reappointment 
	Teri Red Owl - Request for Reappointment 
	Dan Berry - Request for Appointment


	 Regular Agenda
	22) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Mid-Year Financial Report
	Agenda Request Form
	22-23 Mid-Year Financial Report Presentation
	Attachment A - General Fund Income Statement and Mid-Year Budget Review
	Attachment B - Non-General Fund Income Statement and Mid-Year Budget Review
	Attachment C - Budget Control and Responsibility & Extraordinary Budget Controls (Revised 02.08.22)

	23) Health and Human Services' Behavioral Health Divis
	Agenda Request Form
	BOS Presentation - Behavioral Health

	24) Agriculture Department Overview and AgPass Worksho
	Agenda Request Form
	AgPass Workshop


	 Correspondence - Action
	25) Request from Department of Alcoholic Beverage Cont
	Agenda Request Form
	ABC - Public Convenience Finding


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	26) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	27) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r


	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Date5_af_date: 
		2023-02-01T17:16:28-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




